Notice of Meeting and Agenda
March 25, 2025

Special, 3/25/2025 10:30:00 AM

BE IT REMEMBERED that on March 25, 2025, there was begun and
holden a SPECIAL session of the Commissioners Court of Jefferson
County, Texas, with the following members and officers present and
participating except those absent as indicated:

Honorable Jeff Branick, County Judge (ABSENT)

Absent

Commissioner Brandon Willis, Commissioner Pct. No. 1
Commissioner Cary Erickson, Commissioner Pct. No. 2
Commissioner Michael Sinegal, Commissioner Pct. No. 3
Commissioner Everette D. Alfred, Commissioner Pct. No. 4
Honorable Zena Stephens, Sheriff

Honorable Roxanne Acosta-Hellberg, County Clerk

When the following proceedings were had and orders made, to-wit:



Notice of Meeting and Agenda
March 25, 2025

Jeff R. Branick, County Judge
Brandon Willis, Commissioner, Precinct One
Cary Erickson, Commissioner, Precinct Two
Michael S. Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct Three
Everette "Bo" Alfred, Commissioner, Precinct Four

NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA
OF COMMISSIONERS' COURT
OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
March 25, 2025

Notice is hereby given that the Commissioners' Court of Jefferson
County, Texas, will meet at 10:30 AM, on the 25th day of March 2025 at its
regular meeting place in the Commissioners' Courtroom, 4th Floor, Jefferson
County Courthouse, 1149 Pearl Street, Beaumont, Texas.

Said meeting will be a Special meeting for the purpose of transacting the routine
business of the County. Persons with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids for
services who wish to attend this meeting should contact the County Judge's
Office to arrange for assistance.

In addition to the routine business of the County, the subject of said
meeting will be the following:

Jefferson County has taken steps to minimize the exposure of COVID-19 by
implementing the following steps to allow the public to view the
Commissioner’s Court meeting.

The following options are available:

View live with audio from the County Webpage:
https://co.jefferson.tx.us/comm_crt/commlink.htm

Listen to audio by calling 347-973-4395, conference id 113569383# The
court will also have a time for public comments at the beginning of the
meeting. If you would like to speak at that time, please be on the phone call.


https://co.jefferson.tx.us/comm_crt/commlink.htm
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The Court will allow public comments related to items on the agenda that
day at the beginning of the meeting. Public comments will be limited to 3
minutes per person.

Please be mindful that the audio portion of this meeting will be of better
quality from the website.

INVOCATION: Cary Erickson, Commissioner, Precinct Two

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Brandon Willis, Commissioner, Precinct One
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PURCHASING:

(a).Consider, approve and award Invitation for Bid (IFB 24-068/CQ),
Automobile Rental Concessions at Jack Brooks Regional Airport with
Avis Rent A Car System, LLC dba Avis, and Avis Budget Car Rental,
LLC dba Budget & Payless.

NO ATTACHMENTS

Motion by: Erickson

Second by: Willis

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(b).Consider and approve, execute, receive and file Amendment No. 4 (four)
to contract (RFP 23-052/MR), Janitorial Services for Jefferson County.
Amendment IV (four) will remove service for the Precinct 1 Service
Center, located at 20202 West Highway 90, China, TX 77613 effective
March 25, 2025.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 13 - 13

Motion by: Erickson

Second by: Willis

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(c).Consider and approve, execute, receive and file disposal of scrap metal
property. Scrap property to be transported to a metal salvage company
and there sold for such price as it may command and return funds to the
County.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 14 - 15

Motion by: Erickson

Second by: Willis

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(d).Consider and approve, execute, receive and file disposition of salvage
property as authorized by Local Government Code §263.152 (3), for
broken or obsolete items.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 16 - 21

Motion by: Erickson

Second by: Willis

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED
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COUNTY AUDITOR:

(a).Consider and approve budget transfer — Tax office — cost of demolition
as approved by Texas Historical Commission and cost to replace

cameras.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 22 - 34
120-1011-415-3084 MINOR EQUIPMENT $5,845.00
120-1011-415-6014 BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES $16,839.00
120-1011-415-1002 ASSISTANTS & CLERKS $22,684.00

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(b).Consider and approve budget transfer — Mosquito Control — additional
cost for maintenance for the required overhaul of the King Air.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 35 - 52

124-5081-448-4007 AIRPLANE $25,850.00

124-5081-448-3016 CHEMICALS, SPRAYS, ETC. $25,850.00

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(c).Receive and file resolution for signatory authorization for Texas
Community Development Block Grant Program.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 53 - 53

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(d).Receive and file Interlocal Agreement between Spindletop Center and
County of Jefferson for use of grant funds from Health and Human
Services Commission for the construction of a Jail Diversion Facility.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 54 - 62
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Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(e).Receive and file the Jefferson County Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 63 - 261

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(f).Receive and file Financial & Operating Statements — County Funds Only
for the Three Months Ending December 31, 2024.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 262 - 279

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(g).Receive and file Financial & Operating Statements — County Funds Only
for the Month Ending January 31, 2025.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 280 - 295

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(h).Receive and file Financial & Operating Statements — County Funds Only
for the Month Ending February 28, 2025.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 296 - 311

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(1).Consider and approve applying for the TXDOT 2026 Texas Safety
Program Grant for the period of 10/1/2025 to 09/30/2026 with a required
match of 20%.

NO ATTACHMENTS
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Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(j).Regular County Bills — check #526662 through check #526862.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 312 - 320

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(k).Consider and approve budget transfer — JP Pct 8 — additional cost for

new JP training.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 321 - 321

120-2049-412-5062 TRAVEL EXPENSE $700.00

120-2049-412-4052 POSTAGE $700.00

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(I).Receive and file the SAS 114 Letter from Pattillo, Brown & Hill LLP for

the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.
SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 322 - 326

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(m).Receive and file Federal Single Audit for Jefferson County, Texas for

the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2024.
SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 327 - 340

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(n).Receive and file State Single Audit for Jefferson County, Texas for the

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2024.



Notice of Meeting and Agenda
March 25, 2025

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 341 - 354

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(o).Receive and file Passenger Facility Charge Audit Report for Public
Agencies for the Year Ended September 30, 2024.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 355 - 368

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

(a).Consider, possibly approve, and authorize the County Judge to execute
an Amended Tax Abatement Agreement between Jefferson County and
Energy Transfer Spindletop LLC to correct a ministerial mistake to
properly attach the proper abatement schedule for Phases 3-5 which was
inadvertently omitted.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 369 - 372

Motion by: Erickson

Second by: Willis

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

TAX OFFICE:

(a).Consider and approve an erroneous or overpayment property tax refund
to Brady Craig Koch Sr. in the amount of $7,041.55 in accordance with
Property Tax Code 31.11

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 373 - 378

Motion by: Willis

Second by: Sinegal

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(b).Consider and approve an erroneous or overpayment property tax refund
to Froghead Industries LP, in the amount of $3,000.00 in accordance
with Property Tax Code 31.11


https://3,000.00
https://7,041.55
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SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 379 - 384

Motion by: Willis

Second by: Sinegal

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(c).Consider and approve an erroneous or overpayment property tax refund
to Martin Product Sales, in the amount of $3,681.94 in accordance with
Property Tax Code 31.11

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 385 - 388

Motion by: Willis

Second by: Sinegal

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(d).Consider and approve an erroneous or overpayment property tax refund
to Amanda R. Thompson, in the amount of $7,367.60 in accordance with
Property Tax Code 31.11

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 389 - 394

Motion by: Willis

Second by: Sinegal

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(e).Consider and approve an erroneous or overpayment property tax refund
to Eric & Alison Eldridge, in the amount of $3,753.04 in accordance
with Property Tax Code 31.11

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 395 - 400

Motion by: Willis

Second by: Sinegal

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

(f).Consider and approve an erroneous or overpayment property tax refund
to Zona Jones, in the amount of $7,899.81 in accordance with Property
Tax Code 31.11

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 401 - 406

Motion by: Willis

Second by: Sinegal

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED


https://7,899.81
https://3,753.04
https://7,367.60
https://3,681.94
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COUNTY TREASURER:

(a).Receive and File Investment Schedule for February, 2025, including the
year to date earnings on County funds.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 407 - 409

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT:

(a).Consider and possibly approve a Replat of Lots 11 & 16 of Industrial
Sites - Section 1 of Industrial City - Beaumont, Texas Volume 10 Page
118 Map Records, Jefferson County, Texas into Lots 11A and 16A
Industrial Sites - Section 1 of Industrial City - Beaumont, Texas. Out of
T & N. O. Railroad Company Survey, Section No. 21, Abstract Number
261, Jefterson County, Texas. This replat is located off of Industrial
Road in Precinct #4 and is in City of Beaumont ETJ. This Replat has met
all of Jefferson County platting requirements.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 410 - 410

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Willis

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT:

(a).Consider and possibly approve a Resolution recognizing David Fling for
his 33 years and 2 months of service to the Jefferson County Juvenile
Probation Department and wishing him well in retirement.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 411 - 411

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED
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(b).Consider and possibly approve out of state travel for Kesha Duplechain
to transport a youth to Desert Lily Academy (Post Adjudication
Residential Services) in Queen Creek, Arizona, and to visit said youth
once every 3 months. All expenses will be paid by the Desert Lily
Academy, including ticket cost, housing and meals.

NO ATTACHMENTS

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT:

(a).Consider and possibly approve a Resolution recognizing Bruce P. Minter
for his 32 years of service to the Jefferson County Sheriff’s Office
Correctional Facility and wishing him well in retirement.

SEE ATTACHMENTS ON PAGES 412 - 412

Motion by: Sinegal

Second by: Erickson

In Favor: Willis, Erickson, Sinegal, Alfred
Action: APPROVED

OTHER BUSINESS:

***DISCUSSION ON ANY OTHER ITEM NOT ON AGENDA
WITHOUT TAKING ACTION.

Receive reports from Elected Officials and staff on matters of community
interest without taking action.

Jeff R. Branick
County Judge
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Special, March 25, 2025

There being no further business to come before the Court at this time, same is
now here adjourned on this date, March 25, 2025.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
Deborah Clark, Purchasing Agent

1001 Peart Street, 3 Floor, Beaumont, TX 77701 409-835-83593 Fax 409-835-8456

AMENDMENT IV TO CONTRACT

March 13, 2025

Southeast Texas Building Service, Inc.
3304 Spurlock Rd.

Nederland. TX 77627

Attention: Robert Bodin

Dear Mr. Bodin:

This letter will serve as Amendment [V (four) to contract RFP 23-052/MR, Janitorial Services [or
Jefferson County.

Amendment IV (four) will remove service for the Precinct 1 Setvice Center located at 20202 West
Highway 90, China, TX 77613, effective March 25, 2025.

Please sign below, and return to me via fax (409) 835-8456 or by E-Mail at:
cynthia.greene@jeffersoncountytx.gov.

—

AN 314 )RS

Southeast Texas Building Service, Inc. Date

e'Acosta Hellberg
Clerk, Jefferson County
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JEFFERSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
Deborah Clark, Purchasing Agent

1149 Pearl Street, Beaumont, TX 77701 Phone: 409-835-8593 Fax: 409-835-8456

MEMORANDUM

To; Comumissioners’ Court

From: Mistey Reeves ‘N&‘
Assistant Purchasing Agent

Date:  March 25, 2025

Re: Disposal of Scrap Property

Consider and approve, execute, receive and file disposal of scrap metal property. Scrap property
to be transported to a metal salvage company and there sold for such price as it may command

and return funds to the County.

Thank you.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
1149 PEARL STREET
BEAUMONT, TX 77701

DISPOSAL OF SCRAP MATERIALS

March 25, 2025

DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY VIN ASSET NO.
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. FIREWALL STAIRS FOR FUEL TANK
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. BUSH HOG
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. CRACKED GRADALL BUCKET
ROAD & BRIDGE PCT. DUMP TRUCK FENDERS

ROAD & BRIDGE PCT.

DUMP TRUCK HITCHES

ROAD & BRIDGE PCT.

HYDRAULIC CYLINDER

ROAD & BRIDGE PCT.

WATER TRUCK NOZZLE

=Alalalalalalal-a

ROAD & BRIDGE PCT.

LOADER RIMS & TRASH TRAILER

contact person: Jody Jannise

MAINTENANCE - BEAUMONT CLARK ELECTRIC PALLET JACK

contact person: Greg Keller

DATE

3 l 2L ﬂ —5 Approved by Commissioners' Cfourt:

) ag@




JEFFERSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
Deborah Clark, Purchasing Agent

1149 Pearl Street, Beaumnont, TX 77701  Phone: 409-835-8593 Fax: 409-835-8456

MEMORANDUM

To: Commissioners’ Court

From: Deborah Clark @
Purchasing Agent

Date:  March 25, 2025
Re: Disposal of Salvage Property

Consider and approve, execute, receive and file disposition of salvage property as authorized by
Local Government Code §263.152 (3), for broken or obsolete items.

Thank you.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

1149 PEARL STREET
BEAUMONT, TX 77701

DISPOSAL OF SALVAGE PROPERTY

March 25, 2025

DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY SERIAL NO. ASSET NO.

AUDITING BLUE ROLLING CHAIR 10455

AUDITING BROWN ROLLING CHAIR 10508

AUDITING BROWN COAT RACK 10496

contact person: Vanecia Jordan

MAINTENANCE - BMT 2-WOODEN BOOKSHELVES

MAINTENANCE - BMT 1-WOODEN CREDENZA W/CABINETS

MAINTENANCE - BMT 1-METAL TABLE

MAINTENANCE - BMT 1-TABLE TOPPER

contact person: Greg Keller

TAX OFFICE - BMT METAL ROLLING FILE HOLDER

contact person: Heather Salazar
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JEFFERSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
Deborah Clark, Purchasing Agent

1149 Pear] Street, Beaumont, TX 77701  Phone: 409-835-8593 Fax: 409-835-8456

MEMORANDUM

To: Commissioners’ Court
From: Deborah Clark (x)
Purchasing Agent

Date:  March 25, 2025

Re: Disposal of Salvage Property — Computers and Equipment

Consider and approve, execute, receive and file disposition of salvage property as authorized by
Local Government Code §263.152 (3), for broken or obsolete items.

Thank you.



Jefferson County Surplus for Disposal

Description of Property Serial # Department Assigned Asset #

PERSONAL COMPUTERS

Dell Optiplex 7010 GZQ4AQ22 SHERIFF - BMT 59BT-34988
Dell Optiplex 7010 855DDX1 CONSTABLE PCT 1 65BT-34473
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 2K87942 252ND 37BT-35186
DELL OPTIPLEX 5040 F4XRSD2 SHERIFF - BMT 59BT-35778
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 854GDX1 CONSTABLE PCT 1 B65BT-34472
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 856DDX1 CONSTABLE PCT 1 65BT-34471
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 3IXMWC42 MIS 26BT-35245
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2LJDZ1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34715
DELL OPTIPLEX 780 BHDKQN1 DIST CLERK 31BT-33755
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 BOHLTWV1 R&B PCT 1 111-34269
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 4LGZ12 CC3 34913
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 HH6BX52 CDC 32BT-35451
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 2K90B42 252ND 37BT-35189
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 7XPLCX1 CONSTABLE PCT 7 69CH-34461
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 TXPMCX1 CONSTABLE PCT 7 B69CH-34463
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 TXQLCX1 CONSTABLE PCT 7 69CH-34465
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2LLDZ1 cc2 52BT-34722
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 44A8N22 cc2 52BT-34977
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 23WKSW1 SERVY CENTER O5BT-34457
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 8XK69Z1 CONSTABLE PCT 1 65BT-34651
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 855GDX1 CONSTABLE PCT 1 65BT-34474
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2PJDZ1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34712
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2KLDZ1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34708
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 2RJMQ22 CONSTABLE PCT 1 65BT-35046
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 8XK8921 CONSTABLE PCT 1 65BT-34650
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 942CM02 CC1 51BT-34842
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 2RJNQ22 CONSTABLE PCT 1 65BT-35047
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 855FDX1 CONSTABLE PCT 1 65BT-34470
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 BXK7921 CONSTABLE PCT 1 65BT-34649
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2NKDZ1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34711
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2NJDZ1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34707
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 JOQLJS22 DIST CLERK 31BT-35111
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 H1QJ9Y1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34581
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 JOQCS22 DIST CLERK 31BT-35108
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 86V5Z2G2 COUNTY CLERK 14BT-35887
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 H1RJ9Y1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34572
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 J0QOs22 DIST CLERK 31BT-35109
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 FO5DS52 DIST CLERK 31BT-35349
DELL OPTIPLEX 7050 FWQ5SXK2 JPPCT 8 50PA-36042
DELL OPTIPLEX 7050 FWREXK2 JPPCT 8 50PA-36043
DELL OPTIPLEX 7050 FWR4XK2 JPPCT 8 50PA-36044
DELL OPTIPLEX 7050 FWR5EXK2 JPPCT 8 50PA-36045
DELL OPTIPLEX 7050 FWQ7XK2 JPPCT 8 50PA-36046
DELL OPTIPLEX 7050 FWR3XK2 JPPCT 8 50PA-36047
DELL OPTIPLEX 7050 FWQBXK?2 JPPCT 8 50PA-36048
DELL OPTIPLEX 7050 JWQXK2 JPPCT 8 50PA-36049
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 H1SM9Y1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34586
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 94L.DZ12 DIST CLERK 31BT-34915
DATAWORKS PC DELL PRECISION |CB16C42 SHERIFF - BMT 59BT-35223
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DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 2K8Y942 252ND 37BT-35187
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 G2PST52 JAIL MC 62BT-35397
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 TKJILXV JAIL MC 62BT-34331
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 5FOYNW1 TAX OFFC 11MC-34381
DLEL OPTIPLEX 5040 HW21RD2 TAX OFFC 11BT-35740
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 3GFSL842 317TH 39BT-35141
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 H1RLEY1 279TH 38BT-34575
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 G4QNK02 279TH 38BT-34789
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 ZRLNQ22 CC3 53BT-35063
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 2RMDS22 CC3 53BT-35062
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 FJFDLOZ 58TH DIST CRT 33BT-34798
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2MJDZ1 DRUG CRT 34720
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 FKVPK02 317TH 39BT-34790
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 H1PMaY1 60TH CRT 34BT-34578
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 FRS1D42 60TH CRT 34BT-35248
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2LMDZ1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34717
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 DIST CLERK 31BT-34113
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 7FLHD42 DIST CLERK 31BT-35256
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 JOQMS22 DIST CLERK 31BT-35114
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 JOPNS22 DIST CLERK 31BT-35113
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2PLDZ1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34714
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2MMDZ1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34710
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 B2NLDZA1 DIST CLERK 31BT-34709
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 G2RPT52 DIST CLERK 31BT-35393
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 JOQKS22 DIST CLERK 31BT-35106
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 2L.3wW9o42 CONSTABLE PCT 6 70BT-35191
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 2K3X942 CONSTABLE PCT 6 70BT-35192
DELL OPTIPLEX 7020 2YG1B42 CONSTABLE PCT 6 70BT-35195
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 BZR2N22 H&W BMT 74BT-35002
DELL OPTIPLEX 7010 6ZR7N22 H&W BMT 74BT-35003
TABLET

MOTION J3500 TABLET 36812 MIS 25BT-34120
[LAPTOPS

MICROSOFT SURFACE BOOK 2 13350274257 COMM PCT 1 111-36900
PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK CF54  |7HTSA49636 SHERIFF OFFC BMT 50BT-36058
PANASONIC TOUGHBOOK CF54  [SETSAD4188 NARCQTICS NRSO-35270
DELL LATITUDE 14 RUGGED 5PZXSC2 SHERIFF OFFC BMT 59BT-37798
DELL LATITUDE E6520 JAND5Q1 JP4 46HS5-33544
MISCELLANEOUS

DELL POWEREDGE T110 D7GPQN1 MIS 265BT-33743
DELL EQUALLOGIC PS42 3XWFKH2 MIS 25BT-35945
DELL POWEREDGE R210 4LBR8V1 MIS 25BT-34274
ALCATEL LUCENT 056450 Y2485966 MIS 25BT-36683
ALCATEL LUCENT 0OS6450 J§Z7215104241 MIS 2GBT-37170
ALCATEL LUCENT 056450 J8Z7212301418 MIS 25BT-37149
ALCATEL LUCENT 0S6450 J82210302700 MIS 25BT-37051
ALCATEL LUCENT 0S6450 J§Z2215104208 MIS 25BT-37188
ALCATEL LUCENT OS6450 JSZ7215104259 MIS 25BT-37185
ALCATEL LUCENT OS6450 J57201300842 MIS 25BT-36813
ALCATEL LUCENT 056450 Y2486115 MIS 25BT-36582




ALCATEL LUCENT OS6450 JSZ210302701 MIS 25BT-36887
ALCATEL LUCENT OS6450 V4482420 MIS 25BT-36159
ALCATEL LUCENT OS6450 JSZ210600688 MIS 25BT-37053
CISCO SWITCH FD01926P1D0 MIS 25BT-35412
CISCO SWITCH FD02212E0J4 MIS 25BT-36289
CISCO SWITCH FD02215E0YW MIS 25BT-36236
CISCO ROUTER FLM233310VQ MIS 25BT-36531
CISCO ROUTER FLM264012KJ MIS 25BT-37389
CISCO ROUTER FLM24331012 MIS 25BT-36793
CISCO ROUTER FLM26391229 MIS 25BT-37394
CISCO ROUTER FLM233310VP MIS 25BT-36532
CISCO ROUTER FLM232613TS MIS 25BT-36490
CISCO ROUTER FLM24331019 MIS 25BT-36797
GRAND JURY TV DA 30BT-34480
PRINTERS

HP LaserJet P3015DN printer VNBCC1J2Q1 TAX PA 11PA-34058
HP LaserJet P3015DN printer VNBCCA4LOL5 TAX PA 11PA-34056
HP LaserJet P3015DN printer VNBCC4L0L8 TAX PA 11PA-34055
HP LJ ENT 600 M601N CNCCF9M14C TAX BMT 11BT-34645
HP LaserJet M401N CNCCFD104C Tax MC 11MC-34725
HP LaserJet M401N VND3N03174 59BT-34684
HP LJ Pro 400 M401N Printer VND3N03176 TAX MC 11MC-34685
Hp LaserJet P3015 Printer VNBCC4LO0LH TAX MC 11MC-34053
HP LASERJET P3015DN PRINTER VNBCC4M1CZ MIS 25BT-34060
JP LASERJET P3015 34052

Other misc broken, unusable, untagged monitors, p,

Tl

Approved by Commissioners' Court

lll

O e <
CountTL
W \1'88\\‘\‘\-"'\

int&rs, scanners

2

DATE
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Outlook

Funds reallocation request

From Kate Carroll <Kate.Carroll@jeffersoncountytx.gov>

Date Thu 3/13/2025 2:36 PM

To  Fran Lee <Fran.Lee@jeffersoncountytx.gov>

Cc  Michelle Farnie <Michelle.Farnie@jeffersoncountytx.gov>; Cindy Savant

<Cindy.Savant@jeffersoncountytx.gov>; Rebekah Patin <Rebekah.Patin@jeffersoncountytx.gov>; Brandon
Willis <Brandon.Willis@jeffersoncountytx.gov>; Deb Clark <Deb.Clark@jeffersoncountytx.gov>

@J 7 attachments (7 MB)

Fw_ Tax office Demolition (1).eml; Fw_ Tax office Demolition (1).em!; PA Tax Office.pdf; Mid County Tax Office.pdf; Permit Letter
#1324.pdf; 25-1011 Proposal R1.pdf; 25-1011.JC Tax Office Demolition R1.3.10.2025.pdf;

Fran

We are ready to move $16,838.93 from 120-1011-415-1002 to Buildings & Structures 120-1011-415-
6014, for the demolition. I've also attached the permit from the Texas Historical Commission for the
demolition backup if you need it.

We are also ready to move $5,845.00 from 120-1011-415-1002 to 120-1011-415.30-84 (we pre-ordered
cameras to get started and need reimburse the account). MIS informed us that the program running our
cameras was no longer viable/ upgradable and we are unable to connect to the Mid and South County
cameras.

| have attached the invoices for the demolition and the cameras for all three locations.

After the transfer, would you please update us with the remainder, as we have more work to complete
and Dohn Labiche finalizes plans.

Would you please prepare this for commissioner's court for approval and let me know if you need
anything else.

Thanks!

Kate

Kate Carroll

Jefferson County Tax Assessor-Collector/ Voter Registrar
Kate.Carroll@jeffersoncountytx.gov - *New email updated 2/12/25
P. 0. Box 2112

Beaumont, TX 77701

phone 409.835.8714

https://www.jeffcotax.com


https://www.jeffcotax.com
mailto:Kate.Carroll@jeffersoncountytx.gov
https://5,845.00
https://16,838.93
https://25-1011.JC
mailto:Deb.Clark@jeffersoncountytx.gov
mailto:Brandon.Willis@jeffersoncountytx.gov
mailto:Rebekah.Patin@jeffersoncountytx.gov
mailto:Cindy.Savant@jeffersoncountytx.gov
mailto:Michelle.Farnie@jeffersoncountytx.gov
mailto:Fran.Lee@jeffersoncountytx.gov
mailto:Kate.Carroll@jeffersoncountytx.gov
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2 PREFERRED
’/\ FACILITIES GROUP - USA

Mailing Address:

PO Box 20658
Beaumont, TX 77720~
0658

[(409) 842-8293
B [409) B42-2274
8 pfg@pfg-usa.com
W pfg-usa.com

Job Order Contracting

Co-0p Purchasing
Agreements

Indefinite Delivery,
Indefinite Quantity - IDIG

Multiple Award
Construction Contracts -
MACC

Task Order Contracts
o

Construction
Management - Agent or
At-Risk

Design Build
Lovernment
Commercial
Education
Industrial
Infrastructure
Communications

Corporate/Retail

Assembly

Southeast Texas

March 10, 2025

Kate Carroll
Jefferson County
1149 Peart
Beaumont, TX 77701

Project: “Jefferson County Tax Office Demolition”

Subject: “Proposal”

Dear Ms Carroll

We are pleased to submit our proposal utilizing our 728-24 Buy Board Texas
Contract based on local CCI and coefficient of .89,

Proposal Recap:

*» Demo 2 workstation pods including lower cabinets, upper light boxes, and
raised floors.

¢ Remove Glass panels and store in the carpenter'sshop.

* Build and Install new wood framed window 39"x 38" prime and paint.

s Protect existing floors. (install Ram Board at pathway).

s **)efferson County to Remove all electrical and data before work
commences**

Proposal Cost $16,838.93

We estimate approximately three (8) working days to complete. We explicitly
exclude all liquidated damages for this project due to market volatility and supply
chain challenges.

Our estimate is based on our interpretation of the project as presented to us. Our
scope Is limited to the line items broken down into individual tasks of work and
developed based upon the Unit Price Book rate as modified by the city cost
adjustment and our Coefficient. All pricing for the required line-item estimate is
derlved from the current calendar year RSMeans Facilities Construction Cost Data
Book with Updates.

This Proposal contains confidential and proprietary information that is intended
ohly for the use of Jefferson County and is not to be shared, copied, or
disseminated in any way. The information includes all attachments, drawings,
sketches, and proposed product selections and must be kept confidential. This
information shall be used for the sole purpose of evaluating this Proposal and
must not be used for any other purpose without the explicit consent of Preferred
Facilities Group - USA.

Once the guantities of work and price are approved, the individual Job Order
becomes a fixed-price lump sum contract.

This pricing is based on initiating the project on Friday morning, with the demalition
expected to be completed by Sunday night. Please do not hesitate to contact uat

Deep East Texas Central Texas Texas Gulf Coast



https://16,838.93
https://pfg-usa.com
mailto:pfg@pfg-usa.com
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FACILITIES GROUP -USA

PN |
A PREFERRED

408-842-8293 at your earllest convenience to discuss this estimate in further

Mailing Address: detall.

P0 Box 20658

Beaumnont TX 77720-

0658 Respectfully submitted,

Preferred Facilities Group - USA
(409) 842-8293

¥ (409) 842-2274 E—
i pfg@pfg-usa.com
= pfg-usa.com Michael Waidley

Operations Manager

Job Order Contracting .
ce: PFRG/file

25-1011

Co-0p Purchasing
Agreements

Indefinite Delivery,
Indefinite Quantity - IDIQ

Multiple Award
Construction Contracts -
MACC

Task Order Contracts
TocC

Construction
Management - Agent or
At-Risk

Design Build

Government

Commercial

Education

Industrial

Infrastructure

Communications

Corporate/Retail

Assembly

Southeast Texas Deep East Texas Central Texas Texas Guif Coast
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PREFERRED

FACILITIES GROUP-USA

Preliminary Estimate, by estimates

Michael Waidley
Preferred Facilities Group - USA

728-24 - 2024 Buyboard - Normal - 4/01/2024 to 3/31/2026

JC Tax Office Demolition ~ 25-1011

Michael Waidley

Estimator: Michael Waidley
Division Summary (MF04)

JC Tax Office Demolition R1

01 - General Requiremenis $1,872.00 26 - Electrical
02 - Existing Conditions $9,210.00 27 - Communications
03 - Concrete 28 - Electronic Safety and Security
04 - Masonry 31 - Earthwork
05 - Metals 32 - Exterior Improvements
06 - Wood, Plastics, and Composiies 33 - Utilities
07 - Thermal and Moisture Protection 34 - Transportation
08 - Openings 35 - Waterway and Marine Transportation
09 - Finishes 41 - Material Processing and Handling Equipment
10 - Specialties 44 - Pollution Control Equipment
11 - Equipment 46 - Water and Wastewater Equipment
12 - Fumishings 48 - Electric Power Generation
13 - Special Construction Alternate
14 - Conveying Equipment Trades $11,906.40
21 - Fire Suppression Assemblies
22 - Plumbing FMR
23 - Heating, Ventilating, and Air-Conditioning (HVAC) MF04 Total (Without totalling components) $22,988.40
25 - Integrated Automation
Totalling Components
2024 BuyBoard 728-24 PFG Texas Normal (-11.0000%) $(2,103.90)  Consideration $(183.52)
RSMeans BEAUMONT, TX CCI 2025Q1, 83.20% $(3,862.05) Nonpriced Line ltems
Priced Line ltems $22,988.40
Material, Labor, and Equipment Totals (No Totalling Components) Priced/Non-Priced
Material: $3,174.00 Total Priced ltems: 6 $22,988.40
Labor: $19,814.40 Total Non-Priced Items: 0 $0.00  0.00%
Equipment: $0.00
Cther: $0.00 6 $22,988.40
Laborhours: 217.44
Green Line ltems:0 $0.00
Grand Total $16,838.93

Printed 10 MAR 2025 4:22PM v2.645

Page 1 of 4

JC Tax Office Demolition - 25-1011
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https://11,_906.40
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Preliminary Estimate, by estimates

Estimator: Michael Waidley

JC Tax Office Demolition R1

Unit Cost

Item Description UM Quantity Total Book
01 - General Requirements
1 01-76-13-20-0020 Temporary protection, flooring, taped seams, 1/8" tempered hardboard S.F. 1,200.0000 $1.56 $1,872.00 F;/[S’\ﬂ%gg(; P
01 - General Requirements Total $1,872.00
02 - Existing Conditions
2 02-41-19-19-0840 Selective demolition, rubbish handling, dumpster, 40 C.Y., 10 ton capacity, weeklyWeek 3.0000 $850.00 $2,550.00 RSM25FAC P
rental, includes one dump per week, cost to be added to demolition cost M, o&p
3 02-41-18-19-2045 Selective demolition, rubbish handling, 0-100" haul, load, haul, dump and return, C.Y. 90.0000 $50.50 $4,545,00 RSM25FAC P
wheeled, cost to be added to demolition cost L o&P,
30*3 =90.00
4 02-41-19-19-2045-2085  Selective demolition, rubbish handling, haul and return, add per each extra 100" C.Y. 90.0000 $23.50 $2,115.00 RSM25FAC P
haul, wheeled, cost to be added to demolition cost (Modified using 02-41-19-19- L o&p
30*3 =90.00
02 - Existing Conditions Total $9,210.00
Trades
5 CARP Carpenters - 2024 RSMeans Facilities O&P Rate Hour 24.0000 $95.70 $2,296.80 Tang&P P
1*8*3 = 24.00 ’
6 SKWK Skilled Workers Average (35 trades) - 2024 RSMeans Facilities O&P Rate Hour 96.0000 $100.10 $9,609.60 Yadgz b P
4*8*3 = 96.00 '
Trades Total $11,906.40
Estimate Grand Total 16,838.93

Printed 10 MAR 2025 4:22PM v2.645

Page 2 of 4

JC Tax Office Demolition - 25-1011
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Preliminary Estimate, by estimates

Estimator: Michael Waidley

Productivity Summary

Trade Description Hours
CARP Carpenters 37.200
CLAB Common Building Laborers 84.240
SKWK Skilled Workers Average (35 trades) - 2024 RSMeans Facilities O&P Rate 96.000
Total: 217.440

Printed 10 MAR 2025 4:22PM v2.645

Page 3of 4

JC Tax Office Demolition - 25-1011
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Preliminary Estimate, by estimates

Estimator: Michael Waidley

Equipment Summary

(Hours as included in RSMeans Crews)

ltem Description Hours
Equipment Total:

Rental Equipment Summary (Rental Equipment RSMeans Line Iltems)

item Description Hours

Rental Equipment Total:

Grand Equipment Total:

Printed 10 MAR 2025 4:22PM v2.645

Page 4 of 4

JC Tax Office Demolition - 25-1011

8¢
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TEXAS §

P.O. Box 12276
.\H I STO R I CA L Austin, Texas 78711-2276
COMMISSION® | 5124656100
REAL PLACES TELLING REAL STORIES thc.texas.gov

March 07, 2025

Kate Carroll

Jefferson County Courthouse Tax Assessor
1149 Pearl 1st Floor

Beaumont, Texas 77701

RE: Historic Buildings and Structures Permit #1324, Jefferson County Courthouse, Removal of 1980's
workstations to open up office, Jefferson County, Texas

Dear Kate Carroll,

Attached is Historic Buildings and Structures Permit #1324, which was issued for Demolition work at
the above-referenced State Antiquities Landmark on 3/7/25 and will expire on 10/1/2025.

Upon completion of the project, please submit a completion report and any other reports or records that
may have been indicated in your permit to the Division of Architecture, Texas Historical Commission,
P.O. Box 12276, Austin, TX 78711-2276.

Please contact Maria Angel at (512) 463-6094 if you have any questions regarding this permit.

Sincerely,

Veroneea %Wa

Veronica Granados

Office Manger

Division of Architecture

For Bradford Patterson, Deputy Executive Director for Preservation Programs
Texas Historical Commission

cc: Kate Carroll, Jefferson County Courthouse Tax Assessor

GREG ABBOTT, GOVERNOR | JOHN L. NAU, lll, CHAIR | JOSEPH BELL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR


https://thc.texas.gov
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£ Quote: 1941 / Date: 2/26/2025
“q,

Wave Solutions
5420 Cole Rd
Beaumont, TEXAS
77708, United States
(409)924.0459

Prepared By:

Nicholas Luquette

4097820684
brandonl@wavecomputers.com

Project: Jefferson County Projects

Scope of Work
Complete NEW DW Enterprise Certified System

Division 27 Cameras

Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost
DW Camera Licenses 13 ea $135.00 $1,755.00
Labor Installation, setup, and training 1ea $100.00 $100.00
AR Mini Dome Network Camera 8MP 1ea $685.00 $685.00
Included (+)
1. Includes installation, testing, and training O

LY
Excluded (=) 1075500

10000+
1. Bid agssumes all conduit, risers, pathways, pedestals, and manholes provided by electrit .00+
change order 685

2. Electricians to provide TGB Ground bar for us to tle any racks or equipment into NO3 o
{ ) a () ]r'r:
3, Assuimes all POE Switches are existing and have the required ports avallable w/full gigs 21 5h(

4, Assumes current cameras to be imported all support ONVIF protocol

SUBTOTAL: $2,540.00


https://2,540.00
https://1,755.00

VWAV E

Wave Solutions
5420 Cole Rd
Beaumont, TEXAS
77708, United States
(409)924-9459

Prepared By:

Nicholas Luquette

4097820684
brandoni@wavecomputers.com
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Quote: 1938 / Date: 2/24/2025

Project: Jefferson County Camera Project

Scope of Work

Complete NEW DW Enterprise Certified System

Division 27 Cameras

Quantity
DW Camera Licenses 15 ea
Labor Installation, setup, and training 1ea

Included (+)

1. Includes installation, testing, and training

Excluded (-

Unit Cost Total Cost
$135.00 $2,025.00
$100.00 $100.00

1. Bid assumes all conduit, risers, pathways, pedestals, and manholes provided by electrician. Additional adds will require a

change order

2. Electricians to provide TGB Ground bar for us to tie any racks or equipment into

3. Assumes éll POE Switches are existing and have the required ports available w/full gigabit support for vVLAN

4. Assumes current cameras to be imported all support ONVIF protocol

Notes



https://2,025.00
mailto:brandonl@wavecomputers.com

g

WAV E

Summary

Subtotal

$2,125.00

$2,125.00

Accepted By

32

Quote: 1938 / Date: 2/24/2025

Date


https://2,125.00
https://2,125.00

Wave Solutions
5420 Cole Rd
Beaumont, TEXAS
77708, United States
(409)924-9459

Prepared By:

Nicholas Luquette

4097820684
brandonl@wavecomputers.com
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Quote: 1939 / Date: 2/24/2025

Project: Jefferson County Camera Project

Scope of Work

Complete NEW DW Enterprise Certified System

Division 27 Cameras

Quantity
DW Camera Licenses 8 ea
Labor Installation, setup, and training 1 ea

Included (+)

1. Includes installation, testing, and training

Excluded (-)

Unit Cost Total Cost
$135.00 $1,080.00
$100.00 $100.00

1. Bid assumes all conduit, risers, pathways, pedestals, and manholes provided by electrician. Additional adds will require a

change order

2. Electricians to provide TGB Ground bar for us to tie any racks or equipment into

3. Assumes all POE Switches are existing and have the required ports available w/full gigabit support for vLAN

4. Assumes current cameras to be imported all support ONVIF protocol

Notes



https://1,080.00
mailto:brandonl@wavecomputers.com

Summary

Subtotal

$1,180.00

$1,180.00

Accepted By

34

Quote: 1939 / Date: 2/24/2025

Date


https://1,180.00
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Jefferson County Mosquito Control District

Organized in 1950
Denise Marcel, Director :
8905 First Street
Beaumont, Texas 77705
Phone: (409) 719-5940 George Mitchell
Fax: (409) 727-4176 Jerry Hinson
Denise.Marcel@ieffcotx.us h Reginal Boykins Sr.
Rufus LaVergne

Advisory Commission:
Dr. M. O. Way, Chairman
Jaime Batiste, Secretary

March 14, 2025

Good afternoon Mrs. Fran,

Please transfer funds in the amount of $25,850 from 124-5081-448-3016 Chemicals to
124-5081-448-4007 which is Aircraft Maintenance. This is to increase line item 4007
so that | may cover the cost of the required overhaul for the King Air done by Texas
Aircraft Propeller. If you have any questions please give me a call at extension 5923.

Thank you

(DLMWMAM,&_

Denise Marcel


mailto:Denise.Marcel@jeffcotx.us
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King Air Propeller/Landing Gear

From Denise Marcel <Denise.Marcel@jeffersoncountytx.gov>
Date Fri 3/14/2025 1:17 PM

To Fran Lee <Fran.Lee@jeffersoncountytx.gov>

Cc  Cary Erickson <Cary.Erickson@jeffersoncountytx.gov>

@J 1 attachment (174 KB)
Transfer to 4007.pdf;

Good afternoon, Mrs. Fran & Commissioner Erickson
I hope that you are doing well!
Mrs. Fran, as per our conversation regarding the King Air:

Please see the attached letter.

The King Air was flown over to Texas Aircraft Propeller & Associates on Tuesday, November 19,
2024. The initial quote/estimate was $38,800. It was determined that the main gear actuators,
nose gear actuators, gear box and motor were required to be overhauled as well and was not
included in the initial quote. It was also a challenge getting the parts due to the age of the plane.
With that being said the final cost is $78,506.63. My current balance for line item 4007 - Aircraft
Maintenance is $65,048.92.

May I please request to decrease blanket 093610 (Clarke Mosquito Control) in the amount of
$25,850? This will make up the difference needed to pay the invoices to Texas Aircraft Propeller
& Associates and allow me to have a cushion for any future aircraft purchases. Please let me
know if you have any questions.

Thank you! Have a wonderful day!

Denise Marcel, Director

Jefferson County Mosquito Control District
8905 First Street

Beaumont, Texas 77705

Office: 409.719.5923

Fax: 409.727.4176

E-Mail: Denise.Marcel@jeffersoncountytx.gov

Please note new email: Denise.Marcel@jeffersoncountytx.gov


mailto:Denise.Marcel@jeffersoncountytx.gov
mailto:Denise.Marcel@jeffersoncountyt-x.gov
https://65,048.92
https://78,506.63
mailto:Cary.Erickson@jeffersoncountytx.gov
mailto:Fran.Lee@jeffersoncountytx.gov
mailto:Denise.Marcel@jeffersoncountytx.gov
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OQutlook

TXAPA Invoices and Quote info.

From Heather Boudreaux <HPowell@txairprop.com>

Date Thu 3/13/2025 3:55 PM

To  Denise Marcel <Denise.Marcel@jeffersoncountytx.gov>

Cc Mark Berkenmeier <markb@txairprop.com>; Jason Falzon <jfalzon@txairprop.com>

II_]J 7 attachments (1 MB)
inv_32064_from_Texas_Aircraft_Propeller__Accessories_23372.pdf;
Inv_32032_from_Texas_Aircraft_Propeller _Accessories_23372.pdf;

Inv_32031_from_Texas_Aircraft_Propeller__Accessories_23372.pdf; Invoice 32008.pdf; lnvoxce 32028.pdf; Quotes for N541MC.pdf;
FW: Actuators & gear box/motor;

Caution! This message was sent from outside your organization. Allow sender | Block sender

Hi Denise,

The (2) Propeller Invoices are :

e 32008 (2/26/2025) = $15,732.15

o 32028 (2/26/2025) = $24,851.40
Giving a total for the props at $40,583.55.— We quoted:$42,452.00 - so the invoices came
out less then what we quoted, due to the discounts we gave -$1,868.45)

The (3) Landing Gear Invoices are: (Mark & Jason were in charge of these)
o 32031 (2/27/2025) = $21,273.08
o 32032 (2/27/2025) = $9,012.50
e 320064 (3/13/2025) = §$7,63

(AN S ) Y2 S ‘J

Giving a total for the props at $37,923.08 — We quoted $34,700.00 - so the invoices came out
more due to the overages on these parts -$3,223.08)

Quoted $20,000.00 for R/R & Landing gear (may of 2024) email
from Jason to Denise — (* Overages on the landing gear came to
$1,273.08)

» Quoted $14,700.00 for the gearbox and motor (there was overages
that Mark spoke to the pilot about over the phone, and he was
given approval verbally.)

All invoices together would = $78,506.63

I have attached
» the quotes for the propellers, and the invoices for the propellers.
o The quote(s) for the landing gear were handled between Jason Falzon, Mark
Berkenmeier, and (their email correspondence to the pilot) for the landing gear


https://78,506.63
https://14,700.00
https://1,273.08
https://20,000.00
https://3,223.08
https://34,700.00
https://9,012.50
https://21,273.08
https://quoted:$42,452.00
https://24,851.40
https://15,732.15
mailto:jfalzon@txairprop.com
mailto:markb@txairprop.com
mailto:Denise.Marcel@jeffersoncountytx.gov
mailto:HPowell@txairprop.com
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side; and the invoices for those parts are on this email, as well.

If you can review these items and let me know if there is anything else I can get for you, please
let me know.

o/ /
, . Vi
ﬁ&ﬁZ%&’-’f‘ el

T gk
Office Manager I | \

vnmv.r.\l(alrpr(:p.cnm HIBCIIEY LER
HPowall gl progp.com v
1711 County Road 130, Peaslarul TX 77581 "\.f[ ﬂr\:f“lﬂ[’\

281-485.4460 [ 1C0-580.PROF

TEuBt 0% ot Narmgek Peopader Punk

x O @ M gw
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Texas Aircraft Propeller & Accessories

39

Invoice

i iesyies 1711 County Road 130
Pearland, TX 77581 Date Invalce #
281-485-4400 2126/2025 32008
B“l TO Ship To
Jefferson County Mosquito Conirol Ji
Accounts Payable t
1149 Pearl Street, 7th floor Beamwont, TX 77705
Benumont, TX 77701 USA
Payment Due Date: Terms Work Order #
N41MC 3/28/2025 Net 30 22027
Jtem Code Quantity Description Price Each Amount
Discount Discount on all new parts -10.00% 649,35
Reconditioned Part (1) 1 P/N: A1852 - Reconditioned Retaining Ring 100.00 100.00T
Reconditioned Part (2) 1 P/N: B3049 - Reconditioned Beta Support Ring 90.00 90.00T
Reconditioned Part (3) 1 P/N: B3475A-2 - Reconditioned Bela Rod 492,00 492,007
Reconditioned Part (1) 1 P/N: C3021-5 - Reconditioned Piston Assembly 2,532.00 2,532,00T
Propeller Overhaul
S/H Of Parts 1 Shipping and Handling of Parts 399.00 399.00
Labor - R/R Prop 1 Labor to remove propeller and re-install propeller in 500.00 500.00T
Community Hangar
Dynamic Balance Labor for a Dynamic Balance 400.00 400.00
CAD Plating 1 Labor for CAID Plating of parts (8 hour and 23 hour 475.00 475.00
bakes)
Labor 35 Labor - which will include an 8130 certificate 140.00 4,900.00
6,674.00
In State, exempt from sales tax 0.00% 0.00

HPowell@txairprop.com

www.tXairprop.com

Balance Due

$15,732.15



https://15,732.15
www.txairprop.com
mailto:HPowell@txairprop.com
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https://2,532.00
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JTI?@S Texas Aircraft Propeller & Accessories Invoice
'l"\'ﬁ"ﬁ'ﬂf;{!'[?}um 1711 County Road 130
Pearland, TX 77581 Date Invoice #
281-485-4400 2/26/2025 32008
Bill To Ship To
Jefferson County Mosquito Control Sl
Accounts Payable treet RECEIVED
1149 Pearl Street, 7th floor Beaumont, TX 77705
Beaumont, TX 77701 USA
FEB 27 2025
AUDITOR'S OFFICE
Payment Due Date: Terms Work Order #
N41VIC 3/28/2025 Net 30 22027
ftern Code Quantity Description Price Each Amount
(1) Hartzell Propeller (RIGHT ENGINE)
Model #: HC-B3TN-3B
Serial #: BUA30056
Tail #: N541MC
A/C: Beech 65-A90-1
Engine:
Overhaul Propeller ***PLANE IN HANGAR - JF TO
REMOVE AND REINSTALL®##
HC-B3TN-3B (O/H) (A)
100059 1 Label, Warning < 0.80 0.80T
100062 | Label, Warning < 0.80 0.80T
106947-D46 3 Hartzell Decal (TXAPA) < 5.70 17.10T
107995-22 6 Socket Head Cap Screw < 64.50 387.00T
Al1306 6 Gasket, Clamp < 3.75 22.50T
Al372 6 12-point Double Hexagon Head Bolt < 21.60 129.60T
Al1373 6 Self Locking Clamp Nut < 11.70 70.20T
Alded 3 Link Pin Unit < 106.00 318.00T
AlB54 3 Wire Retention Ring < 2.70 8.10T
ALB77 3 Bearing Retention Ring < 2.30 6.90T
A2037-1 1 Socket Head Cap Screw < 26.00 26.00T
A2038-12 1 Screw < 22.00 22.00T
A2043-1 3 Self Locking Nut < 5.70 17.10T
A2048-2 8 Alloy Steel Washer < 4.95 39.60T
A2051-1 9 Hex Head Bolt < 1870 |- 168.30T
A285 9 Spring Pin, 3/32' < 1.50 13.50T
A3026 1 Carbon Block Unit < 164.00 164.00T
A304 3 Pushrod Link Screw < 69.50 208.50T
A3067-2 3 Spinner Support Guide Lug < 148.00 444,00T
A3099 3 Compression BReta Spring < 15.60 46.80T
A321 6 Clamp Socket Screw < 24.40 146.40T
A3338-4 1 Thread Lubricant < 12.80 12.80T
A3439 6 Hexagon Jam Nut < 34,25 205.50T
A3482 6 Crimped Retaining Ring < 9.20 55.20T
A3594-6 1 Nyco Grease Decal < 1.65 1.65T
A385 3 Blade Shank Delrin Spacer < 18.70 56.10T
Ad543 1 Cotter Pin < 1.65 1.65T

HPowell@txairprop.com

Balance Due

Www.Ixairprop.com

Page 1
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R
Invoice
Date invoice #
2/26/2025 32008

Bill To Ship To
Jefferson County Mosquito Control Joffers JUIAY LT
Accounts Payable 8905 First Street
1149 Pearl Street, 7th floor Beaumont, TX 77705
Beaumont, TX 77701 USA
Payment Due Date: Terms Work Order #
372812025 Net 30 22027
Item Code Quantity Description Price Each Amount
AG119 3 Link Arm Bushing < 4,85 14.55T
A867 t Rear Split Spring Retainer < 114.00 114,00T
A880-1 1 Piston Hex Self Locking Nut < 56.50 56.50T
A944 3 Linkscrew Bushing < 7.30 21.90T
B1843 { Felt Dust Seal < 8.50 8.50T
B3339 8 Double Hexagon Head Bolt < 36.00 288.00T
B3384-18H 6 Hexagon Head Bolt < 24.10 144,60T
B3599 3 Nut < 12.10 36.30T
B3742 3 Ball Spacer < 7.10 21.30T
B3808-4 12 Nut, hex, self-locking < 6.10 73.20T
B3838-3.2 3 Cotter Pin < 0.95 2.85T
B3838-3-3 3 Cotter Pin < 3.10 9.30T
R3840-5 3 Screw < 2.80 8.40T
B3843-25PP { Snap ring < 3.55 3.55T
B3843.56ZD 3 Snap Ring < 145 4.35T
B3R44.53 1 Clevis Pin < 5.40 5.40T
133897-1 3 Expansion Plug < 2.50 7.50T
B6144-2 57 9/16' Diameter Steel Ball < 2.50 142.50T
B6544 6 Cap, Fitting, Lubrication < . 1.40 8.40T
B6588-1 6 Lubrication Fitting < 1.60 9.60T
3,570.80
HC-B3TN-3B (O/H) (B)
B6682 3 Bearing, Needle < 39.00 117.00T
B6634 3 Bearing, Needle < 34,75 104.25T
37077-52 24 Spring Washer < 1.60 38.40T
C3317-020 1 O-Ring < 3.95 3.95T
€3317-230 1 O-Ring < 6.60 6.60T
C3317-232 3 O-Ring < 7.50 22.50T
3317-235 | O-Ring < 7.60 7.60T
C3317-347-2 I O-Ring < 17.20 17.20T
B3384-4H 12 Bolt < 22,40 268.80T
B3851-0432 24 Washer < 1.10 26.40T
612.70
A1851-TA 3 Hub Side Race < 480.00 1,440,00T
Al851-TB 2 Race, Blade Side < 435.00 870.00T
Subtotal 6,493.50

HPowell@txairprop.com

Www.txairprop.com

Balance Due
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Texas Aircraft Propeller & Accessories
1711 County Road 130

42

Invoice

pY ll@umns
Pearland, TX 77581 Date Invoice #
281-485-4400 212612025 32028
Bill To Shlp To
Jelferson County:ivie Customer flew in & will
Accounts Payable Fly back home when work is
1149 Pearl Street, 7th floor Completed.
Beaumont, TX 77701 Phone # to call when ready:
409-719-5940
Payment Due Date: Terms Work Qrder #
N541MC 3/28/2025 Net 30 22022
ltem Cods Quantity Description Price Each Amount
Reconditioned Part (2) 1 P/N: A3042-A - Reconditioned Tube Spacer 98.00 98.00T
Reconditioned Part (3) 1 P/N: B3001-2 - Reconditioned Beta Ring 972.00 972.00T
Reconditioned Part (1) 3 P/N: B3475A-2 - Reconditioned Beta Rods 492.00 1,476.00T
Reconditioned Part (2) i P/N: C3021-5 - Reconditioned Piston 2,532.00 2,532.00T
Reconditioned Part (3) i P/N: D5862 - Reconditioned Pitch Change Rod 1,572.00 1,572.00T
Propeller Overhaul
S/H Of Parts 1 Shipping and Handling of Parts 347.93 347.93
CAD Plating l Labor for CAD Plating of parts (8 hour and 23 hour 475.00 475.00
bakes)
Labor - R/R Prop [ Labor to remove propeller and re~install propeller in 500.00 500.00T
Community Flangar
Dynamic Balance i Labor for a Dynamic Balance 400.00 400.00
Labor 35 Labor - which will include an 8130 certilicate 140.00 4,900.00
6,622.93
In State, exempt from sales tax 0.00% 0.00
HPowell@txairprop.com www.lxairprop.com Balance Due $24,851.40
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i MS Texas Aircraft Propeller & Accessories Invoice
IR 1711 County Road 130
Pearland, TX 77581 Date tnvolce #
28 1-485-4400 2/26/2025 32028
Bill To Ship To
Jefferson County I\\(ggsqttitcj,;ﬁpi;t;}rol‘ Customer flew in & will
Accounts Payable = T RECEWED Fly back home when work is
1149 Pearl Street, 7th floor Completed.
Beaumont, TX 77701 ) Phone # to call when ready:
EER 77 202 || 400-710-5940
Payment Due Date: Terms Work Order #
N54IMC 3/2812025 Net 30 22022
ftem Code Quantity Description Price Each Amount
(1) Hartzell Propeller
Model #: HC-B3TN-3B
Serial #: BUA20577
Tail #: N54IMC
A/C: Beech 65-A90-1
Engine:
Overhaul Propeller #*PLANE IN HANGAR - JF TO
R/R=k=I=
HC-B3TN-3B (O/H) (A)
100059 l Label, Warning < 0.80 0.80T
100062 l Label, Warning < 0.80 0.80T
106947-D46 3 Hartzell Decal (TXAPA) < 5.70 17.10T
107995-22 6 Socket Head Cap Screw < 64.50 387.00T
Al306 6 Gasket, Clamp < 375 22.50T
Al1372 6 12-point Double Hexagon Head Bolt < 21.60 129.60T
Al373 6 Self Locking Clamp Nut < 11.70 70.20T
Alde4 3 Link Pin Unit < 106.00 318.00T
Al854 3 Wire Retention Ring < 2.70 8.10T
Al877 3 Bearing Retention Ring < 2.30 6.90T
A2037-1 { Socket Head Cap Screw < 26.00 26.00T
A2038-12 1 Serew < 22.00 22.00T
A2043-1 3 Self Locking Nut < 5.70 17.10T
A2048-2 8 Alloy Steel Washer < 4.95 39.60T
A2051-1 9 Hex Head Bolt < 18.70 168.30T
A285 9 Spring Pin, 3/32' < 1.50 13.50T
A3026 i Carbon Block Unit < 164.00 164.00T
A304 3 Pushrod Link Screw < 69.50 208.50T
A3067-2 3 Spinner Support Guide Lug < 148.00 444.00T
A3099 3 Compression Beta Spring < 15.60 46.80T
A321 6 Clamp Socket Screw < 24.40 146.40T
A3338-4 I Thread Lubricant < 12,80 12.80T
A3439 6 Hexagon Jam Nut < 34.25 205.50T
A3432 6 Crimped Retaining Ring < 9.20 55.20T
A3594-6 1 Nyco Grease Decal < 1.65 1.65T
A385 3 Blade Shank Delrin Spacer < 18.70 56.10T
A543 l Cotter Pin < 1.65 1.65T

HPowell@txairprop.com

Www.txairprop.com

Balance Due

Page 1
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JTWS Texas Aircraft Propeller & Accessories Invoice
THAECT TinnELLE r—————
ieessmes 1721 County Road 130
Pearland, TX 77581 Date Invoice #
28 1-485-4400 2/26/2025 32028
Bill To Ship To
Jefferson Countydvfo Customer flew in & will
Accounts Payable” Fly back home when work is
1149 Pearl Street, 7th floor Completed.
Beaumont, TX 77701 Phone # to call when ready:
409-719-5940
Payment Due Date: Terms Work Order #
N541MC 3/28/2025 Net 30 22022
ltem Code Quantity Description Price Each Amount
AG119 3 Link Arm Bushing < 4.85 14.55T
ASG7 1 Rear Split Spring Retainer < 114.00 114.00T
A880-1 1 Piston Hex Self Locking Nut < 56.50 56.50T
A%4d4 3 Linkscrew Bushing < 7.30 21.90T
B1843 1 Felt Dust Seal < 8.50 8.50T
B3339 8 Double Hexagon Head Bolt < 36.00 288.00T
B3384-18H 6 Hexagon Head Bolt < 24.10 144.60T
B3599 3 Nut < 12.10 36.30T
B3742 3 Ball Spacer < 7.10 21.30T
B3808-4 12 Nut, hex, self-locking < 6.10 73.20T
R3838-3-2 3 Cotter Pin < 0.95 2.85T
B3838-3-3 3 Cotter Pin< 3.10 9307
B3840-5 3 Serew < 2.80 8.40T
B3843-25PP I Snap ring < 3.55 3.55T
B3843-56ZD 3 Snap Ring < 1.45 435T
B3844.53 1 Clevis Pin < 5.40 5.40T
1B3897-1 3 Expansion Plug < 2.50 7.50T
R6144-2 57 9/16' Diameter Steel Ball < 2.50 142.50T
B6544 6 Cap, Fitting, Lubrication < 1.40 8.40T
B6588-1 6 Lubrication Fitting < 1.60 9.607T
3,570.80
HC-B3TN-3B (O/H) (B)
BG6682 3 Bearing, Needle < 39.00 117.00T
BG6G84 3 Bearing, Needle < 3475 104.25T
B7077-52 24 Spring Washer < 1.60 38.40T
C3317-020 1 O-Ring < 3.95 3.95T
C3317-230 1 O-Ring < 6.60 6.60T
C3317-232 3 O-Ring < 7.50 22.50T
C3317-235 1 O-Ring < 7.60 7.60T
C3317-347-2 1 O-Ring < 17.20 17.20T
317.50
Al851-TA 3 Hub Side Race < 480,00 1,440.00T
Al851-TB 2 Race, Blade Side < 435.00 870.00T
Subtotal 6,198.30
Discount Discount on all new parts -10.00% -619.83
Reconditioned Part (1) 1 P/N: T10173-8 - Overhauled Blade 6,000.00 6,000.00T

HPowell@txairprop.com

www.txairprop.com

Balance Due

Page 2
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MS Texas Aircraft Propeller & Accessories Invoice
REHREY PRUELLER . ’ S —
"Wﬁ"ﬂ‘l:l:tssunws 1711 County Road 130
\{ Pearland, TX 77581 Date Invoice #
281-485-4400 212712025 32032
Bill To Ship To
Jefferson County Mosquito Control Jefferson County Mosquito Control
Accounts Payable 8905 First Street
1149 Pear] Street, 7th floor Beaumont, TX 77705
Beaumont, TX 77701 USA
P.O. Number Payment Due Date: Terms Work Order #
TBD 3/29/2025 Net 30 22131 (A-C)
tem Code Quantity Description Price Each Amount
Labov - Landing Gear L Labor to averhaul the Nose Gear Actuator 2,687.50 2,687.50
P/N: 50-820208-5
Labor - Landing Gear l Labor to overhaul the Main Gear Actuator 3,162.50 3,162.50
P/N: 50-810164-17
Tabor - Landing Gear t Labor to overhaul the Main Gear Actuator 3,162.50 3,162.50
P/N: 50-810164-18
In State, exempt from sales tax 0.00% 0,00
HPowell@txairprop.com www.txairprop.com B da E ance D ue $9,012.50



https://9,012.50
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JTEXBS Texas Aircraft Propeller & Accessories Invoice
Whikitns 1711 County Road 130
f Pearland, TX 77581 Date Invoice #
2814854400 2027112025 32031
Bill To Ship To
Jefferson County Mosquito Control Jefferson County Mosquito Control
Accounts Payable 8905 First Street
1149 Pear! Street, 7th floor Beawmont, TX 77705
Beawmont, TX 77701 USA
P.O. Number Payment Due Date: Terms Work Order #
TBRD 372912025 Net 30 22016 (A-G)
Item Code Quantity Description Price Each Amount
O/H Landing Gear Set
Labor - Main Gear I (A & B) Labor to overhaul the following 3,800.00 3,800.00T
(2) Main Gear Assemblies
Model # for (A): 50-810286-16
S/N for (A): 1030-06
Model # for (B): 50-810286-20
'S/N for (B): 88-0268
Labor - Main Gear Drag Br... 1 (C & D) Labor to overhaul the following 3,800.00 3,800.00T
(2) Main Gear Drag Brace Assemblies
Model # for (C): 50-810037-615
S/N for (C): FA4996
Model # for (D): 50-810037-616
S/N for (D): FA4997
Labor - Nose Gear Assy. { (E) Labor to averhaul the following 2,800.00 2,800.00T
(1) Nose Gear Assembly
Model #: 101-820029-11
S/N for (E): 88-0120
Labor - Nose Gear Drag Br... 1 (F) Labor to overhaul the following ~ 1,250.00 1,250,007
(1) Nose Gear Drag Brace Assembly
Model #: 50-820205-25
S/N for (F): FA4998
Labor - Shinuny Dampner 1 (G) Labor to overhaul the following ~ 350.00 350.007
(1) Shimmy Dampner
Model #: 50-820004-3
S/N for (G): TBD
Subtotal for the Landing Gear Qverhaul Labor 12,000.00
Landing Gear Parts Kit - 1,273.08
Labor - R/R Labor to remove landing gear and re-install landing gear 8,000.00 8,000.00T
in Community Hangar / JAS Aero
In State, exempt from sales tax 0.00% 0.00

HPowell@txairprop.com

www.txairprop.com

Balance Due

$21,273.08
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Invoice

1711 County Road 130
Pearland, TX 77581 Date Invoice #
2814854400 371312025 32064
Bill To Ship To
Jefferson County Mosquito Control Customer flew in & will
Accounts Payable Fly back home when work is
1149 Pear! Street, 7th floor Completed.
Beaumont, TX 77701 Phone # to call when ready:
409-719-5940
P.O. Number Payment Due Date: Terms Work Order #
NS4IMC 4/12/2025 Net 30 22131 (D)
ltem Code Quantity Description' Price Each Amount
Labor 1 Labor for Gear Box and Motor 5,687.50 5,687.50
Labor ! Labor for overages on this gear box and motor {clutchhub 950.00 950.00
was rejected)
Labor - R/R l Labor to remove, rigging, engine settings, and re-install 1,000.00 1,000.00T
this part on the plane in our Community Hangar
In State, exenpt from sales tax 0.00% 0.00
HPowell@ixairprop.com Www.txairprop.cont Balance Due $7,637.50
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Gla Outlook

Re: Quotes for N541MC Props from TXAPA

From Denise Marcel <Denise.Marcel@jeffcotx.us>
Date Thu 2/6/2025 11:52 AM
To  Heather Boudreaux <HPowell@txairprop.com>; Deb Clark <Deb.Clark@jeffcotx.us>

Good morning, Heather

It was a pleasure speaking with you this morning. I really appreciate the update regarding the
plane. Also, the attached quote has been reviewed by the pilots and me, and you may use the
reserve PO J01418 as approval. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you! Have a wonderful day!

Denise Marcel, Director

Jefferson County Mosquito Control District
8905 First Street

Beaumont, Texas 77705

Office: 409.719.5923

Fax: 409.727.4176

E-Mail: Denise.Marcel@jeffeotx.us

From: Heather Boudreaux <HPowell@txairprop.com>

Sent: Wednesday, February 5, 2025 12:11 PM

To: Denise Marcel <Denise.Marcel@jeffcotx.us>; Deb Clark <Deb.Clark@jeffcotx.us>
Subject: Quotes for N541MC Props from TXAPA

Caution! This message was sent from outside your organization. Allow sender | Block sender

Good morning,

We have completed the teardown and inspection of the propeller for your PO #/Tail # N541MC. Please find the
attached quote for your review. We kindly ask that you confirm whether we can proceed with the overhaul by the
close of business tomorrow (2/0/25) to maintain the given completion date. If you require additional time to give
your approval, please note that the due date that is shown on the attached quote will need to be adjusted
accordingly.

If you have any further questions or would like to discuss additional options, please don’t hesitate to reach out.
We look forward to your response.


mailto:Deb.Clark@jeffcotx.us
mailto:Denise.Marcel@jeffcotx.us
mailto:HPowell@txairprop.com
mailto:Marcd@jeffcotx.us
mailto:Deb.Clark@jeffcotx.us
mailto:HPowell@txairprop.com
mailto:Denise.Marcel@jeffcotx.us
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‘ompany Contact: .

1711 County Road 130, Pearland TX 77581 NAME: Jefferson County Mosquito Control
281-485-4400 / 1-800-580-PROP Denise Wheeler
HPowell@txairprop.com Heather Boudreaux 409-719-5940
www, TXAlrProp.com H i i
DATE QUOTE 1S GIVEN: February 5' 2025 February 8, 2025
(Sl u i (O E 220224 & 220227A N541MC
OVERHAULED PROP i BUAZ0 AMOUNT
1 .
i R 0 |Total Costs for the Routine Parts Kit : Each manufacturer specifies a number of components that must be replaced at each overhaul, |
i [e) \é ¢ {including seals, mounting studs, bolts, o-rings and various other parts depending on the make and model of the propeller. 54'584'00i
20U, 0
T g 5 {An Estimated Amaunt of CAD Plating needs to be complated on your parts: SGO0.00i
L T
In G‘ S [Routine Labor, Materials, and PLI for your propeller overhaul will cost: 54,900_00i
L]
ﬂ E L AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAARRAAAAAARAAANAAAAAAAANAAAANAAAA Rauf{'ﬂeayarhau/?’OTAL C‘a;ts: ####W i
‘-"—"“'-I-l”!-ﬂml-l-l-lml_ﬂ-l-I-I-Il_lmn-l"l“l-lﬂl-ﬂ-lnlnl-ﬁ-l-ﬂ—"mv'-—--—wmw—'
! Plane in Hangar - Kept in storage for Free, $0,00
g Removal and Re-installation of the propelter $500.00
E Dynamic Balance of the propeller after re-installed $400.00
E (1) Blade will not make overhual so we have to find a replacement, that can be mated in to the other (2) blade set,
i (Factary new blade = $10,940.00 - Factory new set of blades = $32,820.00) ¥6,000.00
1
§ (8) Races must be replaced due to excessive corrosion. (Factory New>) $2,310.00
i
§: 3 (1) Tube Spacer had wear greater then permitted. We do have a reconditioned part to sell, ta help bring down the
! g |cost (New Part Price = $163.00 each) #98.00
| ﬁ (1) Beta Ring had corrosion in the groove, so we must replace it. We do have a reconditioned part to sell, to help
i G |bring down the cost (New Part Price = $1,620.00 each) $972.00
i 5 {3) Beta Rods had corrosion in the threads, so they must be replaced. We do have reconditioned parts to sel], to
' help bring down the cost (New Part Price = $820.00 each) $1,476.00
! {1) Piston found an indication of a crack during the eddy current inspection. We must replace this part. We do
! have a reconditionad part to sell, to help bring down the cost (New Part Price = $.4,220.00) $2,532.00
| (1) Pitch Change Rod 0.D. is under the minimum allowed measurement, so it must be replaced. We do have a
L3
1 reconditioned part to sell, to help bring down the cost (New Part Price = $.2,620.,00) $1,572.00
i Estimated Taxes, if applicable $0.00
i 3%/4% Fee for paying with a credit card TBD
L]
Estimated Completion/Pick-Up/Delivery Date: 2/20/2025 or sooner

** TOTAL: 044.00

Upon receiving your propefier, we parforni a visual inspection and hench check to idenlify issuss fike corrosion or damage. The propeller is then disassembled, cleanad, and blade measurements are laken to
ensure compliance wilh manufaclurer specifications, Blades are stripped, repalred, polished, and stalically balanced.Components undergo etehing and Non-Deslructive Testing (NDT), including magnetic
parlicle, sddy current, or dye penetrant inspections, Shot peening, Alodining, and painting are completed as needed. The propaller is reassembled, lubricated, and statically balanced, with all applicable
directives and bulletins addressed, We maintain detalled records throughout and provide an 8130-3 Alrworthiness Approval tag upon completion. Dynamic balancing after instaltation is recommended-—contact
us for assistanca,

OVERHA D-PROP R BUA30056 AMOUNT

]

[ r O |Total Costs for the Routine Parts Kit ; €ach manufacturer specifies a number of components that must be raplaced at each overhaul, $4.584 OOi

TS including seals, mounting studs, bolts, o-rings and various other parts depending on the make and model of the prapeller. ! ]

i Q B C l
u,go

i T ﬁ S |An Estimated Amount of CAD Plating needs to be completed on your parts: seoo_ogi
I, T

i N ﬁ‘ S |Routine Labor, Materials, and PLI for your propeller overhaul will cost: 54,900_00i

i E L AAAAARAAAAAANAAAAAARANANAAAAAAAAAAAANARAAAAAAA Rallt[h@ Gk'efhﬂul I‘OTAL caStf SR 1

.""""-"‘-H-H‘INI.{H-I-I-I_l-lﬂﬂ-lull-ﬂ-l-u-HHH-I_H—I-I-I-I-IME-I‘ W A w S N m W Ny B e

I Plane in Hangar - Kept in storage for Free. $0.00
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necebed O - TP

H

E Removal and Re-installation of the propeller $500.00
g Dynamic Balance of the propeller after re-installed $400.00
i (5) Races must be replaced due to excessive corrosion. (Factory News) $2,310.00
i 3 {1) Retaining Ring had excessive corrosion, so we have to replace it. We do have a reconditioned part to sell, to
i g |help bring down the cost (New Part Price = $.00 each) »100.00
T ;‘\ {1) Beta Support Ring had excessive carrosion, so we must replace it. We do have a reconditioned part to sell, to
E G |help bring down the cost (New Part Price = $.00 each) $90.00
i E {1} Beta Rod had corrosion In the threads, so it must be replaced. We do have reconditioned parts to sell, to help
i bring down the cost (New Part Price = $820.00 each) $492.00
g (1) Piston found an indication of a crack during the eddy current inspection. We must replace this part. We do 5
i have a reconditioned part to sell, to help bring down the cost (New Part Price = $.4,220.00) $2,532.00
i Estimated Taxes, if applicabie $0.00
' 3%/4% Fee for paying with a credit card TBD
Estimated Completion/Pick-Up/Delivery Date: 2/20/2025 or saoner
** TOTAL; 5,508.00
*'BOTH PROPS ADDED TOGETHER: 47 45200

Slghature / Approval Given;

If you have any other questions concerning this quotation, please contact Jason Falzon {JFalzon@txairprop.com)
or Heather Boudreaux (HPowell@txairprop.com)

Payment for this propeller is required before or at the time of delivery, as you do not have terms established with us,
You may pay via:
Chacle; Onee the final invoice is issued.
Credit Card: Subject to a 3% or 4% processing fea.
Bank Wire; Subject ta a $15.00 fee,
Please note that the amount provided above is an estimate only of these charges. They are NOT EXACT, but we will do evarythgin we can to kiaap this
near the number given. You will be contacted shoudl the number significantly change for any added parts or labor regluired. ; do not remit payment

__until the final invoice Is issued,

oo O

Please note:
You may-reply to the amail containing this quote to confirm your approval, or you can sign and return the attached document. We require written approval to

proceed,

If you do not wish to proceed with the aptions listed: Pleasa inform us promptly. Qur internal processes will continue as scheduled, but we can axplore alternative
options (such as reconditioned propellers/parts} if available and within your budget. If no suitable options are found, we will need to charge for the teardown and
inspection.

Freight and taxes are not included in this estimate, These charges will be finalized after the initial inspection, which typically takes 10-12 business days following
recelpt of the propelier, A final quote will be provided for approval, including any additional parts or charges,

All inspections on additional parts {e.g., bullthead) must be completed during the propeller overhaul. If these items are brought in after the overhaul is completed,
you will incur separate labor charges for inspection,

Plaase let us know if you would like to proceed with the glven details/options by responding to this email or calling the shop,
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: Outlook

Fwd: Actuators & gear box/mator

From Bryan Farrar <bmf11171987@gmail.com>
Date Fri 12/13/2024 11.58 AM
To  Denise Marcel <Denise.Marcel@jeffcotx.us>

Caution! This message was sent from outside your organization. Allow sender | Block sender

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Mark Berkenmeier <markb@txairprop.com>

Date: December 13, 2024 at 11;15:11 AM CST

To: BMF11171987@gmail.com

Cc Johnny Aguilar <JAguilar@txairprop.com>, Jason Falzon <jfalzon@txairprop.com>
Subject: Actuators 8. gear box/motor

Mr. Farrar, the main gear actuators, nose gear actuators, and gear box and motor are required
to be overhauled at ever six year inspection. These components were not on the original quote.
50-820208-5 Nose gear actuator $2687.50

50-810164-17 Main gear actuator $3162.50

50-810164-18 Main gear actuator $3162.50

40-1 Gear box motor $2218.75

" Please be aware that these prices are for ermal overhaul. If anything is found to be over and
above normal overhaul we will send a revised quote. We are being told the overhaul of the
components will be 30 to 45 days.

Thank You,

Mark Berkenmeier
- Accessory Maintenance Manager — MarkB@txalrprop.com

PH: 281.485.4400 / 1-800-580.PROP (7767) vQﬂ[ RCRAFT PROPELLER
1711 County Road 130, KL.V]-Pearland Regional Airport E H E E E S S Bm E S

Pearland TX 77581
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RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS AUTHORIZING
JEFFERSON COUNTY REPRESENTATIVES IN MATTERS PERTAINING TO THE COUNTY'S
PARTICIPATION IN THE TEXAS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM.

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of Jefferson County desires to develop a viable community,
including decent housing and a suitable living environment and expanding economic opportunities,
principally for persons of low-to-moderate income; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of Jefferson County to participate in the Texas
Community Development Block Grant Program; and

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of Jefferson County is committed compliance with federal,
state, and program rules, including the current TXCDBG Project Implementation Manual; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF JEFFERSON COUNTY,
TEXAS:

That the Commissioners Court directs and designates the following to act in all matters in
connection with any grant application and the County's participation in the Texas Community
Development Block Grant Program:

* The County Judge and the County Auditor shall serve as the County’s Chief Executive Officer and
Authorized Representative to execute a grant application and any subseguent contractual
documents, to certify environmental review documents between the Texas Department of
Agriculture and the County, and to certify the Payment Request form and/or other forms required for
requesting funds to reimburse project costs, and to be assigned the role of Authorized Official in the
TDA-GO grant management system.

¢ In addition to the above-designated officials, should any grant be funded the First Assistant County
Auditor is authorized to certify the Payment Request form and/or other forms required for requesting
funds to reimburse project costs, to prepare and submit other financial documentation, and to be
assigned the role of Project Director or Payment Processor in the TDA-GO grant management system.

Passed and approved this 18 day of March, 2025.

D Py
JeffR. B ag@%untyjudge
Jeffe ty, Texas

@&Q‘Qiﬁ m,m

bee/n/Helberg, County Clerk
Jefferson County, Texas
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INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
SPINDLETOP CENTER
AND
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON

WHEREAS, this Agreement is entered into by and between Spindletop MHMR Services
d/b/a Spindletop Center (“Spindletop”), a Texas community center as that term is defined and
used in Chapter 534 of the Texas Health and Safety Code (“Chapter 534”) providing mental health
and intellectual disability services (“Services”) to Texas residents, and County of Jefferson
(“County™), a political subdivision of the State of Texas.

WHEREAS, in Chapter 534 of the Texas Health and Safety Code, Spindletop is defined
as a unit of local government as that term is used in the Texas Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter
791 of the Texas Government Code, which authorizes the Centers to enter into an Interlocal
agreement with agencies of the state;

WHEREAS, Spindletop Center was awarded a three-year grant (“the Grant Agreement”)
No. HHS00146000012 from the Health and Human Services Commission (“HHSC”) under the
Construction Grant Program for Mental Health facilities to establish a one-time community health
program for County-Based Community Collaboratives supporting the construction of a Jail
Diversion (“the facility”) located in Jefferson County, Texas on real property owned by the
County. This Grant Agreement will serve as the guiding document for all activities under this
Interlocal Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Jefferson County will serve as the General Contractor for the construction of
the facility funded by the grant agreement and Spindletop will serve as the pass-through entity.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises set forth above and of the mutual
commitments set forth below, Spindletop and the County hereby agree to the following:

1. PURPOSE

This Agreement is for the construction of a Jail Diversion Facility. Funding will not
include the construction of office space.

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SPINDLETOP CENTER
a) Spindletop will gather and submit all required documentation required by HHSC from
County during the entirety of the project, including Financial Status Reports and

Performance Reports as detailed below in the Reporting Requirements section.

b) Spindletop will maintain a separate bank account for all funding transactions related to
the project.
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Spindletop will receive, process, submit to HHSC all reimbursement request.
Spindletop will reimburse the County for approved expenses incurred during the
project that are paid by HHSC.

Spindletop will retain records in accordance with Section 8.1 of Attachment D (HHS
Uniform Terms and Conditions) of the Grant Agreement to support contract
expenditures and will make those records available for review or audit as required or
requested by HSHC.

Spindletop will hold in trust real property, equipment and intangible property that have
been acquired or improved with HHSC awarded funds for the beneficiaries of the
project or program under which the property was improved.

Spindletop shall record appropriate notices of record, to include Notice of State
Interest, with the local County Clerk to indicate that personal or real property has been
acquired or improved with HHSC awards, if requested by HHSC.,

. RESPONSIBLITIES OF THE COUNTY

Oversee all aspects of construction project design and construction of facility.

County is responsible for ensuring the facility is utilized to serve individuals needing
behavioral health services who have limited to no resources. County will support
individuals in the community and bridge service gaps by providing services in
medically underserved areas or to medically underserved populations.

County will collaborate with community partners to address unmet needs to achieve
efficiency, continuity, and effectiveness that one organization cannot achieve. County
must aim to maximize existing resources and avoid duplication of efforts.

The facility will serve individuals in mental health crisis engaged with law enforcement
within Jefferson County, Texas, or from surrounding counties through collaborative
agreements.

If funds allocated and paid under this Agreement are insufficient to complete
construction of the facility, the County is responsible for all other funding necessary to
complete facility construction or must work with Spindletop to provide an alternative
construction plan to HHSC for prior written approval. No additional HHSC funds will
be made available under the Grant Agreement with Spindletop. All expenses incurred
beyond the Agreement amount will be the responsibility of the County.

County is the general contractor under this agreement. Any contract for construction
executed by the County shall expressly incorporate Texas Uniform General Conditions
for Construction Contracts with HHSC Supplementary General Conditions, Version
2.2 (“UGCs”). HHSC and Spindletop shall be named as additional insureds on any
insurance policy required by (i) the UGCs or (ii) required by Spindletop of any design
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professional or construction contractor relating to the construction. HHSC and
Spindletop shall both be named as indemnitee for any indemnity required by (i) the
UGCs or (ii) required by Spindletop of any design professional or construction
contractor relating to the construction.

County is responsible for all work performed in the construction of the facility,
including work performed by County’s contractors and their employees and any
subcontractors and their employees.

County will submit to Spindletop all plans and specifications generated during each
phase of the design for the construction of the facility for further submission to HHSC
for approval. HHSC will give due consideration to the purpose of, and the expected
use of, the construction when determining approval of plans and specifications.
HHSC’s review of the plans and specifications shall be limited to a review for material
and substantial errors and omissions.

No phase may begin without the expressed approval of HHSC and Spindletop. Any
expenses incurred without the approval of HHSC and Spindletop may not be
reimbursed to the County.

County acknowledges that HHSC will have the right to visit the project and view work
in progress at any time.

County shall utilize its best efforts when constructing real property and perform
industry-standard levels of due diligence in areas to avoid owning a property that may
not be suitable for the required levels of care.

County shall develop a project schedule which:

a. Is suitable for monitoring the progress of the work;

b. Includes reasonable detail to demonstrate appropriate planning for the work;
and

c. Presents a practical plan to complete the work with the agreement term.

County shall comply with all local, state, and federal construction requirements.
When constructing real property, the County shall ensure that project costs:

d. Are reasonable;

e. Comply specifically with provisions in Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts’
Texas Grant Management Standards (TxGMS) as it relates to real property,
equipment, and other capital expenditures;

. Comply with other applicable provisions within relevant Cost Principles of the
TxGMS.
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County may only request funds allocated and paid under the Grant Agreement from
HHSC to cover eligible costs. No grant funds may be used to cover costs incurred prior
to the Effective Date of this Grant Agreement.

m) County ensures construction shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act

p)

q)

t)

(ADA) to accommodate those individuals who have physical limitations from a
disability,

County represents and warrants that it will submit timely, complete, and accurate
reports to Spindletop as required and maintain appropriate backup documentation to
support the reports.

Spindletop ensures HHSC maintains an ongoing security interest in any real property
or facilities constructed or improved with awarded funds unless otherwise agreed upon
in writing or terminated by HHSC.

County agrees to operate the facility established under this agreement and the Grant
Agreement between Spindletop and HHSC for its intended purpose, as a locally
controlled asset, as defined in the Texas Comptroller for Public Accounts, Fiscal
Management office, SPA Process Guide, until such construction has met depreciation
guidelines established for buildings and building improvement suggested lives, or ten
(10) years from the date the facility is operational, whichever is greater. The facility is
“operational” as of the date the first client is admitted and is actively receiving services.
However, if HHSC determines circumstances beyond the control of the County,
including but not limited to a change in state or federal law or regulation that materially
frustrates the intended operation of the constructed facility, a natural disaster, or public
health emergency, HHSC may necessitate such a change. After the expiration of ten
(10) yeas, if County determines that the facility is no longer needed for its originally
authorized purpose or wants to change its purpose, Spindletop must provide written
notice to HHSC. HHSC agrees not to unreasonably withhold approval of such request
to relinquish its interest in the facility and waive the use restrictions created by the
Grant Agreement.

County acknowledges that receipt of HHSC-awarded funds from Spindletop creates
use restrictions under this Agreement regarding the facility. County agrees not to divest
the State’s interest in the grant funds provided by HHSC as long as the facility is used
for its originally authorized purpose.

County cannot sell or otherwise lease the constructed/improved facility to another
entity without the express written approval of HHSC.

If the County contracts, leases, or otherwise allows another entity to operate the facility,
County must require facility operation as stated above.

If County’s final costs reported to Spindletop and further reported to HHSC at the end
of the Grant Agreement term as it exists or is otherwise renewed, extended, or
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terminated are less than the amounts reimbursed and advance under this agreement,
County must reimburse Spindletop who will reimburse HHSC the difference on or
before the 45™ day after the end of the Grant Agreement’s terni.

4. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

a) Spindletop will be responsible for submitting all reporting to HHSC.

b) County represents and warrants that it will submit timely, complete, and accurate
quarterly reports to Spindletop as required and maintain appropriate backup
documentation to support the reports. Required reports are:

e Financial Status Report — Quarterly — Reports and certifies that -

o Allinvoices have been reviewed to ensure all grant-funded purchases of
goods and services have been completed, performed or delivered in
accordance with the Grant Agreement;

o All performed services have been completed in compliance with the terms of
the Grant Agreement;

o That the amount of the FSR added to all previous approved FSRs does not
exceed the maximum liability of funds allocated and paid, including Grantee’s
required exceed the maximum liability of funds allocated and paid under the
Grant Agreement; and .

o All expenses shown on the FSR are allocable, allowable, actual reasonable,
and necessary to fulfill the purposes of the Grant Allocation

e Performance Report — Quarterly — Reports and certifies the regular collection and
maintenance of data that measures the performance and effectiveness of activities
under this agreement. Standards are set forth by HHSC and will be reported by
Spindletop regarding the County performance. These measures include —

Task and Purpose

Performance Standards

Goals: 1. County provides architectural, engineering, and related
services required for the design and construction.
2. County shall ensure project design complies with the
requirements specified in Sections 3.02(a)(15) of SB30
(88™ Texas legislature, Regular Session, 2023)
Outputs: 1. County shall complete the project within the budget
that was developed by the project team.
2. County manages the design and construction team to
complete the project within the estimated timeline.
3. County manages project to meet the provided timeline:

- Design Development

- Construction Documents

- Bidding

- 50% Completion

- Substantial Completion

- Completion/Certificate of Occupancy
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Measurable 1. County delivers the project within the budget and

Outcome: within the project timeline without compromising the
quality and scope of the project.

2. County delivers copies of any construction contracts,
subcontracts and any amendments, attachments or
addenda thereto, between County and any design
professional or Contractor or construction manager
regarding the design or construction of the project.

3. Upon completion of the project, County will provide a
certificate of occupation or certificate of completion.

Communication 1. County consistently communicates with Spindletop to
ensure project is moving in the right direction.

2. County must promptly notify Spindletop of any
changes to the project, project specifications, or project

timeline.
Contract 1. County submits invoices timely and accurately.
Administration 2. County submits deliverables in a timely manner and
meets all timelines per this Agreement
e Reporting schedule
Reporting Periods Due Date to Due to HHSC
Spindletop
Quarter 1: September 1 —~ November 30 December 21 December 31
Quarter 2: December 1 — February 28 March 21 March 31
Quarter 3: March 1 —May 31 June 20 June 30
Quarter 4: June 1 — August 31 September 20 September 30

e Single Audit Report — Spindletop will report funds received from the Grant
Agreement from HHSC utilized for this project on the annual Single Audit Report
due nine (9) months after the close of the fiscal year.

5. MILESTONES AND GRANT PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Spindletop is responsible for submitting all payment requests and documentation to HHSC
for funding under the Grant Agreement. County will submit reimbursement requests to
Spindletop who will in turn submit invoices to HHSC for reimbursement or advancement
for services or resources pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement.
HHSC will make payment to Spindletop for all approved expenditures. Spindletop when
then reimburse the County. Spindletop will not advance any funds to the County prior to
receiving the funds from HHSC.

HHSC reserve the right to verify the details outlined in the expenditure reporting by
requesting additional information, documentation, or justification, including, but not
limited to, inspecting any and all financial documentation at a mutually convenient time,
or documentation that establishes that an activity has taken place or an expense has been
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incurred. Any revisions or grant fund repayment deemed necessary by HHSC will require
the County to provide appropriate documentation of the corrective action.

All grant payment requests must be submitted to HHSC no later than 45 days after
completion of the applicable milestone(s). Any request submitted after that time may be
rejected or reduced, whether the County incurred the cost or not.

All expenditures to be eligible for reimbursement must be submitted by County to
Spindletop, documenting milestone completion. Milestones must be completed before
receiving the next corresponding advance. payment. Funds will be released to Spindletop
and subsequently the County on demonstrated completion of each of the following
milestones and upon receipt by and approval by HHSC of an accurate and complete request
for payment submitted by Spindletop.

HHSC will disperse a one-time initial advance payment of no more than ten percent (10%)
of the Total State Funding award for eligible costs. Spindletop will distribute funds to the
County based upon invoicing for design and start-up costs.

HHSC will disperse payment for completion of milestones of no more than eighty percent
(80%) of the Total State Funding award for eligible costs. Spindletop will distribute funds
to the County based upon invoicing for the construction phase that includes executed
contracts between the County and contractors/subcontractors for architectural and
engineering services, and construction services, and completed permitting from the Texas
Commission on Environmental Quality, the Texas Department of Licensing and
Regulation, and local jurisdictions.

HHSC will disperse the final ten percent (10%) of the Total State Funding award upon
substantial completion of the project. Substantial completion is achieved when the facility
is ready to be used for its intended purpose.

Spindletop does not guarantee reimbursement of expenses by HHSC. All requests are
subject to approval by HHSC prior to payment. Spindletop does not guarantee a time-
frame in which the payments will be received from HHSC and paid to the County.

. The parties agree that Spindletop will have no liability for expense reimbursement and
payments rejected by HHSC that are not a result of any action on the part of Spindletop.
This will include late payment requests sent to HHSC due to a delay on the part of County
to produce required documentation.

. TERM

The term of this Agreement will coincide with the term of the Agreement between
Spindletop and HHSC. The term is three (3) years from the execution of the HHSC Grant
Agreement with the option to extend two (2) additional years with prior HHSC approval
for a total of five (5) years. Spindletop will provide formal notice of the Effective Date of
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the HHSC Grant Agreement, which will be deemed the Effective Date of this Agreement
between Spindletop and the County.

REMEDIES

a) Unless otherwise specified, if the County cannot complete or otherwise comply with a
requirement included in this agreement, HHSC, at its sole discretion, may impose
financial remedies against Spindletop. The County agrees to pay Spindletop any and
all expenses imposed by HHSC for penalties based on the County’s inability to
complete or comply with a requirement of HHSC.

b) Inaddition to all other remedies available to the State of Texas or HHSC, whether under
this Agreement or the Grant Agreement between Spindletop and HHSC or otherwise
provided by law, if County fails to construct the facility, then County shall reimburse
all funding provided by HHSC through Spindletop under this Agreement. Spindletop
will in turn reimburse HHSC.

c) Termination for Non-Appropriation of Funds: Notwithstanding any other provision
of this Agreement, if funds for the continued fulfillment of this Agreement are at any
time not forthcoming or are insufficient, through failure of the governing body to
appropriate funds, then County will have the right to terminate this Agreement at no
additional cost and with no penalty whatsoever by giving prior written notice
documenting the lack of funding. County will provide at least thirty (30) days advance
written notice of such termination. County will use reasonable efforts to ensure
appropriated funds are available. Notwithstanding the above, both parties agree that the
sole outcome of this clause is to allow Client to terminate the Agreement upon each
anniversary date of the Effective date and for the sole reason of Non-Appropriation of
funds.

MUTUAL COOPERATION

It is agreed by the parties that it is their mutual intent to fulfill the purpose and objectives
of the Jail Diversion facility construction as defined above.

NON-EXCLUSIVITY

This Agreement is non-exclusive, and nothing herein shall prevent either Party from
entering into similar or same agreements with third parties.

NO PARTNERSHIP

This Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to create an association, joint venture,
agency relationship, or partnership between Spindletop and the County or to impose any
partnership obligation of partnership liability upon either party. Neither Spindletop nor the
County shall have any right, power, or authority to enter into any agreement or undertaking
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for, or act on behalf of, or to act as or be an agent or representative of, or to otherwise bind,
the other party.

NON-WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES AND DEFENSES

It is expressly understood and agreed that, in the execution of this Interlocal agreement,
neither party waives, nor shall be deemed hereby to waive, any immunity or defense that
would otherwise be available to it against third-party claims arising from the exercise of
its duties, powers, or functions under this agreement as a Texas Chapter 534 community
center and political subdivision of the State of Texas.

NON-ASSIGNABILITY
This agreement is not assignable by neither Spindletop nor the County.
AMENDMENT

This agreement may be amended at any time by the mutual consent of the parties. Any
such amendment shall be in writing.

NOTICES

Spindletop Center Jefferson County

Attn: Holly Borel, CEO Attn: _Jeff Branick

655 S. 8™ Street 1149 Pearl Street 4th Floor
Beaumont, TX 77701 Beaumont, Texas 77701

Executed on the dates indicated below:

By

SPINDLETOP CENTER JEFFERSON COUNTY /
)éé/‘féf/%wgf\ S— By: /V/M\ |
Namfe: | ]| anick
Titlex dunty Judge
03/11/2025 Date: 3/18/2025

Date:
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FRAN LEE 1149 PEARL ST. — 7™ FLOOR

C?gor\g\é BAEL_J%J(?R BEAUMONT, TEXAS 77701

March 20, 2025
Citizens of Jefferson County, Texas:

Honorable District Judges:

Randy Shelton, Presiding Judge, 279th District Court
John Stevens, Jr., Judge, Criminal District Court
Kent Walston, Judge, 58th District Court

Justin Sanderson, 60th District Court

Baylor Wortham, Judge, 136th District Court

Mitch Templeton, Judge, 172nd District Court
Raquel West, Judge, 252nd District Court

Gordon Friesz, Judge, 317th District Court

Honorable Commissioners' Court:

Jeff Branick, County Judge

Brandon Willis, Commissioner, Precinct No. 1

Cary Erickson, Commissioner, Precinct No. 2

Michael “Shane” Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct No. 3
Everette “Bo” Alfred, Commissioner, Precinct No. 4

The County Auditor’s Office (“the Auditor’s Office”) is pleased to present the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (“Annual Report”) of Jefferson County, Texas (the “County”) for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024. This report is submitted in accordance with Section
114.025 of the Texas Local Government Code and has been prepared by the County Auditor’s staff.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements.

Pattillo, Brown & Hill, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unmodified (“clean”)
opinion on the County’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2024. The
independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements.
The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Jefferson County was created in 1836 and organized in 1837 as one of the original counties of the
Republic of Texas. It is a 954 square mile county that is located on the upper Texas Coast and is a
component of the Beaumont-Port Arthur-Orange Metropolitan Statistical Area. According to the
U.S. Department of Commerce-Bureau of the Census, the 2020 population of the County was
251,565. The County is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located
within its boundaries.

Jefferson County is a political subdivision of the State of Texas and the Commissioners’ Court is the
governing body ofthe County. It is composed of the County Judge elected from the County at large,
and four Commissioners, each elected from a separate precinct, all elected for four-year terms. The
County Judge is the presiding officer of the Commissioners’ Court.

The County (primary government) solely or in cooperation with other local governmental entities
provides a full range of services authorized by the Texas Constitution and Statutes that includes
construction and maintenance of roads and bridges, health and housing services, assistance to
indigents, juvenile and adult justice programs, economic development, recreation and cultural
enrichment, an airport, an entertainment complex, and general administration.

The combined financial statements of the County as a financial reporting entity report all activities,
organizations, and functions of the County, both as the primary government and its legally separate
components units for which (1) the elected officials of the County are financially accountable and/or
(2) exclusion of component units activities would cause the County’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The County’s component units have been reported as blended with the
County as the primary government or as discrete (separate) component unit, as appropriate. Criteria
used by the County for including activities in preparing these financial statements are in conformity
with GASB 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, GASB 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units, GASB 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus- an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No 34, and GASB 80, Blending Requirements for
Certain Component Units. Based on the requirements of these accounting standards, the County
reports the Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool as a blended component unit.

The County is required to adopt a final budget no later than the close of the fiscal year. Annual
budgets are adopted for the General Fund and Debt Service Funds. This annual budget serves as the
foundation for the County’s financial planning and control. The level of budgetary control is the
department within the individual funds. The County maintains an encumbrance accounting system
as a method to accomplish budgetary control. Department heads may transfer resources within a
department as needed. These transfers are communicated to Commissioners” Court. Transfers
between departments, however, require approval by Commissioners’ Court.

II
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FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

Local economy

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the County

operates.

The area is served by deep-water ports located at Beaumont, Port Arthur, Orange, and Sabine Pass.
The Sabine Neches Waterway provides deep-water access to ocean-going vessels, which are served
by public ports within the County. The waterway is the third largest port in the U.S. by tonnage, the
largest U.S. exporter of crude oil, LNG, and home to over 60% of the U.S. strategic petroleum
reserves. With the completion of Golden Pass LNG and Sempra LNG approximately 600 ships
annually will be added to the local waterways which we anticipate will make this area the 1% or 2™

largest U.S. port by tonnage.

The County is traversed by Interstate Highway 10, U.S. Highways 90 and 69-96-287, State
Highways 73, 87, and 105 and three farm-to-market roads. Rail and motor freight carriers also
provide freight service to the County. The County is served by three major railroads, Canadian
Pacific/Kansas City South, Union Pacific, and BNSF. The Jack Brooks Regional Airport located
between Beaumont and Port Arthur provides passenger and freight service and is currently serviced
by one commercial commuter passenger air carrier.

The economy of the County is based primarily on petroleum refining; the production and processing
of petrochemicals, bio-fuels other chemicals, and synthetic rubber; the fabrication of steel and steel
products; shipping activity; the manufacture of wood, pulp, food and feed products; agriculture; and
health care services. The County continues to diversify its economic base as evidenced by the
increase of jobs in the services and government sectors. The County is also home to the largest
military off-load port in the world. Jefferson County is home to Lamar University, Lamar Institute
of Technology, and Lamar State College — Port Arthur. Lamar is recognized nationally as one of the
premier institutions for providing engineering, business, education, nursing and pre-med degrees at a
very cost-competitive value. Lamar Institute of Technology along with industry and union training
organization are providing the preparation for tomorrow’s careers in our ever-expanding industrial

base.

In the last 2 years, numerous “green” or “blue” energy projects have begun in the County such as
Arbor Renewables, which turns vegetative waste into gasoline which will be sold primarily in
California and Europe. OCI and Linde are other global players beginning construction of
environmentally friendly projects and the County is currently in discussions with several more multi-
billion-dollar projects.

Several large projects are in construction, permitting, and development for the area and the County
continues to work with other taxing entities to create a business environment conducive to this
growth. These include such notables as Lucite, Air Products, Vitol, Golden Pass Products, OC]I,
Exxon Mobil, Golden Pass LNG, Sempra Energy, Valero, Total/BASF, Phillips 66, Entergy Transfer
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Partners, American Ethane, Sunoco Partners, Coastal Caverns, Golden Triangle Storage, Linde, and
Iron Horse Terminals.

Petrochemical expansions at the Exxon Mobil, Total, Motiva, and Valero facilities located in
Jefferson County represent approximately $15 billion in project improvements. In addition,
hundreds of millions of dollars are being spent on terminal and pipeline facilities to support these
projects. In addition, recent rail terminal facility expansions and new construction has significantly
increased the transportation of Canadian tar sands oil and bitumen to our area for processing by area
refineries. Additional rail expansions are currently in construction.

Cheniere, one of two companies with Liquefied Natural Gas Terminals on the border of the
Texas/Louisiana Coast, is completing construction of a $10 billion liquefaction facility. Golden Pass
LNG opened their terminal in mid-2011. With their opening, our ship channel is now home to over
40% of the nation’s LNG capacity. Golden Pass LNG received permits allowing it to build a $10
billion gas liquefaction facility in Jefferson County and is currently under construction with over
4,700 construction workers on site as of January 2025. Sempra Energy has received permitting from
federal authorities and has begun construction activities on a new natural gas liquefaction facility
and have applied to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission for permits to double the size of the
project currently under construction.

The County has participated in a study by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers into the feasibility of
deepening the Sabine-Neches waterway. This will allow ports in Southeast Texas, the third largest
in the nation, to accommodate newer deep draft vessels and thus remain competitive with other ports
on the Gulf Coast. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers has issued their “Chief’s Report” which
paves the way for federal funding of this project. The U.S. House and Senate recently passed
legislation, which was signed by the President authorizing the construction of the waterway
improvements at a cost in excess of $1 billion. Congressional appropriations for the project have
been made and construction has begun. Just recently, the first “useable increment: of the waterway
deepening was completed bringing further federal appropriations. More contracts have been let to
continue the 65-mile project which will be completed within 5 years, with work ongoing.

The County continues to work with industry leaders, the Texas Workforce Commission, Lamar
Institute of Technology, Lamar University, trade unions, and non-profit groups to supply a
workforce able to handle the growing labor needs of the County. This is especially critical given the
interest of the international community in locating facilities in our county.

The resurgence in U. S. oil and gas exploration and production has made the County the place of
choice for those industrial sectors seeking to exploit opportunities to profit from historically low-
priced energy commodities. Our excellent water bound, rail, highway, and pipeline infrastructure,
the readily availability of water resources, and our business-friendly governmental environment,
coupled with a lower-than-average tax environment, has caught the attention of energy and
manufacturing companies worldwide. We have also recently become the focus of many new clean
hydrogen projects related to data storage facilities which make their own electricity and water
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utilizing proprietary hydrogen technologies. These are multi-billion-dollar projects that create
numerous high paying careers.

The County is now a primary location for carbon sequestration and utilization storage and numerous
leases have been entered into with both private landowners and the State of Texas for activities with
related carbon neutral impacts. The subsurface geology in Jefferson County makes our area
extremely attractive for future carbon capture activities.

The County has 17 separate abatement agreements with $5,238,440,930 in abated taxable value for
fiscal year 2024. The County estimates these abatement agreements will roll off of abatement and
become taxable over the next 12 years. The estimated taxes over the next 12 years to be collected
based on the current rate of $.359 per $100 of valuation and the fiscal year 2024 market value is
$18,806,003. The future estimated tax revenue will fluctuate as market values increase/decrease due
to market conditions. The county’s tax abatement policies and current agreements allow the County
to remain competitive in the goal to increase the industrial tax base for continued job creation. The
County fully expects a significant increase in industrial and commercial ad valorem values over the
next ten years totaling in excess of 50 billion dollars.

Long-term financial planning & relevant financial policies

Commissioners’ Court continues to follow their policy guideline for budgetary and planning
purposes of building and maintaining an unassigned fund balance in the General Fund of at least
15% of total general fund expenditures and transfers. The County’s General Fund ended the fiscal
year with an unassigned fund balance of 40.8% of total general fund expenditures and transfers.

This falls within the policy guidelines.
Major Initiatives

The Commissioners' Court set the property tax rate at $ .359 per $100 of assessed property valuation
to provide funds for services and debt service for fiscal year 2024. Budget initiatives for fiscal year

2024 included:

e Provide a 3% salary increase for Sheriff Association union employees, Constable
Association union employees, and all other employees.

e Commissioners’ Court made a $5,000,000 transfer and utilized previously transferred funds
to address necessary capital projects.

e Maintained capital expenditures for durable goods to replace needed equipment to necessary
levels.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Jefferson County, Texas for its
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Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. This was the
twenty-sixth consecutive year that the government achieved this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial report. This report must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated services of
the staff of the County Auditor's Office. I express my sincere appreciation to all the members of this
office who contributed to its preparation. In addition, I express my appreciation to the members of
the Commissioners’ Court, their staff, and all other County officials and employees who have given
their support in planning and conducting the financial operations of Jefferson County, Texas in a

responsible manner.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for individuals
who are interested in this information. Questions concerning any of the data provided in this
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the County Auditor’s Office,
1149 Pearl Street 7" Floor, Beaumont, Texas 77701.

Fran Lee, C.P.A.
County Auditor
Jefferson County, Texas
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners’ Court
Jefferson County, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson County, Texas (the “County”) as
of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of September 30, 2024, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The County’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is

expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of

the financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the County’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and pension and OPEB information
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



85

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements and schedules are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the

basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive financial
report (ACFR). The other information comprises the introductory section and statistical section but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements do
not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In
connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial statements,
or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we
conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to

describe it in our report.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 20,
2025, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over financial

reporting and compliance.

?aﬁluo,%.wm < KL, LLf

Waco, Texas
March 20, 2025






Jefferson County, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Jefferson County, we offer readers of the Jefferson County’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the county for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024. Please read it in conjunction with the
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be
found in the introductory section of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Jefferson County exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of fiscal year 2024 by
$61,562,466, an increase of $57,655,082 in net position from the previous year.
As a result, the County’s overall financial position has improved from the
previous year.

e Of the net position, $159,008,739 is net investment in capital assets, $55,344,944
is restricted for specific uses, and $(152,791,217) is unrestricted.

e As of the close of fiscal year 2024, Jefferson County’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $137,621,960, an increase of
$26,614,965 in comparison with the prior year. About 45% of the total amount,
$61,381,894 is available for spending at the County’s discretion (unassigned fund
balance).

e At the end of fiscal year 2024, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$66,481,250, or 40.8% of total General Fund expenditures and transfers. In
addition, the General Fund had a nonspendable fund balance of $1,525,676 and
assigned fund balance of $17,562,733.

e The LPPF fund is classified as a major fund. It had restricted fund balance of
$10,313,077.

balance.

e The County’s total bonds payable decreased by $5,365,013 during the current
fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic
financial statements, which are comprised of the following three components: 1)
Government-wide financial statements; 2) Fund financial statements and 3) Notes to the
basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information
which is included in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
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Jefferson County, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of County finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all County assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
representing net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or
deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information that indicates how net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or in part a portion of their
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the County include general government, judicial and law enforcement,
education and recreation, health and welfare, and maintenance of equipment and
structures. The business-type activities of the County include an airport and an
entertainment complex.

Component units are included in our basic financial statements and consist of legally
separate entities for which the County is financially accountable and they have
substantially the same board as the County or provide services entirely to the County.
The County’s component unit, Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool,
has been reported as blended with the County as the primary government. For more
detailed information on this component unit refer to Note 1A and Note 13 of the basic

financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the County can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements focus
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements.
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Jefferson County, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains 70 individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the major
governmental funds. Data from other governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary funds are maintained two ways. An enterprise fund is used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of an airport
and entertainment complex. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions. The
County uses internal service funds to account for its liability activities, workers’
compensation, and the public entity risk pool that provides health insurance benefits.
Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. Both of the enterprise funds are considered to be major
funds of the County. The County’s internal service funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation in the proprietary funds financial statements. Individual fund
data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s
own programs. The County’s fiduciary funds are one investment trust fund and 9
custodial funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes can be found starting on page 31 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information is presented concerning the County’s General
Fund budgetary schedule. The County adopts an annual budget for this fund. A
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Jefferson County, Texas
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

budgetary comparison schedule, which includes the original and final amended budget
and actual figures, has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. Also
included are schedules for pensions and other post-employment benefits. As part of the
section are a schedule showing the changes in net pension liability and related ratios, a
schedule of employer contributions to the retirement system with notes about these
contributions, and a schedule of the changes in total other post-employment benefits
liability and related ratios. Required supplementary information can be found starting on
page 71 of this report.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to carlier provide
information for non-major governmental funds and internal service funds and are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the County, assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $61,562,466. For fiscal year
2023, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $3,907,384.

The largest portion of the County’s current fiscal year net position ($159,008,739)
reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g. land, improvements, buildings, equipment,
and infrastructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding plus any unspent bond proceeds. The main use of these capital assets is to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. Another portion of the County’s current fiscal year net position ($55,344,944)
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.
The County’s current fiscal year net position is reduced by ($152,791,217) for the
negative unrestricted net position. Unrestricted net position may be negative when
entities incur long-term liabilities which are not offset by corresponding assets or when it
covers post-retirement benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis rather than advance-funding
such costs in a trust account.
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September 30, 2024
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Reclassifications Total

Current and other assets $ 197,426,244 $ 12,630,788 $ - $210,057,032
Capital Assets 102,557,925 78,336,902 - 180,894,827

Total Assets $ 299,984,169 $ 90,967,690 $ - $390,951,859
Total Deferred Outflows of
Resources $ 26,451,919 $ 263,678 $ - $ 26,715,597
Current and other liabilities $ 44,575,115 $ 3,935221 $ - $ 48,510,336
Long-term liabilities 269,482,659 903,058 - 270,385,717

Total Liabilities $ 314,057,774 $ 4,838,279 $ - $318,896,053
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 32,551,938 $ 4,656,999 $ - $ 37,208,937
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets $ 86,011,824 $ 78,336,902 $  (5,339,987) $159,008,739
Restricted net position 55,344,944 - - 55,344,944
Unrestricted net position (161,530,392) 3,399,188 5,339,987 (152,791,217)

Total Net Position $ (20,173,624) $ 81,736,090 $ - $ 61,562,466

Condensed Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2023
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Reclassifications Total

Current and other assets $ 176,201,081 $ 12,217,985 $ - $188,419,066
Capital Assets 104,738,710 75,732,711 - 180,471,421

Total Assets $ 280,939,791 $ 87,950,696 $ - $368,890,487
Total Deferred Outflows of
Resources $ 47,873,728 3 524,567 $ - $ 48,398,295
Current and other liabilities $ 52,912,357 $ 4,757,892 $ - $ 57,670,249
Long-term liabilities 290,246,686 1,351,747 - 291,598,433

Total Liabilities $ 343,159,043 $ 6,109,639 3 - $349,268.682
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 59,041,958 $ 5,070,758 $ - $ 64,112,716
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets $ 86,504,831 $ 75,732,711 $  (9,970,948) $152,266,594
Restricted net position 36,827,094 - - 36,827,094
Unrestricted net position (196,719,407) 1,562,155 9,970,948 (185,186,304)

Total Net Position $ (73,387,482) $ 77,294,866 $ - $ 3,907,384
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At the end of the fiscal year 2024 and the 2023 fiscal year, the County reported positive
net position in two of the three categories as a whole. The County reported positive
balances in two of the three categories of net position for its governmental activities for
fiscal year 2024 and fiscal year 2023. Business-type activities had positive balances in
two categories of net position for fiscal year 2024 and fiscal year 2023.

The County had a reclassification of $5,339,987 in fiscal year 2024 and $9,970,948 in
fiscal year 2023 to move the debt associated with the construction of Ford Park from
Unrestricted net position to net investment in capital assets. The capital assets are
reported in the business-type activities and the debt is reported in the governmental

activities.

The County’s net position increased by $57,655,082 during the current fiscal year. The
following table indicates changes in net position for governmental and business-type
activities:

10

92



Jefferson County, Texas

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and
contributions

Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:

Taxes - levied for general

purposes
Taxes - levied for debt service

Sales taxes

Investment earnings

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenses:

General government

Judicial and law enforcement

Education and recreation

Health and welfare

Maintenance - equipment and
structures

Interest and charges on long-
term debt

Airport

Entertainment Complex

Total expenses

Excess (deficiency) before
transfers

Transfers
Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2024

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$73,707,099 $  8,925361 82,632,460
26,845,107 5,876,407 32,721,514
1,251,571 2,398,359 3,649,930
102,998,204 - 102,998,204
5,629,234 - 5,629,234
42,425,421 - 42,425,421
12,456,111 417,333 12,873,444
38,748 - 38,748
265,351,495 17,617,460 282,968,955
24,196,951 - 24,196,951
98,891,287 - 98,891,287
1,592,678 - 1,592,678
64,855,915 - 64,855,915
18,994,852 - 18,994,852
378,604 - 378,604
- 7,308,686 7,308,686
- 9,094,900 9,094,900
208,910,287 16,403,586 225,313,873
56,441,208 1,213,874 57,655,082
(3,227,350) 3,227,350 -
53,213,858 4,441,224 57,655,082
(73,387,482) 77,294,866 3,907,384
$(20,173,624) $ 81,736,090 61,562,466
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Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and
contributions

Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Taxes - levied for general

purposes
Taxes - levied for debt service

Sales taxes

Investment earnings

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenses:

General government

Judicial and law enforcement

Education and recreation

Health and welfare

Maintenance - equipment and
structures

Interest and charges on long-
term debt

Airport

Entertainment Complex

Total expenses

Excess (deficiency) before
transfers

Transfers
Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$71,358,870 $ 9,173,093 80,531,963
19,392,588 2,736,246 22,128,834
1,023,977 6,738,811 7,762,788
95,513,838 - 95,513,838
5,538,382 - 5,538,382
40,704,146 - 40,704,146
6,835,413 253,510 7,088,923
38,994 1,579 40,573
240,406,208 18,903,239 259,309,447
20,812,231 - 20,812,231
104,105,919 - 104,105,919
1,570,136 - 1,570,136
56,998,278 - 56,998,278
19,132,255 - 19,132,255
606,216 - 606,216
- 7,888,941 7,888,941
- 9,190,124 9,190,124
203,225,035 17,079,065 220,304,100
37,181,173 1,824,174 39,005,347
(2,518,521) 2,518,521 -
34,662,652 4,342,695 39,005,347
(108,050,134) 72,952,171 (35,097,963)
$(73,387,482) $ 77,294,866 3,907,384

12
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Governmental activities
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Governmental activities increased the County’s net position by $53,213,858.

This increase is due to a net of multiple factors.
liability, deferred inflows and outflows account for $10.8 million of the increase. OPEB
related liability, deferred inflows and outflows account for another $9.1 million of the
increase. Additionally, $4.9 million for in principal payments for bonds and financing
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arrangements account for and portion of the increase in County’s net position. Revenue
from Property tax increased $7.6 million from prior year for increases in property
valuations. Revenue from Interest has increased by about $5.6 million due to higher
rates. For the most part, other changes (increases/decreases) in expenses typically had
corresponding changes in revenues as programs or projects ramp up or wind down.

Business-type activities

Business-type activities increased the County’s net position by $4,441,224. The largest
area of increase is in Net Investment in Capital Assets due to some FAA funded Airport
improvements. Unrestricted also saw about a $1.8 million increase due to FAA funding
for some cost of operations. The County continues to look for additional revenues
sources as well as cost saving measures to have these business-type activities self-
supporting without having to rely on transfers from the General Fund to subsidize

operations.

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2024
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

Governmental Funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Jefferson County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $137,621,960 an increase of $26,614,965 in
comparison with the prior year. About 45% of this total amount ($61,381,894)
constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the County’s
discretion. The remainder of fund balance is nonspendable, committed, restricted, or
assigned to indicate that it is not available for new spending.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $66,481,250 while total
fund balance reached $85,569,659. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may
be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures and transfers. Unassigned fund balance represents 40.8 percent of total
General Fund expenditures and transfers, while total fund balances represents 52.5
percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of the County’s General Fund increased by $8,945,155 during the
current fiscal year. This increase is in mostly due to an increase of $7 million for
property tax revenue due to increase property valuations. Revenue from Interest also
increase by $4.7 due to higher interest rates. Other increases in revenue had
corresponding offsetting increases in expenditures. Additional transfers were to made to

Capital Project fund for necessary projects.

The LFFP fund had an ending fund balance of $10,313,077. The fund balance increase by
$3,809,266 due to increased fee assessments. The County will continue administrating
the local providers’ mandatory payments for health care related expenditures.

The ARPA Coronavirus Recovery had an ending fund balance of zero. The County will
continue administrating the local allocation of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021

Proprietary Funds. The County’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of
information found in the business type activities of the government-wide financial

statements, but in more detail.

The Jack Brooks Regional Airport Fund is used to account for the day-to-day operations
of the County airport. As of September 30, 2024, unrestricted net position is positive
$3,575,174, an increase of $1,695,277 from the prior year unrestricted net position. This
increase is mostly due to an increase in grant funding from FAA for operations and

revenue from interest.

15
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The Ford Park Fund is used to account for the day-to-day operations of Ford Park. As of
September 30, 2024, unrestricted net position is negative $175,986, a decrease of
$141,756 from the prior year negative net position. This decrease is mostly due to an
additional transfer from the General Fund to subsidize operations.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The total original budget adopted on September 19, 2023 did not have to be amended
during the year. Budget transfers were done during the year to adjust departments as
needed.

During the year actual revenues and other financing sources including transfers in were
more than budgetary estimates by $18,399,878. Actual expenditures and transfers out
were less than budgetary estimates by $8,402,959. The budget had a projected reduction
of $17,857,682 to the fund balance. The net effect of over-realization of revenues and
under-utilization of appropriations resulted in a positive variance of $26,802,837 thus
increasing the existing fund balance by $8,945,155 on a budgetary basis.

The largest positive variance of $8,850,923 is due to an increase in Sales Tax revenue.
The area continues several large industrial expansions.

Revenue from Property Taxes had the largest negative variance of $2,151,148 due to
adjustments to property valuations after the adoption of the budget.

Many departments achieved savings over the fiscal year mostly due to unfilled staff
positions and moving employees through their salary ranges whereby leaving unspent
funds. The total amount of savings for salary and fringe benefits was about $7.4 million.
Departments also did well in controlling their spending in other budgetary areas.

Budget variances are not expected to impact future services or liquidity.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business-type activities as of September 30, 2024, amounted to $180,894,827
(net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
improvements, structures, park improvements and facilities, infrastructure, equipment,
vehicles, machinery, other tangible and intangible assets, and construction in progress.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

16
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e The County had a variety of building improvements, purchases of equipment,
roads and bridges construction, construction of airport facilities, and energy
conservation projects.

o At September 30, 2024, the ending fund balance for all capital projects funds was
$17.95 million.

For further information regarding capital assets, see Note 5.

Balance Balance
Governmental Activities: September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023
Land s 3,840,787 $ 3,840,787
Construction in progress 3,709,596 3,472,011
Infrastructure 66,596,910 66,596,910
Buildings & Improvements 141,861,596 138,976,061
Equipment 61,557,327 60,608,404
SBITA, right to use 7,622,743 7,653,860
285,188,959 281,148,033
Less: Accumulated ,
depreciation (182,631,034) (176,409,323)
Total governmental
activities $ 102,557,925 $ 104,738,710
Business-type Activities:
Land $ 5,154,600 $ 5,154,600
Construction in progress 7,016,284 7,849,001
Buildings & Improvements 150,334,897 144,533,709
Equipment 12,455,064 12,502,892
174,960,845 170,040,202
Less: Accumulated
depreciation (96,623,943) (94,307,491)
Total business-type
activities $ 78,336,902 $ 75,732,711

Long-Term Liabilities. At September 30, 2024, the County had total long-term liabilities
outstanding of $38,028,912. Refer to Note 7 for further information on the County’s
long-term liabilities. County officials, citizens, and investors will find the ratio of net
bonded debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita as useful
indicators of the County’s debt position. This information is presented in the statistical
section of this report.

17
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Outstanding at Outstanding at
Govemmental Activities: September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023
Bonds Payable $ 18,272,581 $ 23,637,594
Financing Arrangements 106,304 200,822
SBITA Liability 3,593,120 4,655,432
Claims & Judgments 4,226,492 3,995,649
Compensated Absences 11,633,284 11,516,718
Total governmental
activities $ 37,831,781 $ 44,006,215
Business-type Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 197,131 $ 195,804
Total business-type
activities $ 197,131 $ 195,804

The bond rating services of Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. and Standard & Poor’s
Ratings services have assigned the County’s long term bond ratings of Aa2 and AA-

respectively.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The Commissioner’s Court adopted the County’s 2024-2025 budget on September 17,
2024 for the General Fund and Debt Service funds. The budget was adopted based on
estimated balances that would be available at the end of fiscal year 2024 and estimated
revenues to be received in fiscal year 2025. The total resources for all funds for fiscal
year 2025 are estimated to be $252.2 million. The budget was adopted with estimated
expenditures in the amount of $183.6 million. The 2024-2025 budget forecast utilizing
$17,562,733 of fund balance.

For 2024-2025, the property tax rate will drop slightly to $.357 per $100 of taxable
assessed value and taxable assessed property values are anticipated to increase by 4.6%
for the 2024-2025 budget year.

The average unemployment rate for Jefferson County for September 2024 was 6.4%; this
is an increase from the prior year rate of 6.0%. The state’s average unemployment rate
for September 2024 was 4.1%.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances
for all those with an interest in the County finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should
be addressed to the County Auditor’s Office, 1149 Pear] St. — 7% Floor, Beaumont, Texas

77701.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES RECLASSIFICATIONS TOTAL
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3 133,655,867 6,276,814 - 139,932,681
INVESTMENTS 43,044,343 - - 43,044,343
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 603,081 24,001 - 627,092
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 1,541,788 499,454 - 2,041,242
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 10,101,377 545,611 - 10,646,988
INVENTORIES, At Cost 966,373 193,920 - 1,160,293
PREPAID ITEMS 592,582 288,097 - 880,679
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net 2,816,391 - - 2,816,391
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net 1,801,192 - - 1,801,192
FINE AND COURT COST RECEIVABLE, Net 1,970,327 - - 1,970,327
LEASE RECEIVABLE 215923 4,802,881 - 5,018,804
DEPOSITS 117,000 - - 117,000
CAPITAL ASSETS:
LAND 3,840,787 5,154,600 - 8,995,387
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 3,709,596 7,016,284 - 10,725,880
OTHER CAPITAL ASSETS, Net of depreciation 95,007,542 66,166,018 - 161,173,560
TOTAL ASSETS 3 299,984,169 90,967,690 - 390,951,859
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
DEFERRED LOSS ON BOND REFUNDING 3 85,917 - - 85917
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS RELATED TO PENSIONS 14,385,070 263,678 - 14,648,748
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS RELATED TO OPEB 11,980,932 - - 11,980,932
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3 26,451,919 263,678 - 26,715,597
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 3 9,117,776 1,862,924 - 10,980,700
INTEREST PAYABLE 94,642 - - 94,642
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 360 - - 360
UNEARNED REVENUE 35,362,337 2,047,297 - 37,409,634
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS - 25,000 - 25,000
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
LONG-TERM DEBT 11,709,496 29,772 - 11,739,268
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 7,680,000 - - 7,680,000
DUE IN MORE THAN ONE YEAR
LONG-TERM DEBT 26,122,285 167,359 - 26,289,644
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 185,458,627 - - 185,458,627
NET PENSION LAIBILITY 38,512,251 705,927 - 39,218,178
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 314,057,774 4,838,279 - 318,896,053
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
DEFERRED INFLOWS RELATED TO LEASES $ 208,625 4,615,260 - 4,823,885
DEFERRED INFLOWS RELATED TO PENSIONS 2,277,079 41,739 - 2,318,818
DEFERRED INFLOWS RELATED TO OPEB 30,066,234 - - 30,066,234
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES § 32,551,938 4,656,999 - 37,208,937
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS $ 86,011,824 78,336,902 (5,339,987) 159,008,739
RESTRICTED FOR:
DEBT SERVICE 598,376 - - 598,376
ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS 7,290,695 - - 7,290,695
PUBLIC INTEREST 5,670,779 - - 5,670,779
JUDICAL & LAW ENFORCEMENT 10,699,928 - - 10,699,928
EDUATION & RECREATION 5,190,233 - - 5,190,233
HEALTH & WELFARE 14,705,328 - - 14,705,328
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES & EQUIPMENT 11,189,605 - - 11,189,605
UNRESTRICTED (161,530,392) 3,399,188 5,339,987 (152,791,217)
TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT) $ (20,173,624) 81,736,090 - 61,562,466

The reclassification is for the debt associated with the construction of Ford Park. The asset is accounted for in the Business-type

activities column and the debt is accounted for in the Governmental Activities column.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT
AND STRUCTURES
INTEREST AND CHARGES
ONLONG-TERM DEBT
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
AIRPORT
ENTERTAINMENT COMPLEX
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

103

PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND

EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS

$ 24,196,951 b 6,161,535 h) 1,522,555 $ -

98,891,287 11,753,882 15,025,471 -

1,592,678 213,585 449,986 -

64,855,915 49,459,576 8,201,489 -

18,994,852 6,118,521 1,645,606 1,251,571

378,604 - - -

$ 208,910,287 $ 73,707,099 $ 26,845,107 h) 1,251,571

7,308,686 4,411,410 5,876,407 2,328,359

9,094,900 4,513,951 - 70,000

5 16,403,586 $ 8,925,361 3 5,876,407 $ 2,398,359

§ 225,313,873 b 82,632,460 h) 32,721,514 $ 3,649,930
GENERAL REVENUES

TAXES:

PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED FOR GENERAL PURPOSES
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED FOR DEBT SERVICE
SALES TAXES
UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT EARNINGS
MISCELLANEOUS
TRANSFERS
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUE AND TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - BEGINNING

NET POSITION - ENDING

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pant of this statement.
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NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES AND CHANGES IN NET

POSITION
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL _ BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$ (16,512,861)  $ - % (16512,861)
(72,111,934) - (72,111,934)
(929,107) - (929,107)
(7,194,850) - (7,194,850)
(9,979,154) - (9,979,154)
(378,604) - (378,604)
3 (107,106,510) S - 7§ (107,106,510)
- 5,307,490 5,307,490
- (4,510,949) (4,510,949)
$ - 5 796,541 S 796,541
$ (107,106,510) _§$ 796,541 $__ (106,309,969)
$ 102,998,204  $ - % 102,998,204
5,629,234 - 5,629,234
42,425,421 - 42,425,421
12,456,111 417,333 12,873,444
38,748 - 38,748
(3,227,350) 3,227,350 -
3 160,320,368 S 3,644,683 8§ 163,965,051
$ 53,213,858 § 4441224 3 57,655,082
(73,387,482) 77,294,866 3,907,384
$ (20,173,624)  § 81,736,000 § 61,562,466
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ASSETS:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
INVESTMENTS

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net
FINES AND FEES RECEIVABLE, Net

LEASE RECEIVABLE

INVENTORIES, At Cost

PREPAID ITEMS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES
UNEARNED REVENUE

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
DEFERRED INFLOWS RELATED TO LEASES
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE- PROPERTY TAXES
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE- FINES AND FEES
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE- GRANTS

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESQURCES

FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE FOR:
INVENTORY
PREPAID ITEMS
RESTRICTED FOR;
DEBT SERVICE
CONSTRUCTION
PUBLIC INTEREST
JUDICIAL & LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION & RECREATION
HEALTH & WELFARE
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES
& EQUIPMENT
COMMITTED FOR:
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
ASSIGNED FOR ADOPTED BUDGET
UTILIZATION OF FUND BALANCE
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT)

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
ARPA NONMAJOR TOTAL
CORONAVIRLS GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL LPPF RECOVERY FUNDS FUNDS
$ 35153268 10,313,077 34,874,803 46,532,569 126,873,717
43,044,343 - - - 43,044,343
126,306 - - 252,495 578,801
198,466 - - 142,709 541,175
5,328,614 - - 52,787 5,381,401
7,014,806 - - 2,707,377 9,722,183
2,662,420 - - 153971 2,816,391
1,702,722 - - 98,470 1,801,192
1,970,327 - - - 1,970,327
215,923 - - - 215,923
948,116 - - 18,257 966,373
577,560 - - 15,022 592,582
$ 99342871 10,313,077 34,874,803 49,973,657 194,504,408
$ 7,048,742 - 801,138 1,238,150 9,088,030
95,922 - - 55,258 151,180
- - - 5,381,401 5,381,401
360 - - - 360
63,405 - 34,073,665 1,225,267 35,362,337
$ 7,208,429 - 34,874,803 7,900,076 49,983,308
§ 208,625 - - - 208,625
4,385,831 - - 253,572 4,639,403
1,970,327 - - - 1,970,327
- - - 80,785 80,785
$ 6,564,783 - - 334,357 6,899,140
$ 948,116 - - 18,257 966,373
577,560 - - 15,022 592,582
- - - 571,710 571,710
- - - 7,290,695 7,290,695
- - - 5,670,779 5,670,779
- - - 10,672,404 10,672,404
- - - 5,184,478 5,184,478
- 10,313,077 - 4,392,251 14,705,328
- - - 11,189,605 11,189,605
- - - 1,833,379 1,833,379
17,562,733 - - - 17,562,733
66,481,250 - - (5,099,356) 61,381,804
$ 85,569,659 10,313,077 - 41,739,224 137,621,960
$ 99,342,871 10,313,077 34,874,803 49,973,657 194,504,408

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Total fund balances for governmental funds

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position

is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Land
Construction in progress

Infrastructure, net of $66,596,910 accumulated depreciation
Buildings, net of $86,128,900 accumulated depreciation
Equipment, net of $43,861,597 accurnulated depreciation
SBITA, right to us, net of $2,355,105 accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

Long-term liabilities applicable to Jefferson County's activities are not

due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund
liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but

rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities - both current
and long-term are reported in the Statement of Net Position.

Balances as of September 30, 2024 were:

Accrued interest on bonds and loans
Bonds payable

SBITA Liability

Total OPEB Liabilities

Net Pension Liability

Financing Arrangement
Compensated absences

Pensions - Contributions after 12/31/2023
Pensions - Economic/demographic losses
Pensions - Investment (gains) or losses
Pensions - Changes in Assumption (Inflows)
OPEB - Changes in Assumption Outflows
OPEB - Economic/demographic Outflows
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OPEB - Economic/demographic (Inflows)

Gain/Loss on Refunding Bonds
Premium/Discounts on Bonds

Internal service funds are used by the County. The assets and liabilities
of the internal service funds are included in the governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position. Internal service fund net position is:

Interest on investements is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as

revenue when due.

Some of the County's revenues will be collected after year-end but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and
therefore are reported as unavailable resources in the funds.

Total net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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b 3,840,787
3,709,596
16,311,478
55,732,696
17,695,730
5,267,638

$ (94,642)
(17,105,000)
(3,593,120)
(193,138,627)
(38,512,251)
(106,304)
(11,482,104)
13,050,658
1,334,412
(1,963,570)
(313,509)
5,631,121
6,349,811
(22,502,093)
(7,564,141)
85,917

(1,167,581)

6,690,515

§ (20,173,624)

¥ 137,621,960

102,557,925

(271,091,023)

4,007,129

39,870
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ARPA NONMAJOR TOTAL
CORONAVIRUS GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL LPPF RECOVERY FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 102,554,660 - - 5,619,260 108,173,920
SALES TAXES 40,650,923 - - 1,774,498 42,425421
FEES 9,296,988 48,853,066 - 4,324,100 62,474,154
LICENSES 1,720,514 - - - 1,720,514
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,726,553 - 9,345,947 15,873,842 26,946,342
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 4,486,673 - - 1,783,396 6,270,069
FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,667,579 - - 725,322 2,392,901
INTEREST 9,589,245 415,185 - 2,144,875 12,149,305
MISCELLANEOUS 38,748 - - - 38,748
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 240 - - 62,500 62,740
TOTAL REVENUES $ 171,732,123 49,268,251 9,345,947 32,307,793 262,654,114
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT
GENERAL GOVERNMENT b3 30,465,648 - 222,233 763,969 31,451,850
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 92,690,634 - 2,164,048 15,730,034 110,584,716
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 441,193 - 449,986 1,830,632 2,721,811
HEALTH AND WELFARE 11,711,886 45,458,985 5,391,395 3,104,170 65,666,436
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES
AND EQUIPMENT 16,125,717 - 1,118,285 24,107 17,268,109
CAPITAL OUTLAY - - - 570,346 570,346
DEBT SERVICE
PRINCIPAL 94,518 - - 4,930,000 5,024,518
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 5,682 - - 731,500 737,182
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $  151,535278 45,458,985 9,345,947 27,684,758 234,024,968
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 3 20,196,845 3,809,266 - 4,623,035 28,629,146
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN 5 - - - 9,444,663 9,444,663
TRANSFERS OUT (11,426,463) - - (207,154) (11,633,617)
ISSUANCE OF SBITA 174,773 - - - 174,773
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $§  (11,251,6590) - - 9,237,509 (2,014,181)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 8,945,155 3,809,266 - 13,860,544 26,614,965
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING $ 76,624,504 6,503,811 - 27,878,680 111,006,995
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 85,569,659 10,313,077 - 41,739,224 137,621,960

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 26,614,965

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation

expense.
Capital Expenditures $ 10,256,018
Capital asset donations to Business type activities (1,038,396)
Net adjustment for sale or disposal of capital assets (811,357)
Depreciation Expense (10,587,050)

Net adjustment (2,180,785)

Debt proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to the
change in fund balance. In the statement of net position, however, issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities and does not affect the Statement of Activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the Statement of Net Position.

Debt issued:
SBITA, right to use (174,773)
Repayments:
To paying agent for bond principal 4,930,000
Principal on SBITA liability 1,237,085
Financing arrangement principal 94,518
Net adjustment 6,086,830

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the govemmental funds, expenditures are

not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with expendable available financial resources.
In the statement of activities, however, which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and

liabilities are reported regardless of when financial resources are available. In addition, interest on
long-term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather as
itaccrues. The adjustment combines the net changes of the following balances.

Compensated absences 3 (79,470)
Total OPEB Liabilities (9,961,228)
Net Pension Liability 24,550,822
Pensions - Economic/demographic outflows (7,514,237)
Pensions - Change in assumptions outflows (7,449,572)
Pensions - Change in assumptions inflows 313,509
Pensions - Investment (gains) of losses 120,537
Pensions - Difference in Contributions 730,844
OPEB - Change in assumptions outflows (3,558,071}
OPEB - Change in assumptions inflows 13,559,448
OPEB - Economic/demographic outflows (3,527,672)
OPEB - Economic/demographic inflows 12,604,354
Amortization of bond premium 435,013
Amortization of refunding difference (103,101)
Accrued interest on debt 26,666
Combined adjustment 20,147,842

Internal service funds are used by the County. The change in net position of the internal service funds
are reported with governmental activities. 2,093,622

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the County's fiscal year end,

they do not provide current financial resources and they are not reported as revenues in the funds. 451,384
Total change in net position of governmental activities $ 53,213,858

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JACK
BROOKS INTERNAL
REGIONAL SERVICE
AIRPORT FORD PARK TOTAL FUNDS
ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,158,355 2,118,459 6,276,814 6,782,150
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 97,284 402,170 499,454 962,987
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 22,813 1,198 24,011 22,036
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 545,611 - 545,611 379,194
LEASE RECEIVABLE 4,802,881 - 4,802,881 -
PREPAID ITEMS 86,085 202,012 288,097 -
INVENTORY, At Cost 145,818 48,102 193,920 -
DEPOSITS - - - 117,000
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 9,858,847 2,771,941 12,630,788 8,263,367
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
CAPITAL ASSETS:
LAND 3,024,815 2,129,785 5,154,600 -
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 6,983,977 32,307 7,016,284 -
OTHER CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF
DEPRECIATION 30,981,538 35,184,480 66,166,018 -
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 40,990,330 37,346,572 78,336,902 -
TOTAL ASSETS 50,849,177 40,118,513 90,967,690 8,263,367
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS RELATED TO PENSIONS 263,678 - 263,678 -
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 263,678 - 263,678 -
LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 920,543 942,381 1,862,924 29,746
CLAIMS LIABILITY - - - 4,226,492
CURRENT PORTION - COMPENSATED ABSENCES 29,772 - 29,772 -
UNEARNED REVENUE 41,751 2,005,546 2,047,297 -
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 25,000 - 25,000 -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,017,066 2,947,927 3,964,993 4,256,238
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
NONCURRENT PORTION - COMPENSATED ABSENCES 167,359 - 167,359 -
NET PENSION LIABILITY 705,927 - 705,927 -
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 873,286 - 873,286 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,890,352 2,947,927 4,838,279 4,256,238
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
DEFERRED INFLOWS RELATED TO LEASES 4,615,260 - 4,615,260 -
DEFERRED INFLOWS RELATED TO PENSIONS 41,739 - 41,739 -
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 4,656,999 - 4,656,999 -
NET POSITION:
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 40,990,330 37,346,572 78,336,902 -
UNRESTRICTED 3,575,174 (175,986) 3,399,188 4,007,129
TOTAL NET POSITION 44,565,504 37,170,586 81,736,090 4,007,129

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

26



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JACK
BROOKS INTERNAL
REGIONAL SERVICE
AIRPORT FORD PARK TOTAL FUNDS
OPERATING REVENUES:
CHARGES FOR SERVICES § 4,411,410 4,513,951 8,925,361 23,544,384
EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS - - - 2,910,006
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 4,411,410 4,513,951 8,925,361 26,454,390
OPERATING EXPENSES:
SALARIES & BENEFITS $ 2,027,001 1,613,253 3,640,254 -
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 88,987 129,748 218,735 -
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS 387,474 435,958 823,432 -
UTILITIES 180,463 838,157 1,018,620 -
COST OF GOODS SOLD 2,482,002 2,527,651 5,009,653 -
MISCELLANEOUS 402,859 358,988 761,847 -
ADMINISTRATIVE - 712,651 712,651 2,122,693
INCURRED & ESTIMATED CLAIMS - - - 24,379,428
DEPRECIATION ' 1,739,900 2,346,354 4,086,254 -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 7,308,686 8,962,760 16,271,446 26,502,121
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ (2,897,276) (4,448,809) (7,346,085) (47,731)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INTEREST REVENUE $ 408,155 9,178 417,333 294,524
GAIN/(LOSS) ON SALE OF CAPITAL ASSETS - (132,140) (132,140) -
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 5,876,407 - 5,876,407 -
REFUNDS AND RECOVERIES - - - 1,846,829
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES $ 6,284,562 (122,962) 6,161,600 2,141,353
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS $ 3,387,286 (4,571,771) (1,184,485) 2,093,622
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 2,328,359 1,108,396 3,436,755 -
TRANSFER IN - 2,188,954 2,188,954 -
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 5,715,645 (1,274,421) 4,441,224 2,093,622
NET POSITION, BEGINNING 38,849,859 38,445,007 77,294,866 1,913,507
NET POSITION, ENDING $ 44,565,504 37,170,586 81,736,090 4,007,129

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JACK
BROODKS INTERNAL
REGIONAL SERVICE
AIRPORT FORD PARK TOTAL FUND§
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
RECEIPTS FROM CUSTOMERS AND USERS $ 4,403,336 5,465,523 9,868,859 3,501,298
RECEIPTS FROM EMPLOYEES - - - 2,976,914
PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS (2,156,094) (5,080,633) (7,236,727 (2,140,965)
PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES (2,222,756) (1,613,253) (3,836,009) -
INTERNAL ACTIVITY-PAYMENTS TO OTHER FUNDS (849,276) - (849,276) -
INTERNAL ACTIVITY-RECEIPTS FROM OTHER FUNDS - - - 20,482,059
CLAIMS PAID - - - (24,148,585)
OTHER RECEIPTS - - - 1,457,636
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $  (824,790) (1,228,363) _ (2,053,153) 2,128,357
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
RECEIPTS FROM GRANTS 5 6,671,210 - 6,671,210 -
TRANSFERS (TO) FROM OTHER FUNDS - 2,188,954 2,188,954 -
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ 6,671,210 2,188,954 8,860,164 -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
CAPITAL GRANTS FROM FEDERAL ENTITIES $ 6,617,452 - 6,617,452 -
ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF CAPITAL ASSETS (8,707,253) (23,921) (8,731,174) -
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES $  (2,089,801) (23,921) (2,113,7122) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
RECEIPTS OF INTEREST 401,736 9,237 410973 287,675
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 5 401,736 9,237 410973 287,675
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 3 4,158,355 945,907 5,104,262 2,416,032
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING - 1,172,552 1,172,552 4,366,118
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING 3 4,158,355 2,118,459 6,276,814 6,782,150
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) 3 (2.897,276) (4,448,809) (7,346,085) (47,731)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DEPRECIATION 1,739,900 2,346,354 4,086,254 -
OTHER NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) - - - 1,846,829
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 61,904 36,975 98,879 (322,286)
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - - 438,974
LEASE RECEIVABLE 334,510 - 334,510 -
INSURANCE DEPOSITS - - - (24,000)
PREPAID ITEMS (7,505) (45,343) (52,848) -
INVENTORY 44,238 38,420 82,658 ~
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 260,889 - 260,889 -
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1,348,958 (115,900) 1,233,058 5,728
CLAIMS LIABILITY - - - 230,843
DEFERRED INFLOWS (413,759) - (413,759) -
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS (849,276) - (849,276) -
OTHER LIABILITIES (447,373) 959,940 512,567 -
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3 (824,790) (1,228,363) (2,053,153) 2,128,357
NON-~CASH OPERATING, CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING, AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 3 - 1,108,396 1,108,396 -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

INVESTMENT
TRUST CUSTODIAL
FUND FUNDS
ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 2,274,886 31,801,475
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET - 54,854
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - 117,449
TOTAL $ 2,274,886 31,973,778
LIABIITIES
ACOUNTS PAYABLE 3 - 22,481
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - 724,860
TOTAL i - 747,341
NET POSITION
RESTRICTED FOR:
POOL PARTICIPANTS 3 2,274,886 -
INDIVIDUALS AND
ORGANIZATIONS - 31,226,437
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 2,274,886 31,226,437

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

INVESTMENT
TRUST CUSTODIAL
FUND FUNDS
ADDITIONS
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM
JUDGEMENTS $ 434,306 8,876,879
BONDS RECEIVED - 1,127,906
DEPOSITS HELD - 5,506,370
TAXES COLLECTED ON BEHALF
OF TAXING ENTITIES - 621,618,258
PROBATIONER PAYMENTS - 544,712
INTEREST INCOME 37,668 68,025
TOTAL ADDITIONS $ 471,974 637,742,150
DEDUCTIONS
BONDS REFUNDED $ - 946,733
COLLECTIONS DISTRIBUTED 529,774 4,616,777
DEPOSITS RETURNED - 5,876,890
DISBURSEMENTS TO
BENEFICIARIES - 4,024,993
TAXES DISBURSED TO TAXING
ENTITIES - 622,210,209
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS $ 529,774 637,675,602
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
FIDUCIARY NET POSITION $ (57,800) 66,548
NET POSITION - BEGINNING 2,332,686 31,159,889
NET POSITION - ENDING $ 2,274,886 31,226,437

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Jefferson County, Texas (“County”) have been prepared in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental and financial reporting principles. The most significant accounting and
reporting policies of the County are described in the following notes to the financial statements.

A. Reporting Entity

The County is a public corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Texas. The County is
governed by Commissioners’ Court, composed of four County Commissioners and the County
Judge, all of whom are elected officials.

The County provides a vast array of services, which include public safety, administration of justice,
health and human services, recreation services, public improvements, and general administration.

As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the reporting entity include those of the County
(the primary government) and its component units in conformity with GASB Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity (“GASB 14), GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units (“GASB 39”), GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, (“GASB 617),
GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units, clarifies the
financial statement presentation requirements for certain component units which are incorporated as

not-for-profit entities.

In accordance with these standards, a financial reporting entity consists of the primary government
and its components units. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the County are financially accountable, or the relationship to the County is such that
exclusion would cause the County’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the County’s
operations, and so data from these units are combined with data of the County.

The criteria used to determine whether an organization is a component unit of the County and
whether it is a discretely or a blended component unit includes: financial accountability of Jefferson
County for the component unit, appointment of a voting majority, ability to impose the County’s will
on the component unit, fiscal dependency criterion, whether there is a financial benefit to or burden
to the County or if operational responsibility for the component unit rests with management of the
County, and whether services are provided entirely or almost entirely to the primary government.

Blended Component Units:

For financial reporting purposes, the Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool (The
Pool) is included in the operations and activities of the County as a blended component unit. The
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Pool is a public entity risk pool (see Note 13), which the County is the sponsor government. The
County provides roughly 75% of the revenue source and its employees and retirees account for about
93% of the total participants of the Pool. The entire board members are made up by a combination
of members of the Commissioners’ Court, appointees of the Court, and County Management. The
Pool is accounted for as an internal service fund.

Excluded from the reporting entity:

The following agencies were considered in the determination of component units of the County’s
financial reporting entity. It was determined that these entities should not be included as component
units of the primary government: Jefferson County Navigation District, Drainage District #3,
Drainage District #6, Drainage District #7, Foreign Trade Zone, Pleasure Island Park Board,
Jefferson County Health Facilities Development Corporation, Jefferson County Housing Finance
Corporation, Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), and Jefferson County Industrial

Development Corporation.

B. Implementation of New Standards

In the current year, the County implemented the following new standards:

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022 — (“GASB 99”), objectives of this Statement are to enhance
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative
literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial
guarantees. The remaining portion of GASB 99 was implemented by the County in fiscal year 2024.

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 62 — The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial
reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable,
reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing
accountability. GASB 100 was implemented by the County in fiscal year 2024.

The Govemmment Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has amended the existing standards
regarding capitalization thresholds for assets. The amended guidance for the capitalization threshold
comes from GASB Implementation Guide 2021-1, Question 5.1. Capitalization policies adopted by
governments include many considerations such as finding an appropriate balance between ensuring
that all significant capital assets, collectively, are capitalized and minimizing the cost of
recordkeeping for capital assets. A government should capitalize assets whose individual acquisition
costs are less than the threshold for an individual asset if those assets in the aggregate are significant.
The amended guidance was implemented by the County in fiscal year 2024.
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C. Financial Statement Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Statements

Government-wide financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities. These statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. However, interfund services provided and used are not eliminated
in the process of consolidation. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is financially

accountable.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Fines
and forfeitures are recognized when they have been assessed and adjudicated and earned. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the

provider have been met.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the County’s
programs are offset by those programs’ revenues. Program revenues include; 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by the program and; 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational and/or capital requirements of a particular program. Program revenues include those
generated from General Government, Judicial and Law Enforcement, Education and Recreation,
Health and Welfare, Contract Services, and Maintenance of Equipment and Structures. Taxes and
other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Miscellaneous general revenues consist of non-program specific contributions.

Fiduciary funds are excluded in the government-wide presentation of the financial statements.

Fund-level Statements

All governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become
both measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The County considers property taxes and other
revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on governmental long-term debt are
recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service
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fund for payments to be made early in the following year. Grant and entitlement revenues are also
susceptible to accrual. Encumbrances are used during the year and any remaining encumbrances are
liquidated at fiscal year end. These funds are accounted for on a spending “financial flow”
measurement focus. This means that only current assets, deferred outflows (inflows) of resources,
and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance
(net position) is considered a measure of “available spendable resources.” Governmental fund
operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases
(expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a
summary of sources and uses of “available spendable resources” during a period.

All proprietary funds, including the enterprise funds and internal service funds, and fiduciary funds,
are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned, and
expenses when they are incurred. Claims incurred but not reported are included in payables and
expenses. These funds are accounted for using a cost of service or “capital maintenance”
measurement focus. This means that all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current)
associated with their activity are included in the funds’ balance sheets.

The accounts of the County are organized and operated on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses.
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based on the purpose
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Funds are classified into three categories: Governmental, Proprietary, and Fiduciary. The County
reports the following major funds:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS: Used to account for all or most ofa government’s general activity.
General Fund - used to account for the general operations of the County.

LPPF -~ used to account for the funding provided by local providers for mandatory payments of their
net patient revenue and the intergovernmental transfers on their behalf for health care expenditures.

ARPA Coronavirus Recovery — used to account for the funding provided for by the American
Rescue Plan Act of 2021.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS: Used to account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to
those in the private sector, where the determination of net income is appropriate for sound financial

administration.
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Jack Brooks Regional Airport—used to account for the day-to-day operation of the County airport.
These facilities are financed primarily through user charges.

Ford Park —used to account for the day-to-day operation of Ford Park. These facilities are financed
primarily through user charges.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds — used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
department or agency of the County to other County departments or agencies on a cost
reimbursement basis. The County reports three internal service fund: 1) Liability Insurance — to
account for the County’s contribution and payment for liability claims, 2) Workers’ Compensation —
to account for County’s contribution and payment for workers’ compensation claims, and 3)
Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool - to account for the County’s Public Entity
Risk Pool, which provides group health insurance programs for member governments including
comprehensive major medical and dental care.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS: Used to report assets held in a trustee or fiduciary capacity for others and
therefore cannot be used to support the government’s own programs. Fiduciary funds are used to
account for assets held by the County as an agent on behalf of a third party. The County reports ten
fiduciary funds held by the County as an agent on behalf for various third parties outside the
primary government: Treasurer Maintained Fund, County Clerk Fund, District Clerk Fund, Sheriff’s
Fund, Justice of the Peace Fund, Tax Assessor/Collector Fund, District Attorney’s Seizure Fund,
Community Supervision Fund, Juvenile Probation Fund, and one Investment Trust Fund for the

District Clerk Trust.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing goods in connection
with the proprietary fund’s principal operations. The principal operating revenues of the Jack
Brooks Regional Airport and Ford Park are user fees. Operating revenues in the Internal Service
Funds consist primarily of charges to the various County departments. Operating expenses in the
enterprise and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
incurred and estimated claims, salaries & benefits, materials and supplies, maintenance and repairs,
utilities, miscellaneous, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
these definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources to the extent they are needed.
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D. Budgets

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial

statements.
o Department annual budget requests are submitted by the Department or Agency Head to

the County Auditor’s office during the third quarter of the fiscal year for the upcoming
fiscal year to begin October 1.

o The County Auditor’s office prepares an estimate of available resources for the
upcoming fiscal year.

o The County Auditor’s office prepares the proposed annual operating budget to be
presented to the Commissioners’ Court for their consideration. The budget represents
the financial plan for the new fiscal year.

o Public hearings are held on the proposed budget.

o The Commissioners’ Court must adopt an annual operating budget by a majority vote of
the Commissioners’ Court before October 1. The adopted budget must be balanced; that
is, available resources must be sufficient to support annual appropriations.

o The department is the legal level of budgetary control. Commissioners’ Court approval
is necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. Transfers may not increase

the total budget.

o The Commissioners’ Court may approve expenditures as an amendment to the budget in
an emergency situation that could not have been foreseen at the time the original budget

was approved.

o Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and Debt Service Funds.
Budgets for Grant Funds are established pursuant to grant awards and budgets for Capital
Projects are established on a project basis.

o Appropriations lapse at year-end for all budgeted funds.
o Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with GAAP.

E. Deposits and Investments

The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
certificates of deposits, balances in privately managed local government investments pools, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
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The County’s local government investments pools are recorded at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value, as permitted by GASB Statement No. 79, Certain Investment Pools and

Pool Participants.

State statute authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and Federal
Agencies, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, Bankers’ acceptances, money market mutual
funds, public funds investments pools, and direct obligations of the State of Texas.

Investments for the County are stated at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices with the
difference between the purchase price and market price being recorded as earnings on investments.

F. Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed. All encumbrances are liquidated at fiscal year end.

G. Receivables and Payables

Property taxes are levied based on taxable value at January 1 prior to September 30 and become due
October 1, 2023 and past due after January 31, 2024. Accordingly, receivables and revenues for
property taxes are reflected on the government-wide statement based on the full accrual method of
accounting. Property tax receivables for prior year’s levy are shown net of an allowance for

uncollectible.

Receivables from other governments include amount due from grantors for approved grants for
specific programs and reimbursements for services performed by the County. Program grants are
recorded as receivables and revenues at the time all eligibility requirements estabiished by the
provider have been met.

Reimbursements for services performed are recorded as receivables and revenues when they are
earned in the government-wide statements. Included are fines and costs assessed by court action and
billable services for certain contracts. Revenues received in advance of the costs being incurred are
recorded as unearned revenue in the fund statements. Receivables are shown net of an allowance for

uncollectible.

Lending or borrowing between funds is reflected as “due to” or “due from” (current portion) or
“advances to/from other funds” (non-current). Advances between funds, as reported in the fund
financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds
to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial
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resources. Interfund activity reflected in “due to” or “due from” is eliminated on the government-
wide statements.

H. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the County has many transactions between funds. The
accompanying fund level financial statements reflect as transfers the resources provided and the
expenditures used to provide services, construct assets, and meet debt service requirements. The

effect of interfund activity has been eliminated in the Government-Wide financial statements, except
for transactions between governmental and business-type activities.

I. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the “first-in/first-out” method.
Reported inventories in the governmental funds are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates
they are unavailable for appropriations even though they are a component of net current assets.
Inventory policy on government-wide statements is consistent with fund statements.

Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements and in the fund financial
statements are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates they are unavailable for
appropriations even though they are a component of net current assets.

The cost of governmental fund type inventories and prepaid items are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when they are purchased (consumption method).

J. Capital Assets and Infrastructure

Capital assets include: land, land improvements, buildings and building improvements, park
improvements and facilities, equipment, machinery, vehicles, other tangible and intangible assets,
and infrastructure that are used in the County’s operations and benefits more than a single fiscal
year. Infrastructure assets are long-lived assets that are generally stationary in nature and can
typically be preserved for a significantly greater number of years than other capital assets.
Infrastructure assets of the County include roads and bridges.

Capital assets of the County are defined as assets with individual costs of $10,000 or more and
estimated useful lives in excess of one year. All capital assets are stated at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at
acquisition cost, which is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service
potential at the acquisition date.
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It is the County’s policy not to capitalize interest on construction for capital assets reported in the
governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets are depreciated in the government-wide financial statements using the straight-line
method over the following useful lives:

Asset Years
Runways 20-35
Buildings 40
Building Improvements 15-25
Equipment 3-7
Machinery 15
Vehicles 4-15
Other tangible assets 7-10
Computer software 3-5
Infrastructure:

Bridges 25
Roads 40

K. Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

The County is a participant in several non-cancellable subscription-based IT arrangement (SBITAs).
The County recognizes a liability and intangible right-to-use assets in the government-wide financial
statements.

At the commencement of a SBITA, the County initially measures the lability at the present value of
payments expected to be made during the agreement term. Subsequently, the liability is reduced by
the principal portion of payments made. The asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the
liability, adjusted for payments made at or before the commencement date, place certain initial direct
costs. Subsequently, the asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life.

Key estimates and judgements related to SBITAs include how the County determines (1) the
discount rate it used to discount the expected payments to present value, (2) agreement term, and (3)
agreed upon payments.

¢ The County uses the interest rate charged by the vendor as the discount rate. When
the interest rate charged by the vendor is not provided, the County general uses its
estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

e The agreement term includes the non-cancellable period of the SBITA.
The agreed upon payments included in the measurement of the liability are composed
of fixed payments and purchase option price that the County is reasonably certain to
exercise.
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The County monitors changes in circumstances that would require a re-measurement of its SBITA
and will re~-measure the asset and lability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly
affect the amount of the liability.

These right to use assets are reported with other capital assets and liabilities are reported with long-
term debt on the statement of net position.

L. Compensated Absences

Accumulated compensatory leave, vacation and sick leave that have matured (reimbursable leave
still outstanding following an employee’s resignation or retirement) are reported as expenditures in
the respective governmental funds. Accumulated compensated absences that have not matured are
reported as long-term liabilities in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
Statement of Net Position. The majority of these have typically been liquidated from the General
Fund in previous years. Accumulated compensated absences of Proprietary Funds are recorded as an
expense and liability in the respective fund and the business-type activities column of the
government-wide Statement of Activities as the benefit accrues for the employee.

Employees are allowed to accrue 13 days of sick leave per year. Sick leave benefits are recognized
as expenditures as they are used by the employees. Employees may accumulate up to 1,440 hours of
sick leave. For employees with 8 years of service and hired prior to October 1, 2002, unused sick
leave benefits are paid at 50% at termination. For employees with 8 years of service and hired after
October 1, 2002, unused sick leave benefits are paid at 10% at termination.

Employees with more than one year of service accrue from two to five weeks of vacation per year,
depending on years of service. Unused vacation benefits lapse on March 15 for the previous
calendar year. Upon termination from County employment, an employee shall be entitled to
payment for total accrued but unused hours of vacation.

Non-exempt employees earn compensatory time at one and one-half times their full rate of pay times
the excess of 40 hours per week worked. The compensatory time balance for non-exempt employees
may not exceed 80 hours except for law enforcement employees, which may accumulate up to 480
hours. Hours in excess of the maximum must be paid to the non-exempt employee at the rate of one
and a half times the regular rate. Upon termination, non-exempt employees will be paid for
compensatory time at their wage rate at time of termination. Compensatory time is carried forward

indefinitely.
M. Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial

statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.
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Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financial sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

N. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County has three items
that qualify for reporting in this category. The first is deferred loss on refunding bonds reported in
the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred loss on refunding bonds results from the
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred
and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The second is deferred
outflows related to pensions. The third is deferred outflows related to OPEB.

In addition to liabilities in the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has four items that
qualify for reporting in this category. The first arises only under a modified accrual basis of
accounting, which qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, that item, unavailable
revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report
unavailable revenues from property taxes and grants. These amounts are deferred and recognized as
an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The second item is deferred
inflows related to leases. The deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the initial amount
of the lease receivable and recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term. The third item is
deferred inflows related to pensions and is only recorded in the government-wide financials. The
fourth item is deferred inflows related to OPEB and is only recorded in the government-wide

financials.

O. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expenses, information about the Fiduciary Net
Position of the Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS) and additions to/deductions
from TCDRS’s Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by TCDRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are
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recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefits terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

P. Other Post-employment benefits

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expenses, the amounts have been determined by an
actuary under GASB Statements No. 75. The County does not pre-fund benefits and the current
funding policy is to pay benefits directly from general assets on a pay-as-you-go basis. The total
OPEB liability is the portion of actuarial present value of projects benefit payments that is
attributable to past periods of member service using the Entry Age Normal cost method. The
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources represent the portion of changes in total OPEB
liability that is not immediately recognized in OPEB expense, which can include differences
between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions, and differences between expected
and actual earnings on plan investments.

Q. Net Position and Fund Balances

Net Position Classifications

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows (inflows) of resources, and
liabilities.
Net position in the proprietary fund financial statements and the government-wide financial

statements are classified in three categories: 1) Net investment in capital assets, 2) Restricted net
position, and 3) Unrestricted net position.

In the proprietary fund financial statements and in the government-wide financial statements,
restricted net position is reported for amounts that are externally restricted by 1) creditors (eg. bond
covenants), grantors, contributions, or laws and regulations of other governments, or 2) law through
constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Fund Balance Classification

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that
comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be
spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:
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e Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. Nonspendable items are not expected to be converted to cash or not expected to be
converted to cash within the next year.

e Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on
the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions, or
laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

e Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by court resolution of the Commissioners’ Court, the
County’s highest level of decision making authority. These amounts cannot be used for any
other purpose unless the Commissioners’ Court removes or changes the specified use by
taking the same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially committed.
This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

e Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the County’s intent to
be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. When it is
appropriate for fund balance to be assigned, the Commissioners’ Court retains the
responsibility to assign funds. Assignments may occur subsequent to fiscal year end.

e Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balances for the General Fund.
The unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other
governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance
is available, the County considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When expenditures are
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the County
considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally

unassigned.
R Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted)
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

S. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
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the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

T. Leases — Lessor

The County is a lessor for a non-cancellable lease of various County-owned land and buildings.
These include land and jail facilities for governmental-type activities. For business-type activities,
the County’s airport conducts a major part of its operations from leased facilities, which include
office and parking lot spaces, terminal space, hanger space, and land space for the Private Hangar
Park or land surrounding the Airport. The County recognizes a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources in the government-wide, governmental fund, and proprietary fund financial
statements.

At the commencement of a lease, the County initially measures the lease receivable at the present
value of payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable
is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments received. The deferred inflow of resources is
initially measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease payments received
at or before the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of resources is
recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term.

Key estimates and judgements include how the County determines 1) the discount rate it uses to
discount the expected lease payments to present value, 2) lease term, and 3) lease receipts.

0 The County uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for the leases.

0 The lease term includes the non-cancellable period of the lease. Lease receipts included in
the measurement of the lease receivable is composed of fixed payments from the lessee.

The County monitors changes in circumstances that would require a re-measurement of its leases,
and will re-measure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur

that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable.

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments

The County categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
general accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. As of September 30, 2024, the County held the following fair value

measurements:

44



128

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments (continued)

Weighted
Fair Value/ Percentage Average
Amortized of Maturity

Investment Type Cost Portfolio (days)
U. S. Agency Securities $43,044,343 100.0% 681
$43,044,343 100.0% 681

Of the County’s investments carried at fair value, $43,044,343 (U S Agency Securities) were all
Level 2 and were priced using the option-adjusted discount cash flow model.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool
Participants, the local government investments pools do not have any limitations and restrictions on
withdrawals such as notice periods or maximum transaction amounts. These pools do not impose
any liquidity fees or redemption gates.

Interest Rate Risk — Fair value fluctuates with interest rates and increasing rates may cause fair value
to decline below cost. In compliance with the County’s Investment Policy, the County minimized
interest rate risk by limiting the weighted average maturity of the portfolio to 1,096 days with a
stated final maturity date not to exceed 3 years from the date of purchase. In addition, the portfolio
is structured so that securities mature to meet cash flow requirements, thereby avoiding the need to
sell securities prior to maturity and below the original cost.

Credit Risk — In compliance with the County’s investment policy, as of September 30, 2024, all of
the County’s purchased investments in U.S. Agency Securities were rated AA+ and Aaa by Standard

& Poor’s and Moody’s respectively.

Concentration Risk — The County’s investment policy is to diversify its portfolio to eliminate the
risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or a
specific class of investment. As of September 30, 2024, the County had five investments that was
with Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), two investments with Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC), one investment that was Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation

(FAMCA), and three investments that was with Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA).

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits — In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the County’s deposits may not be returned to it. The County’s investment policy is to have
all checking accounts placed at the County Depository Bank under a depository contract. The
$123,932,704 bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance or collateralized with
securities held by the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments — Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the
event of a failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker/dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be
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able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The County’s policy requires that the investments of the County be secured through
third-party custodial and safekeeping procedures as designated by the County. The County’s agent
hold securities in the County’s name; therefore, the County is not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Note 3 - Property Taxes and Other Receivables

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on October
1 and payable by January 31 of the following year. The County bills and collects its own property
taxes and it also bills and collects taxes for Jefferson County Navigation District, Jefferson County
Drainage District #3, #6, and #7, Port of Beaumont, Port of Port Arthur, Water District #10,
Nederland Independent School District, Northwest Forest Municipal Utility District, Emergency
Services District #1, #2, #3, #4, Trinity Bay Conservation District, Port of Sabine Pass, Sabine Pass
Independent School District, Port Arthur Independent School District, City of Port Arthur, Hamshire
Fannett Independent School District, Port Neches-Groves Independent School District, Beaumont
Independent School District, City of Beaumont, City of Groves, City of Nederland, City of Port
Neches, City of Bevil Oaks, and City of Taylor Landing. Collections of these taxes and remittance
of them to the various districts are accounted for in the Tax Assessor - Collector Agency Fund. The
County is permitted by the State Constitution to levy taxes up to $.80 per $100 of assessed valuation
for general government services and the payment of principal and interest on Long-Term Debt. In
addition to its taxes subject to the $.80 tax limitation, the County's voters have authorized the levy of
a special tax of $.15 per $100 assessed valuation solely for road maintenance expenses. The County
is also authorized by the voters to levy the Farm to Market and Lateral Road Tax of $.30 per $100 of
assessed value for the purpose of maintaining roads and bridges.

For the year ended September 30, 2024, the combined tax rate to finance general government
services and the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt was $.359.

On February 1 of the following calendar year the tax bill becomes delinquent and penalty and
interest is assessed by the County. The County Commissioners issue a tax levy for the County's
General and Debt Service Funds. The levy and collections are restricted to the funds they are
allocated for. The delinquent tax receivables and penalty and interest receivables represent the past
thirty years of uncollected tax levies. The allowance for uncollectible was set at sixty-five percent of
the gross tax receivable and sixty-five percent on penalty and interest as of September 30, 2024. The
allowance has been recorded for Property Taxes and Penalty and Interest, which are estimated to be
uncollectible as required by generally accepted accounting.

Property tax receivables of $2,816,391 as of September 30, 2024 are reported net of an allowance for
uncollectible taxes of $5,230,441.

Penalty and Interest receivables of $1,801,192 as of September 30, 2024 are reported net of an
allowance for uncollectible accounts of $3,345,072.
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Receivables as of September 30, 2024 consist of the following:

Jack Brooks Internal
Non Major Regional Service
General Funds Airport Ford Park Funds Total
Recetvables:
Accounts $ 325,738 § 252,019 % 98220 § 402,170 § 962987 § 2,041,134
Employee 568 476 - - - 1,044
Interest 398,466 142,709 22,813 1,198 22,036 587,222
Taxes 7,606,916 439,916 - - - 8,046,832
Penalty &
Interest 4,864,920 281,344 - - - 5,146,264
Fines & Court
Cost 5,190,372 - - - - 5,190,372
Inter-
governmental 7,014,806 2,707,377 545,611 - 379,194 10,646,988
Gross
Receivables $ 25,401,786 § 3,823,841 § 666,644 § 403,368 $ 1364217 § 31,659,856
Allowance for
Uncollectible (11,326,739) (468,819) (936) - - (11,796,494)
Net total
receivables $ 14,075,047 $ 3,355,022 § 665,708 § 403,368 $ 1,364,217 § 19,863,362

As of September 30, 2024, the various components of uneamed revenue reported in the
governmental funds were as follows:

_ Unearned _
Advanced Funding (General Fund) $ 63,405
Advanced Funding (ARPA Coronavirus Recovery) 34,073,605
Advanced Funding (Non-major Special Revenue Funds) 1,225,267
Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds $35,362,337

As of September 30, 2024, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the business-
type funds were as follows:

Unearned
Advanced Funding (Jack Brooks Regional Airport) $ 41,751
Advanced Funding (Ford Park) 2,005,546
Total Unearned Revenue for Business-type Funds $ 2,047,297
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Note 4 — Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

In the fund financial statements, interfund balances are the result of normal transactions between
funds and will be liquidated in the subsequent fiscal year. Balances between individual
governmental funds and between governmental funds and enterprise funds or internal services funds
are eliminated in the government-wide financial statements.

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2024, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Non-major governmental funds $ 5,328,614
Non-major governmental

funds Non-major governmental funds 52,787

Total $ 5,381,401

All of the due to/from transactions are routine in nature and are typically a result of timing
differences between the payment for expenditures and receipt of the corresponding revenues.

The following is a summary of the County’s transfers for the year ended September 30, 2024:

Transfers Qut:

Non-major
General Fund Governmental Total
Transfers In:
General h) - ) - 5
Non-major Funds 9,237,509 207,154 9,444,663
Ford Park 2,188,954 - 2,188,954
§ 11,426,463 § 207,154 5 11,633,617

Transfers in the amount of $2,188,954 to Ford Park were to subsidize operations of the complex. All
other transfers are routine in nature such as grant matches, ongoing capital projects, and residual
fund balance transfers for close out of funds.

Transfers in the amount of $1,038,396 for Ford Park were made between governmental activities and
business-type activities for capital assets purchases which were donated to business-type activities in

the government wide statements.
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Note 5 — Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2024 was as follows:

Balance Balance

October 1, 2023 Additions Deletions Transfer September 30, 2024
Governmental Activities:
Land $ 3,840,787 $ - h) - - h) 3,840,787
Construction work in progress 3,472,011 2,072,529 (18,800) (1,816,144) 3,709,596
Total capital assets not depreciated 3 7,312,798 $ 2,072,529 $ (18,800) (1,816,144) 3 7,550,383
Infrastructure 66,596,910 - - - 66,596,910
Buildings & Improvements 138,976,061 1,179,783 (110,392) 1,816,144 141,861,596
Equipment 60,608,404 5,790,537 (4,841,614) - 61,557,327
SBITA, right to use 7,653,860 174,773 (205,890) - 7,622,743
Total capital assets depreciated b 273,835,235 $ 7,145,093 $ (5,157,896) 1,816,144 3 277,638,576
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure (49,501,070) (784,362) - - (50,285,432)
Buildings & Improvements (82,765,209) (3,456,229) 92,538 - (86,128,900)
Equipment (43,317,239) (4,839,087) 4,294,729 - (43,861,597)
SBITA, right to use (825,805) (1,507,372) (21,928) - (2,355,105)
Total accumulated depreciation 3  (176,409,323) $ (10,587,050) $ 4,365,339 - $ (182,631,034)
Total capital assets depreciated, net $ 97,425,912 3 (3,441,957) $  (792,557) 1,816,144 b 95,007,542
Governmental activities capital assets, net 3 104,738,710 3 (1,369,428) $  (811,357) - $ 102,557,925
Business-type Activities:
Land b 5,154,600 3 - b - - h) 5,154,600
Construction work in progress 7,849,001 6,839,552 (147,004) (7,525,265) 7,016,284
Total capital assets not depreciated $ 13,003,601 $ 6,839,552 $  (147,004) (7,525,265) $ 12,170,884
Buildings & Improvements 144,533,709 130,037 (1,854,114) 7,525,265 150,334,897
Equipment 12,502,892 - (47,828) - 12,455,064
Total capital assets depreciated 3 157,036,601 b 130,037 $ (1,901,942) 7,525,265 $ 162,789,961
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & Improvements (85,106,523) (3,678,008) 1,721,974 - (87,062,557)
Equipment (9,200,968) (408,246) 47,828 - (9,561,386)
Total accumulated depreciation $ (94,307,491) $  (4,086,254) $ 1,769,802 - 3 (96,623,943)
Total capital assets depreciated, net $ 62,729,110 3 (3,956,217) $  (132,140) 7,525,265 $ 66,166,018
Business-type activities capital assets, net 3 75,732,711 $ 2,883,335 §  (279,144) - 3 78,336,902
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Note 5 — Capital Assets (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to the programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General Government $2,376,770
Judicial & Law Enforcement 2,974,852
Education & Recreation 18,481
Health & Welfare 244,599
Maintenance - Equipment & Structures 4,972,348

Total depreciation expense - governmental
activities $10,587,050
Business-type activities:

Jack Brooks Regional Airport $1,739,900
Ford Park 2,346,354

Total depreciation expense - business-type
activities $4,086,254

Note 6 - Leases

Lease Receivable

The County’s financial statements include the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The
primary objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance and consistency of information about
governments' leasing activities. This statement establishes a single model for lease accounting based
on the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset,
and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. As of
9/30/2024, the County has 2 active leases for governmental type activities and 42 active leases for
business type activities.

Governmental Activities
Amount of Amounts

Initial Initial Receivable Ending
Purpose of Year of Lease at Deferred
Lease Interest Rate Lease Receivable 9/30/2024 Inflows
Right-to-use land 1.46% 2022 $ 127,861 $ 78332 § 76,830
Right-to-use Jail
Building 3.65% 2024 $§ 157,003 $ 137,591 § 131,795
Total Governmental Activities § 284,864 $ 215923 $ 208,625
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Business Type Activities
Amount of Amounts
Initial Initial Receivable Ending
Purpose of Year of Lease at Deferred
Lease Interest Rate Lease Receivable 9/30/2024 Inflows
Right-to-use
Alirport
Buildings 0.53% - 1.462% 2022 § 889,748 § 437244 § 425419
Right-to-use
Alirport
Buildings 0.743% -3.212% 2023 $ 46,192 § 21,118 § 21,087
Right-to-use
Airport
Land/Hangers 1.090%-2.560% 2022 $3,801,029  $3,506,322  $3,353,167
Right-to-use
Airport
Land/Hangers 3.409%-4.174% 2023 $1,065369 $§ 838,197 $§ 815,587
Total Business Type Activities $5,802,338  $4,802,881  $4,615,260
Future revenues expected are as follows:
Governmental Activities
Principal Interest Total
Fiscal Year Payments Payments Payments
2025 § 50,027 § 5,456 § 55483
2026 48,929 4,071 53,000
2027 50,360 2,640 53,000
2028 51,838 1,162 53,000
2029 14,769 65 14,834
§ 215923 § 13,394 $ 229,317
Business-Type Activities
Principal Interest Total
Fiscal Year Payments Payments Payments
2025 § 392,685 § 121,067 § 513,752
2026 305,480 114,043 419,523
2027 121,378 109,225 230,603
2028 119,896 106,807 226,703
2029 113,760 104,310 218,070
2030-2034 433,307 489,648 922,955
2035-2039 514,467 430,543 945,010
2040-2044 550,415 361,495 911,910
2045-2049 299,774 305,538 605,312
2050-2054 374,584 257,758 632,342
2055-2059 459,158 197,556 656,714
2060-2064 512,049 127,001 639,050
2065-2069 567,461 43,927 611,388
2070 38,467 406 38,873
$4.802,881  $2,769,324 $ 7,572,205
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Note 7 - Long-Term Liabilities

General Obligation Bonds

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
major capital facilities. All of the 2012 Refunding Bonds, and approximately 5% ($605,456) of the
2019 Certificates of Obligation funded and benefited business-type activities, though resources of
the governmental activities are being used to liquidate the debt. All other General obligation bonds
have been issued for governmental-type activities The total original amount of general obligation
bonds issued is $62,700,000.

General obligation bonds are direct obligation and pledge the full faith and credit on the government.
General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

$47,305,000 2012 Refunding Bonds due in annual installments from $780,000 to

$4,465,000 through August 1, 2025; interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0%. $ 4,465,000
$15,395,000 2019 Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments from $500,000 to
$1,040,000 through August 1, 2039; interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% 12,640,000

Total General Obligation Bonds $ 17,105,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:
Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Ended September 30 Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 5,100,000 $ 567,850 $ 5,667,850
2026 665,000 402,150 1,067,150
2027 700,000 368,900 1,068,900
2028 735,000 333,900 1,068,900
2029 775,000 297,150 1,072,150
2030-2034 4,225,000 1,123,500 5,348,500
2035-2039 4,905,000 450,150 5,355,150
Total $ 17,105,000 § 3,543,600 § 20,648,600

There is currently $571,710 available in the Debt Service Funds to service the general obligation
bonds. The County has no authorized but unissued bonds at September 30, 2024.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond debentures
regarding authorized uses of bond proceeds. The County is in compliance with all significant
limitations and restrictions.

Should the County default on its outstanding bonds, any registered owner of the certificates is
entitled to seek a writ of mandamus from a court of proper jurisdiction requiring specific
performance from the County.
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Financing Arrangement Obligations:

In 2020, a tax-exempt Series Master Equipment-Purchase Agreement was issued with maturities
ranging from $6,976 to $8,325 with an interest rate of 3.6%, to be paid from the General Fund. The
original issue amount was $457,860 and the current outstanding balance is $292,002. The asset
acquired through a financing arrangement is recorded at $457,860 for governmental funds for 71

copiers.
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for financing arrangement obligations are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Ended September

30 Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 97979 $ 2,221  $ 100,200
2026 8,325 25 8,350
Total $ 106,304 § 2,246 % 108,550

SBITAs Liability:

As 0f 9/30/2024, the County has 12 active subscriptions for the use of software. The subscriptions
have payments that range from $13,706 to $756,234 and interest rates that range from 2.31% to
3.67%. As of 9/30/2024, total combined value of the subscription liability is $3,593,120, and the
total combined value of the short-term subscription is $1,004,326. The County is required to make
annual fixed payments between $866,892 and $1,047,237.

The annual principal and interest payments are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Ended September 30 Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 1,004,326 $ 98,914 $ 1,103,240
2026 918,640 70,998 989,638
2027 918,407 45,124 963,531
2028 751,747 20,162 771,909
Total 3 3,593,120  § 235,198 § 3,828,318
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Conduit Debt Obligations

The County has issued Housing Finance Corporation Bonds and Industrial Development
Corporation Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and
construction of facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property
financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying loans. Upon repayment
ofthe bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity serviced by the
bond issuance. Neither the County, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in
any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of September 30, 2024, there were three series of Jefferson
County Housing Finance Corporation Bonds with an aggregate principal amount payable of
$49,231,960, and one series of Jefferson Industrial Development Bonds with an aggregate principal

amount payable of $8,770,000.

Arbitrage Rebate Liability

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 established regulations for the rebate to the federal government of
arbitrage earnings on certain local government bonds issued after December 31, 1985, and all local
governmental bonds issued after August 31, 1986. Issuing governments must calculate any rebate
due and remit the amount due at least every five years. As of September 30, 2024, there are no
estimated liabilities for arbitrage rebate on governmental debt. The Debt Service Fund and the
residual balance in the Capital Project Fund have typically been used to liquidate the arbitrage

liability in previous years.

Changes in long-term liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the yeér ended September 30, 2024 was as follows:
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Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable
General obligation bonds $ 22,035,000 3 - 3 (4,930,000) $ 17,105,000 $ 5,100,000
Premiums 1,602,594 - (435,013) 1,167,581 -
Total bonds payable $ 23,637,594 h) - 5 (5365,013) $ 18,272,581 ¥ 5,100,000
Financing Arrangements 200,822 - (94,518) 106,304 97,979
SBITA Liability 4,655,432 174,773 (1,237,085) 3,593,120 1,004,326
Claims and Judgments 3,995,649 26,511,057 (26,280,214) 4,226,492 4,226,492
Compensated Absences 11,516,718 1,325,206 (1,208,640) 11,633,284 1,280,699
Governmental Activities
Long-term liabilities $ 44,006,215 $ 28,011,036 $ (34,185,470) § 37,831,781 $ 11,709,496
Business-type Activities:
Compensated Absences b 195,804 3 23,387 by (22,060) $ 197,131 b 29,772
Business-type Activities
Long-term liabilities ) 195,804 ) 23,387 by (22,060) 3 197,131 ¥ 29,772

Compensated absences liabilities are normally liquidated by the general fund for governmental
activities and by the corresponding enterprise fund for business type activities. Claims and
judgments of governmental funds are normally paid from the corresponding internal service fund.
Claims and judgments of the public entity risk pool are normally paid from the corresponding
internal service fund.

Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description. The County participates in a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan in the

statewide Texas County and District Retirement System (“TCDRS”). The Board of Trustees of

TCDRS is responsible for the administration of the statewide agent, multiple-employer, public

employee retirement system consisting of nontraditional defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS
issues a publicly available annual comprehensive financial report (“Annual report”) that can be

obtained at www.tcdrs.org.

All full and part-time non-temporary employees participate in the plan, regardless of the number of
hours they work in a year. Employees in a temporary position are not eligible for membership.

Benefits Provided. TCDRS provides retirement, disability and death benefits for all eligible
employees. Benefit terms are established by the TCDRS act. The benefit terms may be amended as
of January 1, each year, but must remain in conformity with the Act.

Members can retire at age 60 and above with 8 or more years of service, with 30 years of service

regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 75 or more. Members are
vested after eight years of service, but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

receive any employer-financed benefit. Members who withdraw their personal contributions in a
lump sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by their employer.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’s contributions to the plan, with
interest, and employer-financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by
the Commissioners’ Court, within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the
resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately financed by the employer’s commitment to
contribute. By law, employee accounts eam 7% interest. At retirement, death or disability, the
benefit is calculated by converting the sum of the employee’s accumulated contributions and the
employer-financed monetary credits to a monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by
the TCDRS Act. The County’s current match is 200%.

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2023 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 1,089
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 928
Active employees 1.084

3,101

Contributions. The contribution rates for employees in TCDRS are either 4%, 5%, 6%, or 7% of
employee gross earnings, as adopted by the employer’s governing body. Participating employers are
required to contribute at actuarially determined rates to ensure adequate funding for each employer’s
plan. Under the state law governing TCDRS, the contribution rate for each entity is determined
annually by the actuary and approved by the TCDRS Board of Trustees. The replacement life entry
age actuarial cost method is used in determining the contribution rate. The actuarially determined
rate is the estimated amount necessary to fund benefits in an orderly manner for each participate over
his or her career so that sufficient funds are accumulated by the time benefit payments begin, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the County were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings during the
fiscal year. The contribution rates for the County were 20.31% and 20.60% in calendar years 2023
and 2024, respectively. The County’s contributions to TCDRS for the year ended September 30,
2024, was $16,333,443, and was equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability (Asset). The County’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) or Net Pension Asset

(NPA) was measured as of December 31, 2023, and the Total Pension Liability (TPL) used to
calculate the Net Pension Liability (Asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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Actuarial Assumptions

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.50% per year
Overall payroll growth 3.00% per year

7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense, including
Investment rate of return inflation

The plan does not have an automatic cost-of-living adjustment (“COLA”’) and one is not considered
to be substantively automatic under GASB No. 68. Therefore, no assumption for future cost-of-
living adjustments is included in the GASB calculation or in the funding valuation. Each year, the
plans may elect an ad-hoc COLA for its retirees.

Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the following:

Depositing members 135% of the Pub-2010 General Employees Amount-Weighted
Mortality Table for males and 120% Pub-2010 General
Employees Amount-Weighted Mortality Table for females, both
projected with 100% of the MP-2021 Ultimate scale after 2010.

Service retirees, beneficiaries 135% of the Pub-2010 General Retirees Amount-Weighted

and non-depositing members Mortality Table for males and 120% Pub-2010 General Retirees
Amount-Weighted Mortality Table for females, both projected
with 100% of the MP-2021 Ultimate scale after 2010.

Disabled retirees 160% of the Pub-2010 General Disabled Retirees Amount-
Weighted Mortality Table for males and 125% Pub-2010 General
Disabled Retirees Amount-Weighted Mortality Table for females,
both projected with 100% of the MP-2021 Ultimate scale after

aMNINn
FAVEQVE

The actuarial cost method was Entry Age Normal, as required by GASB No. 68. Straight-line
amortization over Expected Working Life with a 5 year smoothing period, and a non-asymptotic
recognition method with no corridor were utilized in the actuarial calculation.

The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of December 31, 2023, were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2018 through
December 31, 2021.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.60%. The pension plan’s
policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the
TCDRS Board of Trustees. The long-term expected rate of return on TCDRS is determined by
adding inflation to expected long-term real returns, and reflecting expected volatility and correlation.
The capital market assumptions and information below are based on January 2023 information for a
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10-year time horizon. The valuation assumption for long-term expected return is re-assessed at a
minimum of every four years, and is set based on a 10-year time horizon; the most recent analysis
was performed in 2023. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates return for
each major assets class are summarized in the following table:

Target GeometricReal
Asset Class Benchmark Aﬂocation(l) Rate of

U.S. Equities Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market Index 11.50% 4.75%
Global Equities MSCI World (net) Index 2.50% 4.75%
Int'l Equities - Developed Markets MSCI World Ex USA (net) Index 5.00% 4.75%
Int'l Equities - Emerging Markets MSCI Emerging Markets (net) Index 6.00% 4.75%
Investment-Grade Bonds Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 3.00% 2.35%
Strategic Credit FTSE High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 9.00% 3.65%
Direct Lending Morningstar LSTA US Leveraged Loan TR USD Index 16.00% 7.25%
Distressed Debt Cambridge Associates Distressed Securities Index(j) 4.00% 6.90%
REIT Equities 67% FTSE NAREIT All Equity REITs Index +33% S&P 2.00% 4.10%

Global REIT (net) Index ’
Master Limited Partnerships Alerian MLP Index 2.00% 5.20%
Private Real Estate Partnerships Cambridge Associates Real Estate Index¥ 6.00% 5.70%
Private Equity Cambridge Associates Global Private Equity & Venture 25.00% 1.75%

Capital Index(s)
Hedge Funds ngng:ol;"ir:;{nlzziearch, Inc. (HFRI) Fund of Funds 6.00% 325%
CashEquivalents 90-Day U. S. Treasury 2.00% .60%

) Target asset allocation adopted at the March 2024 TCDRS Board meeting.

(2) Geometric real rates of return equal the expected return for the asset class minus the assumed inflation rate of 2.2%, per Cliffwater’s

2024 capital market assumptions.

(3) Includes vintage years 2005-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs.

(4) Includes vintage years 2007-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs.

(%) Includes vintage years 2006-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.6%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be
made at the rates specified in statue. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net
Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active
and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension

Liability.

58



142

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 8§ — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Changes in the Net Pension (Asset) Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
(a) (b (a) - (b)
Balance at 12/31/2022 $ 608,396,864 § 544,177,849 $ 64,219,015
Changes for the year:
Service cost 10,459,071 - 10,459,071
Interest on total pension liability () 45,654,250 - 45,654,250
Effect on plan changes @ - - }
Effect of economic/demographic gains (1,247319) ) (1247,319)
or losses
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs - - -
Refund of contributions (1,487,147) (1,487,147) -
Benefit payments (35,473,869) (35,473,869) -
Administrative expenses - (306,554) 306,554
Member contributions - 5,407,918 (5,407,918)
Net investment income - 59,648,780 (59,648,780)
Employer contributions - 15,690,666 (15,690,666)
Other @ - (573.971) 573971
Balance at 12/31/2023 $ 626,301,850 § 587,083,672 $ 39218178

@ Reflects the change in the liability due to the time value of money. TCDRS does not charge fees or interest.
) No plan changes valued..
) Relates to allocation of system-wide items.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the County, calculated using the discount
rate of 7.6%, as well as what the County’s net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.6%) or 1-percentage-higher (8.6%) than the
current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.6% 7.6% 8.6%
Total pension liability $ 700,888,495 $ 626,301,850 $ 563,077,957
Fiduciary net position 587.083.672 587,083,672 587,083,672
Net pension $ 113,804,823 $ 39218178 $ _ (24.005,715)

liability/(asset)
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-
issued TCDRS financial report. The report may be obtained on the internet at www.tedrs.org.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2024, the County recognized pension (income) expense of
$5,387,188 and $98,747 in the governmental and business-type activities, respectively.

At September 30, 2024, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Inflows Outflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected
and actual economic experience $ 1,999,562 $ -
Changes in actuarial assumptions 319,256 -
Net difference between projected
and actual investment earnings ) 1,358,872
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date - 13,289,876
Total 3 2,318,818 $ 14,648,748

$13,289,876, reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension resulting from
contributions made after the measurement date but before the end of the County’s fiscal year
ending September 30, 2024, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability (asset)
or collective net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year rather than in the current fiscal
year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expenses as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2024 $  (5,933,180)
2025 (3,083,019)
2026 11,839,423
2027 (3,783,170)
$ (959,946)
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Note 9 — Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Description. The County sponsors a single-employer defined benefit post-employment benefit
(OPEB) plan for health and dental care benefits.

Benefits Provided.

Retirees Benefits
The County provides post-retirement health and dental care benefits to all employees who retired on
or after April 9, 1990. Effective January 1, 1997, Commissioners’ Court adopted the following

policy detailing eligibility requirements for participation in this benefit:

A) employee must have retired under the Texas County and District Retirement System
(TCDRS) guidelines described in Note 8; and

B) employee must have at least 8 years of TCDRS credible service with Jefferson
County.

For retirees prior to February 1, 2003, the County pays 100 percent of health insurance premiums for
those retirees that qualify. After February 1, 2003, the County will pay on the following scale for
retirees that qualify:

Percentage Percentage
Years of Paidby  Paid by
Service Retiree County

8-11 30% 70%
12-15 20%) 80%
16-19 10% 90%
20+ 0% 100%
Effective January 1, 2016, all new employees will not be eligible for County paid post-retirement

Retiree Spouse Benefits
The employee's spouse is eligible for County paid health and dental insurance benefits following the

employee's retirement if:

A) employee met the above requirements A and B; hired prior to January 1, 2016 and,

B) employee's spouse was enrolled in the health plan either as a dependent or an active
County employee.

Spouse participation will end in the event of a divorce, at which time COBRA continuation will be
offered as described below.
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Note 9 — Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued)

For retirees prior to February 1, 2003, the County pays 100 percent of health and dental insurance
premiums for those retirees’ spouses that qualify. For retirees between February 1, 2003 and
February 28, 2005, the County will pay the same scale as described above for retirees’ spouses that
qualify. For retirees after February 28, 2005, the County requires the following premiums to be paid
for retirees’ spouses that qualify:

_Age of Spouse Premium Amount Due
Less than 65 during ten year | Equal to the active employee
maximum contribution made for a spouse
Less than 65 after ten year
maximum Full Premium|
Same percentage as retiree see
Over 65 table above]

Individuals covered by benefits terms

Atthe October 1, 2022 valuation date, the following individuals were covered by the benefits terms:

Active employees hired prior to January 1, 2016 505
Retireces 623
Surviving Spouses & Beneficiaries 32

1,160

Assets. There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of GASB codification
P22.101 or P52.101 to pay related benefits for the OPEB plan

Contributions. The Plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and is not administered through an
irrevocable trust. The County does not make contributions as defined by GASB 75. For the fiscal
year 2024, the County did make payments as established by Commissioners” Court under the Plan
based on the combination of premiums and prior year costs of the self-funded portion of the plan of

$7,125,048.

Total OPEB Liability. The County’s Total OPEB liability of $193,138,627 was measured as of
September 30, 2024 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as ofthe valuation date, calculated
based on the discount rate and actuarial assumptions below, and was then projected forward to the
measurement date. Any significant changes during this period have been reflected as prescribed by

GASB 74 and 75.
Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The Total OPEB Liability in the October 1, 2022, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:
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Note 9 — Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued)

Discount Rate 3.81%
20 Year Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Yield 3.81%
Inflation 2.30%
Salary increases included inflation 3.00%

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Index.

The actuarial cost method was Entry Age normal. The trend rates for medical of 6.3% for pre-65 for
2022 will then trend upward to as high as 6.7% during years 2023 and the slowly grade downward
yearly to ultimately reaching trend medical rates of 3.7% for years 2072 and beyond . The trend
rated for medical post-65 of 5.5% and 4.0% for dental rates for 2022 will trend will slowly grade
downward yearly to ultimately reaching trend medical rates of 3.7% for post-65, and dental rates of
3.7% for years 2072 and beyond.

There has not been a separate, audited GA AP-basis postemployment benefit plan report issued.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Increase
(Decrease)
Total OBEB
Liability
Balance at 9/30/2023 $ 183,177,399
Changes for the year:
Service cost 3,054,253
Interest on total OPEB liability 7,472,628
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 6,559,395
Benefit payments (7,125.048)
Balance at 9/30/2024 $ 193,138,627

Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the County, calculated using the discount rate of
3.81%, as well as what the County’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.81%) or 1-percentage-higher (4.81%) than the
current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.81% 3.81% 4.81%
Total OPEB liability $ 219,880,776 $ 193,138,627 $ 171,283,657
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Note 9 — Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued)

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the County, calculated using the current
healthcare cost trends as well as what the County’s total OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-higher than the current
rate:

Current
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
Total OPEB liability $ 166,241,256 $ 193,138,627 $ 226,797,850

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

For the year ended September 30, 2024, the County recognized OPEB expense (income) of
($9,116,831).

At September 30, 2024, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Inflows of Outflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and
actual economic experience § 7,564,141 b 6,349,811
Change in actuarial assumptions 22,502,093 5,631,121
Total $ 30,066,234 $ 119800932

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to other postemployment
benefits will be recognized in OPEB expenses as follows:

For the Year Ended September 30,

2025 $ (14,756,275)
2026 (4,709,951)
2027 1,380,924

$  (18,085,302)

Note 10 - Deferred Compensation Plan

Employees of Jefferson County, Texas may participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted
under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with

Respect to Service for State and Local Governments).
The deferred compensation plan is administered by an unrelated financial institution. Amendments
to the laws goveming Section 457 deferred compensation plans substantially became effective

January 1, 1997. The County approved plan amendments such that plan assets are held in trust by a
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Note 10 - Deferred Compensation Plan (continued)

third party custodian, for the exclusive benefit of the plan participants and their beneficiaries. The
assets will not be diverted to any other purpose. The County’s beneficial ownership of plan assets
will be held for the further exclusive benefit of the plan for the exclusive benefit of participants and

beneficiaries.

Accordingly, the County performs minimal administrative functions and does not perform any
investment functions for the plan. Consequently, the assets held by the custodian are not included in
the financial statements as of September 30, 2024.

Note 11 - Individual Funds Deficit Equity Balances

The following funds had deficit equity balances as of September 30, 2024:

Governmental Activities

General Land Office Grants $2,959,857
Sheriff Training Grant 7,496
JAG Grant 3,763
Auto Theft Grant 69,526
BRIC/FMA Grant 222,605
Community Wildfire Prevention Program 2,730
Total for Governmental Activities $3,265,977

Business-type Activities
Workers' Compensation Fund $393,050
Total for Business-type Activities $393,050

If funding does not become available to cover these deficit fund balances from other governmental
entities, the County plans to transfer funds from General Fund to cover the deficit fund balance.

Note 12 - Risk Management

The Liability Insurance Fund was established to account for the contributions from the General Fund
for payment of general liability claims. Under the laws of the State of Texas, claims for torts are
limited to $100,000 per person and $300,000 per incident. The Liability Fund records a claim as
payable when information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is
probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of
the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an
amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated
considering recent claim settlement trends. Changes in the Liability Insurance Fund’s claims
liability (including an estimate for claims incurred but not reported) were:
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Note 12 - Risk Management (continued)

2024 2023
Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year $354,777 $350,000
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 321,677 118,767
Claim payments (321,987) (113,990)
Liability for claims, end of fiscal year $354,467 $354,777

The Workers’ Compensation Fund was established to account for the County’s workers’
compensation claims. Contributions are made from the General, Special Revenue, and Enterprise
Funds for employees covered under the County’s workers’ compensation policy. Contributions to
the fund are determined by position class code within each department. From October 1, 1999, to
February 14, 2005 the County was fully insured for workers’ compensation claims and employers’
liability. As of February 15,2005, the County is self insured for workers’ compensation claims and
employers’ liability. The County has excess coverage for workers’ compensation claims and
employers’ liability claims limiting the County’s liability to $750,000 for law enforcement or
firefighters and $500,000 for all others per occurrence for losses occurring prior to October 1, 1999
and after February 15, 2005. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverages in any of the
past three fiscal years. Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has
occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for
claims that have been incurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering recent
claim settlement trends. Changes in the Worker’s Compensation Fund’s claims liability (including
an estimate for claims incurred but not reported) were:

2024 2023
Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year $1,873,990 $345,698
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 161,468 2,240,026
Claim payments (641,532) (711,734)
Liability for claims, end of fiscal year $1,393,926  $1,873,990

Note 13 — Public Entity Risk Pool

On November 27, 2000, the Jefferson County Commissioners’ Court pursuant to Texas Local
Government Code Ann. Sec. 172.001 organized the Southeast Texas Government Employee
Benefits Pool (The Pool). The Pool was organized for the benefit of Texas Political Subdivisions
and Special Districts to make available accident, life, and health benefits for Pool member
employees. Twelve trustees govern the Pool. Five of these trustees are the Jefferson County
Auditor, Jefferson County Insurance and Benefits Manager, Jefferson County Human Resources
Director, Jefferson County Purchasing Agent, and the Jefferson County Assistant District Attorney.
Two of the trustees are members of Commissioners’ Court. The remaining five trustees are

appointed by Commissioners’ Court.
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Note 13 — Public Entity Risk Pool (continued)

The Pool is responsible for adopting underwriting standards, qualifications for membership in the
pool, and establishing the types of benefits to be provided and associated fees for these benefits. The
members of the Pool are responsible for their members’ eligibility in the pool and payment of
monthly contributions for participation in the Pool. The Pool members are not subject to
supplemental assessments in the event of deficiencies. If the assets of the Pool were to be exhausted,
members would not be responsible for the Pool’s liabilities. Pool members currently include
Jefferson County, Texas (reporting entity), Jefferson County Drainage District #3, and Jefferson
County Drainage District #6. The total number of members in the Pool is 1,799. Operations of the
Pool are accounted for as an internal service fund.

The Pool uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses on medical and
prescription claims. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the Pool had stop loss insurance
contracts to limit the medical and prescription claims per individual member to $325,000 in a
calendar year with a $125,000 aggregating specific deductible. The Pool did not exceed these limits
during fiscal year 2024, but, did exceed these limits during fiscal year 2023 by $376,425, and did
exceed these limits during fiscal year 2022 by $831,379.

Liabilities of the Pool are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred
but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated considering recent claim settlements trends.

Changes in the Pool’s claims liability (including an estimate of claims incurred but not reported and
claim adjustment expenses) were:

2024 2023
Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year $1,766,882  $2,235,117
Incurred claims and changes in estimates 26,027,912 25,515,367
Claim payments (25,316,695) (25,983,602)
Liability for claims, end of fiscal year $2,478,099  $1,766,882

Additional information including ten-year revenue and claim development are addressed in a
separate annual report. The annual report may be obtained from Southeast Texas Governmental
Employee Benefits Pool, 215 Franklin Street Suite 200, Beaumont, Texas 77701.

Note 14 — Encumbrances, Construction Contracts, and Other Significant Commitments

As of September 30, 2024, the County had the following encumbrances, construction contracts, and
other significant commitments with respect to unfinished projects:
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Note 14 — Encumbrances, Construction Contracts, and Other Significant Commitments

(continued)

Expected
Remaining Date of

Project Commitment Completion
Governmental Activities
Major Funds
ARPA Coronavirus Recovery American Rescue Plan projects $26,356,232 12/31/2026
Non-major funds
LATCF Federal Grant Courthouse Technology Upgrades $ 321,725 5/31/2025
GLO Disaster Recovery Harvey Infrastructure Improvements 1,196,584 9/30/2025
Capital Project Funds Jail Improvements 262,110 7/31/2025
Capital Project Funds Erie Street & Highland Extension 208,221 12/31/2025
BRIC/FMA Grant FEMA Home Elevations program 565,700 12/31/2026
Total Non-major Funds $ 2,554,340
Total Governmental Activities $28,910,572

Note 15 - Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the State of Texas. Any disallowed expenditures or claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the
County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County is involved in lawsuits and other claims in the ordinary course of operations. The

outcome of these lawsuits and other claims are not presently determinable and the resolutions of
these matters are not expected to have a material effect on the financial condition of the County.

Note 16 — Tax Abatements

The County enters into property tax abatement agreements with local businesses under the state
Property Redevelopment and Tax Abatement Act, Chapter 312 of the Texas Tax Code, as well as its
own guidelines and criteria, which is required under the Act. Under the Act, including its guidelines
and criteria, the County may grant property tax abatements for creation of additional value to eligible
facilities. The creation must be made subsequent to and specified in an abatement agreement
between the County and the property owner or lessee. In addition, the County requires the following
economic qualifications in order to grant the tax abatement:
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Note 16 — Tax Abatements (continued)

(1)Must create an increased appraised ad valorem tax value based upon the Jefferson County
Appraisal District’s assessment of the eligible property; and

(2)Must prevent the loss of payroll or retain, increase or create payroll (full-time
employment) on a permanent basis in the County.

(3)Must not have the effect of displacing workers or transferring employment from one part
of the County to another.

(4)Must demonstrate by an independent economic impact analysis that the local economic
benefit will be substantially in excess of the amount of anticipated foregone tax revenues
resulting from the abatement.

The County’s guidelines and criteria focus on creating new wealth to the community rather than
recirculating dollars within the community, and attracting industries that have demonstrated a
commitment to protecting our environment—all without creating a substantial adverse effect on the
competitive position of existing companies operating in the County. The agreement used for this
purpose provides for termination of the agreement in the event its counterparty discontinues
producing product as well as recapturing property taxes abated in that calendar year. These
abatements may be granted for up to ten years.

The County has also entered into one agreement under the state County Development and Growth,
Chapter 381 ofthe Texas Local Government code that will rebate a percentage of property taxes for
up to twenty years. The agreement was granted for twenty years.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, the County abated property tax revenue totaling
$18,806,003 based on property tax values of $5,238,440,930 for 17 entities.

\J arant Aconnmnting Pranaonnoaman
J.‘Gte 17 — R\'\'\'ut LALLUULILILIE 1 L VIIVULILVLVILIVIR

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences — The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and
measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the
recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously
required disclosures. GASB 100 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2025, and the
impact has not yet been determined.

GASB Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures — (“GASB 102”), The objective of this
Statement is to provide users of government financial statements with essential information about
risks related to a government’s vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. GASB
102 will be implemented by the County in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025, and the impact
has not yet been determined.
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Note 17 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

GASB Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements — The objective of this
Statement is to improve key components of the financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness
in providing information that is essential for decision making and assessing a government’s
accountability. This Statement also addresses certain application issues. This Statement will be
implemented by the County in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2026, and the impact has not yet

been determined.

GASB Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets — The objective of this Statement is
to provide users of government financial statements with essential information about certain types of
capital assets. This Statement requires certain types of capital assets to be presented separately in the
note disclosures, including right-to-use assets related to leases, Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements, and public-private or public-public partnerships. Other intangible assets
are also required to be presented separately by major class. Additional disclosures have also been
required for capital assets held for sale. This Statement will be implemented by the County in the
fiscal year ending September 30, 2026, and the impact has not yet been determined.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

REVENUES:
TAXES:
PROPERTY
SALES TAX
FEES
LICENSES
SALES, RENTALS, AND SERVICES
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
FINES AND FORFEITURES
INTEREST
MISCELLANEQUS
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT AND STRUCTURES
CAPITAL OQUTLAY
DEBT SERVICE
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST AND COMMISSION

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
ISSUANCE OF SBITA
TRANSFERS OUT
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNT FINAL BUDGET
104,705,808 104,705,808 102,554,660 (2,151,148)
31,800,000 31,800,000 40,650,923 8,850,923

8,552,510 8,552,510 9,296,988 744,478
409,800 409,800 1,720,514 1,310,714
2,688,800 2,688,800 4,486,673 1,797,873
1,442,000 1,442,000 1,726,553 284,553
1,400,000 1,400,000 1,667,579 267,579
2,478,000 2,478,000 9,589,245 7,111,245
30,000 30,000 38,748 8,748
100 100 240 140
153,507,018 153,507,018 171,732,123 18,225,105
34,131,378 31,929,944 30,465,648 1,464,296
97,025,631 95,961,032 92,690,634 3,270,398
498,415 498,415 441,193 57,222
12,720,336 13,041,716 11,711,886 1,329,830
18,119,305 18,218,365 16,125,717 2,092,648
94,518 94,518 94,518 -
5,682 5,082 5,682 -
162,595,265 159,749,672 151,535,278 8,214,394
(9,088,247) (6,242,654) 20,196,845 26,439,499
- - 174,773 174,773
(8,769,435) (11,615,028) (11,426,463) 188,565
(8,769,435) (11,615,028) (11,251,690) 363,338
(17,857,682) (17,857,682) 8,945,155 26,802,837
76,624,504 76,624,504 76,624,504 -
58,766,822 58,766,822 85,569,659 26,802,837
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1. Budgetary Basis
o Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with GAAP.

o The department is the legal level of budgetary control. Commissioners’ Court
approval is necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. Transfers may
not increase the total budget.

o Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and the Debt Service Funds.

2. Analysis of Significant Expenditure Variances from Original Budget

Commissioners’ Court approved $2,762,110 in budget transfers over the original budget for
Transfers out in order to provide additional funding for necessary capital projects for
improvement to the County Correctional facilities.

Commissioners’ Court approved $300,000 in budget transfers over the original budget for
Transfers out in order to provide additional subsidies to the Enterprise Fund — Ford Park for their
operations.

The Court approved approximately $312,000 in budget transfers over the original budget for
Mosquito Control chemicals due to increase cost of products and increase spraying to combat the
mosquito population.

In addition, the Court approved approximately $250,000 in budget transfers over the original
budget for additional cost for indigent defense as court cases are continue to be higher to address
the backlog due to the impacts of Covid-19 on the Court system.

These transfers were not part of the original budget. The above budget transfers were funded
with the savings from various departments. Commissioners’ Court was able to achieve
$8,402,959 in actual savings from the total budget, with the assistance from all County
departments.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TEXAS COUNTY AND DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Fiscal = Actuarially Actual Contribution Pensionable Actual Contribution

Year Determined Employer Deficiency Covered as a % of Covered
Ended Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll (1) Payroll
2015 $ 11,476,313 §$ 11,476,313 § - $ 65,197,649 17.6%
2016 11,644,582 11,644,582 66,074,018 17.6%
2017 11,699,132 11,699,132 67,589,717 17.3%
2018 11,920,988 11,920,988 65,695,117 18.1%
2019 12,532,809 12,532,809 67,188,223 18.7%
2020 14,035,386 14,035,386 70,719,630 19.8%
2021 14,330,834 14,330,834 71,342,609 20.1%
2022 15,333,200 15,333,200 75,943,576 20.2%
2023 15,524,374 15,524,374 76,489,369 20.3%
2024 16,333,450 16,333,450 79,548,968 20.5%

(1) Payroll is calculated based on contributions as reported to TCDRS.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Valuation Date

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated each December 31,
two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the contributions are
reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method
Inflation

Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Changes in Assumptions and
Methods Reflected in the
Schedule of Employer

Contributions*

Changes in Plan Provisions
Reflected in the Schedule*

* Only changes effective 2015 and later are shown in the Notes in Schedule. Additional years will be reported as

it becomes available

Entry Age

Level percentage of payroll, closed

12.1 years (based on contribution rate calculated in 12/31/2023 valuation)
5-year smoothed fair value

2.50%

Varies by age and service. 4.7% average over career including inflation.
7.5%, net of administrative and investment expenses, including inflation

Members who are eligible for service retirement are assumed to commence
receiving benefit payments based on age. The average age at service
retirement for recent retirees is 61.

135% of the Pub-2020 General Retirees Table for males and
120% of the Pub-2010 General Retirees Table for females, both
projected with 100% of the MP-2021 Ultimate scale after 2010.

2015: New inflation, mortality and other assumptions were reflected.
2017: New mortality assumptions were reflected

2019: New inflation, mortality and other assumptions were refiected.
2022: New investement return and inflation assumptions were reflected.

2015: No changes in plan provisions.

2016: No changes in plan provisions.

2017: New Annuity Purchase Rates were reflected for benefits earned
after 2017

2018: No changes in plan provisions.

2019: No changes in plan provisions.

2020: No changes m plan provisions.

2021: No changes in plan provisions.

2022: No changes in plan provisions.

2023: Employer contributions reflect that a 2% flat COLA was adopted.
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Plan Year Ended September 30
Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost

Interest total OPEB liability

Effect of plan changes

Effect of assumption changes or inputs

Effect of economic/demographic
(gains) or losses

Benefit payments/refunds
of contributions

Net change in total pension liability

Total OPEB liability - beginning

Total OPEB liability - ending
OPEB covered-employee payroll

Total OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
$ 9576801 $ 6020230 $  7,703213 $ 6,133,513 $  6,656313 § 3,708,424 § 3,054,253
8,585,089 9,428,912 6,354,719 5,874,025 4,858,279 6,858,179 7,472,628
( 19,171:693) 48,420:854 20,744:958 ( 15,464:588) ( 45,840:440) ( 3,983:229) 6,559:395
- ( 46,197,295) - ( 41,182,537) - 13,405,155 -
( 5,544,058) ( 5898,029) ( 6,138,914) (  6,535363) ( 6,883,610) ( 7,336,020) ( 7,125,048)
$( 6,553,861) § 11,774,672 $ 28,663,976 $( 51,174,950) $( 41,200458) $ 12,652,509 $ 9,961,228
229,024,511 222,470,650 234,245,322 262,909,298 211,734,348 170,524,890 183,177,399
$ 222470,650 $ 234245322 § 262,909,298 $ 211,734,348 $ 170,524,890 § 183,177,399 $ 193,138,627
$ 55723780 § 45105747 $ 45105747 $ 40,373,418 $§ 40,373,418 § 35,783,829 § 37,251,000
399.24% 519.32% 582.87% 524.44% 422.37% 511.90% 518.48%

Note: There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of GASB codification P22.101 or P52.101 to pay related benefits

for the OPEB plan.

* Reporting began in fiscal year 2018. Additional years will be reported as it becomes available.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

166

TOTAL
NONMAJOR
SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE FUNDS
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ - - 5,619,260 5,619,260
SALES TAXES 1,774,498 . - 1,774,498
FEES 4,324,100 - - 4,324,100
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 14,439,143 1,434,699 - 15,873,842
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 1,783,396 . - 1,783,396
FINES AND FORFEITURES 725,322 . - 725,322
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 62,500 - . 62,500
INTEREST 1,384,592 603,644 156,639 2,144,875
TOTAL REVENUES $ 24,493,551 2,038,343 5,775,899 32,307,793
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT
GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 763,969 . - 763,969
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 15,730,034 . - 15,730,034
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 1,830,632 - - 1,830,632
HEALTH AND WELFARE 3,104,170 - - 3,104,170
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES
AND EQUIPMENT 24,107 - . 24,107
CAPITAL OUTLAY - 570,346 - 570,346
DEBT SERVICE
PRINCIPAL - - 4,930,000 4,930,000
INTEREST AND COMMISSION - - 731,500 731,500
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 214520912 570,346 5,661,500 27,684,758
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 3,040,639 1,467,997 114,399 4,623,035
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN $ 1,682,553 7,762,110 - 9,444,663
TRANSFERS OUT (207,154) - - (207,154)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 1,475,399 7,762,110 - 9,237,509
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 4,516,038 9,230,107 114,399 13,860,544
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING $ 18,703,428 8,717,941 457,311 27,878,680
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $  23,219466 17,948,048 571,710 41,739,224
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources other than expendable trusts, or major capital projects that are legally -
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. Included in this headmg are the
following individual funds:

Lateral Road Funds - This fund is used to account for expenditures of materials
incurred in the maintenance of the Iateral roads of the County. Financing is prov1ded
by contributions from the State. '

Breath Alcohol Testing Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
courts on D.W.1. convictions and the expenditure of those funds.

Law Library Fund - This fund is used to account for the maintenance of the County
Law Library. Financing is provided by fees from law su..s filed in the D1str1et Courts
and County Courts-at-Law.

Juvenile Probation and Detention Fund - r'his fund is usea to account for recelpts
specifically designated for use in Juvemle programs.

Countv Clerk Records Management and Preservatlon Fund - This fund is used to
account for fees collected by the County Clerk for the maintenance of their records
and the expenditure of those funds. ‘

Cor_ . Cl < Recor : Arc ve | - This fi. 1 is used to acco
collected by the County Clerk for the preservation of recordsprior to 1990 and the
expenditure of those funds.

Local Truancy Prevention - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
courts and the expenditure of those funds for juvenile programs.

Justice Court Support Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
courts and the expenditure of those funds to assist the judiciary.

Court Facility Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the courts
and the expenditure of those funds for construction, renovation, or improvement of
court facilities.
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Language Access Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the courts
and the = »enditure of those funds to provide individual translation and other
language access for judicial matters. :

County Records Management and Preservation Fund - This fund is used to
account for fees collected by the County Clerk, District Clerk, and Sheriff for the
maintenance of County records and the expenditure of those funds.

Justice Court Building Security - This fund is used to account for fees collected by
the justice courts to finance security services and equipment for justice courts not
located in the County courthouse.

Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund - This fund is used to accour. for the cc™* setion of a 2%
Hotel/Motel Occupancy tax. Revenues collected from this tax are to be used for
tourism projects in the County.

Diversion Center Fund — This fund is used to account for funds received and
expenditures for multiple agency diversion center.

" County and District Court Technology Fund — This fund is used to account for fees
collected from defendants convicted in a County, Statutory County, or District court
and the expend1tures’of those funds on technological enhancements for the previously
mentioned courts.

Sheriff and Constable Education Fund - This fund is used to account for the
expenditures associated with the education of Sherlff’ s deputies and Constables of the
County.

Tax Office Auto Dealer Fund - This fund is used to account for taxes collected from
Local Auto Dealerships to be used by the County’s Tax Office.

U_nelainled Funds Mauagement‘Fund - This fund is used to account for Unclaimed
Funds for all County departments.

Family Protection Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
District Clerk for family violence prevention or intervention and the expenditure of
this money. -

District Attorney Special Funds - This fund is used to account for the fees and
forfeitures received by the District Attorney associated with District Attorney
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Forfeitures from criminal convictions and Hot Check fees for the prosecution of hot
check offenders and the expenditure of those funds.

JC Assistance District 4 Fund - This fund is used to account for sales taxes received
by the special district of JP Assistance District 4 and the expenditure of those funds.

Justice of the Peace Courtroom Technology Fund — This fund is used to account
for the fees collected by the Justices of the Peace on misdemeanor convictions and the
expenditure of those funds on technological enhancements for the justices’ courts.

District Clerk Records Mahagement Fund - This fund is used to account for fees
collected by the District Clerk for the maintenance of their records and the
expenditure of those funds.

County Clerk Election Contracts - This fund is used to account for fees collected by
~ the County Clerk for elect1on contracts with local govemments and the expenditure of
those funds.

Child Abuse Prevention - This fund is used to account for fees collected for certain
child sexual assault and related convictions and the expenditure of those funds.

~ Sheriff’s Special Revenue Funds - This fund is used to account for fees, forfeitures,
and other revenue received by the Sheriff in association with Security Fees, Law
Officer Training fees, D.A.R.E. Contributions, Sheriff’s Forfeitures, Sheriff’s
Commissary, Sheriff — Spindletop Grant, and the Marine Division reimbursements,
and the expenditure of those funds.

Guardianship Fee Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the
County Clerk to supplement the support -~ the judiciary in cases involving
guardianships.

‘Juvenile Delinqilencv Prevention - This fund is used to account for fees collected by
the courts for certain offenses and the expenditures associated with juvenile
" delinquency prevention and graffiti eradication measures.

. District Court Records Technology - This fund is used to account for fees collected
by the District Clerk for the preservation and restoration of District Court records.

; Probation Department Funds - These funds are used to account for the expenditures
of maintaining probation services as authorized by the County and District Courts.
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Financing is provided by State grant and probationary fees. Included in this heading
are the following individual funds:

Juvenile Probation and Detention - State Aid
Pretrial Diversion Programs
IV-E Foster-Care Fund
Juvenile Grant A — State Aid -
Mentally Impaired Offenders
Community Supervision
Juvenile TJPC Supplement
. Community Corrections
DWI Pretrial Diversion
-Drug Diversion Program

~ Grant Funds - These funds are used to account for receipté 0. .‘ederal and State
grants designated for special projects or services. Included in this heading are the
* following individual funds: |

Family Group Conferencing
General Land Office Grants
Sheriff Training Grant
JAG Grant
~* Sheriff Dept Grants

SCAAP Grant
LATCEF Federal Grant
FEMA Emergency
Regional Communication
Crime Victims Clearing
EMPG Grant .
Crime Lab CJD Grant
Port Security G=ts
Auto Theft Graiw
Rural Law Enforcement Grant | } A )
BRIC/FMA Grant =~ .
District Attorney SB 22 Grant
Violence Against Women
Family Treatment Court

" Environment Grants
Community Wildfire Prevention Program
CJD Sheriff Grants






174



175



176



SHERIFF AND TAX OFFICE UNCLAIMED DISTRICT JC JP
CONSTABLE AUTO FUNDS FAMILY ATTORNEY ASSISTANCE COURTROOM
EDUCATION DEALER MANAGEMENT PROTECTION DISTRICT 4 TECHNOLOGY
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND
126.091 371183 2,500 302 488,962 458289 181,798
421 1,244 y 1 - 1537 600
- . - . . 17.551 N
126,512 372.427 2,500 303 488.962 477.377 182.398
8.270 - 2.462 - - 1.099 .
8.270 - 2,462 - - 1.099 8
y 372.427 38 - - - -
118,242 - - 303 488,962 476278 182,398
118.242 372.427 38 303 488,962 476.278 182.398
126.512 372427 2.500 303 488.962 477.377 182.398
[CONTINUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

REVENUES:
TAXES
FEES
FINES AND FORFEITURES
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
INTEREST
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
EDUCATION AND RECREATION
HEALTH AND WELFARE
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES

AND EQUIPMENT

CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN
TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

$

$
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BREATH JUVENILE
LATERAL ALCOHOL LAW PROBATION &
ROAD TESTING LIBRARY DETENTION
FUND FUND FUND FUND
- 4,814 202,641 8,260
28,714 - - 119,290
27,795 960 21,171 60,342
56,509 5,774 223812 157,892
. 722 - 223,627
B} . 45,035 -
1,109 - } .
1,109 722 45,035 223,627
55,400 5,052 178,777 (35,735)
- - - 71,340
- - . 71,340
55,400 5,052 178,777 35,605
476,852 15,507 310,468 791,224
532,252 20,359 489245 826,829
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COUNTY CLERK COUNTY COUNTY
RECORDS CLERK JUSTICE RECORDS
MGMT. AND RECORDS LOCAL COURT COURT LANGUAGE MGMT. AND
PRESERVATION ARCHIVE TRUANCY SUPPORT FACILITY ACCESS PRESERVATION
FUND FUND PREVENTION FUND FUND FUND FUND
388,144 336,700 32,593 200,115 113,234 41,000 28,479
- - - - - - 24,119
94,452 135,668 7,108 17,353 11,389 2,264 13,032
482,596 472,368 39,701 217,468 124,623 43,264 65,630
246,618 301,916 - - - - 95,713
- - - 225,398 48,849 40,772 -
246,618 301916 . 225,398 48,849 40,772 95,713
235,978 170,452 39,701 (7,930) 75,774 2,492 (30,083)
235978 170,452 39,701 (7,930) 75,774 2,492 (30,083)
1,662,445 2,349,863 113,985 341,601 188,179 42,982 263,420
1,898,423 2,520,315 153,686 333,671 263,953 45474 233,337
[CONTINUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

JUSTICE HOTEL COUNTY &
COURT OCCUPANCY DIVERSION DISTRICT COURT
BUILDING TAX CENTER TECHNOLOGY
SECURITY FUND FUND FUND
REVENUES:
TAXES $ - 1,635,386 - -
FEES 32,475 - - 3,807
FINES AND FORFEITURES - - - -
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES - 10,944 - -
INTERGOVERNMENTAL - - 2,000,000 -
INTEREST 15,545 222,066 49,972 973
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES $ 48.020 __1,888396 2,049,972 4,780
EXPENDITURES:
GENERAIL GOVERNMENT $ . - - B}
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT . . - 6,225
EDUCATION AND RECREATION . 1,785,597 - -
HEALTH AND WELFARE - - - -
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES
AND EQUIPMENT . - - -
CAPITAL OUTLAY - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 - 1,785,597 - 6,225
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 48,020 102,799 2,049972 (1,443)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN $ . - - -
TRANSFERS QUT . . - »
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) $ - - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 48,020 102,799 2,049,972 (1,445)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING $ 267,350 4,598,189 - 19.255
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 315,370 4,700,988 2,049,972 17,810
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SHERIFF AND TAX OFFICE UNCLAIMED DISTRICT IC JP
CONSTABLE AUTO FUNDS FAMILY ATTORNEY ASSISTANCE COURTROOM
EDUCATION DEALER MANAGEMENT PROTECTION SPECIAL DISTRICT 4 TECHNOLOGY
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUND FUND
. - - - - 119,112 -
N 7,489 - - - - 27,983
B} N - N 67,672 - -
52,530 . - - - - .
6,069 87,781 - 16 21,738 22,026 3,890
58,599 95,270 - 16 89,410 141,138 36,873
- 4,054 - . - - -
17,767 - - 130 75,650 . 5,466
. - . . - 22,998 -
17,767 4,054 - 130 75,650 22,998 5,466
40,832 91,216 - (114) 13,760 118,140 31,407
40,332 91,216 - (114) 13,760 118,140 31,407
77,410 281211 3 417 475202 358,138 150,991
118,242 372,427 3 303 488,962 476,278 182,398
[CONTINUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

DISTRICT COUNTY SHERIFF'S
CLERK CLERK CHILD SPECIAL
RECORDS ELECTION ABUSE REVENUE
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS PREVENTION FUNDS
REVENUES:
TAXES $ - - - -
FEES 123,854 - 1,581 435,195
FINES AND FORFEITURES - - - 657,650
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES - 29,294 - 1,743,158
INTERGOVERNMENTAL - - - 2,883,398
INTEREST 7,555 6,510 1,606 110,420
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS - - - 60,000
TOTAL REVENUES 3 131,409 35,804 3,187 5,889,821
EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ - - - -
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 94,287 - - 5,561,192
EDUCATION AND RECREATION - - - -
HEALTH AND WELFARE - - - -
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES
AND EQUIPMENT - - - -
CAPITAL OUTLAY - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 94,287 - - 5,561,192
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 3 37,122 35,804 3,187 328,629
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN $ - - - 680,066
TRANSFERS OUT - - - (64,964)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 3 - - - 615,102
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 3 37,122 35,804 3,187 943,731
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 3 131,929 102,292 28,420 1,735,386
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 5 169,051 138,096 31,607 2,679,117
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
JUVENILE
PROBATION
AND PRETRIAL IV-EFOSTER JUVENILE
DETENTION-- DIVERSION CARE GRANT A -
STATE AID PROGRAMS FUND STATE AID
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ - 152,337 496,185 .
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net . . - .
INTEREST RECEIVABLE - 509 1,664 -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 6,874 . - 139,927
PREPAID ITEMS . - . -
TOTAL ASSETS 3 6,874 152,846 497,849 139,927
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 3,271 . - 48,171
COMPENSATED ABSENCES - . - -
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 3,603 - - 37,882
UNEARNED REVENUE - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 6,874 - - 86,053
FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE FOR;
PREPAID ITEMS $ - - - -
RESTRICTED FOR: JUDICIAL &
LAW ENFORCEMENT - 152,846 497,849 53,874
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) - - - .
TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ - 152,846 497.849 53,874
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 6,874 152,846 497,849 139,927
[CONTINUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

MENTALLY
IMPAIRED JUVENILE
OFFENDERS COMMUNITY TJPC
PROGRAM SUPERVISION SUPPLEMENT
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 53,820 1,814,711 -
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net - 476 -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE - 6,578 -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - 23,709
PREPAID ITEMS - 70 -
TOTAL ASSETS 53,820 1,821,835 23,709
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 3,147 165,345 12,407
COMPENSATED ABSENCES - 55,258 -
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - - 11,302
UNEARNED REVENUE 23,361 416,516 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,508 637,115 23,709
FUND BALANCES:
NONSPENDABLE FOR
PREPAID ITEMS - 70 -
RESTRICTED FOR: JUDICIAL &
LAW ENFORCEMENT 27,312 1,184,646 -
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 27,312 1,184,716 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 53,820 1,821,835 23,709
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DWI DRUG
COMMUNITY PRETRIAL DIVERSION

CORRECTIONS DIVERSION PROGRAM TOTAL
151,866 348,452 126,624 3,143,995
. - - 476
. 1,160 - 9,911
. - - 170,510
- - - 70
151,866 349,612 126,624 3,324,962
22,643 3,625 23,919 282,528
. - - 55,258
- - - 52,787
82,467 - 74,376 596,720
105,110 3,625 98,295 987,293
. - - 70
46,756 345,987 28,329 2,337,599
46,756 345,987 28,329 2,337,669
151,866 349,612 126,624 3,324,962
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

JUVENILE
PROBATION
AND PRETRIAL IV-E FOSTER JUVENILE
DETENTION— DIVERSION CARE GRANT A -
STATE AID PROGRAMS FUND STATE AID
REVENUES:
FEES s - 14,586 . -
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 55,922 - - 1,628,768
INTEREST - 7,682 26,930 -
TOTAL REVENUES $ 55,922 22,268 26,930 1,628,768
EXPENDITURES:
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT $ 55,922 1,700 26,789 1,702,337
CAPITAL OUTLAY - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 55,922 1,700 26,789 1,702.337
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 3 - 20,568 141 (73,569)
OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN 3 - - - -
TRANSFERS OUT - - - ;
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ : - - -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 3 . 20,568 141 (73,569)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING . 132,278 497,708 127,443
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ . 152,846 497,849 53,874
[CONTINUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

MENTALLY
IMPAIRED JUVENILE
OFFENDERS COMMUNITY TJPC
PROGRAM SUPERVISION SUPPLEMENT
REVENUES:
FEES h) - 2,206,187 -
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 135,768 2,392,436 166,625
INTEREST - 113,443 -
TOTAL REVENUES $ 135,768 4,712,066 166,625
EXPENDITURES:
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT h) 122,626 4,192,379 166,625
CAPITAL OUTLAY - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 122,626 4,192,379 166,625
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 3 13,142 519,687 -
OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN $ 9,066 - -
TRANSFERS OUT - (129,590) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) S 9,066 (129,590) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES i 22,208 390,097 -
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 5,104 794,619 -
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 3 27312 1,184,716 -
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

FAMILY
GROUP
CONFERENCING
PROJECT

GENERAL
LAND SHERIFF
OFFICE TRAINING
GRANTS GRANT

JAG
GRANT

SHERIFF
DEPT
GRANTS

ASSETS:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3 31,181
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE , Net -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 104
DUE FROM OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES -

1,198,903 11,452

3,763

[
12
W

9,354

TOTAL ASSETS 3 31,285

1,198,903 11,452

3,763

9,579

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 486
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS -
UNEARNED REVENUE -

92,461 825
4,066,299 10,627

3,763

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 486

4,158,760 11,452

3,763

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRANTS  § -

- 7,496

3,763

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

- 7,496

3,763

FUND BALANCES:

RESTRICTED FOR:

JUDICIAL & LAW

ENFORCEMENT $ 30,799

HEALTH & WELFARE -
COMMITTED FOR:

CONTRACTS -
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) -

1,267,679 -
(4,227,536) (7,496)

(3,763)

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5 30,799

(2,959,857) (7,496)

(3,763)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES 3 31,285

1,198,903 11,452

3,763

9,579
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LATCF CRIME CRIME LAB
SCAAP FEDERAL FEMA REGIONAL VICTIMS EMPG CJD
GRANT GRANT EMERGENCY COVIMUNICATION CLEARING GRANT GRANT
149,705 365,229 4,236,107 13,133 - 19,094 -

502 - 14,204 . - 64 -

- - 123,181 7,571 19,231 - 14,009
150,207 365,229 4,373,492 20,704 19,231 19,158 14,009

16,489 11,682 - . 13,854 399 1,928

3 - - 7,571 5,377 - 12,081

- 353,547 - - - } R

16,489 365,229 - 7,571 19,231 399 14,009
133,718 - - 13,133 - - -

- - 4,373,492 - - 18,759 -
133,718 - 4,373,492 13,133 - 18,759 -
150,207 365,229 4,373,492 20,704 19,231 19,158 14,009

[CONTINUED]

103

195



196

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

PORT AUTO RURAL LAW DISTRICT
SECURITY THEFT ENFORCEMENT BRIC/FMA ATTORNEY SB 22
GRANTS GRANT GRANT GRANT GRANT

ASSETS:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 19,241 - 6,908 - 281,023
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE , Net - - . . -
INTEREST RECEIVABLE - . - . N
DUE FROM OTHER

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - 69,526 . N .

TOTAL ASSETS 3 19,241 69,526 6,908 - 281,023

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 3 19,241 4,567 6,908 16,347 -
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS - 64,939 - 206,258 -
UNEARNED REVENUE - - - - 275,000

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 19,241 69,526 6,908 222,605 275,000

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
UNAVATLABLE REVENUE-GRANTS  § - 69,526 - - -

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES b3 - 69,526 - - -

FUND BALANCES:

RESTRICTED FOR:

JUDICIAL & LAW

ENFORCEMENT $ - - - - 6,023

HEALTH & WELFARE - - - - -
COMMITTED FOR:

CONTRACTS - - - 565,700 -
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) - (69,526) - (788,305) -

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3 - (69,526) - (222,605) 6,023

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES

5]

19,241 69,526 6,908 - 281,023
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COMMUNITY
VIOLENCE FAMILY WILDFIRE CJD
AGAINST TREATMENT ENVIRONMENT PREVENTION SHERIFF
WOMEN COURT GRANTS PROGRAM GRANTS TOTAL
6,903 - - - - 5,128,524
N } - - - 225
- - - - - 14,874
11,477 15,371 - - . 1,483,838
18,380 15,371 - - - 6,627,461
6,903 1,674 - . - 194,421
11,477 12,639 - 2,730 - 4,412,703
- - - - - 628,547
18,380 14,313 - 2,730 . 5,235,671
. - - - - 80,783
- - - - - 80,783
- 1,058 - - - 184,731
- - - . - 4,392,251
- - - - . 1,833,379
- - - (2,730) - (5,099,356)
- 1,058 - (2,730) - 1,311,005
18,380 15,371 - - - 6,627,461
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

FAMILY GENERAL
GROUP LAND SHERIFF SHERIFF
CONFERENCING OFFICE TRAINING JAG DEPT
PROJECT GRANTS GRANT GRANT GRANTS

REVENUES:

INTERGOVERNMENTAL I3 - 1,740,187 21,632 20,140 23,900

INTEREST 1,639 - - - -

CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUES I3 1.639 1,740,187 21,632 20,140 23,900

EXPENDITURES:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 3 - - - - -

JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 858 - 26,626 20.232 30,720

HEALTH & WELFARE - 2,663,373 - - -

CAPITAL OUTLAY - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES I3 858 2,663,373 26.626 20.232 30,720

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 3 781 (923,186) (4.994) (92) (6,820)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

TRANSFERS IN 3 - 224829 - - 6,820

TRANSFERS OUT - - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES (USES) ) - 224,829 - - 6.820
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES I3 781 (698,357) (4,994) 92) -
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 30,018 | (2,261,500) (2.502) (3.671) -
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 3 30,799 (2,959.837) (7,496) (3,763) -
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

REVENUES:
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
INTEREST
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT
HEALTH & WELFARE
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TRANSFERS IN
TRANSFERS OUT

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

200

PORT AUTO RURAL LAW DISTRICT
SECURITY THEFT ENFORCEMENT BRIC/FMA ATTORNEY SB 22
GRANTS GRANT GRANT GRANT GRANT
434,762 85,597 500,000 - 275,000
- - 9,208 - 6,024
434,762 85,597 509,208 - 281,024
262,016 133,709 509,208 - 275,001
300,147 - - 108,274 -
562,163 133.709 509,208 108,274 275,001
(127.401) (48.112) - (108,274) 6,023
140,001 38,692 - - -
(12,600) - B i )
127,401 38,692 . - .
. (9,420) - (108,274) 6,023
- (60.106) - (114,331) .
- (69.526) - (222.605) 6,023
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COMMUNITY
VIOLENCE FAMILY WILDFIRE CID
AGAINST TREATMENT ENVIRONMENT PREVENTION SHERIFF
WOMEN COURT GRANTS PROGRAM GRANTS TOTAL
80,000 42,649 7,234 N 77,560 4,003.421
- . - - . 238,973
- 2.500 - - - 2.500
80.000 45,149 7.234 - 77.560 4.244,894
- - - - . 108,918
157,072 41,598 - - 77,560 2,035,255
- - 7,242 2,730 . 3,104,170
157.072 41.598 7,242 2,730 77.560 5,248,343
(77.072) 3.551 (8) (2,730) . (1.003.449)
77,072 - - - - 801,557
R . B, - - (12.600)
77.072 - - - - 788.957
. 3,551 (8) (2,730) , (214,492)
- (2.493) 8 - - 1.525.497
- 1.058 - (2.730) - 1.311.005
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS



204



205

'CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources used for the
acquisition or construction of capital facilities except those financed by Enterprise”
Funds or Internal Service Funds. Included in this heading are the following individual
funds:

Coastal Restoration Projects - This fund is used to account for the proreeds received
- related to Coastal Restoration projects including the BP Deepwater Liorizon lawsuit

settlement and the Gulf of Mexico Energy Security Act. Planned expenditures for
these proceeds will be for the County shoreline and dune restoration pI'O_] ect starting in
Sabine Pass to High Island.

Capital Projects Fund - This fund is ﬁs’ed to account for all other capital projects of
the County for which a separate fund has not been established.

TCEQ —First Time Sewer - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for the
.installation of a low-pressure sewer system to approximately 81 low-income
residential customers in the Candlelight and Martel subdivisions. Funds for this
project are from penalties assessed by the Texas Cor aission on Environmental

¢ Ty

C O Series 2019 Projects — This fund is used to account for the expenditures of -
- proceeds from $15,395,000 in Certificates of Obligation issued in June 2019. The
proceeds will be spent on various energy conservation projects.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

COASTAL CAPITAL
RESTORATION PROJECTS
PROJECTS FUND
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 7,266,331 10,657,059
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 24,364 35,733
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7,290,695 10,692,792
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ - 35,439
TOTAL LIABILITIES hY - 35,439
FUND BALANCES:
RESTRICTED FOR:
ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS § 7,290,695 -
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES
& EQUIPMENT - 10,657,353
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 7,290,695 10,657,353
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $ 7,290,695 10,692,792
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TCEQ - FIRST
TIME SEWER

C O SERIES
2019
PROJECTS

TOTAL

17,523,390
60,097

17,983,487

35,439

35,439

7,290,695

10,657,353

17,948,048

17,583,487
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL PROJECTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

COASTAL CAPITAL
RESTORATION PROJECTS
PROJECTS FUND
REVENUES:
INTERGOVERNMENTAL $ 1,266,118 168,581
INTEREST 355935 245,113
TOTAL REVENUES $ 1,622,053 413,694
EXPENDITURES:
CAPITAL OUTLAY h) - 392,790
TOTAL EXPENDITURES h) - 392,790
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES $ 1,622,053 20,904
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

TRANSFERS IN b - 7,762,110
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) § - 7,762,110
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES b 1,622,053 7,783,014
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 5,668,642 2,874,339

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 7,290,695 10,657,353
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for each specific long -term debt. These
funds account for the accumulation of resources and subsequent disbursement of
such ree~urces to pay principal, interest, and commissions. Included in this heading
are the tollowing individual funds: -

- 2012 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the revenues and
expenditures associated with the $47,305,000 General Obligation Refundmg Bonds
issued in May 2012.

2019 Certificates of Obligation - This fund is used to account for the revenues and
expenditures associated with the $15,395,000 Certificate of Obligation Bonds issued
in June 2019.




JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

214

2012 2019
REFUNDING CERTIFICATES
BOND OF OBLATION TOTAL
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i) 463,225 107,718 570,943
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 1,540 358 1,898
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net 122,347 31,624 153,971
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net 78,245 20,225 98,470
TOTAL ASSETS i) 665,357 159,925 825,282
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-PROPERTY TAXES § 201,491 52,081 253,572
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES i) 201,491 52,081 253,572
FUND BALANCES:
RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE $ 463,866 107,844 571,710
TOTAL FUND BALANCES N 463,866 107,844 571,710
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES b 665,357 159,925 825,282
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST AND COMMISSION
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

215

2012 2019
REFUNDING  CERTIFICATES
BOND OF OBLIGATION TOTAL

4,526,370 1,092,890 5,619,260
131,611 25,028 156,639
4,657,981 1,117,918 5,775,899
4,325,000 605,000 4,930,000
265,700 465,800 731,500
4,590,700 1,070,800 5,661,500
67,281 47,118 114,399
67,281 47,118 114,399
396,585 60,726 457311
463,866 107,844 571,710
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP)

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

216

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS BUDGET
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES § 5,579,529 5,579,529 5,619,260 39,731
INTEREST 63,500 63,500 156,639 93,13
TOTAL REVENUES § 5,643,029 5,643,029 5,775,899 132,870
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL ¥ 4,930,000 4,930,000 4,930,000 -
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 732,850 732,850 731,500 1,350
TOTAL EXPENDITURES § 5,662,850 5,662,850 5,661,500 1,350
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 3 (19,821) (19,821) 114,399 134,220
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES hY (19,821) (19,821) 114,399 134,220
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 457,311 457,311 457,311 -
FUND BALANCES, ENDING 3 437,490 437,490 571,710 134,220
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP)

DEBT SERVICE - 2012 REFUNDING BONDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

217

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL  WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS BUDGET
REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES $ 4,494,586 4,494,586 4,526,370 31,784
INTEREST 53,500 53,500 131,611 78,111
TOTAL REVENUES $ 4,548,086 4,548,086 4,657,981 109,895
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL $ 4,325,000 4,325,000 4,325,000 -
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 266,200 266,200 265,700 500
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 4,591,200 4,591,200 4,590,700 500
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES §  (43,114) (43,114) 67,281 110,395
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $  (43,114) (43,114) 67,281 110,395
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 396,585 396,585 396,585 -
FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 353471 353,471 463,866 110,395
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP)
DEBT SERVICE - 2019 CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

REVENUES:
PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE:
PRINCIPAL
INTEREST AND COMMISSION
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES, ENDING

218

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL  WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS BUDGET
1,084,943 1,084,943 1,092,890 7,947
10,000 10,000 25,028 15,028
1,094,943 1,094,943 1,117,918 22,975
605,000 605,000 605,000 -
466,650 466,650 465,800 850
1,071,650 1,071,650 1,070,800 850
23,293 23,293 47,118 23,825
23,293 23,293 47,118 23,825
60,726 60,726 60,726 -
84,019 84,019 107,844 23,825
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services

provided by one department or agency to other agencies of the government and to
other government units, on a cost re1mbursement basis. Included in this heading are
the following individual funds: E

Liability Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for .he County’s
contribution and payment for liability claims.

Workers’ Compensation Fund - This fund is used to account for the County S
contribution and payment for workers’ compensation claims.

\

Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool — This fund is used to
account for the County’s group health insurance program, - 1‘11c:h inclt s
comprehensive major medical and dental care.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024
SOUTHEAST
LIABILITY WORKERS' TEXAS GOVERNMENT
INSURANCE COMPENSATION EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
FUND FUND POOL FUND TOTAL
ASSETS:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 376,903 998,234 5,407,013 6,782,150
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - - 962,987 962,987
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 1,264 2,642 18,130 22,036
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - - 379,194 379,194
INSURANCE DEPOSIT - - 117,000 117,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 378,167 1,000,876 6,884,324 8,263,367
LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ - - 29,746 29,746
CLAIMS LIABILITY 354,467 1,393,926 2,478,099 4,226,492
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 354,467 1,393,926 2,507,845 4,256,238
NET POSITION:
UNRESTRICTED $ 23,700 (393,050) 4,376,479 4,007,129
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 23,700 (393,050) 4,376,479 4,007,129
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

223

SOUTHEAST
LIABILITY WORKERS' TEXAS GOVERNMENT
INSURANCE COMPENSATION EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
FUND FUND POOL FUND TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES:
EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 3 - - 2,910,006 2,910,006
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 400,000 800,000 22,344 384 23,544,384
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 400,000 800,000 25,254,390 26,454,390
OPERATING EXPENSES:
ADMINISTRATIVE $ - - 2,122,693 2,122,693
INCURRED & ESTIMATED CLAIMS 312,742 161,468 23,905,218 24,379,428
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES h) 312,742 161,468 26,027,911 26,502,121
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ 87,258 638,532 (773,521) (47,731)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
INTEREST $ 15,161 28,360 251,003 294,524
REFUNDS AND RECOVERIES - - 1,846,829 1,846,829
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES ) 15,161 28,360 2,097,832 2,141,353
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 102,419 666,892 1,324,311 2,093,622
NET POSITION, BEGINNING (78,719) (1,059,942) 3,052,168 1,913,507
NET POSITION, ENDING S 23,700 (393,050) 4,376,479 4,007,129
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as a trustee or
agent for individuals, private organizations, and other units of government. Such
funds are operated by carrying out specific terms of trust indentures, ordinances, grant
requirements, or other governing regulations. Included in this heading are the
following individual funds:

Custodial Funds:

Treasurer Maintained Fund - This fund is used to account for various monies
deposited with the County Treasurer for distribution to other individuals and/or
- government entities.

Countv Clerk Fund - ThlS fund is used to account for the collection and dlstnbutlon
of money held by the Clérk of the County Courts.

District Clerk Fund - This fund 18 used to account for the oollection and distribution
of the money held by the Clerk of the District Courts. '

Sherlff’ s Fund - This fund is used to account for the collectlon and distribution of
money held by the Sheriff. :

Justice of the Peace Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money held by the Justices of the Peace. '

Tax Assessor/Collector Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money held by the Tax Assessor/Collector .

District Attorney’s Seizure Fund - This fund is used to account for the seizure and
' subsequent distribution of seized personal property.

' Comrnunitv Supervision Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
distribution of money held by the Community Supervision Department.

* Juvenile Probation Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and
- distribution of money held by the Juvenile Probation Department.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

TREASURER ‘ COUNTY
MAINTAINED CLERK
FUND FUND
ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 558,532 4,182,985
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET 9,465 -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 110,990 368
TOTAL 3 678,987 4,183,353
LIABHTIES
ACOUNTS PAYABLE $ - -
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 363,226 -
TOTAL $ 363,226 -
NET POSITION
RESTRICTED FOR:
INDIVIDUALS AND
ORGANIZATIONS $ 315,761 4,183,353
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 315,761 4,183,353
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DISTRICT JUSTICE OF
CLERK SHERIFF'S THE PEACE
FUND FUND FUND

19,386,743 264,020 95,797

45,389 - -

- 6,091 -
19,432,132 270,111 95,797
47,096 - 1,844
47,096 - 1,844
19,385,036 270,111 93,953
19,385,036 270,111 93,953

[CONTINUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

TAX ASSESSOR DISTRICT
COLLECTOR ATTORNEY'S
FUND SEIZURE FUND
ASSETS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 6,688,554 271,665
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET - -
DUE FROM OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - -
TOTAL 5 6,688,554 271,665
LIABIITIES
ACOUNTS PAYABLE $ 22,481 -
DUE TO OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - -
TOTAL $ 22,481 -
NET POSITION
RESTRICTED FOR:
INDIVIDUALS AND
ORGANIZATIONS h 6,666,073 271,665
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 6,666,073 271,665
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COMMUNITY JUVENILE TOTAL
SUPERVISION PROBATION CUSTODIAL
FUND FUND FUNDS
348,165 5,014 31,801,475
. - 54,854
- - 117,449
348,165 5,014 31,973,778
- - 22,481
312,694 - 724,860
312,694 - 747,341
35,471 5,014 31,226,437
35,471 5,014 31,226,437
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
ALL FIDUCJARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

TREASURER COUNTY
MAINTAINED CLERK
FUND FUND
ADDITIONS
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM
JUDGEMENTS $ 1,286,746 2,605,053
BONDS RECEIVED - 248,742
DEPOSITS HELD - -
TAXES COLLECTED ON BEHALF
OF TAXING ENTITIES - -
PROBATIONER PAYMENTS - -
INTEREST INCOME - -
TOTAL ADDITIONS $ 1,286,746 2,853,795
DEDUCTIONS
BONDS REFUNDED $ 5,156 239,573
COLLECTIONS DISTRIBUTED 1,286,746 275,950
DEPOSITS RETURNED - -
DISBURSEMENTS TO
BENEFICIARIES - 1,538,383
TAXES DISBURSED TO TAXING
ENTITIES - -
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS $ 1,291,902 2,053,906
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
FIDUCIARY NET POSITION $ (5,156) 799,389
NET POSITION - BEGINNING 320917 3,383,464

NET POSITION - ENDING $ 315,761 4,183,353
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DISTRICT JUSTICE OF
CLERK SHERIFF'S THE PEACE
FUND FUND FUND

2,261,091 1,795,718 928,271
234,725 615,794 28,645

- 2,178,683 .
2,495,816 4,590,195 956,916
92,750 585,854 23,400
325,537 1,842,293 852,479

- 2,103,796 -

1,985,113 - -
2,403,400 4,531,943 875,879
92,416 58,252 81,037
19,292,620 211,859 12,916
19,385,036 270,111 93,953

[CONTINUED]
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

TAX ASSESSOR DISTRICT
COLLECTOR ATTORNEY'S
FUND SEIZURE FUND
ADDITIONS
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM
JUDGEMENTS $ - -
BONDS RECEIVED - -
DEPOSITS HELD 3,011,467 316,220
TAXES COLLECTED ON BEHALF
OF TAXING ENTITIES 621,618,258 -
PROBATIONER PAYMENTS - -
INTEREST INCOME 67,782 -
TOTAL ADDITIONS $ 624,697,507 316,220
DEDUCTIONS
BONDS REFUNDED $ - -
COLLECTIONS DISTRIBUTED - -
DEPOSITS RETURNED 3,477,329 295,765
DISBURSEMENTS TO
BENEFICIARIES - -
TAXES DISBURSED TO TAXING
ENTITIES 622,210,209 -
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS $ 625,687,538 295,765
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
FIDUCIARY NET POSITION $ (990,031) 20,455
NET POSITION-BEGINNING 7,656,104 251,210
NET POSITION - ENDING $ 6,666,073 271,665
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COMMUNITY JUVENILE TOTAL
SUPERVISION PROBATION CUSTODIAL

FUND FUND FUNDS

- - 8,876,879

- . 1,127,906

- - 5,506,370

- - 621,618,258

543,972 740 544,712

- 243 68,025

543,972 983 637,742,150

- - 946,733

33,665 107 4,616,777

. . 5,876,890

500,757 740 4,024,993

. ; 622,210,209

534,422 847 637,675,602

9,550 136 66,548

25,921 4,878 31,159,889

35471 5,014 31,226,437
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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6el

Governmental aclivities:
Net Investment in capilal assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total govemmental activities net position

Business-type activities:
Net Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Reclassilications:
Net Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total reclassifications

Primary governinent:
Net Investment in capital asscts
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary governinent net position
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TABLE 1
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)
Fiscal Year
015 2016 201 2018 2019 202 2021 022 2023 2024

$ 93,814,603 $ 96,137,672 § 91,366,714 $ 91,380,403 $ 88,843,451 § 85,447,244 § 84,359,502 $ 85,316,873 $ 86,504,831 $ 86,011,824
24,695,909 25,282,712 24,514,807 22,333,791 32,663,849 25,307,410 27,893,333 29,356,699 36,866,636 55,344,944
(106,962,928)  (122,326,487) _ (146,062,087} (269,515,413) (279,038,253) (271,061,003) (262,255,747) (222,723,706) (196,758,949 (161,530,392)
$ 11,547,584  §  (906,103) _§$ (30,180,566) _§ (155,801,219) _§ (157,530,953) § (160,306,349) _§ (150,002912)  $ (108,050,134} § (73,387,482) _§ (20,173,624)
$ 83,107,097 $ 82,294,523 $ 81,842,002 $ 79,849,183 $ 79,014,242 $ 78,200,312 $ 74,958,578 $ 72,396,053 $ 75,732,711 3 78,336,902
(634,858) 53,359 96,202 (20,118) (348,276) (1,265,379) 421,525 556,118 1,562,155 3,399,188

$ 82,472,239 § 82,349,882 § 81,938,204 $ 79,829,065 § 78,665,966 § 76,940,933 § 75,380,103 $ 72,952,171 $ 77,294,866 § 81,736,090
$ (39,220,834) § (37,614,654) $ (33,254,522) § (29,615,115) % (25,890,708) 3 (21,393,888) § (18,683,446) 3 (14,4450644) § (9,970,948) § (5339,987)
39,220,834 37,614,654 33,254,522 29,615,115 25,890,708 21,393,888 18,683,446 14,445,644 9,970,948 5,339,987

¥ - 3 -3 - $ - 3 - 3 - 3 - § - $ - $ -
$ 137,700,866 $ 140,817,541 $ 139,954,194 $ 141,614,471 $ 141,966,985 $ 142,259,608 $ 140,634,634 $ 143,267,282 $ 152,266,594 $ 159,008,739
24,695,909 25,282,712 24,514,807 22,333,791 32,663,849 25,307,410 27,893,333 29,356,699 36,866,636 55,344,944
(68,376,952) (84,656,474) (112,711,363) (239,920,416) (253,495,821) (250,932,494) (243,150,776) (207,721,944) (185,225,846) (152,791,217)

$ 94,019,823  § 81,443,779 § 51,757,638 § (75972,154) § (78,804,987) § (83,365416) § (74,622,809) _$ (35097,963) § 3,907,384 § 61,562,466

Note: The reclassification is for the debt associated with the construction of Ford Park and for Energy Conservation measures for Ford Park and ihe Airport.
The assets are accounted for in (he Business-type activities column and the debt is accounted for in the Governmental activities column.
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TABLE 3
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(accrual basis of accounting)
Alcoholic Hotel County

Fiscal Beverage Occupancy Assistance
Year Property Tax Sales Tax Tax Tax District Tax Total
2015 § 83,122,853 $ 23,047,286 3 656,678 $ 1,291,716 n/a ™ § 108,118,533
2016 80,099,108 24,595,048 673,135 1,211,569 n/a” 106,578,860
2017 78,728,457 24,984,470 689,240 1,187,625 n/a” 105,589,792
2018 80,487,467 30,911,766 743,739 1,696,852 n/a” 113,839,824
2019 82,425,768 32,759,242 753,954 1,422,345 $ 48,980 117,410,289
2020 87,216,353 33,497,873 590,925 1,537,054 95,332 122,937,537
2021 88,187,762 33,621,425 755,519 1,507,187 76,404 124,148,297
2022 92,255,738 37,288,969 912,052 1,452,286 80,676 131,989,721
2023 101,052,220 38,156,787 904,098 1,529,168 114,093 141,756,366
2024 108,627,438 39,732,953 917,970 1,655,386 119,112 151,052,859

~ District was formed and began collecting sales taxes in FY 2019.
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General Fund:
Nonspendable
Assigned
Unassigned

Total general fund

All other governinental funds:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
. Assigned
£ Unassigned (Deficit)
“Total all other governmental funds
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TABLE 4
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{modified accrual basis of accounting)
Fiscal Year
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

873,260 889,865 903,116 926,860 847,849 1,130,195 1,237,726 1,544,576 1,353,542 1,525,676
9,952,977 12,478,022 12,922,519 12,736,699 13,494,504 14,938,314 16,809,047 15,141,657 17,857,682 17,562,733
37,054,620 34,142,140 31,652,055 35,632,532 39,868,798 42,701,205 42,916,483 47,771,158 57,413,280 66,481,250

$ 47,880,857 § 47,510,027  § 45477,690 § 49,296,091 § 54,211,151  § 58,769,714 § 60,963,256  § 64,457,391 § 76,624,504  $ 85,569,659
56,535 32,858 16,396 22,029 67,190 272,086 57,504 9,523 30,844 33,279
24,613,120 25,229,322 24,490,362 21,973,717 32,082,766 25,035,324 27,868,558 29,347,176 36,789,050 55,284,999
6,649,085 532,034 - 259,134 3,992,895 172,231 1,199,419 1,054,545 2,055,588 1,833,379
1,799,539 1,664,791 1,536,694 - - - - - - -
(4,489,815) (583,320) (19,668) (439,515) (2,149,518) (441,774) (1,764,919) (2,114,926) (4,492,991) (5,099,356)

$ 28,628,464  § 26,875,685  $ 26,023,784 $ 21,815,365  § 33,993,333  § 25,037,867 $ 27,360,562  § 28,296,318 $ 34,382,491 $ 52,052,301
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TABLE 6
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Total Estimated Assessed
Year Real Property Personal Property Less: Total Taxable Direct Actual Value (a)asa
Ended Residential Commercial Motor Tax Excmpt Assessed Tax Taxable Percentage of
September 30 Property Property Vchicles Other Real Property Value Rate Valuce Actual Value
2015 8,081,673,579 16,701,727,909 68,532,930 6,926,838,120 6,385,170,071 25,393,602,467  0.365000 25,404,515,574 79.94%
2016 8,279,899,361 17,082,882,495 75,061,930 5,867,214,193 6,399,625,866 24,905,432,113  0.365000 24,916,084,230 79.59%
2017 8,568,478,324 16,366,360,029 79,893,490 5,363,369,718 6,033,364,824 24,344,736,737  0.365000 24,362,151,992 80.20%
2018 8,889,166,293 17,403,345,487 79,433,190 5,725,297,404 7,709,373,774 24,387,868,600  0.364977 24,399,250,958 76.02%
2019 8,730,543,358 17,128,750,951 89,422,160 6,291,014,537 7.921,774,579 24317,956,927 0364977 24,325,403,054 75.45%
2020 9,358,201,823 18,275,367,049 81,563,400 6,0641,611,442 8,807,616,190 25,549,127,524  0.364977 25,587,225,039 74.48%
2021 9,852,804,731 17,725,271,180 85,760,892 6,461,341,223 9,328,538,631 24,796,639,395  0.364977 24,815,196,078 72.72%
2022 12,133,582,380 16,957,209,512 81,176,376 5,685,262,267 8,934,010,700 25,923,219,835  0.363184 26,654,433,042 76.47%
2023 13,298,445,108 18,069,241,825 92,190,551 6,956,407,510 9,802,337,309 28,613,947,685  0.363184 29,369,753,974 76.45%
2024 14,543,787,692 20,545,823,107 95,038,677 8,064,958,028 11,833,705,963 31,415,901,541  0.359000 32,224,548,270 74.51%

91

Source: Jefferson County Appraisal District

Note: Property in the county is reassessed annually. The county assesses property at 100% of actual value [or all types of real and personal property.
However, each homestead residential property can only increase by a maximum of 10% in any given year. Estimated actual value is calculated by
adding back the loss to the limit on homestead residential properties to the total taxable assessed value. Tax rates are per $100 of assessed value.

(a) Includes tax-exempt property.
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TABLE 7
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PROPERTY TAX RATLS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING (a) GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Overlapping Rates
Cities School Districts
Total Direct
Debt Total Debt Total Debt Total &
Fiscal Operating Service County Operating Service City Operating  Service Sclhiool Special  Overlapping
Year Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate Districts Rates
2015 0.340 0.025 0.365 0.430 0.186 0.616 1.059 0.244 1.303 0.203 2.487
2016 0.342 0.023 0.365 0.441 0.175 0.616 1.059 0.259 1.318 0.206 2.505
2017 0.339 0.026 0.365 0.422 0.147 0.569 1.059 0.267 1.326 0.203 2.463
2018 0.345 0.020 0.365 0.426 0.150 0.576 1.099 0.238 1.337 0.201 2.479
2019 0.346 0.019 0.365 0.488 0.145 0.633 1.117 0.236 1.353 0.308 2.659
2020 0.342 0.023 0.365 0.443 0.140 0.583 1.015 0.284 1.299 0.231 2.478
2021 0.341 0.024 0.365 0.443 0.134 0.577 1.002 0.304 1.306 0.223 2471
2022 0.341 0.022 0.363 0.411 0.116 0.527 0.949 0.333 1.282 0.211 2.383
2023 0.343 0.020 0.363 0.393 0.115 0.508 0.916 0.340 1.256 0.199 2.326
2024 0.340 0.019 0.359 0.380 0.109 0.489 0.754 0.331 1.085 0.205 2.138

Source: Jefferson County Tax Assessor Collector

(a) Overlapping rates are those of local governments that apply to property owners within Je(ferson County. Not all overlapping rates apply (o all Jeflerson County property owners.
(e.g., the rates [or special districts apply only to the proportion of the County's property owners whose property is located within the geographic boundaries of the special district.)

Note: Rates are per $100 of taxable value. Rates for overlapping entities are an average tax rate of all cities (7), school districts (7), and special districts (14) located within Jelferson County.
For fiscal year 2024, total rates ranged between 130 and 681 for cities, .969 and 1.326 for school districts, and .062 and .519 [or special districts.



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

TABLE 8

2024 2015
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayers Value (b) Rank Value Value (b) Rank Value

ExxonMobil Oil Corporation $2,412,963,977 1 7.68% $ 2,373,637,534 2 9.35%
Motiva Refinery 2,193,817,530 2 6.98% 5,105,290,380 1 20.10%
Premcor Refining Group Inc 1,264,912,305 3 4.03% 1,070,844,203 3 4.22%
Enterprise Texas Pipeline P 689,712,389 4 2.20% 289,651,870 10 1.14%
Entergy Texas Inc. 615,383,732 5 1.96% 297,924,820 9 1.17%
Total Petrochemicals USA 588,609,344 6 1.87% 813,675,000 4 3.20%

Indorama Ventures Oxides LLC 521,344,941 7 1.66% - -
Sunoco Partners Mktg & Term LP 441,380,333 8 1.40% 349,630,290 7 1.38%

Golden Pass Pipeline LLC 375,092,184 9 1.19% - -
Phillips 66 Gulf Coast Prop LLC 339,541,660 10 1.08% - -
Huntsman Petrochemical Corp - - 396,122,490 5 1.56%
Chevron Phillips Chemical Co - - 370,139,650 6 1.46%
BASF-Atofina Joint Venture - - 326,059,730 8 1.28%
TOTAL 30.05% $11,392,975,967 44.86%

$9,442,758,395

Source: Jefferson County Appraisal District.

(b) Amounts shown for these taxpayers do not include assessed values attributable to certain subsidiaries and affiliates which
are not grouped on the tax roll with the taxpayers shown.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Collected within the Fiscal

TABLE 9

Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Fiscal Year Collections in

Ended Total Tax Levy Percentage Subsequent Percentage

September 30  for Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2015 - 90,433,374 89,246,776 98.69% 949,236 90,196,012 99.74%
2016 88,878,440 87,788,574 98.77% 816,289 38,604,863 99.69%
2017 87,373,236 86,272,257 98.74% 825,531 87,097,788 99.68%
2018 87,842,110 86,900,639 98.93% 634,599 87,535,238 99.65%
2019 83,595,532 82,230,903 98.37% 1,014,494 83,245,397 99.58%
2020 87,896,897 86,812,624 98.77% 677,264 87,489,888 99.54%
2021 87,871,338 86,846,043 98.83% 558,350 87,404,393 99.47%
2022 91,278,000 90,519,594 99.17% 25,676 90,545,270 99.20%
2023 100,778,857 99,455,205 98.69% 154,437 99,609,642 98.84%
2024 109,414,996 106,874,126 97.68% - 106,874,126 97.68%
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

TABLE 10

0S1

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
General Percentage of

Fiscal Obligation SBITA Financing Total Primary Personal

Year Bonds Liability Arrangements Government Income (a) Per Capita (a)
2014 § 49,281,192 - $ - § 49,281,192 0.49% $ 195
2015 44,444 323 - 1,707,363 46,151,686 0.46% 183
2016 39,437,454 - 1,383,968 40,821,422 0.38% 161
2017 34,337,146 - 1,051,858 35,389,004 0.31% 139
2018 30,319,638 - 710,850 31,030,488 0.27% 121
2019 43,027,646 - 361,214 43,388,860 0.35% 170
2020 38,472,633 - - 38,472,633 0.27% 153
2021 33,767,620 - 372,752 34,140,372 0.26% 133
2022 28,817,607 - 292,002 29,109,609 0.21% 115
2023 23,637,594 4,655,432 200,822 28,493,848 0.20% 114
2024 18,272,581 3,593,120 106,304 21,972,005 0.15% 87

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(a) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economics Statistics in Table 14 for personal income and population data.
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TABLE 11
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Percentage
of Estimated
Less: Actual

General Amounts Taxable

Fiscal Obligation Available in Value (a)
Year Bonds Debt Fund Total of Property Per Capita (b)
— 2015 $ 44,444323 $ 1,096,051 $ 43,348,272 0.17% $ 172
2 2016 39,437,454 602,071 38,835,383 0.15% 153
2017 34,337,146 700,149 33,636,997 0.14% 132
2018 30,319,638 550,264 29,769,374 0.12% 116
2019 43,027,646 450,811 42,576,835 0.18% 167
2020 38,472,633 205,094 38,267,539 0.15% 152
2021 33,767,620 434,551 33,333,069 0.13% 130
2022 28,817,607 477,012 28,340,595 0.11% 112
2023 23,637,594 496,853 23,140,741 0.08% 92
2024 18,272,581 598,376 17,674,205 0.05% 70

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(a) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property in Table 6 for

property value data.
(b) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economics Statistics in Table 14 for population data.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

TABLE 14

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Personal

Income

(amounts Per Capita School
Fiscal expressed in Personal Median Enrollment  Unemployment
Year Population (a) thousands) Income (a) Age (a) (a) Rate (b)
2015 252,235 $ 9971354 § 39,532 359 61,768 6.6%
2016 254,308  § 10,809,362 § 42,505 35.9 60,809 7.4%
2017 254,679  $ 11,451,641 § 44,965 36.0 59,927 8.5%
2018 256,299  $ 11,524,485 § 44965 36.0 59,927 6.2%
2019 255,001 $ 12,358,113 § 48,463 36.0 59,845 5.6%
2020 251,565  § 14,036,572 § 55,797 37.1 59,784 13.1%
2021 256,526  $ 13,140,444 § 51,248 37.1 59,784 8.3%
2022 253,704  $ 13,601,833 § 53,613 36.3 47,418 6.6%
2023 250,830  $ 14,371,054 $§ 57,294 36.9 44,017 6.2%
2024 251,496  §$ 15,073,161 § 59,934 37.5 44,175 6.4%

Data sources

(a) Bureau of Census
(b) Texas Workforce Commission
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TABLE 15
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
2024 2015
Percentage of Percentage of
Total County Total County
Employer Employees Rank Empioyment Employees Rank  Employment
State of Texas 4,007 1 4.01% 4229 1 4.08%
Beaumont ISD 2,349 2 2.35% 2,672 2 2.58%
ExxonMobil Oil Corporation 2,163 3 2.17% 2,000 3 1.93%
Memorial Hermann Baptist Hospital 1,977 4 1.98% 1,553 5 1.50%
Christus Health Southeast Texas 1,893 5 1.90% 1,991 4 1.92%
Motiva Enterprises 1,664 6 1.67% 1,540 6 1.49%
Port Arthur ISD 1,335 7 1.34% 1,263 7 1.22%
City of Beaumont 1,266 8 1.27% 1,235 8 1.19%
Jefferson County 1,118 9 1.12% 1,182 9 1.14%
Valero 847 10 0.85% 845 10 0.82%
TOTAL 18,619 18.66% 18,510 17.87%

Source: Employment numbers provided by each entity
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TABLE 16
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNTY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Full-time Equivalent Employees as of September 30
Function 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

General Government 165 168 155 161 163 157 157 152 153 149
Judicial & Law Enforcement

Deputies 143 146 148 145 141 135 134 136 138 137

Detention Officers 237 237 231 232 230 221 216 205 193 232

Others 440 439 415 419 413 409 410 391 396 395
Education & Recreation 15 15 12 14 15 13 15 14 15 15
Health & Welfare 60 61 52 59 58 57 52 59 53 56
Maintenance - Equipment &

Structures

Road & Bridges 60 64 61 64 68 65 65 66 63 64

Engineering 10 10 9 10 10 9 10 9 9 9

Maintenance 28 28 25 26 26 27 27 27 25 26
Jack Brooks Regional Airport 24 24 24 24 23 25 24 24 23 22
Ford Park 20 21 22 22 19 12 15 15 14 13

TOTAL 1,202 1,213 1,154 1,176 1,166 1,130 1,125 1,098 1,082 1,118

Sources: County and Ford Park payroll records
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TABLE 18
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
FISCAL YEAR
Function 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Judicial & Law Entorcement
Sheriff
Patrol Units 123 141 132 142 141 139 133 137 139 151
Aviation Units 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Marine Units I 10 10 10 10 10 12 10 10 12
Jail
Dorms 23 23 23 23 23 24 24 24 24 24
Bed Capacity 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268
Constables
Patrol Units 32 34 28 33 24 24 22 24 29 27
Health & Welfare
Mosquito Control
Mosquito Spray Trucks 8 8 8 3 3 8 8 8 8 8
Weed Control Trucks 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Aviation Units 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Maintenance - Equipment & Structures
Road (miles) 369 369 366 366 376 371 373 374 374 375
Bridges 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65
Airport
Runways (linear feet) 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820 11,820
T-Hangar & Open Span Hangars (square feet) 150,470 150,470 150,470 150,470 108,270 108,270 108,270 108,270 108,270 108,270
Ofticc Space (square fect) 43,850 45,850 45,850 45,350 44,304 44,304 44304 44,304 44,304 44,304
Entertainment Complex
Number of venues 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Softball Fields 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Exhibit Floor Space (square feet) 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000
Seating Capacity 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500

Sources: Various county departments

Note: Indicators are not available for the general government function.
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FRAN LEE
COUNTY AUDITOR
(409) 835-8500

1149 PEARL ST. - 7™ FLOOR
BEAUMONT, TEXAS 77701

March 13, 2025

Honorable Commissioners Court:

Judge Jeff R. Branick

Commissioner Brandon Willis
Commissioner Cary Erickson
Commissioner Michael “Shane” Sinegal
Commissioner Everette “Bo” Alfred

Gentlemen:
In compliance with Section 114.023 of the Local Government Code, I herewith present
the monthly report of the financial condition of Jefferson County as of December 31,
2024 together with the results of operations of the budget for the third period then ended.
Revenue:
Total budgeted revenue collected for the three months ending December 31, 2024
~ i $35,682,110. Budgeted Revenues are $166,038,079 leaving $130,355,969 in
revenue to be collected in order to meet our budgetary revenue goals. Highlights
of revenues are as follows:
Property Taxes:
Property tax collections are $26,135,249 for the first three months of the
year. This amount represents 23% of the budgeted amount of
$114,126,069.

Sales Taxes:

Seventeen percent of budgeted revenue for sales taxes has been collected.
Sales Tax revenue is budgeted to be $32,700,000.
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Page Two
Licenses & Permits:

Eighteen percent of budgeted revenue from Licenses & Permits has been
collected. Licenses & Permits are budgeted to be $383,000 for the year.

Intergovernmental:

Fifteen percent of Intergovernmental Revenue has been collected.
Intergovernmental Revenue is budgeted to be $1,629,660.

Fees:

Nineteen percent of the budgeted revenue for Fees has been collected.
Revenue from Fees is budgeted to be $12,006,110 for the year.

Fines and Forfeitures:

Eighteen percent of Fines and Forfeitures have been collected. Revenues
from Fines and Forfeitures are budgeted to be $1,405,000.

Interest:
Twenty-eight percent of Interest have been collected. Revenues from

Interest are budgeted to be $3,751,250.

Other Revenues:

Nothing of Other Revenues have been collecied. Revenues from Other

VE D
Revenues are budgeted to be $37,000 for the year.
Expenditures:

Overall for the County’s budgeted funds, twenty-seven percent of the
expenditures have been spent.
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Page Three
Expenditures are budgeted to be $176,429,730, which includes General Funds and
debt service funds, excluding budgeted transfers of $7,164,138 for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2025.

Please call me if you have any questions on the enclosed report.

Sincerely,

C\;)\m Mﬁ«@——

Fran Lee
County Auditor
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Jefferson County, Texas
Consolidated Balance Sheet
For The Three Months Ending Decenber 31, 2024

Special Capital Debt Internal
General Revenue Project Service Enterprise Service
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents § 86,129,342 64,898,722 17,942,953 1,920,660 3,318,760 6,359,409 § 180,569,846
Receivables & Prepaids 6,385,737 545 - 252,441 79,959 - 6,718,682
Intergovernmental Receivables 72,708 80,785 - - - - 153,493
Due From Other Funds 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
Inventory 948,116 18,257 - - 145,818 - 1,112,191
Other Assets 215,923 - - - 83,403,461 - 83,619,384
Total Assets 3 93,901,826 § 649983069 $ 17,942953 § 2,173,161 § 86,947,998 6,350,409 § 272,323,596
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE/EQUITY
Payables $ 3,835,907 499,184 - - 780,447 3,405,949 § 8,521,487
Intergovernmental Payables 360 114 - - 43 - 517
Other Liabilities 6,574,210 952,505 - 253,572 5,054,130 - 12,834,417
Fund Balance/Equity 83,491,349 63,546,506 17,942,953 1,919,529 81,113,378 2,953,460 250,967,175
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance/Equity § 03901,826 § 64,998,309 $ 17,942,953 § 2,173,101 § 86947998 $ 6,359,409 § 272323596
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Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

For The Three Months Ending Decenber 31, 2024

9/30/2024 Three Months Ending December 31, 2024 12/31/2024
Transfers Prior Period

Fund Balance Receipts Disbursements In{/Ont) Adjustment Fund Balance

Jury Fund $ 131,965 $ 110,099 8§ 138,353 - - 3 103,711
Road & Bridge Pet. 1 5,231,380 364,736 324,806 - - 5,271,310
Road & Bridge Pct. 2 1,831,581 364,674 1,009,660 - - 1,186,595
Road & Bridge Pet. 3 468,312 367,762 591,236 - - 244 838
Road & Bridge Pct. 4 3,333,877 379,693 405,031 - - 3,308,539
Engineering Fund 198,151 288,138 268,839 - - 217,450
Parks & Recreation 19,453 62,318 30,618 - - 51,153
General Fund 70,268,616 31,398,572 32,540,657 (519,476} - 68,607,055
Mosguito Control Fund 837,988 068,478 333,925 - - 1,572,541
Tobacco Settiement Fund 3,148,336 29821 259,000 - - 2,928,157
Total General Funds 85,569,659 34,334,291 35,893,125 (519,476) - 83,491,349
Total Special Revenue Funds 33,532,543 56,626,238 26,721,060 108,785 - 63,546,506
Total Capital Project Funds 17,948,048 179,850 184,945 - - 17,942,953
Total Debt Service Funds 571,719 1,347,819 - - - 1,919,529
Total Enterprise Funds 82,437,881 262,248 1,997,442 410,691 - 81,113,378
Total Internal Service Funds 4,007,129 5,690,036 6,743,705 - - 2,953,460
Total Balances $ 224066970 $ 98,440,482 % 71,540,277 - - $ 250,967,175
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Jefferson County Texas
Statement of Revenues by Category - Compared with Budget Allocation
For The Three Months Ending December 31, 2024

Cumulative Annual Unrealized Percentage

Category Actual Budget Balance Unrealized
Property Taxes § 26,135249 § 114,126,069 § 87,990,820 77.10%
Sales Taxes 5,631,245 32,700,000 27,068,755 82.78%
Licenses & Permits 68,188 383,000 314,812 82.20%
Intergovernmental 239,905 1,629,660 1,389,755 85.28%
2,304,308 12,006,100 9,701,792 80.81%
Fines & Forfeitures 252,894 1,405,000 1,152,106 82.00%
1,050,321 3,751,250 2,700,929 72.00%
Other Revenue - 37,000 37,000 100.00%
$ 35,682,110 § 166,038,079  § 130,355,969 78.51%

Sales Taxes, 15.78%

Intergovernmental,

Fines & Forfeitures,

Interest, 2.94%

Other Revenue,
0.00%

0.71%

Licenses & Permits,
0.19%

Fees,
6.46%

0,
0.67% Property Taxes,

73.25%
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Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Revenues - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Three Months Ending December 31, 2024

October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unrealized
-December Total Budget Balance
Jury Fund
Current Taxes $ 32,047 § 32,047 § 139,248 § 107,201
Delinquent Taxes 117 117 1,954 1,837
Jury Fees 10,599 10,599 65,000 54,401
Other Revenue 67,336 67,336 275,669 208,324
Road & Bridge Pct. |
Current Taxes 216,448 216,448 940,490 724,042
Delinquent Taxes 546 546 9,126 8,580
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - .
Auto Registration Fees - - 667,500 667,500
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 103.876 525,000 421,124
Sales, Rentals & Services “ - - -
Fines and Forfeitures 43,866 43,866 215,000 171,134
Road & Bridge Pct. 2
Current Taxes 216,448 216,448 940,490 724,042
Delinquent Taxes 546 546 9,126 8,580
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - -
Auto Registration Fees - - 667,500 667,500
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 103,876 525,000 421,124
Sales, Rentals & Services - - - 3
Fines and Forfeitures 43,804 43,804 215,000 171,196
Road & Bridge Pct. 3
Current Taxes 216,448 216,448 940,490 724,042
Delinquent Taxes 546 546 9,126 8,580
Iniergoverimenial Revenue - - - -
Auto Registration Fees - - 667,500 667,500
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 103,876 525,000 421,124
Sales, Rentals & Services 2,988 2,988 - (2,988)
Fines and Forfeitures 43,904 43,904 215,000 171,096
Road & Bridge Pct. 4
Current Taxes 216,448 216,448 940,490 724,042
Delinquent Taxes 546 546 9,126 8,580
Intergovernmental Revenue - - 11,000 11,000
Auto Registration Fees 3 - 667,500 667,500
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 103,876 525,000 421,124
Sales, Rentals & Services 14,719 14,719 - (14,719)
Fines and Forfeitures 44,104 44,104 215,000 170,896
Other Revenue - - - .-



Engineering Fund
Current Taxes
Delinquent Taxes
Licenses and Permits

Sales, Rentals & Services
Parks & Recreation

Current Taxes

Delinquent Taxes

Sales, Rentals & Services
General Fund
Current Taxes
Delinquent Taxes
Sales Taxes
Other Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenue
Fees of Office
Other Sales, Rentals & Svcs.
Fines & Forfeitures
Interest
Other Revenue
Mosquito Control Fund
Current Taxes
Delinquent Taxes
Sales, Rentals & Services
Tobacco Settlement Fund
Interest
Debt Service
Current Taxes
Delinquent Taxes

Interest

Other, Sales, Rentals & Svcs.

Total

Jefferson County, Texas

Statement of Revenues - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Three Months Ending December 31, 2024
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October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unrealized
-December Total Budget Balance
285,718 285,718 §$ 1,241,478 $ 955,760
670 670 11,198 10,528
1,250 1,250 4,000 2,750
500 500 2,000 1,500
45,477 45,477 197,604 152,127
13 13 204 191
16,828 16,828 65,150 48,322
22,540,818 22,540,818 97,932,568 75,391,750
57,878 57,878 968,262 910,384
5,631,245 5,631,245 32,700,000 27,068,755
. = 37,000 37,000
66,938 66,938 379,000 312,062
172,569 172,569 1,343,000 1,170,431
786,012 786,012 3,518,800 2,732,788
1,057,158 1,057,158 3,585,150 2,527,992
77,216 77,216 545,000 467,784
1,008,738 1,008,738 3,600,000 2,591,262
966,992 066,992 4,201,686 3,234,694
1,486 1,486 24,859 23,373
29,821 29,821 80,000 50,179
1,330,301 1,330,301 5,554,525 4,224,224
5,756 5,756 54,019 48,263
11,762 11,762 71,250 59,488
35,682,110 35,682,110 § 166,038,079 § 130,355,969
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Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Expenditures - Compared With Budget Allocation - 25% of Budget Expended
For The Three Months Ending December 31, 2024

Cumulative Annual Unencumbered Percentage

Actual Budget Balance Unencumbered

Jury Fund $ 142,624 $ 633,247 $ 490,623 77.48%
Road & Bridge Funds 3,490,319 10,974,421 7,484,102 68.20%
Engineering Fund 273,768 1,463,807 1,190,039 81.30%
Parks & Recreation Fund 40,386 264,728 224,342 84.74%

General Fund:

General Government 9,346,657 33,860,382 24,513,725 72.40%
Judicial 5,196,503 24,406,503 19,210,000 78.71%
Law Enforcement 21,120,886 76,663,048 55,542,162 72.45%
Education 102,519 512,699 410,180 80.00%
Health & Welfare 1,629,224 9,819,872 8,190,648 83.41%
Maintenance 1,375,286 4,382,380 3,007,094 68.62%
Other 896,885 2,992,699 2,095,814 70.03%
Mosquito Control Fund 2,914,725 4,533,094 1,618,369 35.70%

Tobacco Settlement 250,000 250,000 - -
Debt Service Funds - 5,672,850 5,672,850 100.00%
$ 46,779,782 $ 176,429,730 $ 129,649,948 73.49%

120,000,000
100,000,000
80,000,000
60,000,000
40,000,000

20,000,000

Road & Bridge ~ General Govnmt ~ Judicial & Law  Mosquito Control Debt Service Other
Enf




Jury Fund

Road & Brdg Pct. 1
Road & Brdg Pct. 2
Road & Brdg Pct. 3
Road & Brdg Pct. 4
Engineering

Parks & Recreation
Tax Assessor/Coll.
Human Resources
County Auditor
County Clerk
County Judge

Risk Management
County Treasurer
Printing Department
Purchasing Department
General Services
MIS

Voter's Registration
Elections

District Attorney
District Clerk
Criminal Dist. Court
58th Dist. Court
60th Dist. Court
136th Dist. Court
172nd Dist. Court
252nd Dist. Court
279th Dist. Court
317th Dist. Court
JP.Pct.1P11
JP.Pct.1P12

J.P. Pct. 2

].P. Pct. 4

J.P.Pct.6

J.P.Pct. 7

JP.Pct.8

Cnty. Courtat Law 1
Cnty. Court at Law 2
Cnty. Court at Law 3

Court Master

Jefferson County, Texas 273
Statement of Expenditures - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Three Months Ending December 31, 2024
October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unencumbered
December Encumbrances Total Budget Balance

$ 138,353 $ 4,271 142,624 $ 633,247 $ 490,623
324,806 365,028 689,834 2,592,540 1,902,706
1,009,660 211,914 1,221,574 2,859,877 1,638,303
591,236 116,383 707,619 2,706,969 1,999,350
405,031 466,261 871,292 2,815,035 1,943,743
268,839 4,929 273,768 1,463,807 1,190,039
30,618 9,768 40,386 264,728 224,342
1,031,629 10,0857 1,041,686 5,028,035 3,986,349
141,279 4,599 145,878 605,061 459,183
420,272 428 420,700 1,959,962 1,539,262
549,909 10,352 560,261 2,799,907 2,239,646
231,578 2,123 233,701 1,195,416 961,715
79,737 2,918 82,655 389,355 306,700
88,522 - 88,522 402,067 313,545
27,543 14,203 41,746 169,184 127,438
151,971 21,957 173,928 722,788 548,860
3,909,288 167,548 4,076,836 15,374,694 11,297,858
1,816,788 92,033 1,908,821 3,989,310 2,080,489
34,647 34,647 188,072 153,425
500,586 36,690 537,276 1,036,531 499,255
1,947,158 11,633 1,558,791 8,780,981 6,822,190
589,628 35,513 625,141 2,623,850 1,998,709
340,697 - 340,697 1,987,303 1,646,606
80,331 505 80,836 375,119 294,283
86,299 67 86,366 404,440 318,074
86,089 (26) 86,063 390,667 304,604
86,531 75 86,606 375,864 289,258
282,365 282,365 1,445,739 1,163,374
164,342 490 164,832 718,030 553,198
96,614 504 97,118 624,479 527,361
100,678 1,666 102,344 471,448 369,104
110,956 480 111,436 484,810 373,374
166,199 106,199 463,389 357,190
110,845 87 110,932 481,073 370,141
160,239 691 100,930 473,782 372,852
168,803 138 108,941 484,086 375,145
58,825 1,329 60,154 470,011 409,857
134,291 153 134,444 601,838 467,394
142,931 40 142,971 798,053 655,082
198,740 45 198,785 994,914 796,129
134,623 74 134,697 609,736 475,039



Dispute Resolution
Comm. Supervision
Sheriff's Dept.
Crime Lab

Jail

Juvenile Probation
Juvenile Detention
Constable Pct. 1
Constable Pct. 2
Constable Pct. 4
Constable Pct. 6
Constable Pct. 7
Constable Pct. 8
County Morgue
Agriculture Ext.
Public Health # 1
Public Health # 2
Nurse Practitioner
Child Welfare

Env. Control

Ind. Medical Svcs.

Emergency Mgmt.

Beaumeont Maintenance

Port Arthur Maint.
Mid-County Maint.
Service Center
Veteran Service
Mosquito Control
Tobacco Settlement
Debt Service Funds

Contingency

Total

Jefferson County, Texas 274
Statement of Expenditures - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Three Months Ending December 31, 2024
October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unencumbered
December Encumbrances Total Budget Balance
72,496 $ 3359 § 75,855 § 346,891 § 271,036
1,164 1,164 19,319 18,155
3,878,145 600,504 4,478,649 18,752,320 14,273,671
356,908 47,988 404,896 2,070,108 1,665,212
9,838,641 4,365,522 14,204,163 45,361,610 31,157,447
407,077 3,463 410,540 1,979,891 1,569,351
503,166 141,759 644,925 2,768,767 2,123,842
203,195 5,910 209,105 926,671 717,566
125,130 253 125,383 623,493 498,110
126,386 - 129,386 582,711 453,325
140,231 4,793 145,024 714,709 569,685
134,764 25 134,789 659,283 524,494
133,899 196 134,095 604,166 470,071
98,767 - 98,767 1,660,000 1,501,233
100,989 1,530 162,519 512,699 410,180
374,73 1,642 376,381 1,694,767 1,318,386
340,262 128 340,390 1,545,265 1,204,875
94,325 - 94,325 437,956 343,631
47,500 - 47,500 95,000 47,500
100,963 215 101,178 522,705 421,527
282,603 327,611 610,214 5,218,971 4,608,757
56,789 2,447 59,236 305,208 245,972
500,042 477,619 977,662 3,107,148 2,129,486
196,520 114,548 211,068 994,121 683,053
38,003 48,553 86,556 281,111 194,555
270,765 562,581 833,346 1,544,331 710,985
63,254 285 63,539 415,299 351,760
333,925 2,580,800 2,914,725 4,533,094 1,618,369
250,000 - 250,000 250,000

- - - 5,672,850 5,672,850

- - - 1,033,069 1,033,069

$ 35893125 $ 10,886,657 $ 46,779,782 $ 176,429,730 $ 129,649,948




Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Bonded Indebtedness
For The Three Months Ending December 31, 2024

Beginning Ending

Amount 2024-2625 Requirements 2024-2025 Payments Amount
Issue Outstanding Principal Inferest Fees Total Principal Interest Fees Total Qutstanding
2012 Refunding Bonds 5 4465000 § 4,465,000 $ 133950 § 25060 § 4,601,450 - $ 4465000
2019 Certificates of Gbligation 12,640,000 635,000 433,900 2,560 1,071,460 - 12,640,000

§ 17,105,000 $ 5,100,006 $ 567,850 § 5000 § 5,672,850
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Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Transfers In and Out

For The Three Months Ending December 31, 2024

Transfers In

Fund
120 General Fund
120 General Fund
230  Commuity Supervision Fund
233 Mentally Impaired Offender
237  Community Corrections Program
239  Drug Diversion Program
241  Sheriff Department Grants
245  Crime Victim's Clearing
257  Auto Theft Grant
263  VAWA Fund
265  Check Water & Sewer Phase 5
282  VAWA Fund
550  SETEC Fund
876  Sheriff-Spindletop Grant
(a) Budgeted Transfer
(b) Grant Match

10

-

15,154
78,000
169,963
2:390
61,502
5,678
6,987

410,691
32,228

$782,593

(@
(2)
(a)
(b
(b)
(b)
(b)
(b)
(b)
(@)
(b)
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Transfers Out

410,691 (a)
108,785 (b)
263,117 (a)

$782,593




Department

Road & Bridge # 1
Road & Bridge # 2
Road & Bridge # 3
Road & Bridge # 4
Engineering

Tax Assessor/Collector
Human Resources
County Auditor
County Clerk

County Judge
Treasurer

Printing

Purchasing Department
MIS

Voter Registration
Elections Department
District Attorney
District Clerk

Criminal District Court
58th District Court
172nd District Court
252nd District Court
317th District Court

Justice of Peace Pet. 1 PL. 1
Justice of Peace Pct. 1 PL. 2

Justice of Peace Pct, 2
Justice of Peace Pct. 4
Justice of Peace Pct. 6
Justice of Peace Pct. 7
Justice of Peace Pct. 8
County Court at Law #2
County Court at Law #3

Court Master

Dispute Resolution Center

Sheriff's Department
Crime Lab
Correctionat Facility
Juvenile Probation

Juvenile Detention Home

Constable Pet. 1

Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Comp-Time Liability
For The First Quarter - December 31, 2024

Cumulative Current

Hours Liability
340.25 $ 9,994.02
297.75 9,776.68
255.31 7,949.27
21.75 617.99
51.88 1,876.92
250.28 6,503.76
151.12 5,352.13
681.64 17,701.46
0.01 0.13
0.01 0.12
8.50 222.97
267.25 8,659.93
26.76 891.43
315.21 9,120.62
0.01 0.14
793.14 21,139.58
79.51 2,555.90
1.63 52.24
2.38 92.34
85.26 2,407.66
226.00 6,223.16
4.88 138.63
50.38 1,568.46
45.06 1,412.76
0.01 0.11
0.01 0.16
117.13 3,043.94
12,199.65 516,734.26
209.24 9,569.23
11,572.06 374,888.08
125.39 3,459.72
287.15 6,143.99
312.13 11,177.89

11
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Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Comp-Time Liability

For The First Quarter - December 31, 2024

Department

Constable Pct. 2

Constable Pct. 4

Constable Pct. 6

Constable Pct. 7

Constable Pct. 8

Public Health No. 1

Public Health No. 2

Nurse Practitioner
Environmental Control
Indigent Health

Emergency Management
Mosquito Control
Maintenance - Beaumont
Maintenance - Port Arthur
Maintenance- Mid County
Service Center

Veterans' Services Office
Airport

Visitors' Center

Grant A Basic Probation
Grant A Mental Health Service
Grant A Community Programs
Grant A Pre and Post Adjudication
Community Supervision
Adult Surveillance Program

- e .
{ ommimzityv { arrectinone
COMIMIUNTY L OrTeCtions

High Need Program

TIJPC Grant Contract M

Drug Diversion

Juvenile Probation and Detention
Mentally Impaired Offender
Auto Theft

Sheriff Mental Health Liaison -Cnty

Sheriff Mental Health Liaison
Marine Division

Courthouse Security

District Clerk Records

Total

Comp-Time Liability at 12/31/2023

Cumulative Current

Hours Liability
14.00 $ 686.73
157.50 7,705.98
138.41 3,936.03
20.03 910.67
24.00 614.48
18.50 436.16
12.57 306.27
37.63 1,256.07
12.75 256.26
79.50 2,743.11
526.12 14,939.30
422.08 10,156.42
264.23 7,132.33
69.75 2,081.03
60.00 1,752.74
18.88 545.64
1,050.85 25,766.09
191.75 3,693.11
21.39 672.88
24.26 826.85
35.88 1,032.23
17.25 333.61
260.92 6,691.00
9.00 142.41
15.00 389.75
21.50 618.92
72.88 1,609.12
37.25 599.38
6.00 155.90
145.25 5,946.91
139.87 5,812.06
470.26 18,889.01
4,381.86 187,359.30
416.00 18,430.20
6.01 153.75
38,008.87 $ 1,374,562.69
36,758.40 $1,297,230.43
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FRAN LEE
COUNTY AUDITOR
(409) 835-8500

1149 PEARL ST.- 7™M FLOOR
BEAUMONT, TEXAS 77701

March 18, 2025

Honorable Commissioners Court:

Judge Jeff R. Branick

Commissioner Brandon Willis
Commissioner Cary Erickson
Commissioner Michael “Shane” Sinegal
Commissioner Everette “Bo” Alfred

Gentlemen:

In compliance with Section 114.023 of the Local Government Code, I herewith present

the monthly report of the financial condition of Jefferson County as of January 31, 2025

together with the results of operations of the budget for the fourth period then ended.
Revenue:

Total budgeted revenue collected for the four months ending January 31, 2025 is
$66,932,057. Budgeted Revenues are $166,038,079 leaving $99,106,022 in
revenue to be collected in order to meet our budgetary revenue goals. Highlights
of revenues are as follows:

Property Taxes:

Property tax collections are $51,728,900 for the first four months of the
year. This amount represents 45% of the budgeted amount of
$114,126,0609.

Sales Taxes:

Twenty-eight percent of budgeted revenue for sales taxes has been
collected. Sales Tax revenue is budgeted to be $32,700,000.
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Page Two
Licenses & Permits:
Twenty-five percent of budgeted revenue from Licenses & Permits has
been collected. Licenses & Permits are budgeted to be $383,000 for the
year.

Intergovernmental:

Fifteen percent of Intergovernmental Revenue has been collected.
Intergovernmental Revenue is budgeted to be $1,629,660.

Fees:

Thirty-one percent of the budgeted revenue for Fees has been collected.
Revenue from Fees is budgeted to be $12,006,110 for the year.

Fines and Forfeitures:

Twenty-six percent of Fines and Forfeitures have been collected.
Revenues from Fines and Forfeitures are budgeted to be $1,405,000.

Interest:

Fourty-three percent of Interest have been collected. Revenues from
Interest are budgeted to be $3,751,250.

Other Revenues:

Nothing of Other Revenues have been collected. Revenues from Other
Revenues are budgeted to be $37,000 for the year.

Expenditures:

Overall for the County’s budgeted funds, thirty-five percent of the expenditures
have been spent.
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Page Three
Expenditures are budgeted to be $176,429,730, which includes General Funds and
debt service funds, excluding budgeted transfers of $7,164,138 for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2025.
Please call me if you have any questions on the enclosed report.
incerely,

S

Fran Lee
County Auditor
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Jefferson County, Texas
Consolidated Balance Sheet
For The Month Ending January 31, 2025

Special Capital Debt Internal
General Revenue Project Service Enterprise Service
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 99,928,161 74,980,554 17,973,054 2,954,109 3,080,905 6,959,345 205,876,128
Receivables & Prepaids 6,384,857 545 - 252,441 79,959 - 6,717,802
Intergovernmental Receivables 82,862 80,785 - - - - 163,647
Due From Other Funds 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
Inventory 948,116 18,257 - - 145,818 - 1,112,191
Other Assets 215,923 - - - 83,403,461 - 83,619,384
Total Assets $ 107,709,919 $§ 75,080,141 $ 17,973,054 3,206,550 86,710,143 $ 6,959,345 297,639,152
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE/EQUITY
Payables $ 3,836,089 499,139 - - 780,447 3,405,949 8,521,624
Intergovernmental Payables 360 - - - 5 - 365
Other Liabilities 6,574,210 952,505 - 253,572 5,054,130 - 12,834,417
Fund Balance/Equity 97,299,260 73,628,497 17,973,054 2,952,978 80,875,561 3,553,396 276,282,746
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance/Equity $ 107,709,919 $ 75,080,141 $ 17,973,054 3,206,550 86,710,143 $ 6,959,345 297,639,152
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Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Changes in Fund Balances
For The Month Ending January 31, 2025

12/31/2024 Month Ending January 31, 2025 1/31/2025
Transfers Prior Period

Fund Balance Receipts Disbursements In(/Out) Adjustment Fund Balance

Jury Fund $ 103,711  $ 36,523  $ 46,173  $ - 3 - § 94,061
Road & Bridge Pct. 1 5,271,310 366,663 155,006 - - 5,482,967
Road & Bridge Pct. 2 1,186,595 366,663 196,078 - - 1,357,180
Road & Bridge Pct. 3 244 838 366,663 213,971 - - 397,530
Road & Bridge Pct. 4 3,308,539 368,330 202,320 - - 3,474,549
Engineering Fund 217,450 280,739 132,938 - - 365,251
Parks & Recreation 51,153 49,209 13,106 - - 87,256
General Fund 68,607,055 27,136,595 13,264,086 (270,148) - 82,209,416
Mosquito Control Fund 1,572,541 946,314 1,628,331 - - 890,524
Tobacco Settlement Fund 2,928,157 12,369 - - - 2,940,526
Total General Funds 83,491,349 29,930,068 15,852,009 (270,148) - 97,299,260
Total Special Revenue Funds 63,546,506 13,351,779 3,270,245 457 - 73,628,497
Total Capital Project Funds 17,942,953 75,979 45,878 - - 17,973,054
Total Debt Service Funds 1,919,529 1,319,879 286,430 - - 2,952,978
Total Enterprise Funds 81,113,378 461,575 969,083 269,691 - 80,875,561
Total Internal Service Funds 2,953,460 o 2,508,904 1,908,968 - - 3,553,396
Total Balances $ 250,967,175 $ 47,648,184  $ 22,332,613  § - 3 - $ 276,282,746
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Jefferson County Texas
Statement of Revenues by Category - Compared with Budget Allocation
For The Month Ending January 31, 2025

Cumulative Annual Unrealized Percentage

Category Actual Budget Balance Unrealized
Property Taxes  $ 51,728,900 $ 114,126,069 $ 62,397,169 54.67%
Sales Taxes 9,187,758 32,700,000 23,512,242 71.90%
Licenses & Permits 95,383 383,000 287,617 75.10%
Intergovernmental 240,286 1,629,660 1,389,374 85.26%
Fees 3,715,777 12,006,100 8,290,323 69.05%
Fines & Forfeitures 364,373 1,405,000 1,040,627 74.07%
Interest 1,599,580 3,751,250 2,151,670 57.36%
Other Revenue - 37,000 37,000 100.00%
$ 66,932,057 $ 166,038,079 $ 99,106,022 59.69%

Revenues by Major Category
For The Month Ending January 31, 2025

Fines & Forfeitures,

0.54% Interest, 2.39%
R (1]

Licenses & Permits,
0.14%

Sales Taxes, 13.73%

Other Revenue,
0.00%

Fees,
5.55%

Intergovernmental,
0.36%

Property Taxes,
77.29%
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Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Revenues - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Month Ending January 31, 2025

October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unrealized
-December January Total Budget Balance
Jury Fund
Current Taxes $ 32,047 § 31,203 § 63,250 § 139,248 § 75,998
Delinquent Taxes 117 377 494 1,954 1,460
Jury Fees 10,599 4,852 15,451 65,000 49,549
Other Revenue 67,336 91 67,427 275,660 208,233
Road & Bridge Pct. 1
Current Taxes 216,448 210,750 427,198 940,490 513,292
Delinquent Taxes 546 1,754 2,300 9,126 6,826
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - . .
Auto Registration Fees - 78,386 78,386 667,500 589,114
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 58,060 161,936 525,000 363,064
Sales, Rentals & Services - - - - -
Fines and Forfeitures 43,866 17,713 61,579 215,000 153,421
Road & Bridge Pct. 2
Current Taxes 216,448 210,750 427,198 940,490 513,292
Delinquent Taxes 546 1,755 2,301 9,126 6,825
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - - s
Auto Registration Fees - 78,386 78,386 667,500 589,114
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 58,060 161,936 525,000 363,064
Sales, Rentals & Services - - - - -
Fines and Forfeitures 43,804 17,712 61,516 215,000 153,484
Road & Bridge Pct. 3
Current Taxes 216,448 210,750 427,198 940,490 513,292
Delinquent Taxes 546 1,755 2,301 9,126 6,825
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - - -
Auto Registration Fees - 78,386 78,386 667,500 589,114
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 58,060 161,936 525,000 363,064
Sales, Rentals & Services 2,988 - 2,988 - (2,988)
Fines and Forfeitures 43,904 17,712 61,616 215,000 153,384
Road & Bridge Pct. 4
Current Taxes 216,448 210,750 427,198 940,490 513,292
Delinquent Taxes 546 1,755 2,301 9,126 6,825
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - 11,000 11,000
Auto Registration Fees - 78,386 78,386 667,500 589,114
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 58,060 161,936 525,000 363,064
Sales, Rentals & Services 14,719 1,666 16,385 - (16,385)
Fines and Forfeitures 44,104 17,713 61,817 215,000 153,183

Other Revenue - - - - -



Engineering Fund
Current Taxes
Delinquent Taxes
Licenses and Permits

Sales, Rentals & Services
Parks & Recreation

Current Taxes

Delinquent Taxes

Sales, Rentals & Services
General Fund
Current Taxes
Delinquent Taxes
Sales Taxes
Other Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenue
Fees of Office
Other Sales, Rentals & Svcs.
Fines & Forfeitures
Interest
Other Revenue
Mosquito Control Fund
Current Taxes
Delinquent Taxes
Sales, Rentals & Services
Tobacco Settlement Fund
Interest
Debt Service
Current Taxes
Delinquent Taxes

Interest

Other, Sales, Rentals & Svcs.

Total

$

Jefferson County, Texas

Statement of Revenues - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Month Ending January 31, 2025

289

October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unrealized
-December January Total Budget Balance
285,718 $ 278,196 $ 563,914 1,241,478  § 677,564
670 2,153 2,823 11,198 8,375
1,250 390 1,640 4,000 2,360
500 - 500 2,000 1,500
45,477 44,280 89,757 197,604 107,847
13 39 52 204 152
16,828 4,890 21,718 65,150 43,432
22,540,818 21,947,450 44,488,268 97,932,568 53,444,300
57,878 186,167 244,045 968,262 724,217
5,631,245 3,556,513 9,187,758 32,700,000 23,512,242
- - - 37,000 37,000
66,938 26,805 93,743 379,000 285,257
172,569 290 172,859 1,343,000 1,170,141
786,012 304,635 1,090,647 3,518,800 2,428,153
1,057,158 549,642 1,606,800 3,585,150 1,978,350
77,216 40,629 117,845 545,000 427,155
1,008,738 524,464 1,533,202 3,600,000 2,066,798
966,992 941,534 1,908,526 4,201,686 2,293,160
1,486 4,780 6,266 24,859 18,593
29,821 12,369 42,190 80,000 37,810
1,330,301 1,295,281 2,625,582 5,554,525 2,928,943
5,756 12,172 17,928 54,019 36,091
11,762 12,426 24,188 71,250 47,062
35,682,110 $§ 31,249,947 § 66,932,057 $ 166,038,079 § 99,106,022




Statement of Expenditures - Compared With Budget Allocation - 33% of Budget Expended

Jury Fund $
Road & Bridge Funds
Engineering Fund

Parks & Recreation Fund

General Fund:
General Government
Judicial
Law Enforcement
Education
Health & Welfare
Maintenance
Other

Mosquito Control Fund
Tobacco Settlement
Debt Service Funds

Jefferson County, Texas

For The Month Ending January 31, 2025

Cumulative Annual Unencumbered Percentage

Actual Budget Balance Unencumbered
188,434 $ 633,247 $ 444,813 70.24%
4,265,510 11,174,421 6,908,911 61.83%
407,536 1,463,807 1,056,271 72.16%
53,387 264,728 211,341 79.83%
11,822,416 33,919,589 22,097,173 65.15%
7,703,650 24,406,503 16,702,853 68.44%
27,571,075 76,673,723 49,102,648 64.04%
153,134 512,699 359,565 70.13%
2,082,997 9,819,872 7,736,875 78.79%
1,698,690 4,434,738 2,736,048 61.70%
1,000,146 2,670,459 1,670,313 62.55%
3,045,249 4,533,094 1,487,845 32.82%
250,000 250,000 - -
286,430 5,672,850 5,386,420 94.95%
60,528,654 $ 176,429,730 $ 115,901,076 65.69%

120,000,000

100,000,000

80,000,000

60,000,000

40,000,000

20,000,000

Road & Bridge

General Govnmt

Judicial & Law  Mosquito Control

Enf

Debt Service

Other
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Jefferson County, Texas 291
Statement of Expenditures - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Month Ending January 31, 2025

October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unencumbered
December January Encumbrances Total Budget Balance

Jury Fund $ 138,353 § 46,173  § 3,908 § 188,434 § 633,247 $ 444,813
Road & Brdg Pct. 1 324,806 155,006 387,802 867,614 2,592,540 1,724,926
Road & Brdg Pct. 2 1,009,660 196,078 218,978 1,424,716 2,859,877 1,435,161
Road & Brdg Pct. 3 591,236 213,971 97,684 902,891 2,706,969 1,804,078
Road & Brdg Pct. 4 405,031 202,320 462,938 1,070,289 3,015,035 1,944,746
Engineering 268,839 132,938 5,75‘9 407,536 1,463,807 1,056,271
Parks & Recreation 30,618 13,106 9,663 53,387 264,728 211,341
Tax Assessor/Coll. 1,031,629 456,459 13,271 1,501,359 5,028,035 3,526,676
Human Resources 141,279 55,098 4,359 200,736 605,061 404,325
County Auditor 420,272 212,541 908 633,721 1,959,962 1,326,241
County Clerk 549,909 266,750 10,636 827,295 2,799,907 1,972,612
County Judge 231,578 105,462 2173 339,213 1,195,416 856,203
Risk Management 79,737 35,772 2,728 118,237 389,355 271,118
County Treasurer 88,522 42,815 840 132,177 402,067 269,890
Printing Department 27,543 13,891 13,704 55,138 169,184 114,046
Purchasing Department 151,971 73,160 21,656 246,787 722,788 476,001
General Services 3,909,288 872,427 165,824 4,947,539 15,374,694 10,427,155
MIS 1,816,788 281,017 69,859 2,167,664 4,048,517 1,880,853
Voter's Registration 34,647 13,000 - 47,647 188,072 140,425
Elections 500,586 67,611 36,706 604,903 1,036,531 431,628
District Attorney 1,947,158 927,373 16,256 2,890,787 8,780,981 5,890,194
District Clerk 589,628 285,567 34,402 909,597 2,623,850 1,714,253
Criminal Dist. Court 340,697 234,256 75 575,028 1,987,303 1,412,275
58th Dist. Court 80,331 39,983 465 120,779 375,119 254,340
60th Dist. Court 86,299 42,456 9 128,764 404,440 275,676
136th Dist. Court 86,089 42,208 (26) 128,271 390,667 262,396
172nd Dist. Court 86,531 41,832 1,134 129,497 375,864 246,367
252nd Dist. Court 282,365 113,598 50 396,013 1,445,739 1,049,726
279th Dist. Court 164,342 62,156 408 226,906 718,030 491,124
317th Dist. Court 96,614 41,075 474 138,163 624,479 486,316
JP.Pct.1PI1 100,678 51,584 1,266 153,528 471,448 317,920
J.P.Pct. 1Pl 2 110,956 54,420 320 165,696 484,810 319,114
J.P. Pct. 2 106,199 51,728 445 158,372 463,389 305,017
J.P. Pct. 4 110,845 54,501 79 165,425 481,073 315,648
J.P.Pct.6 100,239 49,761 844 150,844 473,782 322,938
J.P. Pct. 7 108,803 53,378 410 162,591 484,086 321,495
J.P. Pct. 8 58,825 38,797 1,375 98,997 470,011 371,014
Cnty. Courtat Law 1 134,291 66,986 - 201,277 601,838 400,561
Cnty. Court at Law 2 142,931 67,038 858 210,827 798,053 587,226
Cnty. Court at Law 3 198,740 91,486 76 290,302 994,914 704,612
Court Master 134,623 56,799 83 191,505 609,736 418,231



Dispute Resolution
Comm. Supervision
Sheriff's Dept.
Crime Lab

Jail

Juvenile Probation
Juvenile Detention
Constable Pct. 1
Constable Pct. 2
Constable Pct. 4
Constable Pct. 6
Constable Pct. 7
Constable Pct. 8
County Morgue
Agriculture Ext.
Public Health # 1
Public Health # 2
Nurse Practitioner
Child Welfare

Env. Control

Ind. Medical Svcs.

Emergency Mgmt.

Beaumont Maintenance

Port Arthur Maint.
Mid-County Maint.
Service Center
Veteran Service
Mosquito Control
Tobacco Settlement
Debt Service Funds

Contingency

Total

$

Jefferson County, Texas 292
Statement of Expenditures - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Month Ending January 31, 2025
October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unencumbered
December January Encumbrances Total Budget Balance
72,496 § 37877 § 108 § 110,481 § 346,891 § 236,410
1,164 520 - 1,684 19,319 17,635
3,878,145 1,891,760 576,079 6,345,984 18,752,320 12,406,336
356,908 181,827 20,030 558,765 2,070,108 1,511,343
9,838,641 4,174,697 3,617,116 17,630,454 45,361,610 27,731,156
407,077 197,907 3,805 608,789 1,979,891 1,371,102
503,166 255,529 135,465 894,160 2,768,767 1,874,607
203,195 102,268 4,376 309,839 926,671 616,832
125,130 62,391 56,391 243,912 629,900 385,988
129,386 64,939 519 194,844 582,711 387,867
140,231 78,793 4,695 223,719 714,709 490,990
134,764 66,372 - 201,136 663,551 462,415
133,899 64,629 108 198,636 604,166 405,530
98,767 60,386 - 159,153 1,600,000 1,440,847
100,989 50,205 1,940 153,134 512,699 359,565
374,739 153,680 1,765 530,184 1,694,767 1,164,583
340,262 134,285 1,457 476,004 1,545,265 1,069,261
94,325 44,695 100 139,120 437,956 298,836
47,500 - - 47,500 95,000 47,500
100,963 47,520 - 148,483 522,705 374,222
282,603 82,465 286,583 651,651 5,218,971 4,567,320
56,789 33,238 28 90,055 305,208 215,153
500,043 196,420 501,879 1,198,342 3,159,506 1,961,164
196,520 88,865 109,837 395,222 994,121 598,899
38,003 20,315 46,808 105,126 281,111 175,985
270,765 175,084 456,609 902,458 1,544,331 641,873
63,254 34,434 - 97,688 415,299 317,611
333,925 1,628,331 1,082,993 3,045,249 4,533,094 1,487,845
250,000 - - 250,000 250,000 -
- 286,430 - 286,430 5,672,850 5,386,420
- - - - 710,829 710,829
35,893,125 $§ 16,138,439 $ 8,497,090 § 60,528,654 §$ 176,429,730 $ 115,901,076




Jefferson County, Texas

Statement of Bonded Indebtedness
For The Three Months Ending January 31, 2025

Beginning
Amount 2024-2025 Requirements
Issue Outstanding Principal Interest Fees Total
2012 Refunding Bonds ) 4,465,000 5 4,465,000 § 133950 § 2,500 § 4,601,450
2019 Certificates of Obligation 12,640,000 635,000 433,900 2,500 1,071,400
§ 17,105,000 % 5,100,000 § 567,850 $ 5,000 § 5,672,850

Ending

2024-2025 Payments Amount
Principal Interest Fees Total Outstanding
66,975 $ 1,400 $ 68,375 $ 4,465,000
216,950 1,105 218,055 12,640,000
283,925 §$ 2505 $ 286,430 $ 17,105,000
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Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Transfers In and Out
For The Three Months Ending January 31, 2025

Fund

Transfers In

120
120
230
233
2317
239
241
245
257
263
265
282
550
876

General Fund

General Fund

Commuity Supervision Fund
Mentally Impaired Offender
Community Corrections Program
Drug Diversion Program
Sheriff Department Grants
Crime Victim's Clearing

Auto Theft Grant

VAWA Fund

Check Water & Sewer Phase 5
VAWA Fund

SETEC Fund
Sheriff-Spindletop Grant

(a) Budgeted Transfer
(b) Grant Match

10

15,154
78,000
169,963
2,847
61,502
5,678
6,987

680,382
32,228

$1,052,741
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Transfers Out

680,382 (a)
109,242 (b)
263,117 (a)

(a) =

(a) -

(a) -

(b) -

(b) -

(b) -

(b) -

(b) -

(b) .

(b) -

$1,052,741



S
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FRAN LEE
COUNTY AUDITOR
(409) 835-8500

1149 PEARL ST. - 77" FLOOR
BEAUMONT, TEXAS 77701

March 19, 2025

Honorable Commissioners Court:

Judge Jeff R. Branick

Commissioner Brandon Willis
Commissioner Cary Erickson
Commissioner Michael “Shane” Sinegal
Commissioner Everette “Bo” Alfred

Gentlemen:

In compliance with Section 114.023 of the Local Government Code, I herewith present

the monthly report of the financial condition of Jefferson County as of February 28, 2025

together with the results of operations of the budget for the fifth period then ended.
Revenue:

Total budgeted revenue collected for the five months ending February 28, 2025 is
$127,958,350. Budgeted Revenues are $166,038,079 leaving $38,079,729 in
revenue to be collected in order to meet our budgetary revenue goals. Highlights
of revenues are as follows:

Property Taxes:

Property tax collections are $107,197,384 for the first five months of the
year. This amount represents 94% of the budgeted amount of
$114,126,0609.

Sales Taxes:

Forty percent of budgeted revenue for sales taxes has been collected.
Sales Tax revenue is budgeted to be $32,700,000.
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Page Two
Licenses & Permits:
Thirty-three percent of budgeted revenue from Licenses & Permits has
been collected. Licenses & Permits are budgeted to be $383,000 for the
year.

Intergovernmental:

Eighteen percent of Intergovernmental Revenue has been collected.
Intergovernmental Revenue is budgeted to be $1,629,660.

Fees:

Thirty-seven percent of the budgeted revenue for Fees has been collected.
Revenue from Fees is budgeted to be $12,006,110 for the year.

Fines and Forfeitures:

Thirty-five percent of Fines and Forfeitures have been collected.
Revenues from Fines and Forfeitures are budgeted to be $1,405,000.

Interest:

Sixty percent of Interest have been collected. Revenues from Interest are
budgeted to be $3,751,250.

Other Revenues:

Nothing of Other Revenues have been collected. Revenues from Other
Revenues are budgeted to be $37,000 for the year.

Expenditures:

Overall for the County’s budgeted funds, fourty-three percent of the expenditures
have been spent.
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Page Three
Expenditures are budgeted to be $176,429,730, which includes General Funds and
debt service funds, excluding budgeted transfers of $7,164,138 for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2025.

Please call me if you have any questions on the enclosed report.

Sincerely,

\‘”‘55/ NG A N\ C‘; LR

Fran Lee
County Auditor
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Jefferson County, Texas
Consolidated Balance Sheet
For The Month Ending February 28, 2025

Special Capital Debt Internal
General Revenue Project Service Enterprise Service
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents § 142,759,342 63,957,096 17,585,337 5,807,241 2,110,144 7,902,328 240,121,488
Receivables & Prepaids 6,896,027 14,373 - 252,441 345,473 - 7,508,314
Intergovernmental Receivables 24,319 80,785 - - - - 105,104
Due From QOther Funds 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
Inventory 948,116 18,257 - - 145,818 ~ 1,112,191
Other Assets 215,923 - - - 83,403,461 - 83,619,384
Total Assets $ 150,993,727 § 64,070,511 §  17,585337 § 6,059,682 86,004,896 7,902,328 332,616,481
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE/EQUITY
Payables 8 3,836,089 499,139 - - 786,447 3,405,949 8,521,624
Intergovernmental Payables 360 49 - - 5 - 414
Other Liabilities 6,574,210 952,505 - 253,572 5,054,130 - 12,834,417
Fund Balance/Equity 140,583,068 62,618,818 17,585,337 5,806,110 80,170,314 4,496,379 511,260,026
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balance/Equity $ 150,993,727 § 64,070,511 § 17,585,337 § 6,059,682 86,004,896 § 7,902,328 332,616,481
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Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Changes in Fund Balances
For The Month Ending February 28, 2025

1/31/2025 Month Ending February 28, 2025 2/28/2025
Transfers Prior Period

Fund Balance Receipts Disbursements In(/Out) Adjustment Fund Balance

Jury Fund $ 94,061 $ 73,851 $ 20,868  § - 3 -3 147,044
Road & Bridge Pct. 1 5,482,967 520,169 148,510 (17,411) - 5,837,215
Road & Bridge Pct. 2 1,357,180 520,168 146,016 (17,411) - 1,713,921
Road & Bridge Pct. 3 397,530 520,168 149,271 - - 768,427
Road & Bridge Pct. 4 3,474,549 520,169 149,922 - - 3,844,796
Engineering Fund 365,251 608,760 92,228 - = 881,783
Parks & Recreation 87,256 102,562 25,099 - - 164,719
General Fund 82,209,416 53,239,449 13,945,947 (12,427) - 121,490,491
Mosquito Control Fund 890,524 2,056,818 164,243 - - 2,783,099
Tobacco Settlement Fund 2,940,526 11,047 - - - 2,951,573
Total General Funds 97,299,260 58,173,161 14,842,104 (47,249) - 140,583,068
Total Special Revenue Funds 73,628,497 809,659 11,831,765 12,427 - 62,618,818
Total Capital Project Funds 17,973,054 66,336 488,875 34,822 - 17,585,337
Total Debt Service Funds 2,952,978 2,853,132 - - - 5,806,110
Total Enterprise Funds 80,875,561 365,848 1,071,095 - - 80,170,314
Total Internal Service Funds 3,553,396 3,078,475 2,135,492 - - 4,496,379
Total Balances $ 276,282,746 § 65,346,611  $ 30,369,331 $ - 5 - $ 311,260,026




Statement of Revenues by Category - Compared with Budget Allocation

Jefferson County Texas

For The Month Ending February 28, 2025

303

Cumulative Annual Unrealized Percentage
Category Actual Budget Balance Unrealized
Property Taxes  § 107,197,384  § 114,126,069 6,928,685 6.07%
Sales Taxes 13,108,649 32,700,000 19,591,351 59.91%
Licenses & Permits 127,783 383,000 255,217 66.64%
Intergovernmental 297,824 1,629,660 1,331,836 81.72%
Fees 4,476,305 12,006,100 7,529,795 62.72%
Fines & Forfeitures 491,633 1,405,000 913,367 65.01%
Interest 2,258,772 3,751,250 1,492,478 39.79%
Other Revenue - 37,000 37,000 100.00%
$ 127,958,350  $ 166,038,079 38,079,729 22.93%
Revenues by Major Category
For The Month Ending February 28, 2025
Fines & Forfeitures,
0.38%
. Fe-es, 0% Interest, 1.77%
anensg.s%lypoermnts, Othe(r) Rog\.;enue.
Sales Taxes, 10.24% S
Intergovernmental,
0.23%
Property Taxes,
83.78%
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Jefferson County, Texas

Statement of Revenues - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Month Ending February 28, 2025

October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unrealized
-December January February Total Budget Balance
Jury Fund
Current Taxes $ 32,047 § 31,203 § 68,122 § 131,372 $ 139,248 § 7,876
Delinquent Taxes 117 377 102 596 1,954 1,358
Jury Fees 10,599 4,852 5,627 21,078 65,000 43,922
Other Revenue 67,336 91 - 67,427 275,660 208,233
Road & Bridge Pct. 1
Current Taxes 216,448 210,750 460,103 887,301 940,490 53,189
Delinquent Taxes 546 1,754 472 2772 9,126 6,354
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - - - -
Auto Registration Fees - 78,386 - 78,386 667,500 589,114
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 58,060 37,521 199,457 525,000 325,543
Sales, Rentals & Services - - - - - -
Fines and Forfeitures 43,866 17,713 22,073 83,652 215,000 131,348
Road & Bridge Pct. 2
Current Taxes 216,448 210,750 460,103 887,301 940,490 53,189
Delinquent Taxes 546 1,755 471 2,772 9,126 6,354
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - - - -
Auto Registration Fees - 78,386 - 78,386 667,500 589,114
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 58,060 37,521 199,457 525,000 325,543
Sales, Rentals & Services - - - - - -
Fines and Forfeitures 43,804 17,712 22,073 83,589 215,000 131,411
Road & Bridge Pct. 3
Current Taxes 216,448 210,750 460,103 887,301 940,490 53,189
Delinquent Taxes 546 1,755 472 2,773 9,126 6,353
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - - - -
Auto Registration Fees - 78,386 - 78,386 667,500 589,114
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 58,060 37,521 199,457 525,000 325,543
Sales, Rentals & Services 2,988 - - 2,988 - (2,988)
Fines and Forfeitures 43,904 17,712 22,072 83,688 215,000 131,312
Road & Bridge Pct. 4
Current Taxes 216,448 210,750 460,103 887,301 940,490 53,189
Delinquent Taxes 546 1,755 472 2,773 9,126 6,353
Intergovernmental Revenue - - - - 11,000 11,000
Auto Registration Fees - 78,386 - 78,386 667,500 589,114
Road & Bridge Fees 103,876 58,060 37,521 199,457 525,000 325,543
Sales, Rentals & Services 14,719 1,666 - 16,385 - (16,385)
Fines and Forfeitures 44,104 17,713 22,073 83,890 215,000 131,110

Other Revenue - - " - _ _
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Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Revenues - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Month Ending February 28, 2025

October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unrealized
-December January February Total Budget Balance
Engineering Fund
Current Taxes $ 285,718 § 278,196 § 607,351 § 1,171,265 $ 1,241,478 $ 70,213
Delinquent Taxes 670 2,153 579 3,402 11,198 7,796
Licenses and Permits 1,250 390 830 2,470 4,000 1,530
Sales, Rentals & Services 500 - - 500 2,000 1,500
Parks & Recreation
Current Taxes 45,471 44,280 96,671 186,428 197,604 11,176
Delinquent Taxes 13 39 11 63 204 141
Sales, Rentals & Services 16,828 4,890 5,880 27,598 65,150 37,552
General Fund
Current Taxes 22,540,818 21,947,450 47,915,104 92,403,372 97,932,568 5,529,196
Delinquent Taxes 57,878 186,167 50,029 294,074 968,262 674,188
Sales Taxes 5,631,245 3,556,513 3,920,891 13,108,649 32,700,000 19,591,351
Other Taxes - - - - 37,000 37,000
Licenses and Permits 66,938 26,805 31,570 125,313 379,000 253,687
Intergovernmental Revenue 172,569 290 57,538 230,397 1,343,000 1,112,603
Fees of Office 786,012 304,635 284,975 1,375,622 3,518,800 2,143,178
Other Sales, Rentals & Svcs. 1,057,158 549,642 313,962 1,920,762 3,585,150 1,664,388
Fines & Forfeitures 77,216 40,629 38,969 156,814 545,000 388,186
Interest 1,008,738 524,464 626,411 2,159,613 3,600,000 1,440,387
Other Revenue - = - & - =
Mosquito Control Fund
Current Taxes 966,992 941,534 2,055,534 3,964,060 4,201,686 237,626
Delinquent Taxes 1,486 4,780 1,284 7,550 24,859 17,309
Sales, Rentals & Services - - - - - -
Tobacco Settlement Fund
Interest 29,821 12,369 11,047 53,237 80,000 26,763
Debt Service
Current Taxes 1,330,301 1,295,281 2,827,824 5,453,406 5,554,525 101,119
Delinquent Taxes 5,756 12,172 3,574 21,502 54,019 32,517
Interest 11,762 12,426 21,734 45,922 71,250 25,328
Other, Sales, Rentals & Svcs. - - - - - -
Total $ 35,682,110 $§ 31,249,947 § 61,026,293 § 127,958,350 § 166,038,079 $ 38,079,729




Statement of Expenditures - Compared With Budget Allocation - 42% of Budget Expended

Jefferson County, Texas

For The Month Ending February 28, 2025

Cumulative Annual Unencumbered Percentage
Actual Budget Balance Unencumbered
Jury Fund $ 208,280 $ 633,247 $ 424,967 67.11%
Road & Bridge Funds 4,790,928 11,174,421 6,383,493 57.13%
Engineering Fund 498,690 1,463,807 965,117 65.93%
Parks & Recreation Fund 88,573 264,728 176,155 66.54%
General Fund:
General Government 15,753,253 33,919,589 18,166,336 53.56%
Judicial 9,483,477 24,406,503 14,923,026 61.14%
Law Enforcement 33,319,722 76,673,723 43,354,001 56.54%
Education 190,222 512,699 322,477 62.90%
Health & Welfare 4,279,400 9,819,872 5,540,472 56.42%
Maintenance 1,937,143 4,434,738 2,497,595 56.32%
Other 1,075,889 2,670,459 1,594,570 59.71%
Mosquito Control Fund 3,206,516 4,533,094 1,326,578 29.26%
Tobacco Settlement 250,000 250,000 - -
Debt Service Funds 286,430 5,672,850 5,386,420 94.95%
$ 75,368,523 $ 176,429,730 $ 101,061,207 57.28%
120,000,000
100,000,000
80,000,000
60,000,000
40,000,000
20,000,000
0
Road & Bridge  General Govamt  Judicial & Law  Mosquito Control Debt Service Other
Enf
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Jury Fund

Road & Brdg Pct. 1
Road & Brdg Pct. 2
Road & Brdg Pct. 3
Road & Brdg Pct. 4
Engineering

Parks & Recreation
Tax Assessor/Coll.
Human Resources
County Auditor
County Clerk
County Judge

Risk Management

County Treasurer

Printing Department

Purchasing Department

General Services
MIS

Voter's Registration
Elections

District Attorney
District Clerk
Criminal Dist. Court
58th Dist. Court
60th Dist. Court
136th Dist. Court
172nd Dist. Court
252nd Dist. Court
279th Dist. Court
317th Dist. Court
J.P.Pct.1Pl1
J.P.Pct. 1 P12
J.P.Pct. 2

J.P. Pct. 4

J.P.Pct. 6

J.P. Pct. 7

J.P.Pct. 8

Cnty. Court at Law 1
Cnty. Court at Law 2
Cnty. Court at Law 3

Court Master

Jefferson County, Texas 307
Statement of Expenditures - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Month Ending February 28, 2025
October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unencumbered
December January February Encumbrances Total Budget Balance
$ 138,353 § 46,173 § 20,868 § 2,886 $ 208,280 § 633,247 $ 424,967
324,806 155,006 148,510 341,034 969,356 2,592,540 1,623,184
1,009,660 196,078 146,016 224,384 1,576,138 2,859,877 1,283,739
591,236 213,971 149,271 128,802 1,083,280 2,706,969 1,623,689
405,031 202,320 149,922 404,881 1,162,154 3,015,035 1,852,881
268,839 132,938 92,228 4,685 498,690 1,463,807 965,117
30,618 13,106 25,099 19,750 88,573 264,728 176,155
1,031,629 456,459 314,257 13,835 1,816,180 5,028,035 3,211,855
141,279 55,098 38,590 4,181 239,148 605,061 365,913
420,272 212,541 141,201 2,013 776,027 1,959,962 1,183,935
549,909 266,750 187,397 24,044 1,028,100 2,799,907 1,771,807
231,578 105,462 77,448 2,341 416,829 1,195,416 778,587
79,737 35,772 16,196 - 131,705 389,355 257,650
88,522 42,815 29,878 - 161,215 402,067 240,852
27,543 13,891 8,649 12,814 62,897 169,184 106,287
151,971 73,160 52,710 19,059 296,900 722,788 425,888
3,909,288 872,427 2,828,219 141,277 7,751,211 15,374,694 7,623,483
1,816,788 281,017 240,268 63,368 2,401,441 4,048,517 1,647,076
34,647 13,000 9,416 663 57,726 188,072 130,346
500,586 67,611 10,506 35,171 613,874 1,036,531 422,657
1,947,158 927,373 638,857 14,895 3,528,283 8,780,981 5,252,698
589,628 285,567 200,086 23,675 1,098,956 2,623,850 1,524,894
340,697 234,256 152,045 296 727,294 1,987,303 1,260,009
80,331 39,983 27,084 360 147,758 375,119 227,361
86,299 42,456 28,797 - 157,552 404,440 246,888
86,089 42,208 29,440 - 157,737 390,667 232,930
86,531 41,832 29,474 75 157,912 375,864 217,952
282,365 113,598 110,631 279 506,873 1,445,739 938,866
164,342 62,156 61,158 347 288,003 718,030 430,027
96,614 41,075 33,060 356 171,105 624,479 453,374
100,678 51,584 35,747 1,739 189,748 471,448 281,700
110,956 54,420 37,521 311 203,208 484,810 281,602
106,199 51,728 33,266 975 192,168 463,389 271,221
110,845 54,501 37,618 172 203,136 481,073 277937
100,239 49,761 33,457 2,591 186,048 473,782 287,734
108,803 53,378 35,576 1,733 199,490 484,086 284,596
58,825 38,797 32,560 751 130,933 470,011 339,078
134,291 66,986 39,558 33 240,868 601,838 360,970
142,931 67,038 51,025 82 261,076 798,053 536,977
198,740 91,486 68,834 43 359,103 994,914 635,811
134,623 56,799 48,273 105 239,800 609,736 369,936



Dispute Resolution
Comm. Supervision
Sheriff's Dept.
Crime Lab

Jail

Juvenile Probation
Juvenile Detention
Constable Pct. 1
Constable Pct. 2
Constable Pct. 4
Constable Pct. 6
Constable Pct. 7
Constable Pct. 8
County Morgue
Agriculture Ext.
Public Health # 1
Public Health # 2
Nurse Practitioner
Child Welfare

Env. Control

Ind. Medical Svcs.

Emergency Mgmt.

Beaumont Maintenance

Port Arthur Maint.
Mid-County Maint.
Service Center
Veteran Service
Mosquito Control
Tobacco Settlement
Debt Service Funds

Contingency

Total

$

Jefferson County, Texas 308
Statement of Expenditures - Compared With Budget Allocation
For The Month Ending February 28, 2025
October 2024 Cumulative Annual Unencumbered
December January February Encumbrances Total Budget Balance
72,496 § 37,877 § 23,343 § 2,710 136,426 $ 346,891 $ 210,465
1,164 520 1,036 4,976 7,696 19,319 11,623
3,878,145 1,891,760 1,292,878 557,921 7,620,704 18,752,320 11,131,616
356,908 181,827 116,765 16,281 671,781 2,070,108 1,398,327
9,838,641 4,174,697 3,248,847 3,906,330 21,168,515 45,361,610 24,193,095
407,077 197,907 132,703 3,205 740,892 1,979,891 1,238,999
503,166 255,529 190,547 118,895 1,068,137 2,768,767 1,700,630
203,195 102,268 67,115 5,217 377,795 926,671 548,876
125,130 62,391 42,478 57,877 287,876 629,900 342,024
129,386 64,939 30,962 708 225,995 582,711 356,716
140,231 78,793 54,170 3,221 276,415 714,709 438,294
134,764 66,372 45,702 277 247,115 663,551 416,436
133,899 64,629 42,269 501 241,298 604,166 362,868
98,767 60,386 226,350 - 385,503 1,600,000 1,214,497
100,989 50,205 35,069 3,959 190,222 512,699 322,477
374,739 153,680 111,475 889 640,783 1,694,767 1,053,984
340,262 134,285 98,031 560 573,138 1,545,265 972,127
94,325 44,695 30,591 10,423 180,034 437,956 257,922
47,500 - - - 47,500 95,000 47,500
100,963 47,520 34,279 85 182,847 522,705 339,858
282,603 82,465 1,954,380 223,260 2,542,708 5,218,971 2,676,263
56,789 33,238 22,264 99 112,390 305,208 192,818
500,043 196,420 210,674 455,180 1,362,317 3,159,506 1,797,189
196,520 88,865 67,774 101,910 455,069 994,121 539,052
38,003 20,315 18,663 42,776 119,757 281,111 161,354
270,765 175,084 105,234 403,211 954,294 1,544,331 590,037
63,254 34,434 23,546 361 121,595 415,299 293,704
333,925 1,628,331 164,243 1,080,017 3,206,516 4,533,094 1,326,578
250,000 - - - 250,000 250,000 -
- 286,430 - - 286,430 5,672,850 5,386,420
- - - - - 710,829 710,829
35,893,125 $ 16,138,439 $ 14,842,104 $ 8,494,855 75,368,523 § 176,429,730 $ 101,061,207




Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Bonded Indebtedness
For The Three Months Ending February 28, 2025

Beginning
Amount 2024-2025 Requirements
[ssue Outstanding Principal Interest Fees Total
2012 Refunding Bonds b 4,465,000 § 4,465,000 § 133950 § 2,500 $ 4,601,450
2019 Certificates of Obligation 12,640,000 635,000 433,900 2,500 1,071,400
§ 17,105,000 $ 5,100,000 $ 567,850 $ 5,000 § 5,672,850

$

$

Ending
2024-2025 Payments Amount
Principal Interest Fees Total Outstanding
$ 66,975 § 1,400 § 68375 % 4,465,000
216,950 1,105 218,055 12,640,000
h 283,925 § 2,505 % 286,430 § 17,105,000

309



Jefferson County, Texas
Statement of Transfers In and Out
For The Month Ending February 28, 2025

Fund

Transfers In

120
120
230
233
237
239
241
245
257
263
312
550
876

General Fund

General Fund

Commuity Supervision Fund
Mentally Impaired Offender
Community Corrections Program
Drug Diversion Program
Sheriff Department Grants
Crime Victim's Clearing
Auto Theft Grant

VAWA Fund

CETRZ Grant

SETEC Fund
Sheriff-Spindletop Grant

(a) Budgeted Transfer
(b) Grant Match

10

78,000
169,963
2,939
61,502
18,013
6,987
34,822
680,382
32,228

$1,084,836

(a)
(a)
(b)
(b)
(b)
(b)
(b)
(a)
(b)

310

Transfers Out

680,382 (a)
156,491 (b)
247,963 (a)

$1,084,836
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PGM GVCOMW2
NANVE
JURY FUND
DAWN DONUTS
CHAPMAN VENDI NG
ROAD & BRI DGE PCT. #1
ENTERGY
CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT
M&D SUPPLY
ACE | VAGEVEAR
ADVANCE AUTO PARTS
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
ODP BUSI NESS SCLUTI ONS, LLC
ROAD & BRI DGE PCT. #2

AUDILET TRACTOR SALES
Cl TY OF NEDERLAND
CURETON_& SON

EASTEX RUBBER & GASKET
SETZER HARDWARE, | NC.
ACE | MAGEWEAR
SMART' S TRUCK & TRAILER, | NC
W JEFFERSON COUNTY M W D.
BUVPER TO BUMPER
CENTERPO NT _ENERGY RESOURCES CORP
RUTTY & MORRI S LI C

EW VWAVE_VELDI NG TECHNOLOGY

N
CY-FAIR TI RE
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC

ROAD & BRI DGE PCT. # 3
SPIDLEY& SPI DLE
TEX%PREU|LDING SERVI CE
EAST TEXAS PARTS AND EQUI PMENT
LLY AUTO PARTS
T PELTI ER JR
| NDUSTRI AL ELECTRONI CS  SUPP
ROAD & BRI DGE PCT. #4
éBLE FASTENER, | NC.

| NTAS, | NC.
UNLTED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
Q REILLY AUTO PARTS

GULE_COAST

FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
ENG NEERI NG FUND

VER|I ZON W RELESS

FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTI ONS, LLC
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ms
e
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)]

ENTERGY

R TTER @ HOVE

SETZER HARDWARE. | NC.
LOWE S HOVE CENTERS, | NC.
G-L ENVI RONVENTAL
GENERAL FUND

TAX OFFI CE

Pl TNEY BOWAES | NC

ACE_| MAGEWEAR
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
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PAGE: 1
CHECK NO 312 TOTAL
526792
526826
95. 30**
526689
526693
526697
526709
526783
526817
526833
1, 869. 26**
526670
526679
526684
526686
526707
526709
526711
526719
526748
526749
526758
526763
526809
526817
4,775. 79**
526664
526689
526712
526780
526786
526804
526812
526837
10, 461. 38**
526662
526678
526738
526804
526811
526817
1,988. 17**
526736
526817
526833
418. 86**
526689
526704
526707
526742
526854
1, 653. 28**
526701
526709
526738


https://1,653.28
https://1,988.17
https://10,461.38
https://4,775.79
https://1,869.26
https://2,712.00
https://1,401.30
https://9,378.41
https://3,002.59
https://1,033.06

PGV GMCOMW2 DATE PAGE: 2

03-25- 2025
NANVE ANMOUNT CHECK NO. 313  TOTAL
ROCHESTER ARMORED CAR CO | NC 378. 40 526771
DESI GN CHUTE LLC 1, 050. 63 526796
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 396. 00 526817
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTIONS, LLC 433. 66 526833 & 633 98"
COUNTY HUVAN RESOURCES ’ '
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 1. 38 526738
BAPTI_ ST PHYSI Cl AN NETWORK 152. 00 526740
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTIONS, LLC 73. 47 526833 305 gE*
AUDI TOR S OFFI CE '
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 45.79 526738
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 211. 00 526817
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTIONS, LLC 195. 36 526833 45> 1%
COUNTY CLERK '
CASH_ADVANCE ACCOUNT 506. 44 526693
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 257. 95 526738
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 409. 00 526817
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTIONS, LLC 122. 35 526833 L 295 74
COUNTY JUDGE ’ '
REG NA BELL 500. 00 526663
| Al RON DOADEN, JR. 500. 00 526685
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 4.01 526738
ROCKY LAVDERM LK 500. 00 526743
ROCKY LAWDERM LK 1, 350. 00 526744
KI VBERLY PHELAN, P. C. 450. 00 526750
HARVEY L WARREN | I i 1, 800. 00 526767
[ | NDSAY LAW FIRM  PLLC 1. 500. 00 526773
SNI DER_LAW FI RM PLLC 500. 00 526785
LAW OFFI CE OF J SCOTT FREDERI CK 500. 00 526789
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817
BRADLEY LAW FI RM 500. 00 526821
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTI ONS, LLC 340. 48 526833 8 543, 49"
Rl SK MANAGENMENT ’ '
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 2.50 526738
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817 101, 50*
COUNTY TREASURER '
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 34.29 526738 34, 29
PURCHASI NG DEPARTNMENT '
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 2.07 526738
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817 101, 07+
GENERAL SERVI CES '
CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT 30. 00 526693
SPI NDLETOP NHVR 38, 220. 33 526696
CHAPVAN VENDI NG 10. 44 526826
38, 260. 77*
DATA PROCESSI NG
CDW COVPUTER CENTERS, | NC. 347. 34 526720
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817
AMAZON CAP| TAL SERVI CES 190. 00 526839
ANG E COLLI ER 462. 79 526844 1 099 13*
VOTERS REQ STRATI ON DEPT ’ '
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 579. 58 526738
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTI ONS, LLC 30. 21 526833 609. 79*

ELECTI ONS DEPARTMENT


https://1,099.13
https://38,260.77
https://8,543.49
https://1,295.74
https://5,633.98

PGM GVCOMW2
NANVE

UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
FUNCTION 4 LLC - VELLS FARGO FI NANC

DI STRI CT ATTORNEY

Kl RKSEY' S SPRI NT._PRI NTI NG

UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
ODP_BUSI NESS SOLUTI ONS, LLC

KYLE GASPER

DI STRI CT CLERK

UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC

CRIM NAL DI STRI CT COURT

FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
ODP BUSI NESS SCLUTI ONS, LLC

58TH DI STRI CT COURT
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WVELLS FARGO FI NANC
60TH DI STRI CT COURT
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WVELLS FARGO FI NANC
136TH DI STRI CT COURT

UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
LEXI S- NEXI S

172ND DI STRI CT COURT
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WVELLS FARGO FI NANC
252ND DI STRI CT COURT

MATUSKA LAW FI RM
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WVELLS FARGO FI NANC

279TH DI STRI CT COURT
NATHAN REYNOQL DS, JR
RANDY SHELTON
GLEN M CROCKER
THOVEON _REUTERS- WEST
SHELANDER LAW COFFI CE
THE LAW OFFI CE OF CHRI STY L CAUTHEN
317TH DI STRI CT COURT
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
JUSTI CE COURT-PCT 1 PL 1
UNIL TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
THOVISON ERS- WEST
COUNTI ES
ON LC - VWEILLS FARGO FI NANC
AVAZON CAPI TAL SERVI CES
JUSTI CE COURT-PCT 1 PL 2

CASH_ADVANCE ACCOUNT
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE

JUSTI CE COURT- PCT 2
ODP BUSI NESS SCLUTI ONS, LLC
JUSTI CE COURT- PCT 6

DATE
03-25-2025

AMOUNT
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PAGE
CHECK NOQO 314

526738

526817
111

526694

526738

526817

526833

526855
1, 153.

526738

526817
552.

526817

526833
479.

526817
99.

526817
99.

526738

526739
242.

526817
99.

526787

526817
1, 066.

526703

526708

526741

526784

526827

526846
3, 747.

526817
99.

526738

526784

526800

526817

526839
789.

526693

526738
397.

526833
151.

3
TOTAL

. 70*

17*

47*

43*

00*

00*

25*

00*

50*

45*

00*

81*

81~

09*


https://3,747.45
https://1,066.50
https://1,153.17

PGV GMCOMW2 DATE PAGE:

03-25- 2025
NANVE ANMOUNT CHECK NO. 315  TOTAL
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 40. 44 526738
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817
DI RECTV, LLC 99. 24 526829 938, 68"
JUSTI CE OF PEACE PCT. 8 '
Kl RKSEY' S SPRI NT PRI NTI NG 95. 60 526694
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817 194. 60
COUNTY COURT AT LAW NO. 1 '
ALl SA RAUVAKER, CSR 129. 65 526668
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 4.83 526738
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817 933 48"
COUNTY COURT AT LAWNO 2 '
DONAL D BOUDREAUX 1, 125. 00 526674
VARVA _PROVO 850. 00 526702
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 11.73 526738
LANGSTON_ADANS 350. 00 526745
JOEL \\EBB VAZEPEZ 425. 00 526747
LAURI E_PERQZZ 1, 175. 00 526766
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817 4. 035, 73*
COUNTY COURT AT LAWNO 3 ’ '
THOVAS J. BURBANK PC 300. 00 526675
MARVA PROVO 400. 00 526702
700. 00*
COURT MASTER
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 2.76 526738
LAWRENCE E THORNE || 2,194. 43 526769
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817 5 296. 19*
COVMUNI TY SUPERVI SI ON ’ '
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 396. 00 526817 396. 00*
SHERI FF' S DEPARTNENT '
CDW _COVPUTER CENTERS, | NC. 1, 940. 80 526720
UNI TED STATES POSTAL' SERVI CE 2’ 678. 85 526738
ANl MAL CARE E8UIPNENT & SERVI CES 425. 98 526803
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 495. 00 526817
TRI DENTCARE 170. 00 526852
5, 710. 63*
CRl NE LABORATORY
Fl SHER SCl ENTI FI C 368. 67 526687
SOUTHEAST _TEXAS WATER 329. 80 526713
MAN CHEM CAL COVPANY 250. 00 526768
VETTLER- DO RAINI N LLC 893. 25 526801
CTITON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTIONS, LLC 159. 20 526833
G OBAL LLC 80. 00 526840
SAFARI LAND LLC 81. 14 526861
2,261. 06*
JAIL - NO 2
JOHNSTONE SUPPLY 279. 84 526665
BOB BARKER CO., | NC. 989. 28 526671
BELL _FENCE MFG_ CO. 175. 50 526673
COASTAL VELDI NG SUPPLY | NC 785. 89 526682
CASH_ADVANCE ACCOUNT 615. 01 526693
KOWERCI AL KI TCHENS 694. 44 526695
V&D SUPPLY 53. 82 526697
OVERHEAD DOOR. CO. 1, 104. 50 526699
SCOOTER S LAVWMOVERS 170. 68 526706
SHERW N- W LLI AMS 2, 668. 55 526710
LOAE' S HOVE CENTERS, | NC. 760. 31 526742
TEXAS GAS SERVI CE 1,128. 29 526746


https://2,261.06
https://5,710.63
https://2,296.19
https://4,035.73

PGM GVCOMW2
NANVE

| NDUSTRI AL & COVIVERCI AL MECHANI CAL
THOVEON REUTERS- WEST

GALLS LLC

Cl NTAS CORPORATI ON

RRHEALTH PLLC

US CORRECTI ONS LLC
TRI NI TY SERVI CES GROUP | NC
FUNCT| ON 4 WELLS FARGO FI NANC

ON(?PB?& SERVI CES
MASSEY SERVI CES | NC
JUVENI LE PROBATI ON DEPT.
TEXAS PROBATI ON_ASSOCI ATl ON
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
FUNCTION 4 LLC - VELLS FARGO FI NANC
JUVENI LE DETENTI ON HOME

CENTERPO NT ENERGY RESOURCES CORP
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC

CONSTABLE PCT 1

UNI TED STATES_POSTAL SERVI CE

TEXAS ASSOCI ATI ON OF COUNTI ES
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
CONSTABLE- PCT 2

CASH_ADVANCE ACCOUNT
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTI ONS, LLC

CONSTABLE- PCT 4

DI SH NETWORK
ODP BUSI NESS SCLUTI ONS, LLC

CONSTABLE- PCT 6

CASH_ADVANCE ACCOUNT

UNI TED_STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
TND WORKWEAR CO LLC

ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTIONS, LLC
TEXAS POLICE TRAINERS LLC
CONSTABLE PCT. 7

CASH ADVANCE ACCOUNT
CONSTABLE PCT. 8
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC -
COUNTY MORGUE
FORENSI C MEDI CAL
AGRI CULTURE EXTENSI ON SVC

FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
HEALTH AND VWELFARE NO. 1

CALVARY MORTUARY

CLAYBAR FUNERAL HQVE, | NC.

UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
CARLETTE SULL| VAN

THOVEON REUTERS- V\EST

FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
EZEA D EDE

VELLS FARGO FI NANC

DATE
03-25-2025

AMOUNT
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PAGE:
TOTAL

NO. 316

G1010101010101010710101
NINININININININNNN
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0000000000000~~~
U1RWR P OOW0OW0O0000
LWWO~NIOONWORN

806, 930.

830.

806.

397.

619.

102.

1, 461.

526693

176.

526817

99.

526807

84, 360.

526817

211.

1010101010101
NONININININN
DHOYHIOIOOO)
0C000~I~N~NOOY
0000~
CO~I-RN00O~

29*

97*

38*

27*

81*

27*

74*

00*

00*

00*

00*


https://84,360.00
https://1,461.74
https://806,930.29

PGM GVCOMW2
NANVE

TEXAS MEDI CAL LI ABI LI TY TRUST
MUNROS DRY CLEANERS

HEALTH AND WELFARE NO. 2

CLAYBAR FUNERAL HOVE, | NC.

CARLETTE SULLI VAN

THOVEON REUTERS- WVEST

FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
EZEA D EDE NMD

TEXAS MEDI CAL LI ABI LI TY TRUST

NURSE PRACTI TI ONER

SERVET MUHI TTI N SATI R

ENVI RONVENTAL CONTROL

FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
| NDI GENT MEDI CAL SERVI CES

LOCAL GOVERNVMVENT SOLUTI ONS LP
KING S PHARVACY BEAUMONT

MAI NTENANCE- BEAUMONT

JOHNSTONE SUPPLY
ERNANDEZ OFFI CE SUPPLY, | NC.

H

M&D SUPPLY
ACE_| MAGEVEAR
AT&T
AT&T

T &T

A
EIRETRO JPROTECTICN SYSTEMS, | NC.

D

z
—
e

AT P
MASSEY SERVI CES | NC
MAI NTENANCE- PORT ARTHUR
COASTAL VELDI NG SUPPLY | NC
NOACK LOCKSM TH
SANI TARY SUPPLY. | NC.
SCOOTER S "LAVWNMOWERS
S HOVE CENTERS, | NC
BELT SOURCE
MUELL ER
FUNCTION 4 LI C - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
PARKER S BUI LDI NG SUPPLY

MAI NTENANCE- M D COUNTY

Cl TY OF NEDERLAND

Rl TTER @ HOVE

SANI TARY SUPPLY, | NC.

SETZER HARDWARE. | NC.

CENTERPO NT ENERGY RESOURCES CORP

SERVI CE CENTER

SPI DLE & SPI DLE

. K. CHEVROLET CO,

PH LPOTT MOICRS, | N
ER Cﬁv T

o
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JEF
JEF
JEF
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PAGE: 6

NO 317 TOTAL
0
7

5, 950. 83*

1, 000. 00*

99. 00*

4, 314. 96*

16, 766. 15*

2,683. 90*

1, 602. 20*


https://1,602.20
https://2,683.90
https://16,766.15
https://4,314.96
https://1,000.00
https://5,950.83
https://6,955.98

PGV GMCOMW2 DATE PAGE: 7
03-25-2025
NO. 318 TOTAL
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TRUE TEMP Al R CONDI TI ONI NG & HEATI N
VETERANS SERVI CE

UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE 1.
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99.

(o2}

16, 980. 53*
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MOSQUI TO CONTROL FUND
Cl TY OF NEDERLAN
W W GRAILNGER, | NC.

ACE | NVAGEWEAR

CENTERPO NT. ENERGY RESOURCES CORP
MARTI N PRODUCT SALES LLC

MDIEX OL LP

NORTHERN TOOL AND EQUI PMENT

LJA ENG NEERI NG | NC

MARTI N MARI ETTA MATERI ALS

REAGAN CARTER

ODP BUSI NESS SCOLUTI ONS, LLC
AERO_PERFORMANCE

PARKER S BUI LDl NG SUPPLY

TEXAS MATERI ALS

J.C. FAM LY TREATMENT

MARY BEVI L
MARY BEVI L

LAW LI BRARY FUND

THOVEON REUTERS- WEST 52
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 9

CWP /GAF ERI C PREV
LANGFORD COVMUNI TY MGMI' SERVI CES | N 15, 223. 91 526847
15, 223. 91**
EMPG GRANT
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 275. 00 526817
GRANT A STATE Al D
YOUTH ADVOCATE PROGRANS | NC 2,207. 45 526759 2 207, 45+
COVMUNI TY SUPERVI SI ON FND ' '

TDCJ- TLDD CONFERENCE FUND
U(I\Iil(%ED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE

J
FUNCTION 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTI ONS, LLC

COVUNI TY CORRECTI ONS PRG

FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817
DRUG DI VERSI ON PROGRAM

FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC 99. 00 526817
SHERI FF' S TRAI NI NG GRANT
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https://1,079.67
https://2,207.45
https://15,223.91
https://1,329.00
https://36,987.30
https://1,034,060.59
https://16,980.53

PGM GVCOMW2

NANVE
EAN SERVI CES LLC
COUNTY CLK RECORDS ARCHI V
KOFI LE TECHNOLOG ES | NC
COUNTY RECORDS MANAGEMENT
UNI TED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
CASH_ADVANCE ACCOUNT
UNLTED STATES POSTAL SERVI CE
Dl SH NETWORK
LA RUE
GRINNELL COVPUTERS
FERGU%EH ENTERPRI SES | NC

AT&T P
ODP BUSI NESS SOLUTI ONS, LLC
THE PROFESSI ONAL FOOTBALL CAPI TOL

DI STRI CT CLK RECORDS MGMVT
FUNCTI ON 4 LLC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
Al RPORT FUND

TEEX
BEAUMONT TRACTOR COMPANY
EITY OF NEDERLAND

NTERGY
TRANTEX, - | NC.
CENTERPOI NT ENERGY_ RESOURCES CORP

| NTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER - BMI
Al FILTER SERVI CE_COVPANY

| NDUSTR & COVIVERCI AL VECHANI CAL
SCUTHEAST TEXAS PARTS AND EQUI PMENT
TI TAN AVI ATI ON FUELS

FUNCTION 4 LIC - WELLS FARGO FI NANC
CHARTER COMMUNI CATI ONS
ODP_BUSI NESS SQLUTI ONS, LLC
RALPH S | NDUSTRI AL ELECTRCNICS SUPP
SE TX EMP. BENEFI T POCL

SECURI AN LI FE | NSURANCE COVPANY

MADI SON NATI ONAL LI FE | NSURANCE COM
RET| REE F| RST
LIVINITI LLC
SETEC FUND

| NDUSTRI AL & COVMVERCI AL MECHANI CAL
TEXAS MATERI ALS

WORKER S COVPENSATI ON FD
MCGRI FF | NSURANCE SERVI CES, | NC
LANGUAGE ACCESS FUND

ANl TA U SEPEDA
RUBEN ZAPATA

ARPA CORONAVI RUS RECOVERY
MVEEKER MUNI Cl PAL WATER DI STRI CT
T1 DAL BASI N GOVERNVENT CONSUL
LEGACY COVMUNL TY DEVELOPMENT CORP
AJ PLANTS TO GO

BRI C/ FMA GRANT

DATE
03-25-2025

AMOUNT
850. 74

280, 858. 06
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PAGE: 8
CHECK NO 319 TOTAL
526788
850. 74**
526778
280, 858. 06**
526738
2.76**
526693
526738
526754
926757
526795
526798
526822
526833
526862
9, 034. 15**
526817
198. 00**
526667
526672
526679
526690
526721
526749
526765
926771
526782
526786
526805
526817
526830
526833
526837
53, 127. 92**
526848
526849
526850
526858
492, 681. 33**
526782
526859
3,471. 38**
526835
14, 799. 00**
526770
526841
1, 800. 00**
526669
526819
526834
526856

329, 815. 68**


https://329,815.68
https://1,800.00
https://14,799.00
https://3,471.38
https://492,681.33
https://53,127.92
https://9,034.15
https://280,858.06

PGV GMCOMW2 DATE PAGE: 9

03-25- 2025
NANVE ANMOUNT CHECK NO 320  TOTAL
TI DAL BASI N GOVERNVENT CONSULTI NG 16, 972. 50 526819 16. 972 50**
GLO DI SASTER RECOVERY ' '
FREESE AND NI CHOLS, | NC 3, 445. 28 526828
3, 445, 28**
GUARDI ANSHI P FEE
WELLS PEYTON & PARTAIN, LLP 750. 00 526666 250, 00* *
APPELLATE JUDI Cl AL SYSTEM '
OTH COURT OF APPEALS 2,070. 29 526761
2,070. 29**
MARI NE DI VI SI ON
ClLTY OF NEDERLAND 26. 20 526679
TRl - CON, [ NC. 14, 167. 60 526718
DI SH NETWORK 340. 14 526753
VECTOR SECURI TY 54. 52 526799
AARON HOWEL L 225. 00 526845
14, 813. 46* *
SHERI FF - COVWM SSARY
BOB_BARKER CO., | NC. 1, 599. 20 526671
AVAZON_CAPI| TAL' SERVI CES 2’ 206. 35 526839
EPOXY FLOORS OF TEXAS I NC 11’ 180. 00 526860 14 085, 55+ *
2,352 923, 74***


https://2,352,923.74
https://14,985.55
https://14,813.46
https://2,070.29
https://3,445.28
https://16,972.50
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Memo

To: Commissioner’s Court
From: Justice of the Peace Pct. 8, Kalan Gardner Sr.
Date: March 20, 2025

Re: Transfer between accounts

We are kindly requesting a transfer of $700.00 from account 120-2049-412-40-52 to account
120-2049-412-50-62. This transfer is intended to support the upcoming Judges’ school.

Please let us know if additional details or documentation are required.

Thank you for your assistance in this matter.

%ﬁy@

kalan Gar ner Sr.
Justice of the Peace
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© PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P.
401 West State Highway 6
o Waco, Texas 76710
—- 254.772.4901 | pbhcpa.com

Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners Court
Jefferson County, Texas

We have audited the financial statements of Jefferson County, Texas (the “County”), as of and for the
year ended September 30, 2024, and have issued our report thereon dated March 20, 2025. Professional
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated July 10, 2024, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to form and express opinions about whether the financial statements that have been
prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements
does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal controls over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the County solely for the purpose of
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However,
we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to
you.

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and our network firms have
complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

As a part of the engagement, we assisted in preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal and
state awards and related notes of the County in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and Texas Grant Management
Standards (TxGMS), based on information provided by you. These non-audit services do not constitute an
audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services were not conducted in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

TEXAS | Waco | Temple | Hillsboro | Houston
NEW MEXICO | Albuquerque GAQC Member

OFFICE LOCATIONS @ AICPA
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In order to reduce threats to our independence caused by these nonattest services to an acceptable
level, we applied certain safeguards. These safeguards include a concurring review, which is a review of the
financial statements and key audit areas which is performed by an individual who has adequate experience in
audits of local governments, but who was not involved in this audit engagement. The concurring reviewer
serves as an evaluator of the performance of the engagement team and the nonattest services provided.

In addition, management assumed responsibility for the schedule of expenditures of federal and state
awards and related notes and any other nonaudit services we provided. Management acknowledged, in the
management representation letter, our assistance with the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of
federal and state awards and related notes that these items were reviewed and approved prior to their
issuance and accepted responsibility for them. Further, the nonaudit services were overseen by an individual
within management that has the suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluated the adequacy and results
of the services; and accepted responsibility for them.

Significant Risks Considered

We have identified the following significant risks during our audit process, which required special audit
consideration. None of these risks resulted in a significant matter, finding or issue.

Significant Risk Identified Reasoning for Special Audit Consideration

Management override of controls The risk that members of management could circumvent well-
designed and effective internal controls.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the County is included in the notes to the financial statements. There
have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or their
application during fiscal year 2024.

No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform
you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates
are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the
possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly fromm management’s current judgments. The
most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are:

Management’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts for property tax and adjudicated fines
receivables is based on a percentage of the receivable balance depending on the age of the receivable
developed from historical collections. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop
the allowance in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

Management’s estimate of the net pension and total OPEB liabilities are based on actuarial
assumptions which are determined by the demographics of the plan and future projections that the
actuary makes based on historical information of the plan and the investment market. We evaluated
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the net pension and total OPEB liabilities and
determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole and
in relation to the applicable opinion units.
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Management’s estimate of the accumulated depreciation is based on the related estimated useful lives
of capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the
County’s financial statements relate to the net pension and total OPEB liabilities. The disclosures in the
financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of
the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate
them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate
the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions,
account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable opinion unit.
Management has corrected all identified misstatements.

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. None
of the misstatements identified by us as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were
material, either individual or in aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole or applicable opinion
units.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, which could be significant to the County’s financial statements or the auditor’'s report. No such
disagreements arose during the course of the audit.
Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’'s Report

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstance that
affect the form and content of our auditor’s report. No such circumstances exist.
Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the
management representation letter dated March 20, 2025.
Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and

accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with
other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.
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Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the County, we generally discuss a variety of
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating and regulatory
conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the County’s auditors.

Other Information Included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information, whether
financial or nonfinancial, included in the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, does not extend
beyond the information identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to
corroborate such other information. However, in accordance with such standards, we have read the other
information and considered whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
financial statements, or if the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information that we believe is a material
misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its
manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation,
appearing in the financial statements.

New Accounting Guidance

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued the following statements which
become effective in subsequent fiscal years.

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences — The objective of this Statement is to better meet
the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance for
compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement guidance
under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. This Statement will become
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2023, and the impact has not yet been
determined.

GASB Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures - This Statement requires governments to disclose
essential information about risks related to vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints.
Concentrations and constraints may limit a government’s ability to acquire resources or control spending. The
requirements of Statement No. 102 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2024, and the
impact has not yet been determined.

GASB Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements — The objective of this Statement
is to improve key components of the financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing
information that is essential for decision making and assessing a government’s accountability and address
certain application issues. The requirements for Statement No. 103 are effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2025, and the impact has not yet been determined.

GASB Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets - The primary objective of this
Statement is to provide users of government financial statements with essential information about certain
types of capital assets. This Statement requires certain types of capital assets to be presented separately in
the note disclosures, including right-to-use assets related to leases, Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements, and public-private or public-public partnerships. Other intangible assets are also
required to be presented separately by major class. Additional disclosures have also been required for capital
assets held for sale. This Statement will become effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2025,
and the impact has not yet been determined.
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Restrictions on Use

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Commissioners’ Court, and
management of the County and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Tatrllo, Broum < WAL, LLf

Waco, Texas
March 20, 2025
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© PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners’ Court
Jefferson County, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson County, Texas (the “County”), as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March
20, 2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

OFFICE LOCATIONS @ AICPA
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

?a,%LMO,%.M < WL, LLf

Waco, Texas
March 20, 2025
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© PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners’ Court
Jefferson County, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Jefferson County, Texas’ (the “County”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for
the year ended September 30, 2024. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended September 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards);
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our
responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,

implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the County’s federal

programs.
3
OFFICE LOCATIONS ‘(‘\
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on the County’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS,
Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance always detect material noncompliance when it
exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the County’s compliance with the requirements of
each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the County’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the County’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in
internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon, dated March 20, 2025, which contained unmodified opinions on
those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform
Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

Tarillo, Broum < WAL, LLf

Waco, Texas
March 20, 2025
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Assistance Pass
Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ Listing Grantor's Through
Program Title Number ID Number Expenditures Expenditures
FEDERAL PROGRAMS
U.S. Department of Commerce
Direct Programs:
Hurricane Harvey Disaster Grants 11.022 NA19NMF022006 $ 168,581 $ -
Total Direct Programs 168,581 -
Total U.S. Department of Commerce 168,581 -
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through the Texas Department of Agriculture:
Summer Food Service Program (Child Nutrition Cluster) 10.559 NT4XL1YGLGCS 18,419 -
Total Passed through the Texas Department of Agriculture 18,419 -
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 18,419 -
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through the Texas General Land Office:
Community Development Block Grant/States Program - Harvey Infrastructure 14.228 20-065-121-C408 1,233,117 -
Community Development Block Grant/States Program - Harvey Home Buy Out 14.228 20-065-121-C242 404,155 -
Subtotal ALN 14.228 1,637,272 -
Total Passed through the Texas General Land Office 1,637,272 -
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development 1,637,272 -
U.S. Department of the Interior
Passed through the Texas Historical Commission
Emergency Supplemental Historic Preservation Fund 15.957 TX-02-10026 24,119 -
Total Passed through the Texas Historical Commission 24,119 -
Total U.S. Department of the Interior 24,119 -
U.S. Department of Justice
Passed through the Office of the Governor, Criminal
Justice Division:
Crime Victim Assistance - Crime Victim's Clearinghouse 16.575 21032-12 92,123 -
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 13466-26 80,000 -
Total Passed through the Office of the Governor,
Criminal Justice Division 172,123 -
Passed through the City of Beaumont:
Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program 16.738 15-PBJA-23-GG-03839-JAGX 20,233 -
Total Passed through the City of Beaumont 20,233 -
Direct Programs:
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program (SCAAP) 16.606 15PBJA-23-RR-05917-SCAA 66,179 -
Coverdell Forensic Science Improvement 16.742 44061-02 35,703 -
Equitable Sharing Funds 16.922 N/A 12,444 -
Total Direct Programs 114,326 -
Total U.S. Department of Justice 306,682 -
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through Federal Aviation Administration:
COVID-19 Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-48-0018-037-2020 5,776,407 -
Taxiway Alpha Rehabilitation & Reallignment 20.106 3-48-0018-039-2022 2,328,359 -
Subtotal ALN 20.106 8,104,766 -
Total Passed through Federal Aviation Administration 8,104,766 -
Passed through the Texas Department of Transportation:
Step Impaired Driver Mobilization (Highway Safety Cluster) 20.600  2024-Jeffersoncoso-S-1YG-00117 23,900 -
Total Passed Through the Texas Department of
Transportation 23,900 -
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 8,128,666 -

The accompanying notes are an
integral part of this schedule. 6
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Assistance Pass
Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ Listing Grantor's Through
Program Title Number ID Number Expenditures Expenditures
FEDERAL PROGRAMS (continued)
U.S. Department Of Treasury
Direct Programs:
Equitable Sharing Funds 21.016 N/A $ 5452 % -
COVID-19 Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund 21.032 LATCF-1021 108,918 -
COVID-19 American Recovery Funds 21.027 SLT-0883 9,345,947 5,754,687
Total Direct Programs 9,460,317 5,754,687
Total U.S. Department Of Treasury 9,460,317 5,754,687
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Passed through Food and Drug Administration:
NEHA Grant 93.103 G-OATR-202210-02800 1,391 -
NEHA Grant 93.103 G-OAME-202210-02808 5,571 -
NEHA Grant 93.103 G-BDEV2-202310-05032 5,843 -
Subtotal ALN 93.103 12,805 -
Total Passed Through Food and Drug Administration 12,805 -
Passed through the Texas Department of Family & Protective Services:
Child Welfare Services 93.658 HHS000285000032 5,943 -
Legal Services 93.658 HHS000285100022 123,031 -
Subtotal ALN 93.658 128,974 -
Total Passed Through Texas Department of Family &
Protective Services 128,974 -
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 141,779 -
Office of the National Drug Control Policy
Direct Program:
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area Program 95.001 G23HN0029A 11,977 -
Total Direct Program 11,977 -
Total Office of the National Drug Control Policy 11,977 -
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Direct Programs:
2021 Port Security Grant 97.056 EMW-2021-PU-00238 225,110 -
2022 Port Security Grant 97.056 EMW-2022-PU-00335 17,026 N
2023 Port Security Grant 97.056 EMW-2023-PU-00314 192,625 -
Subtotal ALN 97.056 434,761 -
Total Direct Programs 434,761 -
Passed through the Texas Office of the Governor:
Homeland Security Grant Program - LETPA Sustaining 97.067 47686-01 37,742 -
Homeland Security Grant Program - LETPA Sustaining 97.067 47689-01 39,818 -
Subtotal ALN 97.067 77,560 -
Total Passed Through Texas Office of the Governor 77,560 -
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 512,321 -
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 20,410,133 $5,754,687
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

1. Special Revenue Funds are used to account for resources restricted to, or designated for, specific purposes
by a grantor. Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources used for the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities. Federal and state financial assistance generally is accounted for in a
Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Funds, Enterprise Funds or the General Fund. Accounting
standards allow grants used for the construction or acquisition of capital assets to be accounted for in the
Capital Projects Funds. Generally, unused balances are returned to the grantor at the close of specified
project periods.

2. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. The governmental fund types and private purpose trust fund types are accounted for using a
current financial resources measurement focus. Most federal grant funds were accounted for in the Special
Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, or the General Fund, components of the governmental fund type.
With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the
balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for the governmental funds. This basis of accounting
recognizes revenue in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual, i.e., both
measurable and available, and expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred,
if measurable, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt, which is recognized when due,
and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are recognized when the obligations
are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The County also accounts for
grants in its enterprise funds. The accrual basis of accounting is used for enterprise funds.

Federal grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the provisions
of the grant, and, accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as unearned revenues
until earned.

3. The period of availability for federal grant funds for the purpose of liquidation of outstanding obligations
made on or before the ending date of the federal project period, extended 30 days beyond the federal
project period ending date, in accordance with provisions in Section H.

4. The County did not elect to apply the de minimis indirect cost rate.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements:
Type of auditors' report issued

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance
for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section
200.516(a) of Uniform Guidance

Identification of major programs:
Assistance Listing Number(s)

14.228
21.027

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B federal and state programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee
for federal single audit?

Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which Are

Required to be Reported in Accordance With

Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards

None

Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal or State Awards

None

Unmodified

None
None reported
None

None
None reported

Unmodified

None

Name of Federal/State Program
or Cluster:

Community Development Block Grant
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds - (COVID-19)

$750,000

Yes
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FRAN LEE
COUNTY AUDITOR
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

None

10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners Court
Jefferson County, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Jefferson County, Texas (the “"County”) as of and for the year ended September
30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 20, 2025.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
County’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Tatrdlo Browm < HUL, LLf

Waco, Texas
March 20, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
TEXAS GRANT MANAGEMENT STANDARDS

Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners’ Court
Jefferson County, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program
Opinion on Each Major State program

We have audited Jefferson County, Texas’ (the “County”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement and the
Texas Grant Management Standards (TxGMS) that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
County’s major state programs for the year ended September 30, 2024. The County’s major state programs are
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the year
ended September 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major State program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards); and the
audit requirements of TxGMS. Our responsibilities under those standards and TxGMS are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the County and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,

implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the County’s state

programs.
3
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on
the County’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS,
Government Auditing Standards and TxGMS will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk
of not detecting material honcompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about County’s compliance with the requirements of each major
state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards and TxGMS, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the County’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the County’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with TxGMS, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
programs on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state programs will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state programs that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
TxGMS. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards Required by Texas Grant Management
Standards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements.
We issued our report thereon, dated March 20, 2025, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state awards
is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by TxGMS and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state awards is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Patillo, Broumn 4 HUL, LLE

Waco, Texas
March 20, 2025
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

State Total Passed
Grantors State Through to
State Grantor/Program Title Number Expenditures Subrecipients

Office of the Attorney General
Direct program:
Statewide Automated Vicitms Notification Service C-01128
Total Office of the Attorney General

Texas Department of Motor Vehicles

Direct programs:
Texas Automobile Theft Prevention Authority 608-25-1230100
Texas Automobile Theft Prevention Authority 608-24-1230100

Total Texas Department of Motor Vehicles

Texas Department of Transportation
Direct programs:
Routine Airport Maintenance Grant M2021BMPT

Total Texas Veterans Commission

Texas Department of Criminal Justice

Direct programs:
Family Intervention Recovery Service Treatment (FIRST) 18690-18
Family Intervention Recovery Service Treatment (FIRST) 18690-19

Total Texas Department of Criminal Justice

Office of the Governor
Passed through Texas Division of Emergency Management:
Hurricane Harvey Assistance PA-06-TX-4332

Total Passed through Texas Division of
Emergency Management

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts

Direct programs:
Rural Prosecutor's Office Salary Assistance Program IA-0000000192
Rural Law Enforcement Salary Assistance Program IA-0000000417

Total Texas Department of Criminal Justice

Texas Indigent Defense Commission
Direct programs:
Indigent Defense Formula Grant N/A
Total Texas Indigent Defense Commission

Total Expenditures of State Awards

The accompanying notes are an
integral part of this schedule. 6

$ 30,285 $ -
30,285 -

7,105 -
73,104 -
80,209 -

100,000 -
100,000 -

39,575 -
3,073 -
42,648 -

17,584 -

17,584 -

275,000 -
500,000 -
775,000 -

112,734 -
112,734 -

$ 1,158,460 $ -
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF STATE AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the state grant activity
of the County under programs of the State of Texas for the year ended September 30, 2024. The information
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Texas Grant Management Standards.
Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the County, it is not intended and
does not present the financial position, changes in net position/fund balance or cash flows of the County.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Jefferson County, Texas, accounts for state funding using the modified accrual method of accounting. This
basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual,
i.e., both measurable and available, and expenditures in the accounting period in which the liability is
incurred, if measurable, except for certain compensated absences, claims and judgments, which are
recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.
Equipment purchases for grant purposes are treated as expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of State
Awards. State grant funds are considered to be earned to the extent of qualifying expenditures made under
the provisions of the grant. Accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as unearned
revenue until earned. Generally, unused balances are returned to the grantor at the close of specified project
periods.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements:
Type of auditors' report issued

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

State Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance
for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Texas
Grant Management Standards

Identification of major programs:
State Grant Number

IA-0000000192 / IA-0000000417

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs

Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which Are

Required to be Reported in Accordance With

Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards

None
Findings and Questioned Costs for State Awards
None

Unmodified

No
None reported
No

No
None reported

Unmodified

No

Name of State Program

Rural Prosecutors Office Salary
Assistance/Rural Law Enforcement Grant

$750,000
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FRAN LEE
COUNTY AUDITOR
(409) 835-8500

1149 PEARL ST — 7™ FLOOR
BEAUMONT, TEXAS 77701

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

None
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With
Requirements Applicable to the Passenger Facility Charge
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance

Schedule of Expenditures
of Passenger Facility Charges

September 30, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners Court
Jefferson County, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson County,
Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise Jefferson County, Texas’ basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 20, 2025.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Jefferson County,
Texas' internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for determining the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Jefferson
County, Texas' internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Jefferson
County, Texas’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Jefferson County, Texas’ financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Jefferson County, Texas’ internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Tardlo Browm < HUL, LLf

Waco, Texas
March 20, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER FACILITY
CHARGE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Honorable County Judge
and Commissioners’ Court
Jefferson County, Texas

Report on Compliance for the Passenger Facility Charge Program

Opinion

We have audited the compliance of Jefferson County, Texas with the compliance requirements
described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation
Administration (Guide), for its passenger facility charge program for the year ended September 30, 2024.
Compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to its passenger facility charge program
is the responsibility of Jefferson County, Texas’ management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
Jefferson County, Texas’ compliance based on our audit.

In our opinion, Jefferson County, Texas, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended September
30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the PFC Audit Guide. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Jefferson County, Texas and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the passenger facility
charge program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Jefferson County, Texas’ compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Jefferson County, Texas’
passenger facility charge program.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on
Jefferson County, Texas’ compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government
Auditing Standards, and the PFC Audit Guide will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of
not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the
report on compliance about Jefferson County, Texas’ compliance with the requirements of the passenger facility
charge program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the PFC Audit Guide,
we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding Jefferson County, Texas’ compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of Jefferson County, Texas’ internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the PFC Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control
over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent, or detect and correct, honcompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility
charge program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger facility charge program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of the passenger facility charge program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the PFC Audit Guide.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson County, Texas as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Jefferson County, Texas’ basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon, dated March 20, 2025,
which contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose
of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of passenger facility charges is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the PFC Audit Guide and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of passenger facility charges is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Commissioners Court, management
and the Federal Aviation Administration and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Pastilllo, Brawn & HUL, L.LE

Waco, Texas
March 20, 2025
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES AUDIT SUMMARY

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Type of report issued on PFC financial statements

Type of report on PFC compliance

Quarterly Revenue and Disbursements reconcile with submitted
quarterly reports.

PFC Revenue and Interest is accurately reported on FAA Form 5100-127.

The Public Agency maintains a separate financial accounting record
for each application.

Funds disbursed were for PFC eligible items as identified in the FAA
Decision to pay only for the allowable costs of the projects.

Monthly carrier receipts were reconciled with quarterly carrier reports.
PFC revenues were maintained in a separate interest-bearing capital
account or commingled only with other interest-bearing airport capital
funds.

Serving carriers were notified of PFC program actions/changes
approved by the FAA.

Quarterly Reports were transmitted (or available via website) to
remitting carriers.

The Public Agency is in compliance with Assurances 5, 6, 7 and 8.
Project administration is carried out in accordance with Assurance 10.

For those public agencies with excess revenue, a plan for the use of
this revenue has been submitted to the FAA for review and
concurrence.

v" Unqualified

v" Unqualified

v Yes

v Yes

4 Yes

v Yes

v Yes

v Yes

4 Yes

v Yes

v Yes

4 Yes
Yes

v N/A

Qualified

Qualified

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No
No

No

No
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Findings and Questioned Costs

None



Revenue
Passenger Facility Collections
Interest

Application 07-06-C-00-CBPT
I - Airfield Equipment
II - Apron "F" Rehabilitation
III - Airfield Pavement Joint Rehab
IV - Runway 12/30 Rehab
V - Airfield Drianage Improvements
VII - Administrative Costs
VIII - Pavement Maintenance Plan

Application 11-07-C-00-CBPT
I - Planning - Road, WHA, Geom
II - Apron Rehab - Phase I
I1I - Airfield Sweeper
V - Airfield Pavement Marking
VI - AOA Security Improvement
VII - Apron Rehab - Phase II
VIII - Administrative Costs

Application 18-08-C-00-BPT
I - Runway 12-30 Design and Recon
II - 2015 PFC Application and Admin Cost
III - Taxiway D- Design and Recon
IV - Update Airport Master Plan
V - Runway Safety Area
VI - Runway 16-34 Rehab
VII - ARFF Equipment

Total Disbursements

Excess (Deficiency)
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

REVENUE AND DISBURSEMENT SCHEDULE
OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2023 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Fiscal Year 2024
Program October - January - April - July - 2024 Program
Total December March June September Total Total

$ 1,872,728 $ 37,512 $ 31,622 $ 37,474 $ 33,590 $ 140,198 $ 2,012,926

58,217 7,820 8,094 8,710 9,117 33,741 91,958
1,930,945 45,332 39,716 46,184 42,707 173,939 2,104,884
36,317 - - - - - 36,317
28,746 - - - - - 28,746
9,458 - - - - - 9,458
14,751 - - - - - 14,751
9,228 - - - - - 9,228
25,675 - - - - - 25,675
5,717 - - - - - 5,717
129,892 - - - - - 129,892
16,537 - - - - - 16,537
29,528 - - - - - 29,528
10,431 - - - - - 10,431
205,368 - - - - - 205,368
44,713 - - - - - 44,713
129,484 - - - - - 129,484
29,828 - - - - - 29,828
465,889 - - - - - 465,889
376,752 - - - - - 376,752
19,000 - - - - - 19,000
262,624 - - - - - 262,624
15,900 - - - - - 15,900
16,391 - - - - - 16,391
31,267 - - - - - 31,267
22,698 - - - - - 22,698
744,632 - - - - - 744,632
1,340,413 - - - - - 1,340,413

$ 590,532 $ 45,332 $ 39,716 $ 46,184 $ 42,707 $ 173,939 $ 764,471

See accompanying note to Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges includes the Passenger Facility
Charge (PFC) activity of the Southeast Texas Regional Airport of Jefferson County, Texas, (the County). The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 14 Code of Federal
Regulations Part 158.67 and the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies issued by the
Federal Aviation Administration. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements.

The County reports expenditures on the Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges collected and
expended as reimbursements (to the extent of PFC’s actually collected) of costs incurred by the County during
the current and prior fiscal years.
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AMENDED TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN JEFFERSON COUNTY AND COASTAL
CAVERNS 1, L.P. FOR PROPERTY LOCATED
IN THE COASTAL CAVERNS REINVESTMENT ZONE

1. Jefferson County, Texas ("County™) and Coastal Caverns 1, L.P. ("Owner"), (together, the "Parties")
entered into Tax Abatement Agreements ("Agreements') on October 16, 2017 (attached hereto as
Exhibit "A") with respect to the abatement of certain ad valorem property taxes on Phases 1-5 of new
facilities (the "Project") to be constructed by OWNER, in the Coastal Caverns Reinvestment Zone
which was originally adopted by Jefferson County on the 7" day of August, 2017.

2. On September 20, 2022 Owner notified the County that Coastal Caverns 1, L.P. had merged with
Energy Transfer Spindletop LLC and that, as the surviving entity, Energy Transfer Spindletop would
assume the role of Owner, including all of the assets, contractual rights privileges and obligations of
Coastal Caverns 1, L.P.

3. Owner is requesting that the County modify the Agreement to delay the beginning date of tax
abatement percentages agreed to and the real interests and obligations outlined in the abatement
agreement.

4. The Parties acknowledge that circumstances beyond the control of Owner, specifically difficulties
occasioned by the occurrence of natural disasters and COVJD- 19, delayed the commencement of
construction of Phase 3 and the Owner will suffer the loss of the intended benefits of the original
abatement agreements and, for these reasons, the parties agree that the Tax Abatement Agreement for
Phases 3-5 of project shall be amended only with respect to:

Article 4: Term of Abatement
Avrticle 4 is hereby amended to provide that:

Should OWNER not begin the construction of Phase 3 by December 31, 2025, this AGREEMENT shall
be null and void as to Phases 3, 4 and 5. Year 1 of the Abatement Period for Phase 3 shall be 2028.

Should OWNER not begin the construction of Phase 4 by December 31, 2026, this AGREEMENT
shall be null and void as to Phases 4 and 5. Year 1 of the Abatement Period for Phase 4 shall be 2029.

Should OWNER not begin the construction of Phase 5 by December 31, 2027, this AGREEMENT shall
be null and void as to Phase 5. Year 1 of the Abatement Period for Phase 5 shall be 2030.
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The OWNER'S obligation to create four new full-time jobs and retain not less than twenty (20) pre-existing
full-time jobs will use the employee headcount as of January 1, 2027 as the starting point, adjusted to
reflect anticipated completion date of Phase 3.

5. The Parties agree that OWNER will certify to the County the completion of each phase and the County
will request that the Jefferson Central Appraisal District establish discrete tax accounts for each phase to
facilitate administration of the tax abatement.

6. The Parties further acknowledge and agree that all other terms and conditions of the original Abatement
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless amended by written agreement.

Signed this 25" day of IMane ,2025

COUNTY:

paTE___ 2| 2512<




EXHIBIT "B"

PHASE 3,4 AND 5 ABATEMENT

SCHEDULE
PHASE 3 PHASE4 | PHASES
2028 100 i
2029 100 100
2030 100 100 100
2031 80 100 100
2032 80 80 100
2033 80 80 80
2034 60 80 80
2035 60 60 80
2036 60 60
2037 60

371
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AMENDED TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN JEFFERSON COUNTY AND COASTAI
CAVERNS 1. L.P. FOR PROPERTY LOCATED
IN'THE COASTAL CAVERNS REINVESTMENT ZONE

I. Jefferson County, Texas ("County™) and Coastal Caverns 1, L.P. ("Owner"). (togcther, the "Parties™)
entered into Tax Abatement Agreements ("Agreements™) on October 2. 2017 (attached hereto as Exhibit
"A") with respect to the abatement of certain ad valorem property taxes on Phases 1-5 of new facilities
(the "Project") to be constructed by OWNER, in the Coastal Caverns Reinvestment Zone which was
originally adopted by Jefferson County on the 7th day of August, 2017,

2. On September 20. 2022 Owner notified the County that Coastal Caverns 1. L..P. had merged with Encrgy
Transfer Spindletop LL.C and that, as the surviving entity. Energy Transfer Spindletop would assume the
role of Owner, including all of the assets, contractual rights privileges and obligations of Coastal Caverns 1.
L.P.

3. Owner has requested that the County modify the Agreement to start of construction date on Phases 3 — 5
of the Project, which are the subject of a separate abatement agreement. but which start date has
implications for the tax abatement period for Phases 1 and 2.

4. It was and continues to be the intent of the Parties that all of the rights. duties and obligations granted or
imposed by the Agreement with respect 1o the tax abatement reside with and are the property of the owner
of the Project.

5. Paragraph 5 of the Agreement relating 10 Owner Representations/Obligations is amended as follows:

5.c. Construct both phases of the Project with an cstimated investment of

$111 million. If COMPANY has not commenced construction on phase two within [8 months of
completion of phase one, COUNTY reserves the right to adjust the tax abatement schedule for the
remaining years of this Agreement to reflect a schedule that is consistent with the investment and job
creation. Further, COMPANY has represented that the phases subject to this Agreement arc the first
two of five phases of this Project (see project description, below). If COMPANY completes phascs
one and two, but fails to commence construction on phase three by December 31, 2025, the tax
abatement schedule applicable 1o this Agreement will be reduced as reflected in the Tax Abatement
Schedule. below. (See tax abatement schedufe in original agreement, )

6. The Parties further acknowledge and agree that all other terms and conditions of the original Abatement
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless amended by written agreement.

Signed this IDK‘ day of DWM . 2024

COUNTY:

Rebecca Otterson, Property Tax Director
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KATE CARROLL Mailing » P.O. Box 2112 * Beaumont, Texas 77704-2112
Jefferson County Physical Address *1149 Pearl « Beaumont, Texas 77701
Tax Assessor Collector Phone: 409-835-8516 * Fax: 409-835-8589

Chief Deputy Operations — Michelle Farnie * Chief Deputy Finance — Cindy Savant, P.C.C.

Tax Refund Determination

Taxpayer name: Koch Brady Craig Sr

Address: 9025 Glen Meadow Beaumont, TX 77706

Account Number: 231218-000/005500-00000

Amount of Refund: $7,041.55

Reason: The taxpayer mailed in a payment in the amount of $7,041.55 on 01/31/25,
which paid off the account in full. The taxpayer mailed in a subsequent
payment (posted on 02/05/25) in the amount of $23,996.82, which included
payment stubs for multiple accounts including the previously paid account.
Subsequent payment resulted in an overpayment.

Upon review, by the Tax Office and Auditor’s department, both agreed for placement of an agenda
item on the Commissioners’ Court agenda for approval as required by Tax Code Section 31.11.

Cfé Counid 3o/

Kate Carroll Date
Jefferson County Tax Assessor-Collector

%@;/ d—a S//8/2S

©Gunty Auditor employee Date
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DUPLICATE TAX RECEIPT

Certified Owner:

375

KATE CARROLL

JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR
P.0. BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US

(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW.JEFFCOTAX.COM

KOCH BRADY CRAIG SR

9025 GLEN MEADOW

BEAUMONT , TX 77706-3942

Deposit No: MO0205202536A
Validation No: 900000072577021
Account No:  231218-000/005500-00000
Operator Code: TCOMPTON
Year Tax Unit Name Tax Value
2024 Jefferson County 96,765
2024 Beaumont Isd 96,765
2024 City Of Beaumont 96,765
2024 Port Of Beaumont 96,765
2024 Drainage District #6 96,765
2024 Sabine-Neches Nav. Dist. 96,765
2024 Overpay 0
p P
Check Number(s):
4072

Exemptions on this property:

PAYER:

KOCH BRADY CRAIG
7090 GLEN WILLOW DR
BEAUMONT , TX 77706

Legal Description:

C WILLIAMS-ABS 59 TR75-B SP-6 H
WILLIAMS 114D SP-2

Parcel Address: 255 BERRY RD
Legal Acres: 0.6979
Remit Seq No: 59536689
Receipt Date: (01/31/2025
Deposit Date: 02/05/2025
Print Date: 02/26/2025
NO.: 119674
Tax Rate Levy Paid P&I  Coll Fee Paid Total
Per/100
0.357000 34545 0.00 0.00 34545
0.964910 933.70 0.00 0.00 933.70
0.659663 638.32 0.00 0.00 638.32
0.068253 66.05 0.00 0.00 66.05
0.184917 178.93 0.00 0.00 178.93
0.088000 85.15 0.00 0.00 85.15
0.000000 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,041.55
§2,247.60 $0.00 $0.00 $9,289.15
PAYMENT TYPE:
Checks:
Total Applied:
Change Paid:
ACCOUNT PAID IN FULL

-_——<

Page 1 of 1
28.1.12
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BRADY CRAIG KOCH 4072
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DUPLICATE TAX RECEIPT

Certified Owner:

377

KATE CARROLL

JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR

P.0. BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US

(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW.JEFFCOTAX.COM

KOCH BRADY C SR & TESSA

9025 GLEN MEADOW
BEAUMONT , TX 77706-3942

Deposit No: MO131202502A
Validation No: 900000072419303

Account No:

Operator Code: KWHYNOT

Year

2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024

> ——

Tax Unit Name

Jefferson County
Beaumont Isd

City Of Beaumont

Port Of Beaumaont
Drainage District #6
Sabine-Neches Nav. Dist.

Check Number(s):

3901

Exemptions on this property:

PAYER:

HEARN DANIEL L
TESSA B HEARN

P OBOX 20118
BEAUMONT , TX 77720

017250-200/076800-00000

Tax Value

303,157
303,157
303,157
303,157
303,157
303,157

Legal Description:

DOWLEN WEST UNIT 21 L24 B34

Parcel Address:

7090 GLEN WILLOW DR

Legal Acres: 0.3945
Remit Seq No: 59326712
Receipt Date: 01/31/2025
Deposit Date: 01/31/2025
Print Date: 03/12/2025
NO.: 29938
Tax Rate Levy Paid P&1 Coll Fee Paid Total
Per/100
0.357000 1,082.27 0.00 0.00 1,082.27
0.964910 2,925.19 0.00 0.00 2,925.19
0.659663 1,999.81 0.00 0.00 1,999.81
0.068253 206.91 0.00 0.00 206.91
0.184917 560.59 0.00 0.00 560.59
0.088000 266.78 0.00 0.00 266.78
$7,041.55 $0.00 $0.00 $7,041.55
V4
PAYMENT TYPE: —-—<
Checks: $7,041.55
Total Applied: $7,041.55
Change Paid: $0.00
ACCOUNT PAID IN FULL
Page 3 of 3

28.1.12
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MANlEL L, HEARN 3901
TESSA B HEARN 37-65/1119 7959

PO BOX 20118 s e
BEAUMONT, TX 77720 [-29-D

Date

N = iy $ et .53

_Setialnrd pap B/C’“' l% VALY crry ¥

WELLS ‘Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

TR020 WFB, N.A AN Sighis Resarveo.

- — o ——
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KATE CARROLL Mailing + P.O. Box 2112 « Beaumont, Texas 77704-2112
Jefferson County Physical Address «1149 Pearl » Beaumont, Texas 77701
Tax Assessor Collector Phone: 409-835-8516 * Fax: 409-835-8589

Chief Deputy Operations — Michelle Farnie * Chief Deputy Finance — Cindy Savant, P.C.C.

Tax Refund Determination

Taxpayer name: Froghead Industries LP

Address: 7965 Eastex Frwy Beaumont, TX 77708

Account Number: 300017-000/052970-00000

Amount of Refund:  $3,000.00

Reason: The taxpayer mailed a payment of $4000.00 on 01/06/25. The taxpayer mailed
a subsequent payment of $3562.16 (posted on 02/07/25), which paid account in
full and overpaid the account by $3000.00.

Upon review, by the Tax Office and Auditor’s department, both agreed for placement of an agenda
item on the Commissioners” Court agenda for approval as required by Tax Code Section 31.11.

%C«Mu. 2//2/2

Kate Carroll Date’ d
Jefferson County Tax Assessor-Collector

‘ /gm—-« ?3//5/4.3

unty Auditor employee Date
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DUPLICATE TAX RECEIPT

Certified Owner:

381

KATE CARROLL

JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR

P.0.BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US

(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW JEFFCOTAX.COM

NBE ENTERPRISES LL.C
7965 EASTEX FWY
BEAUMONT , TX 77708-2404

Deposit No: MBO1062025A
Validation No: 130

Account No:

Operator Code: DONNAS

Year

2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024

>

300017-000/052970-00000

Tax Unit Name Tax Value
Jefferson County 626,938
Beaumont Isd 626,938
City Of Beaumont 626,938
Port Of Beaumont 626,938
Drainage District #6 626,938
Sabine-Neches Nav. Dist. 626,938

Check Number(s):

008635

Exemptions on this property:

PAYER:

NBE ENTERPRISES LLC
7965 EASTEX FWY
BEAUMONT , TX 77708-2404

Tax Rate
Per/100
0.357000

0.964910
0.659663
0.068253
0.184917
0.088000

Legal Description:

PL RS4 TR 295 REPLAT ABST 17 W B DYCHES

1.3030 AC
Parcel Address: 7965 EASTEX FWY
Legal Acres: 1.3030
Remit Seq No: 58453278
Receipt Date: (01/06/2025
Deposit Date: 01/06/2025
Print Date: 03/11/2025
NO.: 408812
Levy Paid P&l Coll Fee Paid Tatal
614.79 0.00 0.00 614.79
1,661.67 0.00 0.00 1,661.67
1,136.01 0.00 0.00 1,136.01
117.54 0.00 0.00 117.54
318.45 0.00 0.00 318.45
151.54 0.00 0.00 151.54
$4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
PAYMENT TYPE: ——<
Checks: $4,000.00
Total Applied: $4,000.00
Change Paid: $0.00
ACCOUNT PAID IN FULL
Page 1 of 1

28.1.12
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P‘z ’ Stellar Bank 8635

Froghead Industries L.P. 88-1108/1131
7965 Eastex Frwy
Beaumont, TX 77708
409-842-5085

12/31/2024 8

8

&

PAY TO THE P
ORDER OF Jefferson County Tax Assessor & Collector | $ **4,000.00 a
o

F’Our ThOusand and 00/100*iQrIiWQ’Wi‘l*'******i*****r*'i\‘r“‘!k‘i"'Al‘illr\'-ik#*uﬁ**"#ﬁ*ihtiii*i*i*i‘h'}**‘)Q‘l(***'ﬁ’*‘l‘lt******t*ii;'li.’i**l DOLLARS E

Jefferson County Tax Assessor & Collecter
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DUPLICATE TAX RECEIPT

JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR

383

KATE CARROLL

P.O. BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US
(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW.JEFFCOTAX.COM

Certified Owner:

NBE ENTERPRISES LLC
7965 EASTEX FWY
BEAUMONT , TX 77708-2404

Deposit No: M0207202502A
Validation No: 900000072638742

Account No:  300017-000/052970-00000

Operator Code: KWHYNOT

Year Tax Unit Name Tax Value
2024 Jefferson County 626,938
2024 Beaumont Isd 626,938
2024 City Of Beaumont 626,938
2024 Port Of Beaumont 626,938
2024 Drainage District #6 626,938
2024 Sabine-Neches Nav. Dist. 626,938
2024 Overpay 0
-
Check Number(s):
8681

Exemptions on this property:

PAYER:

FROGHEAD INDUSTRIES LP
7965 EASTEX FWY
BEAUMONT , TX 77708

Legal Description:

PL RS4 TR 295 REPLAT ABST 17 W B DYCHES

1.3030 AC

Parcel Address:

Legal Acres: 1.3030

Remit Seq No: 59641017
Receipt Date: 01/31/2025
Deposit Date: 02/07/2025

Print Date: 02/26/2025

7965 EASTEX FWY

NO.: 408812
Tax Rate Levy Paid P&I Coll Fee Paid Total
Per/100
0.357000 86.40 0.00 0.00 86.40
0.964910 233,54 0.00 0.00 233.54
0.659663 159.65 0.00 0.00 159.65
0.068253 16.52 0.00 0.00 16.52
0.184917 44,75 0.00 0.00 44,75
0.088000 21.30 0.00 0.00 21.30
0.000000 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00
$562.16 $0.00 50.00 $3,562.16
PAYMENT TYPE: —_
Checks: $3.562.16
Total Applied: $3,562.16
Change Paid: $0.00
ACCOUNT PAID IN FULL
Page 1 of1

28.1.12
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. Stellar Bank 868 1
Froghead Industries L.P. 88-1198/1131
7965 Eastex Frwy E
-\h\\ Beaumont, TX 77708 ﬁ o (, , ‘
409-842-5085 SR TR 1/30/2025 L
£
PAY TO THE 2
ORDER OF_____Jefferson County Tax Assessor & Collector I $ **3,562.16 @
Q
b
Th[‘P@ Thn“qgnd FiVP Hundrpd SIX{y-TWD End 18’10nti**1*******!w*&*&**ti—*i***iiﬁ*********il*******iw*****tt**ﬁi&tttitii DOl—l—ARS i

Jefferson County Tax Assessor & Collector

PID-408812 _

P.O. Box 2112 'B j{a
Leno  Beaumont, TX 77704-2112 i W E/‘ié@u}' o
S5 L e S 1 Sae ! N

&' AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE ™
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KATE CARROLL Mailing « P.O. Box 2112 » Beaumont, Texas 77704-2112
Jefferson County Physical Address *1149 Pearl * Beaumont, Texas 77701
Tax Assessor Collector Phone: 409-835-8516 » Fax: 409-835-8589

Chief Deputy Operations — Michelle Farnie * Chief Deputy Finance — Cindy Savant, P.C.C.

Tax Refund Determination

Taxpayer name: Martin Product Sales
Account Number: 506199-000/000020-00000
Amount of Refund: $3,681.94

Reason: Taxpayer paid incorrect amount. They paid double the tax levy amount for
2024.

Upon review, by the Tax Office and Auditor’s department, both agreed for placement of an agenda
item on the Commissioners’ Court agenda for approval as required by Tax Code Section 31.11.

<t Gt 3/, /2

Khte Carroll Date
Jefferson County Tax Assessor-Collector

//m— f%/z&ou 242
ounty Auditor employee Date r 7
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DUPLICATE TAX RECEIPT

387

KATE

:..-

CARROLL

JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR
P.0. BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US
(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW.JEFFCOTAX.COM

Certified Owner: Legal Description:
INVENTORY PRILLED SUL NE:!
MARTIN PRODUCT SALES SULFUR @ NECHES
PROPERTY TAX DEPT INDUSTRIAL PARK 1 GULF STATES RD
OPERTY 506199-000-000020-00000 005784 R USE:
PO BOX 191 L2
KILGORE , TX 75663-0191 Parcel Address:
Legal Acres: 0.0000
Deposit No: M0204202502A Remit_ Seq No: 59484000
Validation No: 900000072538479 Receipt Date: 01/31/2025
Account No: 506199-000/000020-00000 De][:o.sn gate: gigiﬁgg;
Operator Code: KWHYNOT Koy Mate:
NO.: 254896
Year Tax Unit Name Tax Value  Tax Rate Levy Paid P&I  Coll Fee Paid Total
Per/100
2024 Jefferson County 249,089  0.357000 889.25 0.00 0.00 889.25
2024 Beaumont Isd 249,089 0.964910 2,403.48 0.00 0.00 2,403.48
2024 Port Of Beaumont 249,089 0.068253 170.01 0.00 0.00 170.01
2024 Sabine-Neches Nav, Dist. 249,089 0.088000 219.20 0.00 0.00 219.20
2024 Overpay 0 0.000000 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,681.94
$3,681.94 $0.00 $0.00 $7,363.88
o PAYMENT TYPE: —_—<
Check Number(s): S B W FANT S XL
101612 Checks: $7,363.88
Exemptions on this property:
Total Applied: $7,363.88
Change Paid: $0.00
ACCOUNT PAID IN FULL
PAYER:
K.E. ANDREWS & CO
AD VALOREM TAX SERVICE
2424 RIDGE ROAD
ROCKWALL ,TX 75087
Page 1 of 1

28.1.12
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AD VAL OREM TAR SERVICE T e Sk oy v
a Texas 01/29/25 101612
2424 RIDGE ROAD _ (469)208-1594 b o
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 QL
4 2521410 u@ Www -
PAY  One Hundred Twenly Five Thousand Seven Hundred Thidy Four and 31/100 Dollars " ) ) " 7$1257734°31

tothe  Jefferson County Tax AIC

OF BEAUMONT, TX 77704-2112

Property Taxes Paid For MARTIN PRODUCT SALES LLC

MEMO

~PO BOX 2112 - ee - - -

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

l A
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KATE CARROLL Mailing * P.O. Box 2112 « Beaumont, Texas 77704-2112
Jefferson County Physical Address *1149 Pearl - Beaumont, Texas 77701
Tax Assessor Collector Phone: 409-835-8516 » Fax: 409-835-8589

Chief Deputy Operations — Michelle Farnie * Chief Deputy Finance — Cindy Savant, P.C.C.

Tax Refund Determination

Taxpayer name: Thompson Amanda R

Address: 12737 W Port Arthur Rd. Beaumont, TX 77705

Account Number: 300258-000/000900-00000

Amount of Refund:  $7,367.60

Reason: The taxpayer made a duplicate credit card payment on 01/31/25 in the amount
0f $7,367.60 through Certified Payments. Refund will be requested through
Certified Payments, including convenience fees.

Upon review, by the Tax Office and Auditor’s department, both agreed for placement of an agenda
item on the Commissioners’ Court agenda for approval as required by Tax Code Section 31.11.

%@W 2/ 12/ 5

Kate Carroll Date
Jefferson County Tax Assessor-Collector

%ﬁ; AW,; /v,
ounty Auditor employee Date / /7
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KATE CARROLL

S ot

JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR
P.0. BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US

(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW.JEFFCOTAX.COM

Certified Owner:

THOMPSON AMANDA R
7744 GAYLE
NEDERLAND , TX 77627

Deposit No: CC02042025
Validation No: 608
Account No:  300258-000/000900-00000

Operator Code: WCARR

Year

2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024

Tax Unit Name

Jefferson County
Nederland 1.S.D.

Port Of Beaumont
Drainage District #7
Sabine-Neches Nav, Dist,
Emer Srv Dist #2

Credit Card Authorization No: 0

Exemptions on this property:

PAYER:

CRAIG THOMPSON
7744 GAYLE RD
NEDERLAND, TX 77627

Tax Value

411,580
411,580
411,580
411,580
411,580
411,580

Legal Description:
ABST 258 TR9 T & NO 3 3.8187AC

Parcel Address: 12737 W PORT ARTHUR RD
Legal Acres: 3.8187

Remit Seq No: 59483697
Receipt Date: (1/31/2025
Deposit Date: 02/04/2025

Print Date: 02/24/2025

NO.: 139604
Tax Rate Levy Paid P&I  Coll Fee Paid Total
Per/100

0.357000 1,469.34 0.00 0.00 1,469.34

0.966900 3.979.57 0.00 0.00 3,979.57

0.068253 280.92 0.00 0.00 280.92

0.297632 1,224.99 0.00 0.00 1,224.99

0.088000 362.19 0.00 0.00 362.19

0.012291 50.59 0.00 0.00 50.59

$7,367.60 $0.00 $0.00 $7,367.60

PAYMENT TYPE: -
Credit Cards: $7,367.60
Total Applied: $7,367.60
Change Paid: 30.00
ACCOUNT PAID IN FULL

Page 1 of 1
28.1.12



Certified Payments - Payment Detail

PAYMENT DETAIL

2228888 // )efferson County, Texas Tax Office

Payment Detail
Payment ID
Date/Time
Amount

Conv. Fee

Flow

Billing Information
First Name

Middle Name

Last Name

Name Suffix

Address

City

State

Postal Code
Country
Telephone

Email Address

100318882771

1/31/2025 5:07:40 PM

$7,367.60

$165.77

Payment

CRAIG

THOMPSON

7744 GAYLE RD

NEDERLAND

https://reports.certifiedpaym ents.net/BureauLogin/Reports/PaymentD...

392

REPORT CREATED: 03/11/2025 01:26:20 PM /

Credit Card Payment
Card Type

Auth Response
Origination

Qutcome

Card Number (last 4)

Property Information
Payment Type
Property Tax Account Number
Client

Description

Owner Ref

Reference

First Name

Middle Name

Last Name

Name Suffix

Address

City

State

Postal Code
Country

Telephone

(B

American Express
-
Internet

Complete

30025800000090000000
88000000

Property Tax

0

6880271

CRAIG
THOMPSON
7744 GAYLE RD
NEDERLAND

T

77627

Copyright ® 2025 Accelerated Card Company, LLC, d/b/a Certified Payments. All rights reserved. Accelerated Card Company, LLC is a registered
ISO of Fifth Third Bank, National Association, Cincinnati, OH.

| of 1

v24.11.13

3/11/2025, 1:26 PM



DUPLICATE TAX RECEIPT

Certified Owner:

2 poturwond
' l

KATE CARROLL

JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR

P.0. BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US

(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW.JEFFCOTAX.COM

THOMPSON AMANDA R
7744 GAYLE
NEDERLAND, TX 77627

Deposit No: CC02042025
Validation No: 615

Account No: 300258-000/000900-00000

Operator Code: WCARR

Year Tax Unit Name

2024 Overpay

Credit Card Authorization No: 0

Exemptions on this property:

PAYER:

CRAIG THOMPSON
7744 GAYLE RD
NEDERLAND , TX 77627

Tax Value

0

Tax Rate
Per/100

0.000000

Levy Paid

0.00

Legal Description:

ABST258 TR 9T & NO 3 3.8187AC

Parcel Address:
Legal Acres:

Remit Seq No:
Receipt Date:
Deposit Date:

Print Date:

NO.:

12737 W PORT ARTHUR RD

3.8187

59483704

01/31/2025
02/04/2025
02/24/2025

139604

P&I Coll Fee Paid

0.00

0.00

Total

7,367.60

$0.00

$0.00

PAYMENT TYPE:

Credit Cards:

Total Applied:

Change Paid:

50.00

$7,367.60

-

$7,367.60

$7,367.60

$0.00

Page 1 of 1
28.1.12



2/24/25, 3:45 PM

PAYMENT DETAIL

2228888 // lefferson County, Texas Tax Office

Certified Payments - Payment Detail

394

REPORT CREATED: 02/24/2025 03:45:42 PM

Payment Detail Credit Card Payment
Payment ID 100318885463 Card Type American Express
Date/Time 1/31/2025 5:13:47 PM Auth Response 25
Amount $7,367.60 Origination Internet
Conv, Fee $165.77 Outcome Complete
Flow Payment Card Number (last 4) ‘
Billing Information Property Information
First Name CRAIG Payment Type
Middle Name Property Tax Account Number 30025800000090000000
Last Name THOMPSON Client 88000000
Name Suffix Description Property Tax
Address 7744 GAYLE RD Owner Ref 0
Reference 6880637
City NEDERLAND First Name CRAIG
State X Middle Name "
Postal Code 77627 Last Name THOMPSON
Country UNITED STATES Name Suffix
Telephone ‘ Address 7744 GAYLE RD
Email Address —
City NEDERLAND
State TX
Postal Code 77627
Country UNITED STATES
Telephone g

Copyright ©® 2025 Accelerated Card Company, LLC, d/b/a Certified Payments. All rights reserved. Accelerated Card Company, LLC is a registered
ISO of Fifth Third Bank, National Association, Cincinnati, OH.

v24.11.13

https:/ireports.certifiedpayments.net/BureaulLogin/Reports/PaymentDetail.aspx?Data=100318885463&Pos=0
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KATE CARROLL Mailing * P.O. Box 2112 * Beaumont, Texas 77704-2112
V|| Jefferson County Physical Address <1149 Pearl » Beaumont, Texas 77701
Tax Assessor Collector Phone: 409-835-8516 = Fax: 409-835-8589

Chief Deputy Operations — Michelle Farnie * Chief Deputy Finance — Cindy Savant, P.C.C.

Tax Refund Determination

Taxpayer name: Eldridge Eric & Alison

Address: 5520 Duff St. Beaumont, TX 77706

Account Number: 054800-000/002200-00000

Amount of Refund: $3,753.04

Reason: The taxpayer made a duplicate electronic check payment of $3,753.04 on

01/25/25 and a subsequent electronic check payment of the same amount
(83,753.04) on 01/31/25 through Certified Payments.

Upon review, by the Tax Office and Auditor’s department, both agreed for placement of an agenda
item on the Commissioners’ Court agenda for approval as required by Tax Code Section 31.11.

ke i 315/ 5

Kate Carroll Date
Jefferson County Tax Assessor-Collector

é - /1885

ounty Auditor employee Date
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Certified Owner:

KATE CARROLL

JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR

P.0. BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US

(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW.JEFFCOTAX.COM

ELDRIDGE ERIC & ALISON
525 YOUNT ST
BEAUMONT , TX 77706-6423

Deposit No: EC02052025
Validation No: 349

Account No:

Operator Code: WCARR

054800-000/002200-00000

Year Tax Unit Name Tax Value
2024 Jefferson County 161,578
2024 Beaumont [sd 161,578
2024 City Of Beaumont 161,578
2024 Port Of Beaumont 161,578
2024 Drainage District #6 161,578
2024 Sabine-Neches Nav, Dist. 161,578
N
Check Number(s):

CCO006716834

Exemptions on this property:

PAYER:

ALISON ELDRIDGE

525 YOUNT ST
BEAUMONT , TX 77706-6423

Tax Rate
Per/100
0.357000

0.964910
0.659663
0.068253
0.184917
0.088000

Legal Description:
IDA REED L14 BLK B

Parcel Address: 5520 DUFF ST
Legal Acres: 0.2187

Remit Seq No: 59544817

Receipt Date: (01/31/2025

Deposit Date: 02/05/2025
Print Date: 03/12/2025

NO.: 94896
Levy Paid P&I Coll Fee Paid Total
576.83 0.00 0.00 576.83
1,559.08 0.00 0.00 1,559.08
1,065.87 0.00 0.00 1,065.87
110.28 0.00 0.00 110.28
298.79 0.00 0.00 298.79
142,19 0.00 0.00 142.19
$3,753.04 $0.00 $0.00 $3,753.04
PAYMENT TYPE: s
eChecks: $3,753.04
Total Applied: - $3,753.04
Change Paid: 50.00
ACCOUNT PAID IN FULL

Page 1 of 1
28.1.12



Certified Payments - Payment Detail

| of 1

PAYMENT DETAIL

2228888 // lefferson County, Texas Tax Office

Payment Detail
Payment ID
Date/Time
Amount

Conv. Fee

Flow

Billing Information

First Name
Middle Name
Last Name
Name Suffix

Address

City

State
Postal Code
Country
Telephone

Email Address

100317400502

1/25/2025 2:38:10 PM

$3,753.04

$1.00

Payment

Alison

Eldridge

525 Yount St

Beaumont

IR

777066423

UNITED STATES

https://reports.certifiedpayments.net/BureauLogin/Reports/PaymentD...

398

REPORT CREATED: 03/11/2025 03:43:54 PM

Check Payment
Account Number
Routing Number
Origination
Outcome

Account Type

Property Information
Payment Type
Property Tax Account Number
Client

Description

Owner Ref

Reference

First Name

Middle Name

Last Name

Name Suffix

Address

City

State
Postal Code
Country

Telephone

ISO of Fifth Third Bank, National Association, Cincinnati, OH.

v24.11.13

XXxx5343
XXxxx1983
Internet
Complete

Checking

05480000000220000000

88000000
Property Tax
0

6716834

Alison

Eldridge

525 Yount St

Beaumont

X

777066423

UNITED STATES

Copyright © 2025 Accelerated Card Company, LLC, d/b/a Certified Payments. All rights reserved. Accelerated Card Company, LLC is a registered

3/11/2025, 3:44 PM



DUPLICATE TAX RECEIPT

Certified Owner:

KATE CARROLL

JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR

P.0. BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US

(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW.JEFFCOTAX.COM

ELDRIDGE ERIC & ALISON
525 YOUNT ST
BEAUMONT , TX 77706-6423

Deposit No: EC02102025
Validation No: 1418

Account No: 054800-000/002200-00000

Operator Code: WCARR

Year Tax Unit Name

2024 Overpay

O e

Check Number(s):
CC006898802

Exemptions on this property:

PAYER:

ALISON ELDRIDGE
525 YOUNT ST
BEAUMONT , TX 77706

Tax Value

0

Tax Rate
Per/100
0.000000

Levy Paid

0.00

nd av M

Legal Descript

ion:

IDA REED L14 BLK B

Parcel Address:
Legal Acres:

Remit Seq No:
Receipt Date:
Deposit Date:

Print Date:

NO.:

5520 DUFF ST
02187

59690537

01/31/2025
02/10/2025
03/07/2025

94896

P&I Coll Fee Paid Total

0.00

0.00 3,753.04

$0.00

$0.00

PAYMENT TYPE:

eChecks:

Total Applied:

Change Paid:

$0.00 $3,753.04

$3,753.04

§3,753.04

$0.00

Page 1 of 1
28.1.12



3/7/25, 12:49 PM Certified Payments - Payment Detail J i
| / 1 cae

PAYMENT DETAIL REPORT CREATED: 0B707/3025 12:49:13 PM

2228888 // Jefferson County, Texas Tax Office

Payment ID 100318979013 Account Number xxxx5343
Date/Time 1/31/2025 11:24:06 PM Routing Number XXXXX1983
Amount $3,753.04 Origination Internet
Conv. Fee $0.17 Outcome Complete
Flow Payment Account Type Checking

First Name Alison Payment Type

Middle Name Property Tax Account Number 05480000000220000000

Last Name Eldridge Client 88000000

Name Suffix Description Property Tax

Address 525 Yount St Owner Ref 0
Reference 6898802

City Beaumont First Name Alison-

State T Middle Name

Postal Code 77706 Last Name Eldridge

Country UNITED STATES Name Suffix

Telephone Address 525 Yount St

Email Address

City Beaumont
State TX

Postal Code 77706

Country UNITED STATES
Telephone TR

Copyright © 2025 Accelerated Card Company, LLC, d/b/a Certified Payments. All rights reserved. Accelerated Card Company, LLC is a registered
1SO of Fifth Third Bank, National Association, Cincinnati, OH.

v24.11.13

https://reports.certifiedpayments.net/BureaulLogin/Reports/PaymentDetail.aspx?Data=100318979013&Pos=0
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- KATE CARROLL Mailing * P.O. Box 2112 » Beaumont, Texas 77704-2112
)= Jefferson County Physical Address *1149 Pearl « Beaumont, Texas 77701
Tax Assessor Collector Phone: 409-835-8516 » Fax: 409-835-8589

Chief Deputy Operations — Michelle Farnie * Chief Deputy Finance — Cindy Savant, P.C.C.

Tax Refund Determination

Taxpayer name: Jones Zona

Address: 296 Ridgeland St. Beaumont, TX 77706

Account Number: 009300-000/005700-00000

Amount of Refund: $7,899.81

Reason: The taxpayer mailed a payment of $7,899.81 on 01/08/25, which paid off the
account in full. The taxpayer mailed a subsequent payment of $7899.81
(posted on 02/04/25), which resulted in an overpayment of $7,899.81.

Upon review, by the Tax Office and Auditor’s department, both agreed for placement of an agenda
item on the Commissioners’ Court agenda for approval as required by Tax Code Section 31.11.

@W 212/

Kate Carroll Date
Jefferson County Tax Assessor-Collector

%‘. A 2§// 95/;2 s

ounty Auditor employee Date
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DUPLICATE TAX RECEIPT

Certified Owner:

KATE CARROLL
JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR
P.0. BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US

(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW.JEFFCOTAX.COM

JONES GENE M II
296 RIDGELAND ST
BEAUMONT , TX 77706-4511

Depasit No: MO108202503A
Validation No: 900000071963338

Account No:

Operator Code: ASHLEYA

Year

2024
2024
2024
2024
2024
2024

Tax Unit Name

Jefferson County
Beaumont [sd

City Of Beaumont

Port Of Beaumont
Drainage District #6
Sabine-Neches Nav. Dist.

>
Check Number(s):

6220

Exemptions on this property:

PAYER:

JONES ZONA

850 PARK ST
BEAUMONT , TX 77701

009300-000/005700-00000

Tax Value

340,107
340,107
340,107
340,107
340,107
340,107

Tax Rate
Per/100

0.357000
0.964910
0.659663
0.068253
0.184917
0.088000

Levy Paid

1,214.18
328173
2,243.56
232.13
628.92
299.29

$7,899.81

Legal Description:

CALDER TERRACE L68 N1/2 L67

Parcel Address:
Legal Acres:

Remit Seq No:
Receipt Date:
Deposit Date:
Print Date:
NO.:

296 RIDGELAND ST

0.5165

58526877

01/08/2025
01/08/2025
03/11/2025

15440

P&I Coll Fee Paid

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

PAYMENT TYPE:
Checks:

Total Applied:

Change Paid:

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

$0.00

ACCOUNT PAID IN FULL

Total

1,214.18
3,281.73
2,243.56
232.13
628.92
299.29

$7,899.81

$7.899.81

$7.899.81

50.00

28.1.12
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& CASH ONLY IF ALL ChockLock™ SECURITY FEATURES LISTED ON BACK INDICATE NO TAMPERING OR CoPYING L5

VSWeD

STELLAR BANK
Zona Jones 35-2572/1130 !
850 Park St. |
Beaumont, TX 77701 12/27/2024 i-
[
E 1 4 Rl T £ gk . B e M e e e S Y
, |
PAY TO THE *x
ERGERIOE Jefferson County Tax Office | $ 7,899 .81

Seven Thousand Elght Hundl—ed Nlnety_N'ne and 81/1OO*******#-&t*i****w*w*ti*w*ki*t-ﬂci******t*t*f*****it**i**w***r*i*tDOLLARS
~{8.BRaIEaTED AGAIRET FRAUGH e
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DUPLICATE TAX RECEIPT 5 405
I ey vant

Certified Owner:

KATE CARROLL
JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR
P.0. BOX 2112, BEAUMONT, TX 77704
EMAIL: PROPERTY@JEFFCOTX.US
(409) 835-8516, WEBSITE: WWW.JEFFCOTAX.COM

Legal Description:

JONES GENE M 11
296 RIDGELAND ST

CALDER TERRACE L68 N1/2 L67

BEAUMONT , TX 77706-4511

Deposit No: RC250312
Validation No: 900000073 165407

Account No: 009300-000/005700-00000

Operator Code: EMONTIEL

Year Tax Unit Name

2024 Overpay

2 i

Check Number(s):
006263

Exemptions on this property:

PAYER:
JONES ZONA
850 PARK ST

Parcel Address: 296 RIDGELAND ST
Legal Acres: 0.5165

Remit Seq No: 59499831

Receipt Date: 01/31/2025

Deposit Date: 02/04/2025
Print Date: 03/12/2025

NO.: 15440
Tax Value  Tax Rate Levy Paid P&I Coll Fee Paid Total
Per/100
0 0.000000 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,899.81
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $7,899.81
PAYMENT TYPE:
Checks: $7.899.81
Total Applied: §7,899.81
Change Paid: $0.00

BEAUMONT , TX 77701

Page 1 of 2
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S CASH ONLY IF ALL CheckLock™ SEGURITY FEATURES LISTED ON BAGK INDICATE NO TAMPERING OR COPYING L

STELLAR BANK
Zona Jones 35-2572/1130
850 Park St.

Beaumont, TX 77701 1/31/2025

TR
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6 | PAYTO THE - 5
e | PO Jefferson County Assessor & Collector | $ 7,899.81 3
Seven Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety-Nine and 81/100***~+++s e R R R e DOLLARS 6

{8 PR TESTED ACAINSGTE AUD 8
Jefferson County Assessor & Collector i
| P.0. Box 2112 ®
Beaumont, TX 77704-2112 g
3
i MEMO el ' &/—T""—’“’“ 3 w 3
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Clint Turner Tim Funchess Office (409) 835-8509
Chief Deputy County Treasurer Fax (409) 839-2347
E-Mail 1149 Pearl Street — Basement E-Mail

Clint.Turner@jeffcotx.us Beaumont, Texas 77701 tim.funchess@jeffcotx.us

March 18, 2025

Judge Jeff R. Branick and
Commissioners Court
Jefferson County Courthouse
Beaumont, Texas 77701

Gentlemen:

Enclosed 1s the Investment Schedule as of February 28, 2025,
including interest earnings.

The weighted average yield to maturity on the County’s investments
1s 4.642%. The 90 day Treasury discount rate on February 28, 2025 was
4.20% and the interest on your checking accounts for the month of
February was 3.95

Included in the attached report are the balances for the County’'s
pledged collateral.

This report meets the reguirements for investment officers in
compliance with the Texas Government Code. Title 10, Section 2256.023.

This should be on the agenda March 25, 2025, to be received and
filed.

Sincerely,

§- . 4

Tim Funchess,CCT,CIO
Enclosure

Agenda should read:
Receive and File Investment Schedule for February, 2025,
including the vear to date total earnings on County funds.



MONTH END FEBRUARY 28, 2025 INVESTMENT SCHEDULE

JEFFERSON COUNTY

3/19/2025

SECURITY SETTLEMENT |PAR AMOUNT PRICE |EXP. AMATURITY CALL # Days #Days CUSIP/C.D. BROKER CURRENT Current ACCRUED FROM Coupon paid BOOK VALUE
DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT PAID PAID __|YIELD Date DATE tomat  |imvested NUMBER DEALER VALUE Price PURCHASE COUPON TO DATE ACCRUED INT.)
INVESTMENTS

TEXAS CLASS $0.00 $0.00 100 0.000% NONE TX-01-0485-4001 TEXAS CLASS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
S

CDs and Securities

FHLB 4.65% 23-Dec-24 $5.000,000.00 $5,000,000.00 100 4.650% 23-Dec-27 23-Dec-25 1028| 1095 3130B4DJ7 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $5,006,900.00 $100.1380 $41,979.17 $0.00 $5,048,879.17
FNMA 4.55% 13-Jan-25 $5,000,000.00 $5,000,000.00 100 4.550% 13-Jan-28 13-Jan-26 1049 1095 3136GA5M7 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $5,004.300.00 $100.0860 $28,437.50 $0.00 $5,032,737.50
FHLB 4.50% 15-Jan-25 $5,000,000.00 $5,000,000.00 100 4.500% 15-Jan-27 16-Jan-26 686 730 3130B4MH1 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $5.011.450.00 $100.2290 $28,875.00 $0.00 $5,038,325.00
FNMA 4.50% (NEW) 18-Feb-25 $5,500,000.00 $5,500,000.00 100 4.500% 18-Feb-28 18-Feb-26 1085 1085 3136GAAH2 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $5,504,400.00 $100.0800 $6,875.00 $0.00 $5,511,275.00
FAMCA 5.02% 23-Jul-24 $3,000,000.00 $3,000,000.00 100 5.020% 23-Jul-27 23-Jul-25 875 1095 31424WLR1 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $3,002,820.00 $100.0940 $14,641.67 $75,300.00 $3,017,461.67
FHLB 5.15 01-Apr-24 $5,000,000.00 $5,000,000.00 100 5.150% 01-Apr-27 01-Apr-25 762 1095 3130BOLWT NATIONAL ALLIANCE $5,000,400.00 $100.0080 $105,145.83 $128,750.00 $5,105,545.83
FNMA 5.50 07-May-24 $5,000,000.00 $5,000,000.00 100 5.500% 07-May-27 07-May-25 798 1095 3135GASF9 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $5,007,250.00 $100.1450 $84,791.67 $137,500.00 $5,092,041.67
FHLB 4.00% 25-Sep-24 $5,000,000.00 $5,001,111.11 100 4.000% 10-Sep-27 10-Sep-25 924 1080 3130B2UF0 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $4,967,600.00 $99.3520 $85,000.00 $0.00 $5,052,600.00
FHLB 4.25% 25-Oct-24 $1,700,000.00 $1,700,000.00 100 4.250% 22-Oct-27 22-Apr-26 966 1092 3130B3G72 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $1,695,716.00 $99.7480 §24,685.42 $0.00 $1,720,401.42
FHLB 4.20% 25-Oct-24 $3,300,000.00 $3,300,000.00 100 4.200% 22-Oct-27 22-Apr-26 956 1092 3130B3FG3 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $3,287,856.00 $99.6320 $47,355.00 $0.00 $3,335,211.00
FAMCA 4.50% 04-Nov-24 $5,000,000.00 $5,000,000.00 100 4.500% 04-Nov-27 04-Nov-25 978 1095 31424W0Q8 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $5,006,900.00 $100.1380 $71,250.00 $0.00 $5,078,150.00

WEIGHTED| EQUIVALENT WEIGHTED TOTAL MARKET TOTAL BOOK
TOTAL PAR AMT. INVESTED AVG. YLD | TREAS. RATE AVG. MATURITY VALUE VALUE

INVESTMENT ACCTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00

GDs and Securities $48,500,000.00 $48,501,111.11 4,642% 3.979% 919 | DAYS f $48,495,592.00 537,036.26 $341,550,00

TOTALS ALL ACCTS: $48,500,000.00 $48,501,111.11 $48,495,592.00 537,036.26 $341,550.00 $49,032,628.26

PLEDGE COLLATERAL REPORT WELLS FARGO COMPLIANCE STATEMENT]|
ALL COUNTY FUNDS This in an unaudited statement made in accordance with provisions of Government Code Title 10 Section 2256.023 The Public Funds Investment Act
AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2025 The investment portfolios of Jefferson County comply with the strategies in the Jefferson County [nvestment Polity and Procedures.

MARKET VALUE OF PLEDGE SECURITIES $250,000,000.00 .(N\: \,MMMQ Ll

BALANCE IN ALL ACCOUNTS: $234,456,606.90

OVER OR (UNDER) AMOUNT: $15,543,393.10 L Danchess, Jefferson Conn sererf Livestment Offieer

108.63%
FEBRUARY 2025, JEFFERSON COUNTY INVESTMENT MATURITIES
MATURED SECURITIES AND INTEREST EARNED

SECURITY PURCHASE PAR AMOUNT PRICE EXPECT.  MATURITY  Coupon Pay # DAYS CUSIP/C.D. BROKER INTEREST

DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT INVESTED PAID YIELD DATE DATE INVEST. NUMBER DEALER EARNINGS

INVESTMENTS

TEXAS CLASS

FNMA 5.15% 16-Feb-24 $5,000,000.00 $5,000,715.28 100 5.150% 12-Feb-27 12-Feb-25 1092 3135GAP21 NATIONAL ALLIANCE $128,750.00 CALLED

$128,750.00

CHECKING INTEREST

POOLED CASH ACCT | FEBRUARY INTEREST 3.95% 28 1004221717 STELLAR BANK $511,514.07

OTHER COUNTY ACCTS FEBRUARY INTEREST 3.95% 28 STELLAR BANK $218,539.50

TAX LICENSE ACCT FEBRUARY INTEREST 3.95% 28 1004224083 STELLAR BANK $2,209.53

$732,263.10
TOTAL $5,000,000.00 $5,000,715.28 $861,013.10 $861,013.10

inv5-2025




FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025
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YIELD TO MATURITY AND INTEREST EARNINGS

MONTH 90 DAY T. BILL INVESTMENT CHECKING TEXAS CLASS TEXAS CLASS
RATE INTEREST EARNED | ACCOUNT YIELD INTEREST YIELD
OCTOBER 4.440% $773,427.18 4.270%
NOVEMBER 4.390% $704,354.07 4.190%
DECEMBER 4.230% $724,783.38 4.140%
JANUARY 4.200% $777,958.63 3.980%
FEBRUARY 4.200% $861,013.10 3.950%
MARCH
APRIL
MAY
JUNE
JULY
AUGUST
SEPTEMBER
ANNUAL TOTALS $3,841,536.36 $0.00 $3,841,536.36
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State of Texas
County of Jefferson

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, INDUSTRIAL RQOAD PROPERTIES LLC, A TEXAS LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY, OWNER OF LOTS 11 & 16, OF INDUSTRIAL SITES-SECTION | OF INDUSTRIAL CITY—BEAUMONT,
TEXAS, RECORDED IN VOLUME 10, PAGE 118, MAP RECORDS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY
DEDICATE AND MAKE AMENDMENT TO SAID LOTS INTO 11A & 16A, OF INDUSTRIAL SITES—SECTION | OF
INDUSTRIAL CITY-BEAUMONT, TEXAS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE V.T.C.S. § 212.014 FOR

THE PURPOSES OF RELOCATING ONE OR MORE LOT LINES.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF THE SAID INDUSTRIAL ROAD PROPERTIES LLC HAS CAUSED THESE PRESENTS TQ BE

EXECUTED BY STEPHEN BROWN, ITS PRESIDENT.

BY:

STEPHEN BROWN, PRESIDENT

State of Texas
County of Jefferson

BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED STEPHEN BROWN, KNOWN

TO ME TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE FOREGOING

INSTRUMENT,  AND

ACKNOWLEDGED TQ ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME FOR THE PURPOSES AND CONSIDERATION THEREIN

STATES AND IN THE CAPACITY THEREIN STATED AS THE ACT AND DEED QOF SAID OWNER.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE,

THIS lq*‘DAY oF ”ﬂ"‘ , 2025

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TE

0
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Type of
Facility

REQUIRED CLEAR SPACES FOR AN OSSF (ON SITE SEWAGE FACILITY)

Usage Rate — Gallons per Day Required Clear Area for
{Without Water Saving Devices)

Usage Rate —Gallons per Day

QSSF (In Square Feet) (with water saving devices)

Required Clear Area for
OSSF {In Square Fest)

Single Family (1—2 Bedrooms)

less than 1500 Sq. Ft.

Single Family (3 Bedrooms)
less than 2500 Sq. Ft.

Single Family (4 Bedrooms)
less than 3500 Sq. Ft.

Single Family (5 Bedrooms)
less than 4500 Sq. Ft.

Single Family (6 Bedrooms)
less than 5500 Sq. Ft.
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300

378

450

525

6428 180
8571 240
10714 300
12857 360
15000 420
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30' DRAINAGE EASEMENT
VOL. 10, PG. 118

5143

6857

8571

10286

12000

#

SCALE 1"=60'

O

VICINITY MAP

N.T.S.

NOTES:

1.

ALL UTILITY EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON INCLUDE THE RIGHT TO TRIM OVERHANGING
TREES AND SHRUBS LOCATED IN THE PROPERTY BELONGING TO OR BEING A PART OF
THIS ADDITION.

2. PLAT IS DRAWN FOR PROPERTY CONVEYANCE ONLY. I[MPROVEMENTS VISIBLE OR
OTHERWISE, ARE NOT SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.

3. COORDINATES SHOWN ARE REFERENCED TO TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM OF 1983,
SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE NAD83.

3. ALL ELEVATIONS ARE REFERENCE TO THE NORTH AMERICAN DVERTICAL DATUM OF 1988
(NAVD88), AND BASED UPON NGS MONUMENT PID BLO243, HAVING A PUBLISHED
ELEVATION OF 20.0 FEET AS REFERENCED TO GEOID18.

4, NO CONSTRUCTION OR OTHER DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION MAY BEGIN UNTIL
ALL JEFFERSON COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET.

5. THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE BEAUMONT INDEPENDENT SCHOOL
DISTRICT.

6. PLATTED PARCEL(S) OF THIS SUBDIVISION LIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF FLOGD
ZONE "X" (White) AS DELINEATED ON THE FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR
JEFFERSON COUNTY, COMMUNITY PANEL #480385-0255 C, DATED AUGUST 8,
2002, FLOOD ZONE "X" ARE AREAS DETERMINED TO BE QUTSIDE 500 YEAR FLOODPLAIN.
WHITELEY INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP DOES NOT WARRANT NOR SUBSCRIBE TO THE
ACCURACY OR SCALE QF SAID MAP.

7. NO STRUCTURE IN THIS SUBDIMISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO A
PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM OR TO AN ON-SITE WASTEWATER SYSTEM, WHICH HAS BEEN
APPROVED AND PERMITTED BY JEFFERSON CQUNTY.

8. NQ STRUCTURE IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO AN
INDIVIDUAL WATER SUPPLY, STATE APPROVED COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM, OR
ENGINEERED RAINWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM.

TILITY NOTES:

ELECTRIC UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY: ENTERGY TEXAS, INC.

TELEPHONE UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY: AT&T

WATER UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY: WEST JEFFERSON COUNTY MUNICIPAL
WAT] TRICT.

MUNICIPAL /ETJ NOTE:

THIS SUBDIVISION LIES WITHIN THE AREA OF EXTRA TERRITORIAL JURISDICTION OF THE CITY
OF BEAUMONT, JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS.
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o o REFERENCE BEARING PER VOL. 10, PG. 118, MRJC
FND 3/4_" (CALL S41°37°00"W 500.00') FND 5/8”
I. ROD FND S41°37'00"W 499.86' . ROD
r S41°37'00"W 250.00° SET 5/8" S41°37'00"W 249.86'
o . ROD- ]
15' UTILTY EASEMENT 15' UTILITY EASEMENT
VOL. 10, PG. 118, MRIC VOL. 10, PG. 118, MRJC
(B
g
< sURVEY
= AD CO
> g n.0. RALRCU 0. 21
< T sE_cT\ TNO 261
g
o
a
=
(=]
o
&
<C
<)
&
=
=
=)
\'01 vl \’Qﬂ 1®
o
~ 9 LOTS 11 & 16
8 § INDUSTRIAL ROAD PROPERTIES LLC
S @ CF NO. 2020037878
© w OPRJC
=L|J H
R
M @
g 8 _
vl Y
=4 3 e
5 Q @
T 15" UTILTY EASEMENT 3 15' UTILITY EASEMENT &
VOL. 10, PG. 118 5 voL. 19, PG. 118 @ o
MRJC & MRJC -
(TO BE ABANDONED & (T0 BE ABANDONED S
PER THIS PLAT) , PER THIS PLAT) 3 a
SRR . ORGINAL LOT UNE_ | 188
io =
o~ O
— . - — —1& 2
15" UTILITY EASEMENT @ I
VOL. 10, PG. 118, MRJC ; -
as
2
CT\ON \ LOT 11A LOT 16A L
- SITE . SE FND 4.683 ACRES FND 4.591 ACRES 2
USTR ] EXA S
\ND oF EAUMONT‘ ¥ #6445 #6531 8
ny - 118 ==
A G. wes=
NDUSTR o1, 10, ¥ W3
RJIC 5
=
(7 I, EE e
[
Ww=s3
A E S5
\’0" \1 \,0“ " - ;O>
: ac
'
g
FND. SCRIBED
X" IN' CONC.
FND S41°51'14"W 19.98'
(CALL S41°37'00"W 20.00")
is
3
P
W = O -
= . &)
3 g x| '37'“
o
-4 0
o
Z
LL
FND 5/8” I. ROD
W/CAP STAMPED . ———
N41°33'25"E 270.00' N41'33'25"E 250.00° |. ROD
T e
FND N41°33'25"E 520.00
(CALL N41°37'00"E 520.00")
N: 13,938,978.0 .
E: 3,486,750.8 E 1;‘232%;'2
L= 1748 INDUSTRIAL ROAD
(CALLED INDUSTRY ROAD PER PLAT)
(100" ROW)
State of Texas
County of Jefferson
APPROVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS ON THE AD. 2025,

AUTHORIZING THE FILING FOR RECORD OF THIS PLAT. JEFFERSON COUNTY ASSUMES NO OBLIGATIONS FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF STREETS,

ROADS, DRAINAGE OR ANY OTHER IMPROVEMENTS.

COMMISSIONER PRECINCT NO. 1
JEFFERSON CQUNTY, TEXAS

COMMISSIONER PRECINCT NO. 2
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

COMMISSIONER PRECINCT NO. 3
JEFFERSON CQUNTY, TEXAS

COUNTY JUDGE
JEFFERSON CQUNTY, TEXAS

County Engineer's Certificate

COMMISSIONER PRECINCT NO. 4
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

I, MICHELLE FALGOUT P.E., COUNTY ENGINEER OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PLAT OF THIS SUBDIVISION COMPLIES WITH
ALL EXISTING RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THIS QFFICE AS ADOPTED BY THE COMMISSIONER'S COURT OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

MICHELLE FALGOUT P.E.
COUNTY ENGINEER

State of Texas
County of Jefferson

l, , COUNTY CLERK OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING
INSTRUMENT OF WRITING WITH ITS CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION WAS FILED FOR RECORD IN MY OFFICE ON THE

, 2025, AT 0'CLOCK _M., AND DULY RECORDED ON THE DAY OF

IN THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS, IN CLERK'S FILE NO.

DAY OF
, 2025, AT 0'CLOCK __M,,

COUNTY CLERK, JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK, JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

Surveyor's Certificate

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT |, MICHAEL L. CHOATE, A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF TEXAS CERTIFY
THAT THIS PLAT HAS BEEN PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY ON THE GROUND, THAT ALL CORNERS WERE
VEY BY ME AND IS IN

FOUND OR SET AS NOTED AND THAT THIS PLAT CORRECTLY REPRESENTS SAID SUR
ACCORDANCE WITH THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY.

MICHAEL L. CHOATE, REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL
LAND SURVEYOR, NO. 6893

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME BY WICHAEL L. CHOATE AND GIVEN UNDER
mis 197 oar oF _ Mare , 2025.

o
&

\\\\“““"”””I/,
\ RETTAL
VA ._-' o) & "..

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS

» N\
wy

ACRES: 9.274

REPLAT
OF

LOTS 11 & 16

INDUSTRIAL SITES - SECTION |

OF
INDUSTRIAL CITY - BEAUMONT, TEXAS

VOL. 10, PG. 118 MAP RECORDS
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS
INTO
LOTS 11A & 16A

INDUSTRIAL SITES - SECTION |

OF

INDUSTRIAL CITY - BEAUMONT, TEXAS

T & N.O. RAILROAD CO. SURVEY
SECTION NO. 21
ABSTRACT NO. 261 .
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

JWHITELEY

INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP
Texas Engineering Firm No. F-2633

Texas Surveying Firm No. 10106700
Louisiana Surveying Firm No. VF0000874

MY COMMISSION ExPRes: 8 -28~ A% E
g 855 Langham Road, #14, Beaumont, Texas 77707
F 409-892-0421| www.whiteleyinfra.com
i MARCH 2025 SCALE 1"=60'

JOB NO. 25-0125

W:\ENGINEERING\ 2025\ 25—0125\25—0125 REPLAT.DWG
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STATE OF TEXAS § COMMISSIONERS’ COURT

wn

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON § OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

BE IT REMEMBERED at a meeting of Commissioners’ Court of Jefferson County, Texas, held on
the_25 day of MARCH , 2025, on motion made by MICHAEL S SINEGAEommissioner of
Precinct No. 3, and seconded byCARY ERICKSON , Commissioner of Precinct No. _2 .
the following RESOLUTION was adopted:

WHEREAS, David Fling has devoted 33 years and 2 months of his life serving the citizens of
Jefferson County with pride and professionalism; and

WHEREAS, David Fling has made an outstanding contribution to the Jefferson County Juvenile
Probation Department and the quality of Juvenile Justice in Jefferson County. During his career
with Jefferson County, he served admirably in the capacity of a Juvenile Detention Officer,
Intensive Supervision Juvenile Probation Officer at JCYA and Casework Supervisor at JCYA.

WHEREAS, through hard work and commitment to excellence, David Fling has earned the
respect of his colleagues and the citizens of Jefferson County; and

WHEREAS, having made a significant contribution to the Juvenile Probation Department, David
Fling is recognized for his unselfish devotion to the common good and welfare of the citizens of
Jefferson County; and will be missed by his friends and co-workers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Jefferson County Commissioners Court does

hereby honor and commend David Fling for his dedicated service as a valuable employee of
Jefferson County Juvenile Probation Department and wishes him well in his retirement.

SIGNED this _ 25 day of _ MARCH , 2025.
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JUDGE JEFF R. BRANICK
County Judge

53,
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i £

COMMIISSIONER Brandon Willis COMMISSIONER MICHAEL S.
Precinct No. 1 Precinct No. 3

COMMISSIONER CARY ERICKSON ~ COMMISSIONER EVERETTE p. ALFRED
Precinct No. 2 Precinct No. 4
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Resolution

STATE OF TEXAS COMMISSIONERS COURT

wWOon Lo Lo

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS

BE IT REMEMBERED at a meeting of Commissioners Court of Jefferson County, Texas, held
onthe 25 day of MARCH , 2025, on motion made by MICHAEL S. SINEGAL |
Commissioner of Precinct No. 3 , and seconded by CARY ERICKSON , Commissioner of
Precinct No. 2 , the following Resolution was adopted:

WHEREAS, Bruce P. Minter, has devoted 32 years of his life serving the people of Jefferson County with
pride and professionalism; and

WHEREAS, Bruce P. Minter, has dedicated his talents and services as a Corrections Officer in the
Correctional Facility for the Jefferson County Sheriff’s Office; and

WHEREAS, Bruce P. Minter, has pledged his services as a Corrections Officer, Sergeant, Lieutenant and
Captain. He has worked many positions including Dorm Officer, Booking, Releases, Visitation, Training
Supervisor, and Records and Technology Supervisor. He has served as a Pepper Ball Instructor, Honor Guard
Commander, Fire Arm Instructor, Defensive Tactics Instructor, and TCOLE Instructor at the Jefferson County
Correctional Facility, which includes following policies, procedures, rules and regulations for the care and
custody of inmates, also responding to many emergency situations involving the evacuation of inmates for several
hurricanes, for the Jefferson County Sheriff’s Office; and

WHEREAS, through hard work and commitment to excellence, Bruce P. Minter, has earned the respect of
his colleagues and the citizens of Jefferson County; and

WHEREAS, having made a significant contribution to the Jefferson County Sheriffs’ Office, Bruce P.
Minter, is recognized for his unselfish devotion to the common good and welfare of the citizens of Jefferson
County; and will always be missed by his friends and co-workers.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Jefferson County Commissioners Court does
hereby honor and commend Bruce P. Minter, for his dedicated service as a valuable employee of
Jefferson County and wishes him well in his retirement. -

SIGNED this 25 day of MARCH , d023,

JUDGE JEFF R. BRANICK

County Judge g
COMMISSIONER BRANDON WILLIS COMMISSIONER MICHAEL S SINEGAL
Precinct No. 1 Precinct No. 3
COMMISHIONER CARY ERICKSON COMMISSIONER E )ERETTE D. ALFRED

Precinct No72 Precinct No. 4 ,





